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PART |

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INDUSTRY DATA

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forw#mdking statements. All statements other than states of historical fact contained
this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-lookstgtements, including statements regarding thgress and timing of our clinical
programs, regulatory filings and commercializatamtivities, and the potential clinical benefitsietg and market potential of our product
candidates, as well as more general statementsdiegaur expectations for future financial and m@ti@nal performance, regulatory
environment, and market trends. In some casescgoudentify forward-looking statements by termogy such as “may,” “would,” “should,”
“could,” “expects,” “aims,” “plans,” “anticipates,'believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “projects, pbtential,” or “continue”; the negative of
these terms; or other comparable terminology. Thegements include but are not limited to statémmyarding the commercial success of
Vascepa in its first approved indication, the MARMdication; the potential for, conditions to, anding of, approval of the Vascepa
Supplemental New Drug Application, or SNDA, by theited States Food and Drug Administration, or FDAfs potential second indication,
the ANCHOR indication; the timing of enrollmentténim results or final results of our REDUCE-IT dytithe safety and efficacy of our
product candidates; potential for Vascepa to be&etad by partners outside of the United Statesstiope of our intellectual property
protection and the likelihood of securing additibpatent protection; estimates of the potentialkaets for our product candidates; the
likelihood of qualifying additional third party mafacturing suppliers and estimates of the capatitpanufacturing and other facilities to
support our products; our operating and growthtesgiias; our industry; our projected cash needsidity and capital resources; and our
expected future revenues, operations and expeaditur

Forward-looking statements are only current préafist and are subject to known and unknown risksetainties, and other factors that
may cause our or our industry’s actual resultslkwef activity, performance, or achievements tortagerially different from those anticipated
by such statements. These factors include, amdreg dtings, those listed under “Risk Factors” enit1A of Part | of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual Report omFd0-K. These and other factors could cause suldiffer materially from those
expressed in these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the expectations refledtetthe forward-looking statements contained is #hiinual Report on Form 10-K are
reasonable, we cannot guarantee future result®rpeance, or achievements. Except as requiredveyve are under no duty to update or
revise any of such forward-looking statements, Wleas a result of new information, future evemtstberwise, after the date of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Unless otherwise indicated, information containethis Annual Report on Form 10-K concerning owdurct candidates, the number of
patients that may benefit from these product caaidigland the potential commercial opportunity forroduct candidates, is based on
information from independent industry analysts #mdi-party sources (including industry publicapsurveys, and forecasts), our internal
research, and management estimates. Managemenatestiare derived from publicly available inforroatreleased by independent industry
analysts and third-party sources, as well as data éur internal research, and based on assumptiads by us based on such data and our
knowledge of such industry, which we believe tad@sonable. None of the sources cited in this AhReport on Form 10-K has consented to
the inclusion of any data from its reports, norédnae sought their consent. Our internal researsmbabeen verified by any independent
source, and we have not independently verifiedthing-party information. While we believe that suaformation included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K is generally reliable, sucloinfation is inherently imprecise. In addition, gatjons, assumptions, and estimates of our
future performance are necessarily subject to a tégree of uncertainty and risk due to a variéfiactors, including those described in “Risk
Factors” in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual ReporForm 10-K. These and other factors
could cause results to differ materially from thespressed in the estimates made by the indepepdeigs and by us.
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ltem 1. Business

References in this report to “Amarin,” the “Compahywe,” “our” and “us” refer to Amarin Corporation plc and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis, unless otherwise indicated.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the registl and unregistered trademarks and service markbker parties.

Amarin Corporation plc (formerly Ethical Holding&pis a public limited company incorporated unttex laws of England and Wales.
Amarin Corporation plc was originally incorporat@dEngland as a private limited company on March989 under the Companies Act 1985,
and re-registered in England as a public limiteshpany on March 19, 1993.

Our registered office is located at One New Chahgadon EC4M 9AF, England. Our principal officeg dmcated at 2 Pembroke Hou
Upper Pembroke Street 28-32, Dublin 2 Ireland. @imary office in the United States is located 48Q Route 206, Bedminster, NJ 07921,
USA. Our telephone number at that location is (908-1315.

For purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,adinary shares may also be referred to as “comshares” or “common stock.”

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company with expentidipid science focused on the commercializatiod development of therapeutics to
improve cardiovascular health.

Our lead product, Vascepa (icosapent ethyl) capsise@pproved by the U.S. Food and Drug Admintistna or FDA, for use as an
adjunct to diet to reduce triglyceride levels inkaghatients with severe (TG 500 mg/dL) hypertriglyceridemia. Vascepa is avdddh the
United States by prescription only. We began sglind marketing Vascepa in the United States inalgrm2013. We sell Vascepa principally
to a limited number of major wholesalers, as weltalected regional wholesalers and specialty ph@ymroviders, or collectively, its
Distributors, that in turn resell Vascepa to repdibrmacies for subsequent resale to patients eathicare providers. We market Vascepa
through our sales force of approximately 150 sptegessionals, including sales representativeslagid managers. In March 2014, we enterec
into a co-promotion agreement with Kowa PharmacaigiAmerica, Inc. under which approximately 250M8dPharmaceuticals America, Inc.
sales representatives began to devote a substpatiadn of their time to promoting Vascepa stagtin May 2014. We operate in one business
segment.

Triglycerides are fats in the blood. Hypertriglyidemia refers to a condition in which patients hhigh levels of triglycerides in the
bloodstream. It is estimated that over 40 milliciulés in the United States have elevated trighd=eievels (TG 200 mg/dL) and
approximately 4.0 million people in the United &smhave severely high triglyceride levels (TG0® mg/dL), commonly known as very high
triglyceride levels. According tdhe American Heart Association Scientific Statemantriglycerides and Cardiovascular Dised2611),
triglycerides also provide important informationaamarker associated with the risk for heart diseaml stroke, especially when an individual
also has low high-density lipoprotein cholesteoolHDL-C (often referred to as “good” cholesteraljd elevated levels of LDL-C (often
referred to as “bad” cholesterol). Guidelines fog tnanagement of very high triglyceride levels ssgghat reducing triglyceride levels is the
primary goal in patients to reduce the risk of aquancreatitis. The effect of Vascepa on cardiavasenortality and morbidity, or the risk for
pancreatitis, in patients with hypertriglyceriderhis not been determined.

The potential efficacy and safety of Vascepa (knawits development stage as AMR 101) was studigd/o Phase 3 clinical trials, the
MARINE trial and the ANCHOR trial. At a daily dosé 4 grams of Vascepa, the dose at which we reqdestd received FDA approval for
Vascepa, these trials showed favorable clinical
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results in their respective patient populationeeishucing triglyceride levels without increasing LIl levels in the MARINE trial and with a
statistically significant decrease in LDL-C leveishe ANCHOR trial, in each case, relative to plag. These trials also showed favorable
results, particularly with the 4-gram daily doseMafscepa, in other important lipid and inflammatmomarkers, including apolipoprotein B
(apo B), non-high-density lipoprotein cholestermi-HDL-C), total-cholesterol (TC), very low-densiipoprotein cholesterol (VLDL-C),
lipoprotein-associated phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2) high sensitivity C-reactive protein (hs-CRR)tHese trials, the most commonly
reported adverse reaction (incidence >2% and grésda placebo) in Vascepa-treated patients wasadgia (joint pain) (2.3% for Vascepa vs.
1.0% for placebo).

We are also developing Vascepa for the treatmepaténts with high (TG 200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) triglyceride levels whe als«
on statin therapy for elevated low-density lipopiotcholesterol, or LDL-C, levels which we refera® mixed dyslipidemia. We refer to this
second proposed indication for Vascepa as the ANRIi@ication. The FDA has stated that it views pih@posed ANCHOR indication as
ostensibly and impliedly an indication to reducedt@vascular risk. In addition, in December 201&, announced commencement of patient
dosing in our cardiovascular outcomes study of ¥pactitied REDUCE-IT (Reduction of Cardiovasclaents with EPA—Intervention
Trial). The REDUCE-IT study is designed to evaluste efficacy of Vascepa in reducing major cardgmdar events in a high risk patient
population on statin therapy.

We have a pending supplemental new drug applicabioeNDA, with the FDA that seeks marketing appilaf Vascepa for use in the
ANCHOR indication. On October 16, 2013, the FDAwemed an advisory committee to review our sSNDAsTddvisory committee was not
asked by the FDA to evaluate whether Vascepa étfe in lowering triglycerides in the studied péation, the ANCHOR indication as
specified in the SNDA. Rather, the advisory pana$wasked whether Vascepa would improve cardiovaisoutcomes or whether approval of
the ANCHOR indication should wait for successfulngdetion of the REDUCHT study, the first prospective study of cardiouaac outcome:
in patients who have high triglyceride levels desptatin therapy. The advisory committee voted 8 against recommending approval of the
ANCHOR indication based on information presentethatmeeting. The FDA considers the recommendati@uvisory committees, but final
decisions on the approval of new drug applicatemesmade by the FDA. The FDA has communicated thatsVascepa demonstrated a
reduction in triglycerides over placebo in the ANGR study and urged us to complete the REDUCE-I@liogascular outcomes study.

The ANCHOR clinical study was conducted under agpgrotocol assessment, or SPA, agreement wigh-ibA. The law governing
SPA agreements requires that if the results ofrtaeconducted under the SPA substantiate the tgsis of the protocol covered by the SPA,
the FDA must use the data from the protocol asgfatte primary basis for approval of the prodécSPA agreement is not a guarantee of
FDA approval of the related new drug applicationrSRA agreement is generally binding upon the FDéepkin limited circumstances, suct
if the FDA identifies a substantial scientific igsessential to determining safety or efficacy efdinug after the study begins that rises to the
level of a public health concern, or if the stugpmssor fails to follow the protocol that was agregdn with the FDA. On October 29, 2013,
FDA rescinded the ANCHOR study SPA agreement becthesFDA determined that a substantial scien8Bae essential to determining the
effectiveness of Vascepa in the studied populatias identified after testing began. As a basigHir determination, the FDA communicated
that it determined that the cumulative results flmmcome studies of other triglyceride-loweringghdailed to support the hypothesis that a
triglyceride-lowering drug significantly reducesthisk for cardiovascular events among the pomrattudied in the ANCHOR trial. Thus, the
FDA stated that while information we submitted song testing the hypothesis that Vascepa 4 gramsiisus placebo reduces major advers
cardiovascular events in statin-treated subjedis kesidually high triglyceride levels, as is bestgdied in the Vascepa REDUCE-IT
cardiovascular outcomes study, the FDA no longesitters a change in serum triglyceride levels amsufficient to establish the
effectiveness of a drug intended to reduce cardiovar risk in subjects with serum triglyceridedis/below 500 mg/dL.

Beginning in November 2013, we sought reconsidenadind appealed the SPA rescission decision te tewels of increasing authority
within the FDA and were denied each time, mostmtgén September 2014.
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Based on FDA's repeated position in its appealalsraind its internal consultation with FDA offidadt higher levels, we informed the FDA
that we did not intend to appeal the SPA resciskidher.

The FDA did not take action on the ANCHOR sNDA hg Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, gadkdor completion of
FDA's review, December 20, 2013. Given our Septan2idd4 determination to not appeal the SPA reswiskirther, we expect the FDA to
take action on our pending ANCHOR sNDA in the neduire. The FDA has not committed to a specifieedat this action.

We are currently focused on the ongoing REDUCEdiidmvascular outcomes study of Vascepa. REDUCEIMultinational,
prospective, randomized, double-blind, placebo+wdied study, is the first prospective cardiovaacwutcomes study of any drug in a
population of patients who, despite stable stéémdpy, have elevated triglyceride levels. Basetherresults of REDUCE-IT, we plan to seek
additional indications for Vascepa beyond the iatians studied in the ANCHOR and MARINE trials.REDUCE-IT, cardiovascular event
rates for patients on stable statin therapy plus §sams per day of Vascepa will be compared tdicgascular event rates for patients on st
statin therapy plus placebo. The REDUCE-IT studyesigned to be completed after reaching an aggregenber of cardiovascular events.
Based on projected event rates, we estimate the REDIT study can be completed in or about 2017 wetults then expected to be available
and published in 2018. An interim review of thdatty and safety results of the trial is schedidedccur upon reaching 60% of the target
aggregate number of cardiovascular events. We mtlyrexpect this interim review by the independéata monitoring committee (DMC) to
occur during 2016. The DMC has been more frequaenthmining interim reviews of the safety data frihva study. Based on such safety
reviews, the DMC has advised us that we shouldimoatthe study as planned. Amarin remains blindealltdata from the study. Over 90% of
the 8,000 patients targeted for enrollment in tEORICE-IT study have been enrolled.

Our scientific rationale for the REDUCE-IT studysispported by (i) epidemiological data that suggektvated triglyceride levels
correlate with increased cardiovascular diseage (i} genetic data that suggests triglyceride/anttiglyceride-rich lipoproteins (as well as
low-density lipoprotein cholesterol (LDL cholestBr&nown as bad cholesterol) are independentthéncausal pathway for cardiovascular
disease and (iii) clinical data that suggest sutstitriglyceride reduction in patients with eléed baseline triglyceride levels correlates with
reduced cardiovascular risk. Our scientific ratierfar the REDUCE-IT study is also supported byesrsh on the differentiated effects of the
active ingredient in Vascepa, including the antiaxit properties and effects on inflammation markssociated with atherosclerosis. While
various epidemiological data, genetics data, dihiata and outcomes data support a correlatiomeaet triglyceride levels and cardiovascular
disease, the cardiovascular benefits of loweriigdytrerides in the at-risk population being studiedREDUCE-IT has not previously been
evaluated in a prospectively run, double blinddag¢gbo controlled outcomes study.

Based on our communications with the FDA, we cutyesxpect that final positive results from the RBOE-IT outcomes study will be
required for label expansion for Vascepa. Thereb@mno assurance that we will be successful irefforts to obtain a label expansion
reflecting the ANCHOR clinical trial whether or n@t obtain final positive results from the REDUCEdutcomes study. If the FDA does not
approve the ANCHOR indication, it could have a matémpact on our future results of operations &indncial condition.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to lower opegexpenses following the recommendation of thesadyicommittee to the FDA
against approval of the ANCHOR indication, we impénted a worldwide reduction in force of approxieia60% of our staff positions. The
majority of affected staff members were sales msiftnals who supported the initial commercial lduotVascepa. We incurred approxima
$2.8 million in charges related to the reductiomoirce, all of which includes cash expendituresdioe-time termination benefits and associate
costs. The charges were recorded in the fourthtguaf 2013 and the related payments were madbebfjrst half of 2014. As part of the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18es representatives, excluding sales managemehe United States in sales territories tha
we believe have demonstrated the greatest potéotiglascepa sales growth. This team covers tlgetdrase of physicians responsible for the
majority of Vascepa
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prescription volume and growth since its launckanly 2013. With these changes and the resultigptdase coverage, as well as the additiol
of the promotional efforts of 250 sales represérgatfrom Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. tregdn in May 2014, we anticipate
continued Vascepa revenue growth over time. Weatsigipate that such sales growth may be incasistom period to period.

Commercialization Strategy

Vascepa became commercially available in the Uriiades by prescription in January 2013 when wencented sales and shipments to
our network of U.S.-based wholesalers. We commetiedommercial launch of Vascepa in the UnitedeStan January 2013 with
approximately 275 sales representatives. Vascepadtayet been approved or commercially launchesiael of the United States. In October
2013, we reduced our number of sales represengdtivthe United States to approximately 130, exolgdales management, to focus on the
sales territories that we believe have demonstititedreatest potential for Vascepa sales growtandiv market Vascepa in the United State:
through our sales force of approximately 150 spiefessionals and their managers. Commencing imitldle of the second quarter of 2014,
in addition to promotion by our sales represenéstjapproximately 250 Kowa Pharmaceuticals Amehea,sales representatives began
promoting Vascepa. We also employ various markgigngonnel to support our commercialization of \égsc Our clinical and commercial
supply is provided to us under agreements withouarthird-party suppliers. As of February 1, 20dr 26,000 clinicians had written
prescriptions for Vascepa.

Under the co-promotion agreement with Kowa Pharmécas America, Inc., under which promotion commeethin May 2014, both
parties have agreed to use commercially reasordfiolgs to promote, detail and optimize sales o$d&pa in the United States and have ac
to specific performance requirements detailed érthated agreement. The performance requiremegltedie a negotiated minimum number of
sales details to be delivered by each party ifiteeand second position, the use of a negotiatedber of minimum sales representatives fron
each party, including no less than 250 Kowa Phaew#als America, Inc. sales representatives amédthievement of minimum levels of
Vascepa revenue in 2015 and beyond. Kowa PharmeaksuAmerica, Inc. has also agreed to continusetr the costs incurred for its sales
force associated with the commercialization of \égscand to pay for certain incremental costs aatmtivith the use of its sales force, suc
sample costs and costs for promotional and mawdketiaterials. We will continue to recognize all reue from sales of Vascepa. In exchange
for Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc.’s co-promoél services, Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Bentitled to a quarterly co-promotion
fee based on a percentage of aggregate Vascemargangins that increases during the term. The ptage of aggregate Vascepa gross
margins earned by Kowa Pharmaceuticals America,isrscheduled to increase from the high singléslig 2014, to mid-teen percent levels
in 2015, and to the low twenty percent levels il&0subject to certain adjustments. The term &f ¢bipromotion agreement expires
December 31, 2018.

Based on monthly compilations of data provided Ilyi party, Symphony Health Solutions, the esteadanumber of normalized total
Vascepa prescriptions for the three months endegiber 31, 2014 was approximately 146,000 as cadparl132,000, 110,000, 93,000 and
94,000 prescriptions in the three months endedefdmr 30, 2014, June 30, 2014, March 31, 2014 auémber 31, 2013, respectively.
According to data from another third party, IMS Hleathe estimated number of normalized total Vascerescriptions for the three months
ended December 31, 2014 was approximately 131,9@0mapared to 113,000, 93,000, 78,000 and 79,08srpptions in the three months
ended September 30, 2014, June 30, 2014 and Mar@034 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Nazethtotal prescriptions represent
the estimated total number of Vascepa prescripsbifged to patients, calculated on a normalizeisi{ae., total capsules shipped divided by
120 capsules, or one month’s supply). The datartegp@bove is based on information made availabiestfrom a third party resource and may
be subject to adjustment and may overstate or stateractual prescriptions. Timing of shipmentahmlesalers, as used for revenue
recognition purposes, and timing of prescriptiom&stimated by these third parties may differ frmriod to period.

Although we believe these data are prepared omiads-period basis in a manner that is genemlysistent and that such results are
generally indicative of current prescription trentiese data are based on
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estimates and should not be relied upon as def#nith addition, because we had limited sellingdmisduring the year ended December 31,
2013, we only recognized revenue on product thatnesold for purposes of filling prescriptions. $a@rescription data may differ from data
reported by other third parties.

Prior to commencing our U.S. commercial launch aétepa in January 2013, we had no revenue fromeydas8ecause of our limited
selling history, changes in the size of our satesd, our co-promotion agreement, and uncertagggnding resolution of the ANCHOR sNDA
with the FDA, we do not currently provide quantifieevenue guidance. While we expect to be abledw §/ascepa revenues, we provide no
guantified guidance regarding anticipated level¥adcepa prescriptions or revenues and no suclagedgdshould be inferred from the
operating metrics described above. We believeitivastors should view the above-referenced opegatiatrics with caution, as data for this
limited period may not be representative of a treosistent with the results presented or otherpiisdictive of future results. Seasonal
fluctuations in pharmaceutical sales, for examplay affect future prescription trends of Vascegac@uld changes in prescriber sentiment an
other factors. We believe investors should consideresults over several quarters, or longer, feafitaking an assessment about potential
future performance.

We secured managed care coverage for over 21®miilies, including as of February 1, 2015 over fr#iion lives covered on Tier 2
for formulary purposes.

The commercialization of a new pharmaceutical pebitia complex undertaking, and our ability teeefively and profitably
commercialize Vascepa will depend in part on oulitglio generate market demand for Vascepa threedjication, marketing and sales
activities, our ability to achieve market acceptantVascepa, our ability to generate product reeesmd our ability to receive adequate levels
of reimbursement from third-party payers. Sd@isk Factors—Risks Related to the CommercializatimhDevelopment of Vascefia

Research and Development Update

In September 2014, we announced our continued cbment to completing the ongoing REDUCE-IT cardiadar outcomes study and
outlined reasons why we believe that this studyoisitioned for success. This multinational, prospecrandomized, double-blind, placebo-
controlled study is the first prospective cardiardar outcomes study of any drug in a populatiopatfents who, despite stable statin therapy,
have elevated triglyceride levels.

We have over 7,300 patients enrolled in the REDUTEtudy. We currently estimate that we will contplpatient enrollment in this
study within 2015. The REDUCE-IT study is desighedthe completed after reaching an aggregate nuoflzardiovascular events. Based on
projected event rates, we estimate the REDUCEu@ystan be completed in or about 2017 with reshits expected to be available and
published in 2018. Based on the results of REDUTE~re may seek additional indicated uses for Vpadeeyond the indications studied in
ANCHOR or MARINE trials. An interim review of theffeeacy and safety results of the trial is schedui® occur upon reaching 60% of the
target aggregate number of cardiovascular evengsciifently expect this interim review by the indagent data monitoring committee
(DMC) to occur during 2016. As is typical, the s&ttal threshold for defining overwhelming effigaon the primary endpoint and stopping
study early at the interim analysis is considerdtijjher than the threshold for defining statistgighificance at the end of the study. Amarin
remains blinded to all data from the study.

Our scientific rationale for the REDUCE-IT studysispported by (i) epidemiological data that suggebktvated triglyceride levels
correlate with increased cardiovascular diseage (i} genetic data that suggests triglyceride/anttiglyceride-rich lipoproteins (as well as
low-density lipoprotein cholesterol (LDL cholestBr&nown as bad cholesterol) are independentiyéncausal pathway for cardiovascular
disease and (iii) clinical data that suggest sutstitriglyceride reduction in patients with eléed baseline triglyceride levels correlates with
reduced cardiovascular risk. Our scientific ratierfar the REDUCE-IT study is also supported byesrsh on the differentiated effects of the
active ingredient in Vascepa, including the antiaxit properties and effects on inflammation markssociated with atherosclerosis.
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Commercial Supply Update

During 2013 and 2014, all of our active pharmaaaltingredient, or API, was acquired through twpiers, Nisshin and Chemport.
Much of the inventory sold in 2014 was purchase?(h3 from Nisshin at a price which is higher tleapected future average API costs.

During 2014, we reached a settlement agreementanfilnmer supplier, BASF, under which we receivadfand for previous material
purchases of $3.0 million, included within othezcdme in the statement of operations. The amoustpply we seek to purchase in 2014 and
beyond will depend on the level of growth of Vaszegvenues.

Financial Position

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents talafi$119.5 million at December 31, 2014 is sigfit to fund our projected
operations for at least the next twelve months.

Lipid Disorders and Cardiovascular Disease

Heart attacks, strokes and other cardiovasculartsvepresent the leading cause of death and tiigatthong men and women in
western societies. According to the Heart DiseaskStroke Statistics—2015 Update from the Ameridaart Association, more than 1 out of
every 3 adults in the U.S. (approximately 86 mil)icurrently lives with one or more types of caxdiscular disease; an estimated 935,000
or recurrent coronary heart diseases (CHD) and00®3ew or recurrent strokes occur each year; @mated 31 million adultg 20 years of
age have high total serum cholesterol lev&l240 mg/dL), and an estimated 74 million aded®0 years of age have borderline high or high
low-density lipoprotein (“bad”) cholesterol, or LBC, levels (= 130 mg/dL).

In addition to cholesterol, lipoproteins such ad.Ldarry fats in the form of triglycerides. Hypedhyceridemia refers to a condition in
which patients have high levels of triglycerideghir bloodstream and has been recognized as gpeindent risk factor for cardiovascular
disease. Triglyceride levels provide important infation as a marker associated with the risk farth@isease and stroke, especially when an
individual also has low high density lipoproteirotdsterol (HDL-C; often called “good” cholesterald elevated levels of LDL-C. The effect
of Vascepa on cardiovascular mortality and morittitpatients with hypertriglyceridemia has not beketermined.

Guidelines for the management of very high trighae levels & 500 mg/dL) suggest that reducing triglyceride Isvslthe primary
treatment goal in these patients to reduce theofisicute pancreatitis. Treating LDL-C remainsm@apartant secondary goal. Other important
parameters to consider in patients with very higiiyicerides include levels of apolipoprotein B ¢ap), non-HDL-C, very low density
lipoprotein cholesterol (VLDL-C), and HDL-C. Thefeft of Vascepa on the risk for pancreatitis irigrats with hypertriglyceridemia has not
been determined.

It is estimated that over 40 million adults in theited States have elevated triglyceride level206 mg/dL and approximately 3 to
4 million people in the United States have venhhigglyceride levels £ 500 mg/dL). Since 1976, mean triglyceride levelgehmcreased, in
concert with the growing epidemic of obesity, insuksistance, and type 2 diabetes mellitus. Inrasty mean LDL-C levels have decreased.

Mixed dyslipidemia refers to a condition in whicatignts have a combination of two or more lipid @omalities including elevated
triglycerides, low HDL-C, and/or elevated LDL-C. @dypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia acenponents of a range of lipid
disorders collectively referred to as dyslipideniigslipidemia has been linked to atherosclerosimroonly referred to as hardening of the
arteries.
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Limitations of Current Therapies

It is estimated that approximately 4% or less & ladults with triglyceride levets 200 mg/dL are currently receiving prescription
medication for lowering triglycerides. Many of tlegsatients are taking statin therapy directed pilgnat lowering their LDL-C levels.

The leading treatments to lower triglyceride le\aais fibrates (fenofibrate and gemfibrozil), statand a prescription only omega-3 fatty
acid mixture, known as LovaZa in the United Stad@s, as Omacdt in Europe. The use of fenofibratadead to abnormal liver function
tests (an increase in ALT (alanine transaminas&S (aspartate transaminase), which are liver eresy and are commonly measured
clinically as a part of a diagnostic liver functitest to determine liver health), especially wheaduwith statins. The use of gemfibrozil can
to rhabdomyolysis (severe breakdown of musclepg@ally when used with a statin. Lovaza is congatief omega-3 ethyl esters, which the
FDA has described as a complex mixture of eicodapenic acid, or EPA, docosahexaenoic acid, or D&, other fatty acids. We believe
that DHA may increase LDL-C levels and thereby iplyt offset one of the typically desired benefifdipid-lowering therapies, which is
lowering LDL-C. Also, in 2012, the FDA required apdate to Lovaza product labeling to reflect tis& that Lovaza may increase the
frequency of a heart rhythm problem known as afitiillation, or heart flutter.

Potential Benefits and Market Opportunity for Vascepa

Vascepa is comprised of not less than 96% purejsod ethyl, or ethyPA, and contains no DHA. We believe that the remho? DHA
mitigates against the LDL-C raising effect obseriredmega-3 compositions that include DHA, as vaslremoving the fishy taste and smell
that is sometimes associated with DHA. Based omdkelts of the MARINE trial, Vascepa was the fostega-3 based product to demonstrate
statistically significant triglyceride reduction thout a statistically significant increase in LDLuCthis very high triglyceride population.

We believe that the results of the MARINE trial aralscepa’s EPA only/DHA-free composition suggeat Mascepa has the potential to
become a “best-in-class” triglyceride-lowering agjerthe United States and the European Uniondtiten, currently no omega-3 based
product is approved in the United States for lomgtiigh triglycerides in patients with mixed dysgdipmia. If approved in that indication,
Vascepa has the potential to become “first-in-Clasthe prescription-only omega-3 market for loweytriglycerides in patients with mixed
dyslipidemia. If the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outwes study is successful, Vascepa could be theofingiga-3 based therapy approved for
prevention of cardiovascular events as an add-statin therapy in this population.

We believe the potential market for Vascepa isdaagd growing. We estimate that drug treatmentypercholesterolemia patients
exceeds $57 billion per year in the United Statét sales dominated by statin therapies. U.Sssalidibrates as a class of products were
approximately $3.4 billion in 2014 with generic &dibrate and gemfibrozil leading the class. U.Ssgrsales of prescription omega-3 therapie
in 2014 were over $1.3 billion with Lovaza and géneovaza leading the class.

Clinical Trials
The MARINE Trial (basis for currently FDA approvethbel for Vascepa)

The MARINE trial, the largest study ever conduchath the omegaB fatty acid ethyl EPA in treating patients withrydigh triglycerides
(=500 mg/dL), was a Phase 3, multi-center, placeburotled, randomized, double-blind, 12-week studgtients were randomized into three
treatment arms for treatment with Vascepa 4 grayn/2lgram/day or placebo. Patient enroliment is thial began in December 2009, and
enrollment and randomization was completed in Aug040 at 229 patients. The primary endpoint inttfag was the percentage change in
triglyceride level from baseline compared to plazalier 12 weeks of treatment. The MARINE studyraniy endpoint was required to meet a
stringent level of statistical significance of 1§< 0.01) in our Special Protocol Assessment, &, Sigreement with the FDA.
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In November 2010, we reported top-line data forNMA&RINE trial. In the trial, Vascepa met its prinyagndpoint at doses of 4 grams and
2 grams per day with median placebo-adjusted reghgtn triglyceride levels of 33% (p < 0.0001) quewed to placebo for 4 grams and 20%
(p = 0.0051) compared to placebo for 2 grams. Thdiam baseline triglyceride levels were 703 mg@R0Q mg/dL and 657 mg/dL for the
patient groups treated with placebo, 4 grams ot¥jpa and 2 grams of Vascepa, respectively.

In a pre-specified secondary analysis in the suljgad patients with baseline triglyceride > 750 dig/representing 39% of all patients,
the effect of Vascepa in reducing triglyceride leveompared to placebo was 45% for 4 grams andf88%grams, both statistically
significant (p = 0.0001 for 4 grams and p= 0.00d6X grams, respectively). The median baselingytrégide levels in this subgroup were 1052
mg/dL, 902 mg/dL and 948 mg/dL for placebo, 4-gi@md 2-gram groups, respectively. Twenty-five perodipatients in this trial were also
on background statin therapy. These patients heatgr median reduction in triglyceride levels, whicas also statistically significant.

Importantly, the significant reduction in triglydges was not associated with a statistically sigaift increase in median LDL-C
compared to placebo at either dose (-2.3% for theas group and +5.2% for the 2-gram group [botN$}. In addition, there was a
statistically significant decrease in median nontHD (total cholesterol less so-called “good chatesl’) compared to placebo with both of 1
Vascepa treated groups (-18% for the 4-gram grpup(.001] and -8% for the 2-gram group [p < 0.05])

The MARINE trial results also included statistigadignificant reductions compared to placebo iresghvimportant lipid and
inflammatory biomarkers, including apo B (apolipotgin B) (8.5%), Lp-PLA2 (lipoprotein-phospholipa&g) (13.6%), VLDL-C (very low-
density lipoprotein cholesterol) (28.6%), Total Gsterol (16.3%), and hsCRP (high-sensitivity Cetiz@ protein) (36.0%) at the gram dose
For these achieved endpoints, p-values were <@i0thdst and <0.05 for all. Apo B (apolipoproteiniBbelieved to be a sensitive biomarker
of cardiovascular risk and may be a better predizt@cardiovascular risk than LDL-C. Lp-PLA2 is anzyme found in blood and
atherosclerotic plaque; high levels have been wapdid in the development and progression of atblnasis. In a post-hoc analysis of
MARINE study data, Vascepa 4 g/day and 2 g/dayssizlly significantly reduced ApoC-lll levels [86.1% (P < 0.0001) and 14.3%
(P=0.0154) versus placebo, respectively. In the MRtrial, patients treated with 4 grams per dayascepa experienced a significant
reduction in median placebo-adjusted lipoproteirtipla concentrations of total LDL and small LDL.H&h looking at lipoprotein particle
concentrations and sizes as measured with nuclegnetic resonance spectroscopy, Vascepa 4 grantspecompared with placebo,
significantly reduced median total LDL particle cdiy 16.3% (p=0.0006), which is an important fadgtoatherogenesis. LDL particle count
and apo B are important risk markers for the ptéaticof cardiovascular events. Small LDL partictaunt, which is a common risk factor for
cardiovascular events in patients with diabetes, igduced by 25.6% (p<0.0001) compared with placéhecepa 2 grams per day, compared
with placebo, significantly reduced median smalllLjfarticle count by 12.8% (p <0.05) and reduced iaretbtal LDL particle count by
1.1% (NS). LDL particle size did not change sigrafitly for the 2 or 4 grams doses.

Vascepa was well tolerated in the MARINE trial, lwé safety profile comparable to placebo and thene no treatment-related serious
adverse events observed. No patient discontineatitient of Vascepa during this study due to Vascelpéed adverse events. No significant
changes in fasting blood glucose, hemoglobin Alita) gigns, electrocardiograms, or liver or kidrfegiction were observed with either
Vascepa dose.

Patients enrolled in the MARINE trial were giver thption to be treated with Vascepa for a periodppfo 40 weeks after their last dose
in the double-blind portion of the trial. Once peigants completed the randomized, double blind¢g@bo-controlled 12-week MARINE
registration trial, patients in all three randondizgoups (4 grams, 2 grams and placebo) were dffieopportunity to participate in the open
label extension, or OLE, phase. Patients in the Ph&se received 4 grams per day of Vascepa foriadpef up to an additional 40 weeks. As
is typical of such extension phases, the OLE phasenot a controlled trial, as differentiated fridme randomized, double blind, placebo-
controlled 12-week MARINE registration trial. Ineth
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OLE phase, participants were not randomized aygeWascepa administration was open-label (and tlmtblinded), and no placebo group was
maintained. Also, once patients entered in the Ph&se, investigators were free to add or modifgolipid-altering nutritional, lifestyle and
drug treatment regimens. Given the lack of randation, the open-label design, the addition of vasiother lipid-altering drugs and changes
to doses of existing lipid-altering drugs, as veallthe lack of placebo control, neither we norindependent advisors were able to draw
efficacy conclusions from the data. However, weeheencluded that the MARINE OLE phase revealedew safety signals after an
additional 40 weeks of exposure to Vascepa, whetbed alone or in combination with other lipid-etig regimens.

The ANCHOR Trial (basis for SNDA submitted to FDAeeking expanded indication for Vascepa)

The ANCHOR trial was a multi-center, placebo-coléith randomized, double-blind, 12-week pivotaldstin patients with high
triglycerides (= 200 and <500 mg/dL) who were also receiving optadistatin therapy. Patients were randomized imethrms for treatment
with Vascepa 4 gram/day, 2 gram/day or placebae®agnrollment in this trial began in January 204fid enroliment and randomization was
completed in February 2011 at 702 patients. Thaagmy endpoint in the trial was the percentage ceamgriglyceride level from baseline
compared to placebo after 12 weeks of treatment.

In April 2011, we reported tofire results from the ANCHOR trial. The ANCHOR friaet its primary endpoint at doses of 4 grams2
grams per day with median placeddjusted reductions in triglyceride levels of 21.6860.0001 value) for 4 grams and 10.1% (p=0.00052
grams. The median baseline triglyceride levels v#&@mg/dL, 265 mg/dL and 254 mg/dL for the patgmiups treated with placebo, 4 grams
and 2 grams of Vascepa per day, respectively. hab/sis of subgroups by baseline triglyceride kestshowed that higher baseline
triglycerides resulted in greater triglyceride retions.

One of the trial’'s secondary endpoints was to destrate a lack of elevation in LDGC; the primary target of cholesterol lowering thpst:
The trial’s non-inferiority criterion for LDL-C wamet at both Vascepa doses. The upper confidenasdaoies for both doses were below the
pre-specified +6% LDL-C threshold limit. At the 4agn dose the upper confidence boundary was beloov(ze 7%) and at the @ram dose tt
upper confidence boundary was close to zero (0.5%)the 4 grams per day group, LDL-C decreaseuifgigntly by 6.2% from baseline
versus placebo, demonstrating superiority overgtlaqdp=0.0067). For the 2-gram group, LDL-C deaddsy 3.6% from baseline versus
placebo (p=0.0867), which is not a statisticallyndficant decrease.

Other secondary efficacy endpoints included theiameglacebo-adjusted percent change in non-higlsitielipoprotein cholesterol (non-
HDL-C), apolipoprotein B (apo B), and lipoproteissaciated phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2). The 4-grasedeas associated with statistically
significant reductions in non-HDL-C (13.6%, p<0.a90apo B (9.3%, p<0.0001), Lp-PLA2 (19%, p<0.00adyl high-sensitivity C-reactive
protein (hsCRP) (22%, p<0.001), at week 12 comptrgdiacebo. A recently published analysis shoved the Vascepa 4-gram daily dose in
the ANCHOR study also significantly decreased Isaflthe inflammatory marker oxidized low-densifyoprotein relative to placebo by 13%
(P < 0.0001). In a separate, post-hoc analysitudfysdata, Vascepa 4 g/day statistically signiftiareduced ApoC-lll levels by 25.1% in
MARINE (P < 0.0001) and by 19.2% in ANCHOR (P <@Q) versus placebo.

Vascepa was well tolerated in the ANCHOR trial vateafety profile comparable to placebo and thenewo treatment-related serious
adverse events observed. No significant changtstimg blood glucose, hemoglobin AL1C, vital sigeigctrocardiograms, or liver or kidney
function were observed with either Vascepa dose.

We have a pending sNDA with the FDA that seeks eiamg approval of Vascepa for use in the ANCHORdation. On October 16,
2013, the FDA convened an advisory committee teerewur SNDA. This advisory committee was not askgdhe FDA to evaluate whether
Vascepa is effective in lowering triglycerides e tstudied population, the ANCHOR indication ascefjl in the SNDA. Rather, the advisory
panel was asked whether Vascepa would improve@asdcular outcomes or whether approval of the ANGH@lication
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should wait for successful completion of the REDUITEtudy, the first prospective study of cardiomalar outcomes in patients who have
high triglyceride levels despite statin therapye Huvisory committee voted 9 to 2 against recomingrabproval of the ANCHOR indication
based on information presented at the meeting FD¥e considers the recommendation of advisory conemd, but final decisions on the
approval of new drug applications are made by DA.F

The ANCHOR trial clinical study was conducted undrrSPA agreement with the FDA. The law governiRé &igreements requires t
if the results of the trial conducted under the SfAstantiate the hypothesis of the protocol cal/byethe SPA, the FDA must use the data
from the protocol as part of the primary basisdpproval of the product. A SPA agreement is nataantee of FDA approval of the related
new drug application. A SPA agreement is genetaliging upon the FDA except in limited circumstasicauch as if the FDA identifies a
substantial scientific issue essential to detenmgirsafety or efficacy of the drug after the studgibs that rises to the level of a public health
concern, or if the study sponsor fails to followe fhrotocol that was agreed upon with the FDA. Otobar 29, 2013, the FDA rescinded the
ANCHOR study SPA agreement because the FDA detedrtimat a substantial scientific issue essentidetermining the effectiveness of
Vascepa in the studied population was identifigdra&sting began. As a basis for this determinative FDA communicated that it determir
that the cumulative results from outcome studiestlér triglyceride-lowering drugs failed to supipibre hypothesis that a triglyceridi@vering
drug significantly reduces the risk for cardiovdacevents among the population studied in the ARBHrial. Thus, the FDA stated that wt
information we submitted supports testing the higpsts that Vascepa 4 grams/day versus placeboeedugjor adverse cardiovascular events
in statin-treated subjects with residually higlglirceride levels, as is being studied in the Vaad@eRDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes study,
the FDA no longer considers a change in serunytrégide levels as sufficient to establish the dffeness of a drug intended to reduce
cardiovascular risk in subjects with serum triglyde levels below 500 mg/dL. Beginning in NovemB6d 3, we sought reconsideration and
appealed the SPA rescission decision to threedefehcreasing authority within the FDA and weeniéd each time, most recently in
September 2014. Based on FDA'’s repeated positiits appeal denials and its internal consultatidth WDA officials at higher levels, we
informed the FDA that we did not intend to appéal PA rescission further.

The FDA did not take action on the ANCHOR sNDA hg Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, gadkdor completion of
FDA's review, December 20, 2013. Given our Septan@Bd4 determination to not appeal the SPA resmiskirther, we expect the FDA to
take action on our pending ANCHOR sNDA in the reduire. The FDA has not committed to a specifieedat this action.

Observed Efficacy of Ethyl-EPA

In Japan, ethyl-EPA is marketed under the prodanienof Epadel by Mochida Pharmaceutical Co. aimtlisated for hyperlipidemia
and peripheral vascular disease. Clinical data flapan suggests that Epadel is effective in reduciglycerides. In addition, in an outcomes
study called the Japan EPA Lipid Intervention StuayJELIS study, which consisted of more than @8,patients followed over multiple
years, Epadel, when used in conjunction with stativas shown to reduce cardiovascular events byd@fpared to the use of statins alone
this study, cardiovascular events decreased byappately 53% compared to statins alone in the sudfprimary prevention patients with
triglyceride levels o 150 mg/dL ( median of 272 mg/dL at entry) and HDI<@ mg/dL. Epadel has been approved and availgble
prescription in Japan for over a decade. In 28 Japan Ministry of Health approved Epadel fordiie-counter sales.

Observed Clinical Safety of Vascepa

Prior to commencing the MARINE and ANCHOR trials wonducted a pre-clinical program for Vascepduiting toxicology and
pharmacology studies. In addition, we previoushestigated Vascepa in central nervous system diseid several double-blind, placebo-
controlled studies, including Phase 3 trials in thugton’s disease. Over 1,000 patients have besadlwith Vascepa in these studies, with
over 100

11



Table of Contents

receiving continuous treatment for a year or mbrall studies performed to date, Vascepa has stafamorable safety and tolerability profi
In both the MARINE and ANCHOR trials, patients ddseith Vascepa demonstrated a safety profile smbilglacebo. There were no
treatment-related serious adverse events in the MERtudy or in the ANCHOR study. In the MARINE aA8ICHOR trials, the most
commonly reported adverse reaction (incidence >B8gaeater than placebo) in Vascepa treated patieas arthralgia (joint pain) (2.3% for
Vascepa vs. 1.0% for placebo). There was no repadgerse reaction > 3% and greater than placebo.

In addition to the MARINE and ANCHOR trials, we cplated a 28-day pharmacokinetic study in healtHymeers, a 26-week study to
evaluate the toxicity of Vascepa in transgenic naied multiple pharmacokinetic drug-drug interactitudies in healthy subjects in which we
evaluated the effect of Vascepa on certain commescpiption drugs. All findings from these studiesre consistent with our expectations anc
confirmed the overall safety profile of Vascepa.

The REDUCE-IT Study (currently ongoing cardiovas@r outcomes study)

In August 2011, we reached agreement with the FBA SPA for the design of the REDUCE-IT (Reductibardiovascular Events
with EPA—Intervention Trial) cardiovascular outcosrstudy. In May 2013, we amended the patient engoit criteria within the SPA
agreement with the FDA. An SPA is an evaluationth®g/FDA of a protocol with the goal of reachingagreement that the Phase 3 trial
protocol design, clinical endpoints, and statistaraalyses are acceptable to support regulatorsogpp The FDA agreed that, based on the
information we submitted to the agency, the desigh planned analysis of the REDUCE-IT study adesipatddressed the objectives
necessary to support a regulatory submission. Ak iSBenerally binding upon the FDA unless a sulitshscientific issue essential to
determining safety or efficacy of the drug is idféed after the testing begins. Moreover, any cleatma study protocol can invalidate an SPA.

In September 2011, we engaged a clinical reseagdnzation, or CRO, and began initial trial anidichl site preparation for REDUCE-
IT. In December 2011, we announced that the fiatiept was dosed in the study. The study duradafependent on the rate of clinical events
in the study which rate may be affected by the nema patients enrolled in the study, the epideagglof the patients enrolled in the study,
and the length of time that the enrolled patiengsfallowed. Based on preliminary assumptions fatignt enroliment rates and the clinical
profile of these patients, it is assumed that fetlvan 10,000 patients will be required to comptetestudy with an optimized target in which
the study is completed in approximately six yedr8,000 patients.

The REDUCE-IT study is designed to evaluate thieatfy of Vascepa in reducing major cardiovascwanés in an at-risk patient
population also receiving statin therapy. REDUCHS & multi-center, prospective, randomized, doddiiled, placebo-controlled, parallel-
group study to evaluate the effectiveness of Vascap an add-on to statin therapy, in reducingfiigor cardiovascular events in an at-risk
patient population compared to statin therapy aldhe control arm of the study is comprised of @@t on optimized statin therapy plus
placebo. The active arm of the study is compridquhtients on optimized statin therapy plus Vascélesubjects enrolled in the study will
have elevated triglyceride levels and either corphaart disease or risk factors for coronary heésease. This study is being conducted
internationally.

We currently expect that final positive resultsttd REDUCE-IT study will be required for FDA appebwf Vascepa for the ANCHOR
indication based on communications from the FDAsdzhon the results of REDUCE-IT, we may seek aaftitiindications for Vascepa
beyond the indications studied in the ANCHOR andRMIXE trials such as a potential indicated usepferention of cardiovascular events,
although there can be no assurance as to whetheeghlts of the study will support any such inticca

New Lipid Compounds and other Preclinical Programs

We are also considering development of other neregation compounds based on our internal lipienss expertise, including potential
combination and derivative therapies.
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In August 2013, we completed dosing of AMR102 x&di dose combination of Vascepa and a leadinghgtadiduct. The study is a
randomized, open-label, single-dose, 4-way crogs-study to continue testing of the relative biokmlity of AMR102 capsules, Vascepa
capsules with the selected statin taken conconytavidscepa taken alone and the selected statemtalone. The results of this study support
the feasibility of AMR102. We have suspended adddl development of AMR102 pending resolution @& ANCHOR sNDA with the FDA.

If we do not receive FDA approval for the ANCHORIiication, we may suspend further development of AR

We believe that Vascepa and other lipid-based caitipps may have an impact on a number of biolddarztors in the body such as
anti-inflammatory mechanisms, cell membrane comjmosand plasticity, triglyceride levels and regida of glucose metabolism. Currently
all other development activities are at formulatiwrpre-clinical stages.

Manufacturing and Supply for Vascepa

We currently use third party manufacturers and beggpto manufacture clinical and commercial quaetiof ethyl-EPA, which
constitutes the only active pharmaceutical ingneglier API, within Vascepa, to encapsulate, battid package Vascepa and to maintain
inventory of Vascepa. The FDA approval of Vascepauly 2012 included the approval of one APl maatufieer, Nisshin Pharma, Inc., or
Nisshin, and one API encapsulator, Patheon, Im®atheon (formerly Banner Pharmacaps Europe Bigshih and Patheon are the /
manufacturer and API encapsulator, respectivelth which we have had the longest working relatigoshT heir facilities were inspected by
regulatory authorities as part of the processldthto the FDA'’s July 2012 approval of Vascepa, amtbelieve that the facilities are qualified
to continue to support our commercialization of d&gsa.

We currently rely exclusively on Patheon for theapsulation of Vascepa and we have encapsulati@esugnts with two other qualifie
commercial API encapsulators.

In addition to purchasing API from Nisshin, we halso purchased APl from Chemport, Inc., or ChempomDecember 2012, we
announced our submissions of two sNDAs to the FBe&king approval for Chemport and BASF (formerly &igg Limited) as additional
Vascepa API suppliers. In April 2013, the FDA ap® our SNDAs covering Chemport and BASF as addifizascepa API suppliers. On
December 30, 2013, we issued a notice of terminatf@ur API agreement to BASF as a result of BAS#on-compliance with the terms of
such agreement period and the agreement subsegterntinated in the first quarter of 2014. In Det@m2012, we announced an agreement
with an exclusive consortium of companies led lan8ihor Pharmaceutical, Inc., or Slanmhor. Slanmas spun-out from Ocean Nutrition
Canada, or ONC, prior to the May 2012 acquisitib@bIC by Royal DSM N.V. We submitted a sNDA in A 2013 seeking FDA approval
for this supplier to manufacture Vascepa API anduly 2014 the FDA approved our sNDA for Slanmtoaa API supplier. If the facility
contemplated to manufacture Vascepa API is abt®maplete the process validation required for martufa of API, it may become an
additional qualified worldwide supplier of API fstascepa to utilize in supporting the global comriaization of Vascepa.

The API material that constitutes ethyl-EPA is &urally occurring substance which is sourced framalijied producers of fish oil. A
limited number of other manufacturers have thetgbknow-how and suitable facilities to producbytEPA to a similar level of purity.
Among the conditions for FDA approval of a pharmaimal product is the requirement that the manuifiaets quality control and
manufacturing procedures conform to current GoodilMicturing Practice, or cGMP, which must be fokkmat all times. The FDA typically
inspects manufacturing facilities before regulatapproval of a product candidate, such as Vas@mhpn an ongoing basis. In complying \
cGMP regulations, pharmaceutical manufacturers exsend resources and time to ensure compliantepngduct specifications as well as
production, record keeping, quality control, repagt and other requirements.

13



Table of Contents

Our agreements with our API suppliers include minimpurchase commitments. During 2013 and 2014 Wierhet the aggregate
minimum purchase requirements for metric tons of édhtained in our supply agreements. We may pweiaore than the minimum
requirements. Certain of these agreements contéenmteased capacity expansion aimed at creatinigiguif capacity to meet anticipated
demand for APl material for Vascepa. Accordinglgrtain of these suppliers are currently workingxpand their production capabilities to
manufacture the API for Vascepa. These API supphbee self-funding these expansion and qualifiogtians with contributions from Amarin.
There can be no assurance that additional supphiirlly fund the capital costs of our engagerhenthat these additional suppliers will
successfully qualify with the FDA. These contramtatain provisions for making lesser payments és¢hsuppliers in lieu of purchasing the
minimum purchase requirements.

Our Marketing Plans

In January 2013, we commenced our full commeraiahth of Vascepa in the United States for useearMARINE indication with a
direct sales force of approximately 275 sales mtatives. In October 2013, we lowered our nurobeales representatives to approximately
130, excluding sales management, in the UniteceStatfocus on the sales territories that we bellewe demonstrated the greatest potential
for Vascepa sales growth. We now market Vascepizeitunited States through our sales force of apprately 150 sales professionals and
managers. We also employ various marketing andaakdffairs personnel to support our commercialiwabf Vascepa. We currently target
clinicians who are top prescribers of lipid reguigttherapies. Commencing in the middle of the sdapuarter of 2014, in addition to
promotion by our sales representatives, approximat Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. salesaggntatives began promoting Vasct
We also employ various marketing personnel to sttppo commercialization of Vascepa. As of Februbr015, over 26,000 clinicians had
written prescriptions for Vascepa.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriehaykly competitive. There are many pharmaceuticahpanies, biotechnology
companies, public and private universities andaredeorganizations actively engaged in the reseandhdevelopment of products that may be
similar to our products. It is probable that thenfaer of companies seeking to develop products laedpies similar to our products will
increase. Many of these and other existing or fi@lecompetitors have substantially greater finahdechnical and human resources than we
do and may be better equipped to develop, manutaand market products. These companies may degelbntroduce products and
processes competitive with or superior to oursaddition, other technologies or products may bestigped that have an entirely different
approach or means of accomplishing the intendepgses of our products, which might render our tetdgy and products noncompetitive or
obsolete.

Our competitors both in the United States and Eeifoplude large, well-established pharmaceuticaiganies, specialty pharmaceutical
sales and marketing companies, and specializeibvasgtular treatment companies. GlaxoSmithKling yluich currently markets Lova#a a,
prescription-only omega-3 fatty acid indicated patients with severe hypertriglyceridemia recei#&h approval in 2004 and has been on the
market in the United States since 2005. As desdiiledow, generic versions of Lovaza are now avldlabthe United States. Other large
companies with competitive products include AbbViw,., which currently markets Tricér and Trilipbfor the treatment of severe
hypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia and$yian® , which is primarily used to raise HDL-C, lsualso used to lower triglycerides.
Generic versions of Tricor, Trilipix, and Niaspame also now available in the United States. In taldjin May 2014, Epanova (omega-3-
carboxylic acids) capsules, a free fatty acid fefromega-3 (comprised of 55% EPA and 20% DHA), aagroved by the FDA for patients
with severe hypertriglyceridemia. Epanova was dgsedl by Omthera Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and is nemed by AstraZeneca
Pharmaceuticals LP (AstraZeneca). This produchbaget been launched. However, we expect AstraZzend utilize its substantial
commercial resources to market its product. Alsdpril 2014, Omtryg, another omega-3-acid fattidamomposition developed by
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Trygg Pharma AS, received FDA approval for sevemgentriglyceridemia. We are not aware of the conuiadization plan for Omtryg. Each
these competitors, other than possibly Trygg, meatgr resources than we do, including financiadpct development, marketing, personnel
and other resources.

In April 2014, Teva Pharmaceuticals USA Inc., ovdgaunched a generic version of Lovaza after imigiits patent litigation against
Pronova BioPharma Norge AS, now owned by BASF, tvlolvns such patents rights. In June 2014 and Séete?2®14, Par Pharmaceutical
Inc., or Par, and Apotex Inc., or Apotex, receivA approval of their respective versions of geméwvaza. In March 2011, Pronova/BASF
entered into an agreement with Apotex to settlpat®ent litigation in the United States relatedldwaza. Pursuant to the terms of the settlemel
agreement, Pronova/BASF granted Apotex a licensatier the United States market with a genericieersf Lovaza in the first quarter of
2015.

In addition, we are aware of other pharmaceutioaiganies that are developing products that, if @ and marketed, would compete
with Vascepa. We understand that Acasti Pharmabsidiary of Neptune Technologies & Bioresources,lannounced in late 2012 that it
intends to conduct a Phase 3 clinical program sesssthe safety and efficacy of its omega-3 pretsani drug candidate derived from krill oil
for the treatment of hypertriglyceridemia. Sanc8icCompany is preparing to commence Phase 3 clitésding of its compound SC401B in
hypertriglyceridemia. In addition, there are twarfs that are developing products in Phase 2 ted8iggjPharmaceuticals and Catabasis
Pharmaceuticals. Isis announced favorable Phassults of ISIS-APOCIIIRx a drug candidate admimistethrough weekly subcutaneous
injections, in patients with high triglycerides atyge 2 diabetes and in patients with moderatever® high triglycerides (>880 mg/dL). To
knowledge, Catabasis initiated a Phase 2 cliniélaf its product CAT-2003 in December 2013 fewsre hypertriglyceridemia and rare
chylomicronemia. There are other products in Phadevelopment by Thetis Pharmaceuticals and Res@narmaceuticals. Thetis has TP-
943, which is a unique salt form of EPA that isnggiested for hypertriglyceridemia. Resolvyx’s campd RX410001 is being evaluated acr
various indications, including hypertriglyceridemia addition, we are aware that Matinas BioPharma, is developing an omega-3-based
therapeutic MAT-9001 for the treatment of severpéririglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia. Matii@ePharma, Inc. is currently testing
the product in Phase 2 studies. Finally, Madrige@iaceuticals has completed Phase 1 clinicahtesfiMGL-3196 for the treatment of high
triglycerides and various lipid parameters in pate

Vascepa also faces competition from dietary supptgrnompanies marketing omegaroducts as nutritional supplements. We cann
sure physicians and pharmacists will view the FOpidraved prescription-only status, EPA-only purifMascepa and stringent regulatory
oversight as significant advantages versus omeggglements.

In addition, we expect that generic drug companilisseek to challenge the validity and enforceigpibf our patents and work toward
FDA approval for generic versions of Vascepa.

Regulatory Matters
Government Regulation and Regulatory Matters

Any product development activities related to Vascer products that we may develop or acquireérfature will be subject to extens
regulation by various government authorities, idaolg the FDA and comparable regulatory authoritiesther countries, which regulate the
design, research, clinical and non-clinical develept, testing, manufacturing, storage, distributiowport, export, labeling, advertising and
marketing of pharmaceutical products and devicesie@lly, before a new drug can be sold, consideddta demonstrating its quality, safety
and efficacy must be obtained, organized into mé&drspecific to each regulatory authority, subrdif@ review and approved by the regula
authority. The data is generated in two distinated@pment stages: pre-clinical and clinical. Owrgdr must be approved by the FDA through
the NDA process before they may be legally marké&tde United States. For new chemical entitiles,gdre-clinical development stage
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generally involves synthesizing the active componéeveloping the formulation and determining thenorfacturing process, as well as
carrying out non-human toxicology, pharmacology dney metabolism studies which support subsequerital testing.

The clinical stage of development can generalldib@led into Phase 1, Phase 2 and Phase 3 climigks. In Phase 1, generally, a small
number of healthy volunteers are initially exposed single dose and then multiple doses of thdymibcandidate. The primary purpose of
these studies is to assess the metabolism, phalogacaction, side effect tolerability and safefittee drug. Phase 2 trials typically involve
studies in disease-affected patients to deterrhiaeldse required to produce the desired benefitheAsame time, safety and further
pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic informatiarolfected. Phase 3 trials generally involve largehers of patients at multiple sites, in
multiple countries and are designed to providepikietal data necessary to demonstrate the effews®of the product for its intended use, its
safety in use, and may include comparisons withglla and/or other comparator treatments. The durafitreatment is often extended to
mimic the actual use of a product during marketing.

United States Drug Development

In the United States, the process of obtainingleggry approvals and the subsequent complianceapifitopriate federal, state, local,
foreign statutes and regulations require the exjperedof substantial time and financial resourd&slure to comply with the applicable United
States requirements at any time during the prodee¢lopment process, approval process or afteogppmay subject an applicant to
administrative or judicial sanctions. These samdioould include the FDA's refusal to approve pegdipplications, withdrawal of an
approval, a clinical hold, warning letters, prodretalls, product seizures, total or partial susfenof production or distribution injunctions,
fines, refusals of government contracts, restitytdisgorgement, or civil or criminal penalties.yAagency or judicial enforcement action coulc
have a material adverse effect on us.

Prior to the start of human clinical studies fareav drug in the United States, preclinical labongeind animal tests are often performed
under the FDA's Good Laboratory Practices regutegjmr GLP, and an investigational new drug apptoaor IND, is filed with the FDA.
Similar filings are required in other countrieswever, data requirements and other information egddr a complete submission may diffe
other countries. The amount of data that must peled in the IND depends on the phase of the stBigse 1 studies typically require less
data than larger Phase 3 studies. A clinical plastrhe submitted to the FDA prior to commenceméatdinical trial. If the FDA has
concerns about the clinical plan or the safetyhefgiroposed studies, they may suspend or termtimatgtudy at any time. Studies must be
conducted in accordance with good clinical practiod regular reporting of study progress and angi@e experiences is required. Studies ar
also subject to review by independent institutiaeaiew boards, or IRBs, responsible for oversesingies at particular sites and protecting
human research study subjects. An independent IBBatso suspend or terminate a study once initiated

NDA and FDA Review Process

Following trial completion, trial data is analyzeddetermine safety and efficacy. Data is therdfiléth the FDA in an NDA along with
proposed labeling for the product and informatibowt the manufacturing and testing processes anildiés that will be used to ensure prod
quality. The NDA must contain proof of safety, pyripotency and efficacy, which entails extensive-glinical and clinical testing. FDA
approval of an NDA must be obtained before marketirug in the United States.

The FDA will likely re-analyze the clinical trialada, which could result in extensive discussiortarben the FDA and us during the
review process. The review and evaluation of apfibois by the FDA is extensive and time consumimdjraay take longer than originally
planned to complete. The FDA may conduct a pre@agrinspection of the manufacturing facilities fbe new product to determine whether
they comply with current good manufacturing pragtiequirements and may also audit data from cliiod pre-clinical trials.
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There is no assurance that the FDA will ultimatgiyprove a drug product for marketing in the Unii¢dtes. Even if future indications -
Vascepa are approved, the FDA's review will be tggind we may encounter significant difficultiescosts during the review process. After
approving any drug product, the FDA may requiretymarketing testing and surveillance to monitor ¢fffects of approved products or it may
place conditions on approvals including potengégjuirements or risk management plans that coutdaethe commercial promotion,
distribution, prescription or dispensing of produdroduct approvals may be withdrawn for non-caamgk with regulatory standards or if
problems occur following initial marketing.

European Union Drug Development

In the European Union, or E.U., our future produmtsy also be subject to extensive regulatory reguénts. As in the United States, the
marketing of medicinal products has been subjettiegyranting of marketing authorizations by retpgagencies. Particular emphasis is alsc
being placed on more sophisticated and faster guves for reporting of adverse events to the coemetuthorities.

Similar to the United States, the various phasgs®flinical and clinical research in the E.U. subject to significant regulatory
controls. Although the regulatory controls on aadiresearch are currently undergoing a harmooizgtiocess following the adoption of the
Clinical Trials Directive 2001/20/EC, there areremtly significant variations in the member stagimes. However, all member states
currently require independent institutional reviesard approval of interventional clinical trialsith/the exception of U.K. Phase 1 studies in
healthy volunteers, all clinical trials requirelait prior governmental notification or approval. $lcegulators also require the submission of
adverse event reports during a study and a cohyedinal study report.

European Union Drug Review and Approval

In the E.U., approval of new medicinal products barobtained through one of three processes: theaiecognition procedure, the
centralized procedure and the decentralized praeedu

Mutual Recognition Procedure

An applicant submits an application in one E.U. rhenstate, known as the reference member state thaceference member state has
granted the marketing authorization, the applicaay choose to submit applications in other conaemember states, requesting them to
mutually recognize the marketing authorizationsadiy granted. Under this mutual recognition pracasthorities in other concerned member
states have 55 days to raise objections, which thestbe resolved by discussions among the conteneenber states, the reference member
state and the applicant within 90 days of the conmament of the mutual recognition procedure. If dispgreement remains, all
considerations by authorities in the concerned negratates are suspended and the disagreementligacthrough an arbitration process. The
mutual recognition procedure results in separatiema marketing authorizations in the referencenber state and each concerned member
state.

Centralized Procedure

This procedure is currently mandatory for prodaeeeloped by means of a biotechnological procedational for new active
substances and other “innovative medicinal prodwitts novel characteristics.” Under this procedwue application is submitted to the
European Agency for the Evaluation of Medical PiciduTwo European Union member states are appoiatednduct an initial evaluation of
each application. These countries each preparesassment report that is then used as the baagisaéntific opinion of the Committee on
Proprietary Medical Products. If this opinion isdaable, it is sent to the European Commissiongtvidirafts a decision. After consulting with
the member states, the European Commission ad@gtsision and grants a marketing authorizationctvig valid throughout the European
Union and confers the same rights and obligatinresach of the member states as a marketing autiiorizgranted by that member state.
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Decentralized Procedure

The most recently introduced of the three procefmasbtaining approval of new medicinal processethe E.U., the decentralized
procedure is similar to the mutual recognition ehare described above, but with differences irtitheng that key documents are provided to
concerned member states by the reference memibertsta overall timing of the procedure and thesjimlty of “clock stops” during the
procedure, among others.

Post-Marketing Requirements

Following approval of a new product, a pharmacalitompany generally must engage in numerous spactfnitoring and
recordkeeping activities and continue to submitquic and other reports to the applicable reguiatarencies, including any cases of adverse
events and appropriate quality control records. fifcations or enhancements to the products or iabar changes of site of manufacture are
often subject to the approval of the FDA and otlegulators, which may or may not be received or mneaylt in a lengthy review process.

Prescription drug advertising is subject to fedestdte and foreign regulations. In the Unitedeatathe FDA regulates prescription drug
promotion, including direct-to-consumer advertisiRgescription drug promotional materials must tensitted to the FDA in conjunction with
their first use. Any distribution of prescriptionud) products and pharmaceutical samples must cowifiythe U.S. Prescription Drug
Marketing Act, or the PDMA, a part of the U.S. Feddd-ood, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

In the United States, once a product is approdsdnanufacture is subject to comprehensive andraong regulation by the FDA. The
FDA regulations require that products be manufactun specific approved facilities and in accorgawith current good manufacturing
practices, or cGMPs, and NDA holders must listrtpebducts and register their manufacturing essabiients with the FDA. These regulations
also impose certain organizational, proceduraldo@imentation requirements with respect to manufaxg and quality assurance activities.
NDA holders using contract manufacturers, laboresoor packagers are responsible for the seleatidnrmonitoring of qualified firms, and,
certain circumstances, qualified suppliers to tHeses. These firms and, where applicable, theppdiers are subject to inspections by the F
at any time, and the discovery of violative coratis, including failure to conform to cGMPs, couddult in enforcement actions that interrupt
the operation of any such facilities or the abitiydistribute products manufactured, processdadsted by them.

Federal and State Fraud and Abuse Laws

In addition to FDA restrictions on marketing of phmaceutical products, several other types of statefederal laws restrict certain
marketing practices in the biopharmaceutical ingu§these laws include anti-kickback statutes askf claims statutes.

The federal anti-kickback statute prohibits, amotiger things, knowingly and willfully offering, pag, soliciting, or receiving
remuneration to induce or in return for a refeatathe purchasing, leasing, ordering, or arran@mgr recommending the purchase, lease, or
order of any healthcare facility, item or servieanmbursable under Medicare, Medicaid, or other fa@ldeealthcare programs. This statute has
been interpreted to apply to arrangements betwkampaceutical manufacturers on one hand and pbessyipurchasers, and formulary
managers on the other. Although there are a nupflstatutory exemptions and regulatory safe harpootecting certain activities from
prosecution, the exemptions and safe harbors avendnarrowly, and practices that involve remuneraihtended to induce prescribing,
purchases, or recommendations may be subjectutirscif they do not qualify for an exemption ofsdarbor. Our practices may not in all
cases meet all of the criteria for safe harborgmtidn from anti-kickback liability.

Federal false claims laws prohibit any person florawingly presenting, or causing to be presentddlsa claim for payment to the
federal government, or knowingly making or usingcausing to be made or used, a
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false statement to get a false claim paid. Recesdlyeral pharmaceutical and other healthcare coiepaave been prosecuted under these
for allegedly providing free product to customeiifhwthe expectation that the customers would bildral programs for the product. Other
companies have been prosecuted for causing falsasto be submitted because of the company’s rtiagkef the product for unapproved,
and thus non-reimbursable, uses. The majorityaiéstalso have statutes or regulations simildredederal anti-kickback law and false claims
laws, which apply to items and services reimburssder Medicaid and other state programs, or, iersd\states, apply regardless of the payel
Sanctions under these federal and state laws nchydim civil monetary penalties, exclusion of a nfaoturer’s products from reimbursement
under government programs, criminal fines, and isgmment.

Because of the breadth of these laws and the naesswof the safe harbors, it is possible that safeer business activities could be
subject to challenge under one or more of such.|®wsh a challenge could have a material advefsetamn our business, financial condition
and results of operations. As a company marketmg@A-approved product in the United States, owarafions may be directly, or indirectly
through our customers, subject to various fedaerdlsaate fraud and abuse laws, including, withioitdtion, the federal anti-kickback statute.
These laws may impact, among other things, ourqeep sales, marketing and education programs.dii@d we may be subject to patient
privacy regulation by both the federal governmert the states in which we conduct our business e that may affect our ability to
operate include:

» the federal Health Insurance Portability and Acaability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, which created neederal criminal statutes that
prohibit executing a scheme to defraud any healéhlbanefit program and making false statementsimgléo healthcare matter

» HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information Techgglfor Economic and Clinical Health Act, or HITEC&Nd its
implementing regulations, which imposes certairunegnents relating to the privacy, security andgraission of individually
identifiable health information; ar

» state law equivalents of each of the above fedavad, such as anti-kickback and false claims lalwgElwmay apply to items or
services reimbursed by any third-party payer, idiclg commercial insurers, and state laws goverthiegprivacy and security of
health information in certain circumstances, mahytich differ from each other in significant wagad may not have the same
effect, thus complicating compliance effol

If our operations are found to be in violation afaf the laws described above or any other govemnial regulations that apply to us, we
may be subject to penalties, including civil aniinénal penalties, damages, fines and the curtaitraerestructuring of our operations, any of
which could adversely affect our ability to operate business and our results of operations.

In the United States and foreign jurisdictionsyé¢hieave been a number of legislative and regulatbaynges to the healthcare system tha
could affect our future results of operations. &mtigular, there have been and continue to be @euwf initiatives at the United States federal
and state levels that seek to reduce healthcats. dds Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement Blodernization Act of 2003, or the
MMA, imposed new requirements for the distributaomd pricing of prescription drugs for Medicare Hararies. Under Part D, Medicare
beneficiaries may enroll in prescription drug plaffered by private entities which will provide @rage of outpatient prescription drugs. Part
D plans include both stand-alone prescription dregefit plans and prescription drug coverage agpplement to Medicare Advantage plans.
Unlike Medicare Part A and B, Part D coverage isstandardized. Part D prescription drug plan spanare not required to pay for all cove
Part D drugs, and each drug plan can develop itsdrwg formulary that identifies which drugs it Wdbver and at what tier or level. However,
Part D prescription drug formularies must includegs$ within each therapeutic category and clag®weéred Part D drugs, though not
necessarily all the drugs in each category or ckasg formulary used by a Part D prescription dplan must be developed and reviewed by a
pharmacy and therapeutic committee. Government payfor some of the costs of prescription drugs masease demand for our products
which we receive marketing approval. However, aegatiated prices for our products covered by a Pantescription drug plan will likely be
lower than the prices we might otherwise
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obtain. Moreover, while the MMA applies only to drbenefits for Medicare beneficiaries, private paysten follow Medicare coverage
policy and payment limitations in setting their opayment rates. Any reduction in payment that tesum the MMA may result in a similar
reduction in payments from non-governmental payers.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 28@¥ides funding for the federal government to carepgthe effectiveness of
different treatments for the same iliness. A plantfhe research will be developed by the Departroéhkealth and Human Services, the Age
for Healthcare Research and Quality and the Natims#tutes for Health, and periodic reports oa #tatus of the research and related
expenditures will be made to Congress. Althoughréiselts of the comparative effectiveness studiesiat intended to mandate coverage
policies for public or private payers, it is notat what effect, if any, the research will havetmsales of any product, if any such product or
the condition that it is intended to treat is thbject of a study. It is also possible that comipegzeffectiveness research demonstrating benefi
in a competitor’s product could adversely affeet slales of our product candidates. If third-pagtygrs do not consider our products to be cos
effective compared to other available therapiesy tihhay not cover our products as a benefit undgr gtans or, if they do, the level of paym
may not be sufficient to allow us to sell our protfuon a profitable basis.

Most recently, in March 2010 the Patient Protectiad Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Headtte and Education
Reconciliation Act, or collectively the PPACA, wasacted, which includes measures to significarithnge the way healthcare is financed by
both governmental and private insurers. Among tligpions of the PPACA of greatest importance gharmaceutical and biotechnology
industry are the following:

e an annual, nondeductible fee on any entity thatufaatures or imports certain branded prescriptiagsl and biologic products,
apportioned among these entities according to tharket share in certain government healthcarerprog, that began in 201

* new requirements to report certain financial areangnts with physicians and others, including répgrany “transfer of value”
made or distributed to prescribers and other heaféhproviders and reporting any investment interesld by physicians and their
immediate family member:

» alicensure framework for follc-on biologic products

* anew Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Indiituteersee, identify priorities in, and conduct pamative clinical effectiveness
research, along with funding for such resea

» creation of the Independent Payment Advisory Badnith, beginning in 2014, will have authority t@oenmend certain changes
the Medicare program that could result in reduca¢ghgents for prescription drugs and those recomntamgacould have the effect
of law even if Congress does not act on the recamdai#ons; ant

» establishment of a Center for Medicare and Meditadvation at the Centers for Medicare & Medic8etvices to test innovative
payment and service delivery models to lower Medi@and Medicaid spending, potentially includinggamption drug spending
that began on January 1, 20

Other Regulatory Matters

Manufacturing, sales, promotion, and other actsifiollowing product approval are also subjeciegutation by numerous regulatory
authorities in addition to the FDA, including, imetUnited States, the Centers for Medicare & Madi&ervices, other divisions of the
Department of Health and Human Services, the DmfgriEement Administration, the Consumer Produceafommission, the Federal Tr:
Commission, the Occupational Safety & Health Adstirsition, the Environmental Protection Agency, atade and local governments. Sales,
marketing and scientific/leducational programs nalst comply with the U.S. Medicare-Medicaid Antalid and Abuse Act and similar state
laws. Pricing and rebate programs must comply thi¢hMedicaid rebate requirements of the U.S. OmmBbwdget Reconciliation Act of 1990.
If products are made available to authorized usktise Federal Supply Schedule of the General SBesvidministration, additional
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laws and requirements apply. The handling of amtrotled substances must comply with the U.S. Gileirl Substances Act and Controlled
Substances Import and Export Act. Products must aygaicable child-resistant packaging requirememniger the U.S. Poison Prevention
Packaging Act. Manufacturing, sales, promotion athebr activities are also potentially subject tdefial and state consumer protection and
unfair competition laws.

The distribution of pharmaceutical products is sabjo additional requirements and regulationdutling extensive record-keeping,
licensing, storage and security requirements irgdrid prevent the unauthorized sale of pharmaadygioducts.

The failure to comply with regulatory requiremestmjects firms to possible legal or regulatory@ttiDepending on the circumstances,
failure to meet applicable regulatory requiremerats result in criminal prosecution, fines or otpenalties, injunctions, recall or seizure of
products, total or partial suspension of productenial or withdrawal of product approvals, ol to allow a firm to enter into supply
contracts, including government contracts. In addjteven if a firm complies with FDA and other vdg@ments, new information regarding the
safety or effectiveness of a product could leadRBA to modify or withdraw a product approval. Pitiitions or restrictions on sales or
withdrawal of future products marketed by us caulaterially affect our business in an adverse way.

Changes in regulations or statutes or the intesfiogt of existing regulations could impact our Imesis in the future by requiring, for
example: (i) changes to our manufacturing arrangesnéi) additions or modifications to product &img; (iii) the recall or discontinuation of
our products; or (iv) additional record-keepingurgments. If any such changes were to be impdkeg,could adversely affect the operation
of our business.

FDA Marketing Exclusivity

The Food Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, as amernyeithe Drug Price Competition and Patent Term étatibn Act of 1984, as
amended, or the Hatch-Waxman Amendments, provilesérket exclusivity provisions that can help pobtthe exclusivity of new drugs by
delaying the acceptance and final approval of oegampetitive drug applications. The FDA typicathakes a determination on marketing
exclusivity in connection with an NDA approval ofleug for a new indication. We applied to the Flvh five-year, NCE marketing exclusivi
for Vascepa in connection with the NDA for our MAYE indication, which NDA was approved by the FDA &y 26, 2012. On February 2
2014, in connection with the July 26, 2012 apprafdhe MARINE indication, the FDA denied a graftNCE marketing exclusivity to
Vascepa and granted three-year marketing exclys®iich three-year exclusivity extends through 23ly2015 and is expected to be
supplemented by a 3Bonth stay that we believe will extend into Septent016, assuming the related Vascepa patenttidgigés not resolve
against us sooner.

NCE marketing exclusivity, not granted to Vascepeagcludes approval during the five-year exclusipigyiod of certain 505(b)(2)
applications and abbreviated new drug application&NDAs, submitted by another company for anothersion of the drug. However, an
application may be submitted after four years ifahtains a certification of patent invalidity aminfringement. In this case, the pioneer drug
company may be afforded the benefit of a 30-motai against the launch of such a competitive prothat would extend from the end of the
five-year exclusivity period, and may also be affmt other extensions under applicable regulatioofyding a six-month pediatric exclusivity
extension or a judicial extension if applicableuiegments are met. Another drug sponsor could gééo a form of marketing exclusivity under
the provisions of the FDCA, as amended by the Helfelxman Amendments, if such company can, undeaicetircumstances, complete a
human clinical trial process and obtain regulatmpproval of its product.

The three-year period of exclusivity granted to &&m under the Hatch-Waxman Amendments is for @ piroduct that contains an
active moiety that has been previously approvedwthe application contains reports of new clinicakstigations (other than bioavailability
studies) conducted by the sponsor that were easémipproval of the application. Our MARINE clial trial was a new clinical investigation
that was
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essential to the approval of our new drug applicatiVe are entitled to thrgeear exclusivity even though FDA determined thatEPA moiet
was previously approved in Lovaza because our MARdNhical investigation was essential for the await of our new drug product,
Vascepa.

Such three-year exclusivity protection precludesRBA from approving a marketing application forANDA, a product candidate that
the FDA views as having the same conditions of aygdras Vascepa (for example, the same indicatiolios other conditions of use), or a 505
(b)(2) NDA submitted to the FDA with Vascepa as téference product, for a period of three yeamnftbe date of FDA approval. The FDA
may accept and commence review of such applicatlariag the three-year exclusivity period. Suctethyear exclusivity grant does not
prevent a company from challenging the validityoaf patents at any time. In this case, Amarin wdiddand has been, afforded the benefit of
a 30month stay against the launch of such a competitioeuct that extends from the period that Amagiteives notice of the patent challe
(the paragraph IV notice), assuming Amarin respdadie patent challenge with 45 days, and Amardy also be afforded a judicial extens
if applicable requirements are met. Currently, Aimaelieves its 30-month stay extends until Sepem2916. This three-year form of
exclusivity may also not prevent the FDA from apping an NDA that relies only on its own data to gag the change or innovation.

On February 27, 2014, we commenced a lawsuit agdied-DA that challenges FDA'’s denial of our resfufer five-year NCE
exclusivity for Vascepa based on our reading ofrédevant statute, our view of FDA’s inconsistemath its past actions in this area and the
retroactive effect of what we believe is a new ppht FDA as it relates to our situation. Our coami requests that the court vacate FDA's
decision, declare that Vascepa is entitled to #eefits of five-year statutory exclusivity, bar thBA from accepting any ANDA or similar
application for which Vascepa is the referenceetisirug until after the statutory exclusivity periand set aside what we contend are—due tc
the denial of five-year exclusivity to Vascepa—pegurely accepted pending ANDA applications.

We may not be successful in this lawsuit againstRBA. Further, a generic company could enterlitijgtion, complicating the ultimate
determination. Even if we are successful at ther@dlistrict court level, the FDA may appeal areliway need to win on appeal before the
FDA takes, or the court imposes on the FDA, theadies we request in suit. In addition, we may reable to stay the continuation of
currently pending ANDA-related patent litigatiorh& legal process can be costly and time-consuntidgegen if we are successful the
remedies available to us diminish in value oveetms we approach the natural expiration of thefiisressociated with five-year exclusivity.

FDA marketing exclusivity is separate from, ancddition to, patent protection, trade secrets aadufacturing barriers to entry which
also help protect Vascepa against generic compretiti

We also plan to seek regulatory exclusivity for &gsa in Europe. There can be no assurance thaillileevguccessful in securing
marketing approval or regulatory exclusivity in tdaited States or in Europe.

Patents, Proprietary Technology, Trade Secrets

Our success depends in part on our ability to aldad maintain intellectual property protection dor drug candidates, technology and
know-how, and to operate without infringing the ietary rights of others. Our ability to succedigfimplement our business plan and to
protect our products with our intellectual propestyl depend in large part on our ability to:

» obtain, defend and maintain patent protection aatket exclusivity for our current and future proti
» preserve any trade secrets relating to our cuaedfuture product:

* acquire patented or patentable products and teahiesl; anc

» operate without infringing the proprietary righfstioird parties.
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Amarin has prosecuted, and is currently prosecutingtiple patent applications to protect the ilgetual property developed during the
Vascepa cardiovascular program. As of the dathisfreport, we had 40 patent applications in théddnStates that have been either issued o
allowed and more than 30 additional patent apptiogtare pending in the United States. Of suchlld@vad and issued applications, we
currently have:

» 2issued U.S. patents directed to a pharmaceuwtiraposition of Vascepa in a capsule that have ténmatsexpire in 2020 and 2030,
respectively

« lissued U.S. patent covering a composition coimtgihighly pure EPA that expires in 20:

» 35 U.S. patents covering the use of Vascepa iereitte MARINE or anticipated ANCHOR indication thetve terms that expire in
2030,

* 1 additional patent related to the use of a phaew@zal composition comprised of free fatty acisreat the ANCHOR patient
population with a term that expires in 2030, :

« 1 additional patent related to the use of a phaewi@zal composition comprised of free fatty acil$reat the MARINE patient
population with a term that expires in 20:

A Notice of Allowance is issued after the USPTO emk determination that a patent can be granteddroapplication. A Notice of
Allowance does not afford patent protection uiité@ underlying patent is issued by the USPTO. Narasse can be given that applications
with issued notices of allowance will be issuegharents or that any of our pending patent appboativill issue as patents. No assurance can
be given that, if and when issued, our patentsprédlent competitors from competing with Vascepa. &ke also pursuing patent applications
related to Vascepa in multiple jurisdictions ou¢sttle United States. We may be dependent in soses cgoon third party licensors to pursue
filing, prosecution and maintenance of patent sgitapplications owned or controlled by thoseipsarit is possible that third parties will
obtain patents or other proprietary rights thathhige necessary or useful to us. In cases whakphrties are first to invent a particular
product or technology, or first to file after vasoprovisions of the America Invents Act of 201Intviato effect on March 16, 2013, it is
possible that those parties will obtain patents with be sufficiently broad so as to prevent usnfr utilizing such technology or
commercializing our current and future products.

Although we intend to make reasonable efforts tqmt our current and future intellectual propeigyts and to ensure that any
proprietary technology we acquire or develop dassnfringe the rights of other parties, we may betable to ascertain the existence of all
potentially conflicting claims. Therefore, thereaisisk that third parties may make claims of imfiement against our current or future product:
or technologies. In addition, third parties mayabée to obtain patents that prevent the sale otourent or future products or require us to
obtain a license and pay significant fees or régslin order to continue selling such products.

We may in the future discover the existence of potglthat infringe patents that we own or that Hasen licensed to us. If we we
to initiate legal proceedings against a third p#&otgtop such an infringement, such proceeding&idmelcostly and time consuming, regardless
of the outcome. No assurances can be given thatoméd prevail, and it is possible that, during sagbroceeding, our patent rights could be
held to be invalid, unenforceable or both. Althowghintend to protect our trade secrets and prgsiknow-how through confidentiality
agreements with our manufacturers, employees amslttants, we may not be able to prevent partibgstito such confidentiality agreements
from breaching these agreements or third part@s fndependently developing or learning of our ¢radcrets.

We anticipate that competitors may from time todtiappose our efforts to obtain patent protectiomé&w technologies or to submit
patented technologies for regulatory approvals. @etitors may seek to oppose our patent applicatmdglay the approval process or to
challenge our granted patents, for example, byeasting a reexamination of our patent at the USR¥F®y filing an opposition in a foreign
patent office, even if the opposition or challehge little or no merit. Such proceedings are gdiyangghly technical, expensive, and time
consuming, and there can be no assurance thatsttddilenge would not result in the narrowing anptete revocation of any patent of ours
that was so challenged.
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Employees

At February 20, 2015 we had 201 full-time employeewloyed in sales, marketing, general and admétige and research and
development functions. We believe our relationdwitir employees are good.

Organizational Structure
At February 20, 2015, we had the following subgidis

Proportion of

Country of Ownership Interest anc
Incorporation
Subsidiary Name or Registration Voting Power Held
Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited Ireland 10C%
Amarin Pharma Inc United State 100%
Amarin Neuroscience Limite Scotland 100%
Corsicanto Ltc Ireland 100%
Ester Neurosciences Limitt Israel 10C%

Our registered office is located at One New Chahgadon EC4M 9AF, England. Our principal officeg dncated at 2 Pembroke Hou
Upper Pembroke Street 28-32, Dublin 2 Ireland. @rimary offices in the United States are locateti480 Route 206, Bedminster, NJ 07921,
USA. Our telephone number at that location is (90H-1315. Our website addressvisw.amarincorp.comNo information contained on, or
accessible through, our website is incorporatecebgrence into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10sl¢ principal operating activities were being cocted by Amarin Corporation plc,
together with Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limlitsnd Amarin Pharma, Inc., with little to no opergtactivity being conducted by Amarin
Neuroscience Limited, Corsicanto Ltd, or Ester Nsaiences Limitec

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its wholly-odsebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private limitmhmpany incorporated under the
laws of Ireland, completed a private placementI&350 million in aggregate principal amount 0f3t§% exchangeable senior notes due 2032
a portion of which were exchanged in May 2014. mbtes are the senior unsecured obligations of €amtp and are guaranteed by Amarin
Corporation plc. Corsicanto was formed in Noven@t1 and was subsequently acquired by Amarin inalgn2012 for the sole purpose of
facilitating this financing transaction.

Financial Information
The financial information required under this Iténs incorporated herein by reference to Item ghif Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Where You Can Find More Information

You are advised to read this Annual Report on FbBAK in conjunction with other reports and docunsethiat we file from time to time
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or.SE@0 may obtain copies of these reports aftedtite of this annual report directly from
us or from the SEC at the SEC’s Public ReferencaniRat 100 F Street, N.E. Washington, D.C. 2054%ddition, the SEC maintains
information for electronic filers (including Amajimat its website at www.sec.gov. The public mayagbinformation regarding the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC a@@-8BEC-0330. We make our periodic and current tepas well as any amendments to
such reports, available on our internet website bf charge, as soon as reasonably practicaklesaith material is electronically filed with,
furnished to, the SEC.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg information based on our current expectatiddscause our actual results may
differ materially from any forward-looking statentethat we make or that are made on our behal§, $biction includes a discussion of
important factors that could affect our actual ftguesults, including, but not limited to, our cegiresources, our ability to successfully
commercially launch Vascepa, the progress and ginoifinour clinical programs, the safety and efficayur product candidates, risks
associated with regulatory filings, the potentibhizal benefits and market potential of our proticandidates, commercial market estimates,
future development efforts, patent protection,ot$fef healthcare reform, reliance on third partiesd other risks set forth belo

Risks Related to the Commercialization and Developent of Vascepa

Our ability to generate increased revenue over tiext few years depends, in part, on our abilityewpand marketing approval beyond t
currently approved MARINE indication. Based on o@ommunications with the FDA, we currently expectahfinal positive results from
the REDUCE-IT outcomes study will be required fatel expansion for Vascepa.

While we are currently marketing Vascepa for usthnénMARINE indication in the United States, ouilioto commercialize Vascepa
the ANCHOR indication in the United States or maNascepa for either indication outside of the EdiStates is dependent upon receiving
additional regulatory approvals. In April 2013, fRBA accepted our Supplemental New Drug ApplicatmmsNDA, which seeks approval for
the use of Vascepa in patients with high triglyderievels (TG 3200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) who are also on statimapy, which we refer to
as the ANCHOR indication. On October 16, 2013 tBé&Eonvened an advisory committee meeting to revteevsNDA for the ANCHOR
indication. At the meeting, the advisory committeted 9 to 2 against recommending approval of Vfasckbased on the following question:

Taking into account the described efficacy andtgafata for Vascepa, do you believe that its effect the described lipid/lipoprotein
parameters are sufficient to grant approval foadaiinistration with statin therapy for the treattnefpatients with mixed dyslipidemia
and CHD or CHD risk equivalent prior to the comjgetof REDUCE-IT?

During the advisory committee meeting, based i pathe briefing materials prepared by the FDAtf@ meeting, the advisory
committee reviewed the safety and efficacy dat@woiesl in the ANCHOR trial. This included a discossiegarding observed nominally
statistically significant changes from baselinamadverse direction, while on background stagmapy, in certain lipid parameters, including
TGs, in the placebo group, raising the possibititgt the mineral oil placebo used in the ANCHORItand in the REDUCE-IT trial) was not
biologically inert and might be viewed as artifibfaexaggerating the clinical effect of Vascepa wimeasured against placebo in the
ANCHOR trial. Because no strong evidence for bialabactivity of mineral oil was identified by t&DA in the MARINE trial, ultimately it
was concluded that the between-group differen&esyliprovided the most appropriate descriptiontheftreatment effect of Vascepa and that
whatever factor(s) led to the withgroup changes over time in the placebo group wieedy/lrandomly distributed to all treatment groupbus.
the FDA approved Vascepa for use in the MARINE é¢atibn in July 2012. Following this discussionta tidvisory committee meeting, while
no formal vote was taken related to the inert reatifrthe placebo, we believe that the consenstiseddvisory committee, although not
unanimous, and the FDA was that, based on thenv#tion made available to the advisory committee EIDA at the meeting, Vascepa
appeared to be safe and effective for the reductidrGs in patients with mixed dyslipidemia on staherapy.

However, there was also extensive discussion duhiegdvisory committee meeting regarding the etgokclinical benefit of a reductic
in TGs in this patient population. That is, whettie clinical data derived from the ANCHOR trial sva sufficient basis for approval. In
particular, the advisory committee and FDA noteslltttk of prospective, controlled clinical triattdalemonstrating that pharmacological
reduction of TGs in patients with mixed dyslipidanain statin therapy significantly reduces resiadaatiiovascular risk in these patients. The
FDA noted that prior clinical outcomes studies amtdd by others, albeit in different patient
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populations, evaluating different drugs with difiet mechanisms of action, failed to demonstratatésscally significant reduction in
cardiovascular events following concomitant usdrofy therapy in patients on statin therapy. Weehelithat the negative vote of the advisory
committee was principally due to the lack of reaaomclusive data in these clinical outcomes stuidiéavor of the hypothesis that TG
reduction will result in reduced cardiovasculakrishe FDA is not bound by the recommendation$efadvisory committee, but it generally
follows such recommendations.

A Special Protocol Assessment, or SPA, agreement agreement with the FDA that Phase 3 trial paltdesign, clinical endpoints, a
planned statistical analyses are acceptable toosuggulatory approval. A SPA is generally bindirgpn the FDA except in limited
circumstances, such as if the FDA identifies a suttml scientific issue essential to determiniafety or efficacy after the study begins, or if
the study sponsor fails to follow the protocol thets agreed upon with the FDA. On October 29, 26H8FDA natified us that it rescinded the
SPA agreement we entered into for the ANCHOR pratocol because the FDA determined that a subiatacientific issue essential to
determining the effectiveness of Vascepa in thdistlipopulation was identified after testing begeme FDA determined, consistent with
discussion at the advisory committee meeting, ibstlts from outcome studies of other triglycetriolering drugs failed to support the
hypothesis that a triglyceride-lowering drug sigrhtly reduces the risk for cardiovascular evam®ng the population studied in the
ANCHOR trial. Thus, the FDA stated that it no longensiders a change in serum triglyceride levelsudficient to establish the effectiveness
of a drug intended to reduce cardiovascular riskuinjects with serum triglyceride levels below H0@/dL.

The FDA did not meet the originally assigned Prigsion Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, goal date ottBeaber 20, 2013 for the
completion of its review of the ANCHOR sNDA becaud¢he pendency of our request to re-instate tNEAOR SPA agreement. Beginning
in November 2013, we sought reconsideration aneéapg the SPA rescission decision to three levdlscoeasing authority within the FDA
and were denied each time, most recently in Sepe2bil4. Based on FDArepeated position in its appeal denials anchiegmal consultatic
with FDA officials at higher levels, we informedetirDA that we did not intend to appeal the SPAissgan further. Given our September 2!
determination to not appeal the SPA rescissioméurtwe expect the FDA to take action on our pep@NCHOR sNDA in the near future.

Based on our communications with the FDA, we cutyesxpect that final positive results from the RBOE-IT outcomes study will be
required for FDA approval of label expansion fors¢apa. Any delay in obtaining, or an inability totain, expansion of our marketing
approval rights could prevent us from growing rexeat greater than our current pace and couldftrerbave a material adverse effect on ou
operations and financial condition, including obiliy to reach profitability.

Even if we obtain additional regulatory approvals Wascepa, the timing or scope of any approvalg pnahibit or reduce our ability to
commercialize the product successfully. For exaniptee approval process for the ANCHOR indicattakes too long, we may miss market
opportunities and give other companies the alititgevelop competing products or establish marketidance. Additionally, the terms of any
approvals, including the approval received fromREBD&\ in July 2012 for the MARINE indication, maygue to not have the scope or breadth
needed for us to successfully commercialize Vasoeecome profitable.

We are dependent upon the success of Vascepa, whiehaunched commercially in the MARINE indicatiom early 2013.

As a result of our reliance on a single product amdprimary focus on the U.S. market in the neamt much of our negerm results ar
value as a company depends on our ability to eremutt commercial strategy for Vascepa in the Un8tes, which we launched in January
2013. If commercialization efforts for Vascepaltie MARINE indication are not successful, our bus@eill be materially and adversely
affected. Even if we are able to develop additigmatucts from our research and development efftiresdevelopment time cycle for products
typically takes several years. This restricts dailitg to respond to adverse business conditiomd/fsscepa. If we are not successful in
developing any future product or products, or @rthis not adequate
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demand for Vascepa or the market for such prodextldps less rapidly than we anticipate, we mayhaoe the ability to effectively shift our
resources to the development of alternative pradoictlo so in a timely manner without suffering eniall adverse effects on our business. As
result, the lack of alternative products we developld constrain our ability to generate revenuebsachieve profitability.

Our current and planned commercialization effortsay not be successful in increasing sales of Vascepa

In January 2013, we began selling and marketing®as in the United States through our own, newligldished sales and marketing
teams and through a newly established third-pantgroercial distribution infrastructure. We hired kmsrsonnel in these areas over the last
several years and hired and trained a professgatas$ force in early January 2013. In October 2fil®wing an FDA advisory committee
recommendation against approval for the ANCHORdation, we implemented a plan to reduce our wodd@nd our team of sales
professionals in half. In May 2014 we began co-prtng Vascepa in the United States with Kowa Phasuticals America, Inc. under a co-
promotion agreement we entered into in March 2Qhter the agreement, approximately 250 Kowa Phagotarals America, Inc. sales
representatives devote a substantial portion af timee to promoting Vascepa with Amarin’s approxsitaly 130 sales representatives based o
a plan designed to substantially increase botmtimeber of sales targets reached and the frequdrsalas calls on existing sales targets.
However, the commercialization of a new pharmacauproduct is a complex undertaking for a comp@anynanage, and we have very limited
experience as a company operating in this are@@milomoting a pharmaceutical product with a partne

Factors related to building and managing a saldsvaarketing organization that can inhibit our effao successfully commercialize
Vascepa include:

» our inability to attract and retain adequate nuraldreffective sales and marketing person

* our inability to adequately train our sales andkating personnel, in particular as it relates toouss healthcare regulatory
requirements applicable to the marketing and daiharmaceutical products, and our inability togubgtely monitor compliance
with these requirement

« the inability of our new sales personnel, workingdis as a new market entrant, to obtain accessgersuade adequate numbers o
physicians to prescribe Vasce|

» the effect of our recent reduction in force andutatpry events on our ability to contact potengiatchasers of Vascepa in an
efficient manner

» the lack of complementary products to be offereddigs personnel, which may put us at a competiisa&dvantage relative to
companies with more extensive product lines;

» unforeseen costs and expenses associated withtiogeaanew independent sales and marketing orgaonz:

In addition, we believe that investors should vigith caution both the results for the twelve morghded December 31, 2014 and the
results for quarterly periods for the foreseeabtark, as data for this limited period may not &eresentative of a trend consistent with the
results presented or otherwise predictive of futesailts, especially in light of competitive devmirents in the market in which we operate, ou
interactions with FDA on potential label expansianth Vascepa, the October 2013 approximately 588tiction in our sales force, and the
March 2014 co-promotion Agreement with Kowa Pharengicals America, Inc. We commenced our commetaiailch of Vascepa on
January 28, 2013. Accordingly, there is a verytiagdiamount of information available at this timelt&dermine the actual number of total
prescriptions for Vascepa. We believe investoraikhoonsider our results to date together with ltesaver several future quarters, or longer,
before making an assessment about potential fpeenfermance.

If we are not successful in our efforts to marked aell Vascepa, our anticipated revenues will béenially and negatively affected, and
we may not obtain profitability, may need to cutkan research and development activities or needise additional funding that could result
in substantial dilution.
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Vascepa may fail to achieve the degree of marketegatance by physicians, patients, healthcare payand others in the medical
community necessary for commercial success.

We began marketing and selling Vascepa for usearMARINE indication in January 2013. Vascepa naltd gain sufficient market
acceptance by physicians, patients, healthcarerpaym others in the medical community. If Vascépas not achieve an adequate level of
acceptance, we may not generate significant pragweinues and we may not become profitable. Theedanf market acceptance of Vascepa
for the MARINE indication and any future approvedications will depend on a number of factors,udahg:

» the perceived efficacy, safety and potential acages of Vascepa, as compared to alternative tresn

* our ability to offer Vascepa for sale at compeétjwices:

» convenience and ease of administration comparatidmative treatment

» the willingness of the target patient populatiortryonew therapies and of physicians to preschiese therapie:

» the scope, effectiveness and strength of produatagibn, marketing and distribution support, inghgdour sales and marketing
team (which was affected by our recent reducticioioe);

* publicity concerning Vascepa or competing prodc
* perception that we will continue to market and $ascepa in the MARINE indication and any futur@iyed indications
» sufficient thirc-party coverage or reimbursement;

» the actual efficacy of the product and the prevedeand severity of any side effects, including Bmytations or warnings contained
in Vascep’s approved labeling

Our SPA agreement for ANCHOR has been rescinded and SPA agreement for REDUCE-IT is not a guaranteé FDA approval of
Vascepa for the proposed REDUCE-IT indication.

A SPA is an evaluation by the FDA of a protocolhiite goal of reaching an agreement that the Phasa protocol design, clinical
endpoints, and statistical analyses are acceptmisigpport regulatory approval of the drug prodiuzatdidate with respect to effectiveness for
the indication studied. The ANCHOR trial was, ahd REDUCE-IT trial is, being conducted under an Sgfeement with the FDA. In each
case, the FDA agreed that, based on the informateaubmitted to the agency, the design and plaanatysis of the trial is adequate to
support use of the conducted study as the primasistfor approval with respect to effectivenes&PA agreement is generally binding upon
the FDA except in limited circumstances, such aksdafFDA identifies a substantial scientific is@ssential to determining safety or efficacy
after the study begins, or if the study sponsds tai follow the protocol that was agreed upon tfith FDA.

On October 29, 2013, the FDA notified us that #icieded the ANCHOR study SPA agreement becaudeDiledetermined that a
substantial scientific issue essential to determginhe effectiveness of Vascepa in the studied latipn was identified after testing began.
Specifically, consistent with discussion at theisadsy committee meeting, the FDA determined thaults from outcome studies of other drugs
failed to support the hypothesis that a triglycesidwering drug significantly reduces the risk éardiovascular events among the population
studied in the ANCHOR trial. Beginning in NovemI2€13, we sought reconsideration and appealed ther&Rission decision to three levels
of increasing authority within the FDA and were ideheach time, most recently in September 2014edas FDA's repeated position in its
appeal denials and its internal consultation wiflAFofficials at higher levels, we informed the Fat we did not intend to appeal the SPA
rescission further.

Thus, even though we have received regulatory ajapaf Vascepa for the MARINE indication under a/Sagreement, our ANCHOR
SPA agreement was rescinded and there is no assutfzat the FDA will not

28



Table of Contents

rescind our REDUCE-IT SPA agreement. The inabilitpbtain marketing approval in the ANCHOR or REDEMT indications has and
would prevent us from growing revenue more sigaifity, and it has had, and could continue to haveaterial adverse effect on our
operations and financial condition, including obiliy to reach profitability.

We may not be able to compete effectively againstammpetitors’ pharmaceutical products.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriehaykly competitive. There are many pharmaceuticahpanies, biotechnology
companies, public and private universities andaredeorganizations actively engaged in the reseandhdevelopment of products that may be
similar to our products. It is probable that thenfaer of companies seeking to develop products laedpies similar to our products will
increase. Many of these and other existing or gatecompetitors have substantially greater finahdechnical and human resources than we
do and may be better equipped to develop, manutaand market products. These companies may degelbntroduce products and
processes competitive with or superior to oursaddition, other technologies or products may bestigped that have an entirely different
approach or means of accomplishing the intendepgses of our products, which might render our tetdgy and products noncompetitive or
obsolete.

Our competitors both in the United States and Eeifoplude large, well-established pharmaceuticaiganies, specialty pharmaceutical
sales and marketing companies, and specializeibvasgtular treatment companies. GlaxoSmithKling ywluich currently markets Lova#£a a,
prescription-only omega-3 fatty acid indicated patients with severe hypertriglyceridemia was appdoby FDA in 2004 and has been on the
market in the United States since 2005. As desgfiiledow, generic versions of Lovaza are now avhalabthe United States. Other large
companies with competitive products include AbbViw,., which currently markets Tricér and Trilipbfor the treatment of severe
hypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia and$yian® , which is primarily used to raise HDL-C, lsualso used to lower triglycerides.
Generic versions of Tricor, Trilipix, and Niaspame also now available in the United States. In taldjin May 2014, Epanova (omega-3-
carboxylic acids) capsules, a free fatty acid fofromega-3 (comprised of 55% EPA and 20% DHA), sfggroved by the FDA for patients
with severe hypertriglyceridemia. Epanova was dgsedl by Omthera Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and is nemed by AstraZeneca
Pharmaceuticals LP (AstraZeneca). We expect AstraZaewill utilize its substantial commercial reszag to market its product imminently.
Also, in April 2014, Omtryg, another omega-3-aatty acid composition developed by Trygg Pharma&geived FDA approval for severe
hypertriglyceridemia. We are not aware of the comuiaéization plan for Omtryg. Each of these comtoesi, other than Trygg, has greater
resources than we do, including financial, prodietelopment, marketing, personnel and other ressurc

In April 2014, Teva Pharmaceuticals USA Inc., ovdgaunched a generic version of Lovaza after imigiits patent litigation against
Pronova BioPharma Norge AS, now owned by BASF, tvlolvns such patents rights. In June 2014 and Séete?2®14, Par Pharmaceutical
Inc., or Par, and Apotex Inc., or Apotex, receivA approval of their respective versions of genéwvaza. In March 2011, Pronova/BASF
entered into an agreement with Apotex to settlpatent litigation in the United States relatedlé@aza. Pursuant to the terms of the settlemel
agreement, we believe Pronova/BASF granted Apot@ease to enter the United States market witkreegc version of Lovaza in the first
quarter of 2015, or earlier depending on circunttanthe details of which are not known to us.

In addition, we are aware of other pharmaceutioaiganies that are developing products that, if agmt and marketed, would compete
with Vascepa. We understand that Acasti Pharmabsidiary of Neptune Technologies & Bioresources,lannounced in late 2012 that it
intends to conduct a Phase 3 clinical program sesssthe safety and efficacy of its omega-3 pretsani drug candidate derived from krill oil
for the treatment of hypertriglyceridemia. We bedieCatabasis Pharmaceuticals, or Catabasis, ResBhgrmaceuticals, or Resolvyx, and
Sancilio & Company are also developing potentishtments for hypertriglyceridemia based on ometgt acids. To our knowledge,
Catabasis initiated a Phase 2 clinical trial opitsduct in December 2013; Resolvyx's compound iasi@ Phase 1 clinical testing; and
Sancilio is preparing to commence Phase 3
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clinical testing. In addition, we are aware thattidas BioPharma, Inc. is developing an omega-3bé#serapeutic for the treatment of severe
hypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia. MatirBioPharma, Inc. has filed an Investigational N&wg Application with the FDA to
conduct a human study in the treatment of sevepertyglyceridemia. Isis Pharmaceuticals annourfaedrable Phase 2 results of ISIS-
APOCIII g« a drug candidate administered through weekly sialpeous injections, in patients with high trighjides and type 2 diabetes anc
patients with moderate to severe high triglyceridsally, Madrigal Pharmaceuticals has completkdse 1 clinical testing of MGL-3196 for
the treatment of high triglycerides and variougdliparameters in patients.

Generic company competitors are seeking approvayenheric versions of Vascepa.

The Food Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, as amefgeithe Drug Price Competition and Patent Term étatibn Act of 1984, as
amended, or the Hatch-Waxman Amendments, permEf to approve abbreviated new drug applicationsANDAs, for generic versions
of brand name drugs like Vascepa. We refer to tbegss of generic drug applications as the “ANDBAcgsss.” The ANDA process permits
competitor companies to obtain marketing approvabfdrug product with the same active ingredidosage form, strength, route of
administration, and labeling as the approved brearde drug, but without having to conduct and sulstimitcal studies to establish the safety
and efficacy of the proposed generic product. &telof such clinical studies, an ANDA applicantdset submit data demonstrating that its
product is bioequivalent to the brand name produsuially based on pharmacokinetic studies.

The Hatch-Waxman Amendments require an applicard firug product that relies, in whole or in part,the FDA'’s prior approval of
Vascepa, to notify us of its application, a parahr&/ notice, if the applicant is seeking to marketproduct prior to the expiration of the
patents that claim Vascepa. A bona fide paragrpiotice may not be given under the Hatch-WaxmareAdments until after the generic
company receives from the FDA an acknowledgemétarlstating that its ANDA is sufficiently complete permit a substantive review.

The paragraph 1V notice is required to contain taitedl factual and legal statement explaining thgivfor the applicarg’opinion that th
proposed product does not infringe our patents$,dhapatents are invalid, or both. After receipawalid notice, we would have the option of
bringing a patent infringement suit in federal déestcourt against any generic company seeking@ambifor its product within 45 days from the
date of receipt of each notice. If such a suitimmenced within this 45 day period, we will be tedi to receive a 30 month stay on FDA's
ability to give final approval to any of the progasproducts that reference Vascepa that beginiseodate we receive the paragraph IV notice.
The stay may be shortened or lengthened if eithdy fails to cooperate in the litigation and ityr#e terminated if the court decides the ca
less than 30 months. If the litigation is resoledavor of the applicant before the expiratiortiod 30 month period, the stay will be
immediately lifted and the FDA'’s review of the ajgption may be completed. Such litigation is oftime-consuming and costly, and may
result in generic competition if such patents aeupheld or if the generic competitor is found tminfringe such patents.

We have received six paragraph IV notices notifyisgpf submitted ANDAS to Vascepa under the Hatcdxivan Amendments. We are
now engaged in costly litigation with the ANDA afgaints to protect our patent rights. If an ANDZAefilis ultimately successful in patent
litigation against us, it meets the requirementsafgeneric version of Vascepa to the satisfaaifdhe FDA under its ANDA (after any
applicable regulatory exclusivity period and thigétion-related 30-month stay period expires), srable to supply the product in significant
commercial quantities, the generic company couiduce a generic version of Vascepa. Such a markeg would likely limit our U.S. sale
which would have an adverse impact on our busiapdsesults of operations. In addition, even ibmpetitor’s effort to introduce a generic
product is ultimately unsuccessful, the percepti@t such development is in progress and/or nelaterkto such progress could materially
affect the perceived value of our company and tagksprice.

In addition to the six paragraph notices receivedate, in February 2014, prior to the FDA'’s thyeer exclusivity determination for
Vascepa, we received a purported paragraph IV efition a generic drug
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company with respect to an ANDA to Vascepa. The KDAfirmed with us after we received the notice bafbre the exclusivity
determination was made that the FDA had not acddptereview any ANDA to Vascepa. The FDA has repdly taken the position that
paragraph IV notices delivered to pioneer compasies as Amarin prior to the acceptance by the FiAeview of a submitted ANDA are
not effective under the Hatch-Waxman Amendmente. géneric company may challenge the FDA'’s posibionvhether the notice is valid in
court in connection with patent litigation. Genezt@mpanies are thought to send such prematureesdticseek to avail themselves of the 180-
day generic exclusivity period for an approved pictdinder an ANDA based on the generic’s view thabuld then have first-to-file status
and to seek an early end to related patent libgatiith the branded drug company and the associftedonth stay. Because we and the FDA
do not believe this purported paragraph IV not&an effective notice under the Hatch-Waxman Amesrdmwe do not plan to initiate patent
litigation against the generic company that sutedithe ANDA until within the 4%ty period after we receive a valid paragraph Iticedrom
such applicant.

Our suit against FDA challenging its denial of fivgear, NCE exclusivity to Vascepa under the Hatchathan Amendments may not
achieve its intended goal to delay generic compatitthallenges to Vascepa.

The timelines and conditions under the ANDA prodéss permit the start of patent litigation anaallthe FDA to approve generic
versions of brand name drugs like Vascepa diffsetiaon whether a drug receives three-year, oryidza; new chemical entity (NCE)
marketing exclusivity. The FDA typically makes aafenination on marketing exclusivity in connectiwith an NDA approval of a drug for a
new indication. We applied to the FDA for five-yeBICE marketing exclusivity for Vascepa in conneeatwith the NDA for our MARINE
indication, which NDA was approved by the FDA oiy126, 2012. On February 21, 2014, in connectiothwhe July 26, 2012 approval of the
MARINE indication, the FDA denied a grant of NCE mketing exclusivity to Vascepa and granted threaryearketing exclusivity. Such
three-year exclusivity extends through July 25,38ad is expected to be supplemented by a 30-nstaytthat we believe will extend into
September 2016, assuming the related Vascepa pititgatton is not resolved against us sooner.

NCE marketing exclusivity, not granted to Vascepagcludes approval during the five-year exclusipigyiod of certain 505(b)(2)
applications and ANDAs submitted by another comganyanother version of the drug. However, an agion may be submitted after four
years if it contains a certification of patent itiddy or nor-infringement. In this case, the pioneer drug compaay be afforded the benefit of
a 30-month stay against the launch of such a cativegproduct that would extend from the end of tive-year exclusivity period, and may
also be afforded other extensions under applicagelations, including a six-month pediatric exelitg extension or a judicial extension if
applicable requirements are met. Another drug spoecsuld also gain a form of marketing exclusivityder the provisions of the FDCA, as
amended by the Hatch-Waxman Amendments, if suclpaagncan, under certain circumstances, completerah clinical trial process and
obtain regulatory approval of its product.

The three-year period of exclusivity granted to &&m under the Hatch-Waxman Amendments is for @ piroduct that contains an
active moiety that has been previously approvedwthe application contains reports of new cliniogkestigations (other than bioavailability
studies) conducted by the sponsor that were easémtpproval of the application. Our MARINE chal trial was a new clinical investigation
that was essential to the approval of our new dpication. We are entitled to three-year excliigigven though FDA determined that the
EPA moiety was previously approved in Lovaza beeaus MARINE clinical investigation was essential the approval of our new drug
product, Vascepa.

Such three-year exclusivity protection precludesEBDA from approving a marketing application forANDA, a product candidate that
the FDA views as having the same conditions of aygdras Vascepa (for example, the same indicatiolios other conditions of use), or a 505
(b)(2) NDA submitted to the FDA with Vascepa as téference product, for a period of three yeamnftbe date of FDA approval. The FDA
may accept and commence review of such applicatlariag the three-year exclusivity period. Suctetiyear exclusivity grant does not
prevent a company from challenging the validityaf patents at any time. In this
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case, Amarin would be, and has been, affordedehefii of a 30-month stay against the launch ohsucompetitive product that extends from
the period that Amarin receives notice of the piatbiallenge (the paragraph IV notice), assuming Am@sponds to the patent challenge with
45 days, and Amarin may also be afforded a judex&tnsion if applicable requirements are met. €hilty, Amarin believes its 30-month stay
extends until September 2016. This three-year foirexclusivity may also not prevent the FDA fronpagving an NDA that relies only on its
own data to support the change or innovation.

On February 27, 2014, we commenced a lawsuit apdied=DA that challenges FDA's denial of our resjuer five-year NCE
exclusivity for Vascepa based on our reading ofrélevant statute, our view of FDA's inconsistemgsh its past actions in this area and the
retroactive effect of what we believe is a new ppht FDA as it relates to our situation. Our coami requests that the court vacate FDA's
decision, declare that Vascepa is entitled to theefits of five-year statutory exclusivity, bar thBA from accepting any ANDA or similar
application for which Vascepa is the referencestistirug until after the statutory exclusivity periand set aside what we contend are—due tc
the denial of five-year exclusivity to Vascepa—pegurely accepted pending ANDA applications.

We may not be successful in this lawsuit againstRBA. Further, a generic company could enterlitijgtion, complicating the ultimate
determination. Even if we are successful at theradlistrict court level, the FDA may appeal arelmay need to win on appeal before the
FDA takes, or the court imposes on the FDA, theedigs we request in suit. In addition, we may reoable to stay the continuation of
currently pending ANDA-related patent litigatiorh& legal process can be costly and time-consunmidgegen if we are successful the
remedies available to us diminish in value oveetms we approach the natural expiration of thefiisressociated with five-year exclusivity.

Vascepa is a prescription-only omega-3 fatty aciimega-3 fatty acids are also marketed by other canips as non-prescription dietary
supplements. As a result, Vascepa would be sulifgaion-prescription competition and consumer sulbstion.

Our only current product, Vascepa, is a prescniptioly omega-3 fatty acid. Mixtures of omega-3yfattids are naturally occurring
substances contained in various foods, includitty fash. Omega-3 fatty acids are also marketedttwers as non-prescription dietary
supplements. We cannot be sure physicians will ¥vlewpharmaceutical grade purity and tested safetfascepa as having a superior
therapeutic profile to naturally occurring omegtaBly acids and dietary supplements. In additibe,EDA has not enforced what we view as
illegal drug claims made by certain supplement rfegturers to the extent we believe appropriate uagplicable law and regulations, for
example, claims that such supplements reduce tegige levels. Also, for more than a decade noeRDA has expressly permitted dietary
supplement manufacturers that sell supplementsagcong the omega-3 fatty acids EPA and/or DHA tdenthe following qualified health
claim directly to consumers: Supportive but notatosive research shows that consumption of EPACAAA omega-3 fatty acids may reduce
the risk of coronary heart disease. Under FDA'sitagry regime, we cannot make this clam. Thes®fa@nable dietary supplements to
effectively compete with Vascepa. In addition,hie extent the net price of Vascepa after insurandeoffered discounts is significantly higher
than the prices of commercially available omegai8/facids marketed by other companies as dietgrglements (through that lack of
coverage by insurers or otherwise), physicians magmmend these commercial alternatives insteadithg prescriptions for Vascepa or
patients may elect on their own to take commerciaailable omeg&-fatty acids. Either of these outcomes may adyieimsgact our results
operations by limiting how we price our product dinaiting the revenue we receive from the sale aktvepa due to reduced market accept

We may not be successful in our Vascepa co-pronrogéfort with Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc.

In March 2014, we entered into a co-promotion agrera with Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. tqpcomote Vascepa in the United
States under which approximately 250 Kowa Pharmtamzdsl America, Inc. sales representatives devatgbatantial portion of their time to
promoting Vascepa with Amarin’s approximately 13fes representatives. Co-promotion under the agreecommenced in May 2014 based
on a plan designed to
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substantially increase both the number of salegetareached and the frequency of sales callsistirexsales targets. While our agreement
provides for minimum performance criteria, we héttke control over Kowa Pharmaceuticals Ameriaa;.| and it may fail to devote the
necessary resources and attention to promote Vasfégrtively. If that were to occur, dependingMascepa revenues, we may have to curtai
the continued development of Vascepa for appravahdlditional indications or increase our plannegeaditures and undertake additional
development or commercialization activities at own expense. Or, we may seek to terminate the emgneteand search for another
commercialization partner. If we elect to increase expenditures to fund development or commeumatitin activities on our own, depending
on Vascepa's revenues, we may need to obtain edditcapital, which may not be available to us cceptable terms, or at all, or which may
not be possible due to our other financing arraregem If we do not generate sufficient funds frém $ale of Vascepa or, to the extent neede
to supplement funds generated from product revetargot raise sufficient funds, we may not be &blgevote resources sufficient to market
and sell Vascepa on our own in a manner requireeaiize the full market potential of Vascepa.

The commercial value to us of the MARINE and ANCHQORdications may be smaller than we anticipate.

There can be no assurance as to the adequacynfoneeial success of the scope and breadth of thRIME indication or, if approved,
the ANCHOR indication. Even if we obtain marketiaygproval for additional indications, the FDA maypiose restrictions on the product’s
conditions for use, distribution or marketing andsome cases may impose ongoing requirements ftmparket surveillance, post-approval
studies or clinical trials. Also, with regard t®@tMARINE indication and any other indications foniesh we may gain approval, the number of
actual patients with the condition included in sagproved indication may be smaller than we ardieiplf any such approved indication is
narrower than we anticipate, the market potentinbfir product would suffer.

Our products will be subject to extensive post-apgal government regulation.

Once a product candidate receives FDA marketingavah humerous post-approval requirements apphgoAg other things, the holder
of an approved NDA is subject to periodic and othenitoring and reporting obligations enforced bg FDA and other regulatory bodies,
including obligations to monitor and report advessents and instances of the failure of a productéet the specifications in the approved
application. Application holders must also subnditextising and other promotional material to retpra authorities and report on ongoing
clinical trials.

With respect to sales and marketing activitiesudilg direct-to-consumer advertising and promoti@agévities involving the internet,
advertising and promotional materials must compith \WDA rules in addition to other applicable fealesind local laws in the United States
in other countries. Industry-sponsored scientifid aducational activities also must comply with FBx&d other requirements. In the United
States, the distribution of product samples to flgiss must comply with the requirements of the.UWP&scription Drug Marketing Act.
Manufacturing facilities remain subject to FDA iesgion and must continue to adhere to the FDA’saeniirgood manufacturing practice
requirements, or cGMPs. Application holders musaisbFDA approval for product and manufacturingrides, depending on the nature of the
change. We also are subject to the new federadpeaency requirements under the Patient ProteatidnAffordable Care Act, as amended by
the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Adticlv require manufacturers of certain drugs, deyib&®logics, and medical supplies to
report to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Seegi or CMS, information related to payments ahemtransfers of value to physicians and
teaching hospitals and physician ownership andsitmvent interests. We may also be subject, directipdirectly through our customers and
partners, to various fraud and abuse laws, inctudiithout limitation, the U.S. Anti-Kickback Staéy U.S. False Claims Act, and similar state
laws, which impact, among other things, our progassdes, marketing, and scientific/educational gpaograms. If we participate in the U.S.
Medicaid Drug Rebate Program, the Federal Supphe@de of the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairspther government drug programs,
we will be subject to complex laws and regulatioegarding reporting and payment obligations. Wetrals® comply with requirements to
collect and report adverse events and product aintplassociated with our products. For
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example, in September 2014, we participated irutime inspection from the FDA in which the FDA mauleservations on perceived
deficiencies related to our processes for collactiod processing of adverse events. We have resgdad-DA with respect to these
observations and continue to work with FDA to shbat we have improved related systems and we lgetteat we have demonstrated to FDA
that we have adequately responded to these obmersa®ur activities are also potentially subjecttS. federal and state consumer protectio
and unfair competition laws. Similar requirementstin many of these areas in other countries.

Depending on the circumstances, failure to meestetip@st-approval requirements can result in crihgirasecution, fines or other
penalties, injunctions, recall or seizure of pradutotal or partial suspension of production, dear withdrawal of pre-marketing product
approvals, or refusal to allow us to enter intopygontracts, including government contracts. Wayralso be held responsible for the non-
compliance of our partners, such as Kowa PharmmadsiAmerica, Inc. In addition, even if we complith FDA and other requirements, new
information regarding the safety or effectivenea product could lead the FDA to modify or withdra product approval. Adverse regulatory
action, whether pre- or post-approval, can pot#ytiead to product liability claims and increasgr @roduct liability exposure. We must also
compete against other products in qualifying forerage and reimbursement under applicable thiry payment and insurance programs.

The commercial value of Vascepa may be negativélgaed by the advisory committee recommendationiagt approval of Vascepa in
the ANCHOR indication, the rescission of the ANCHOHPA agreement or any subsequent rejection of tkeaging FDA application witt
the FDA for the use of Vascepa in the ANCHOR indian.

Though we are restricted from promoting Vascepauagplicable regulations for any indication ottrem the FDA-approved MARINE
indication, healthcare professionals are not restlifrom prescribing Vascepa for such so-callédatifeled uses. A significant amount of the
sales of Vascepa are, in fact, attributable toated off-labeled uses of the drug. We expect émabng the offabeled uses of Vascepa are
that would fall into, or be closely related to, fi@posed ANCHOR indication. The recent negatie®memendation of the advisory committee
meeting against approval of Vascepa in the ANCH@dication, the recent rescission by the FDA of ANCHOR SPA, and/or a subsequent
decision by the FDA to not approve Vascepa in theCAOR indication may negatively and materially affthe perception of the utility of
Vascepa for use in the ANCHOR indication or foresthurposes and thus negatively and materiallyceffales of Vascepa.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies strictly relgte the promotional claims that may be made abpugscription products. If we or
Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. are found to leimproperly promoted off-label uses of Vascepa,may become subject to
significant fines and other liability.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies strictly fatguthe promotional claims that may be made apmasgcription products. In
particular, a product may not be promoted for ukatare not approved by the FDA or such otherleggrty agencies as reflected in the
product’s approved labeling. Even though we reatBA marketing approval for Vascepa for the MARINiEication, physicians may still
prescribe Vascepa to their patients for use irtrdtment of conditions that are not included as @iethe indication statement in our FDA-
approved Vascepa label. If we are found to havenpted such offabel uses, we may become subject to significamegonent fines and oth
related liability. We may also be held responsfblethe non-compliance of our co-promotion parti@wa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. For
example, the Federal government has levied largkearid criminal fines against companies for alégaproper promotion and has enjoined
several companies from engaging in off-label praomtThe FDA has also requested that companies enteconsent decrees or permanent
injunctions under which specified promotional cocidis changed or curtailed.

In addition, incentives exist under applicable ldlhet encourage competitors, employees and physitareport violations of rules
governing promotional activities for pharmaceutigadducts. These incentives could lead to so-callleidtleblower lawsuits as part of which
such persons seek to collect a portion of mondggexdly overbilled to government agencies duedogkample, promotion of pharmaceutical
products beyond labeled claims. These incentivakialso lead to suits that we have mischaracteér@zeompetitor’s product in
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the marketplace and may, as a result, be suedléged damages to our competitors. Such lawsutigetier with or without merit, are typically
time-consuming and costly to defend. Such suits atsy result in related shareholder lawsuits, whiehalso costly to defend.

The REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes trial may fdo show that Vascepa can reduce major cardiovdacevents in an at-risk
patient population on statin therapy, and the lorigrm clinical results of Vascepa may not be consigtwith the clinical results we
observed in our Phase 3 clinical trial, in which sa our sales of Vascepa may then suffer.

In accordance with the SPA for our MARINE and ANCR@®@ials, efficacy was evaluated in these trialsipared to placebo at twelve
weeks. No placebo-controlled studies have beenwstad regarding the long-term effect of Vascepéipds, and no outcomes study has beer
conducted evaluating Vascepa. The REDUCE-IT stadiesigned to evaluate the efficacy of Vascepadneing major cardiovascular events
in an at-risk patient population on statin therapy.

Outcomes studies of certain other lipid-modifyihgrapies have failed to achieve the endpoints @i studies. For example, in 2010, the
results of the ACCORD-Lipid trial were publishechid trial studied the effect of adding fenofibrateo open-label simvastatin therapy on
cardiovascular outcomes. The addition of fenofdaiditl not show any treatment benefit on cardiovas@utcomes over simvastatin
monotherapy in this study. In 2011, the resultthefAIM-HIGH trial were published. This trial stuatl the effect of adding a second lipid-
altering agent, extended-release niacin, to simatiastherapy on cardiovascular outcomes in pedpiégh risk for cardiovascular events. No
significant incremental treatment benefit with exdedselease niacin was observed. In addition, in Sep&rB012, researchers published ir
Journal of the American Medical Associatiior JAMA, the results of a retrospective meta-analysis ofhtwpreviously conducted studies
regarding the use of omega-3 supplements acrogsiggratient populations. This medaalysis suggested that the use of such supplenmes
not associated with a lower risk of all-cause deegindiac death, sudden death, heart attack,akestiWe believe the results of these studies
may not be directly applicable to the use of Vaaomyger time. For instance, the outcomes studiefefmfibrates and niacin were conducted in
patient populations in which the majority of patestudied had triglycerides below 200 mg/dL antbfiéorates and niacin are believed to work
differently than Vascepa in the body and do notehas favorable a side-effect profile, and ninetegfethe twenty studies included in the JAMA
meta-analysis involved the use of omega-3 supplésreamtaining a mixture of EPA and DHA, and mostemevaluated at relatively lower
doses. In addition, in May 2013 he New England Journal of Medicimiblished the results of an outcome study of Ingoar day of an
omega-3 acid ethyl ester composition. In that sttltly composition failed to show a benefit in radgdhe rate of death from cardiovascular
causes or hospitalization for cardiovascular causesn administered to patients with cardiovascritdr factors under different study
conditions than in the REDUCE-IT study. Vascepeomsprised of highly-pure ethyl-EPA, and has begreyed by the FDA for use in adult
patients with severe hypertriglyceridemia at a dufs€ grams per day and is being studied in REDUTEt 4 grams per day.

The only other outcomes study involving the usa bfghly-pure formulation of ethyl-EPA, called thapan EPA Lipid Intervention
Study (JELIS), suggested that use of a highly-pamaulation of ethyl-EPA in Japan, when used injoontion with statins, reduced
cardiovascular events by 19% compared to the ustatihs alone. However, there are several linoitetito the JELIS study. First, the patient
population was exclusively Japanese, the majofith® participants were women, and at baselineptihad a much higher LDL, limiting its
generalizability to the intended target populatialso, a low dose of statins was used. It is unkmaevhether the positive treatment effects
would have persisted if these patients had beémalty treated with statins using contemporary L@kgets in the United States. In addition,
JELIS was an open-label trial, which could influemmatient and physician behavior and reporting/offgoms, decisions regarding
hospitalization, and referral of events for adjadiicn. This may be particularly relevant since liadigations for unstable angina was a prim
contributor of the overall positive result, anct@sidered a softer endpoint than fatal cardiovas@avents.
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Although we believe the results of the JAMA metalgiais and other studies are not directly applieablthe potential long-term clinical
experience with Vascepa, there can be no assutiacthe endpoints of the REDUCE-IT cardiovasculsicomes study will be achieved or
that the lipid-modifying effects of Vascepa in REDE-IT or any other study of Vascepa will not bejeabto variation beyond twelve weeks.
If the REDUCE-IT trial fails to achieve its clinicandpoints or if the results of these long-terodgts are not consistent with the 12-week
clinical results, it could prevent us from expangthe label of any approved product or even cétl question the efficacy of any approved
product.

The prospective interim efficacy and safety anaysf the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes trial paot be completed in the
contemplated timeframe in 2016 and may not demoatgrto the independent committee monitoring thedstua sufficient benefit risk
result to warrant the independent committee recormudimg stopping the study early for overwhelmingieticy. The study may also be
stopped for futility or for safety concerns.

In accordance with the SPA agreement for our REDWTCEardiovascular outcomes trial, an interim revief the efficacy and safety
results of the trial is scheduled to occur uporehesy 60% of the target aggregate number of caedicwlar events. We currently expect this
interim review by the study’s independent data rtasitig committee (DMC) to occur during 2016 basedar understanding of the current
event rates in the study and expected future eades. It may actually take longer to reach thgetad number of events, which would delay
the DMC assessment of data for the interim analysis

Further, as is typical of interim analyses, thdistiaal threshold for defining overwhelming effigaon the primary endpoint that would
call for stopping the study early in connectionhagtich analysis is considerably higher than thestiwld for defining statistical significance
after the expected completion of the study in 26%6F.example, even if the appropriate studied oaaticular events in the trial occur at
sufficiently low rates in the active, Vascepa, gras compared to the placebo group such thattldg stould be a success at completion, the
more rigorous statistical analysis applied by thé@at the interim analysis may not warrant stoppafghe study for overwhelming efficacy
connection with the interim analysis. The study ralp be stopped pursuant to recommendation bRpM@ at this interim analysis for lack
signals of a favorable result at completion, stecbstoppage for futility.

Moreover, it is the DMC that will make the formalcommendation as to whether to stop the study eadgntinue as planned. Amarir
blinded to the interim analysis and is informedtty DMC of the recommendation to stop the studpaontinue as planned. The DMC may
consider factors outside the pre-specified statisinalysis plan when assessing whether to cantimeistudy as planned. For example, even i
study results are sufficiently positive at the rimteanalysis to demonstrate overwhelming efficabg, DMC at its discretion may recommend
continuation of the study as planned with the gdalrriving at more robust results at the planrtedys completion if they believe that waiting
for more robust results outweighs the potential icadenefit of stopping and unblinding the studyly

The DMC has multiple times per year assessed sdfttygenerated in the ongoing study and has gnuséommended to continue the
study as planned. Thus, multiple safety analysekte have not warranted study stoppage. Nevesthalee study may be stopped at any time
based on recommendations of the DMC due to safetgerns identified by the DMC during its ongoinglaagularly scheduled safety data
assessments.

We may not be successful in developing or marketinyre products if we cannot meet the extensivgutatory requirements of the FDA
and other regulatory agencies for quality, safetydaefficacy.

The success of our research and development ef§aiespendent in part upon our ability, and thditst®f our partners or potential
partners, to meet regulatory requirements in thisdictions where we or our partners or potentatmers ultimately intend to sell such
products once approved. The development, manufaetudt marketing of pharmaceutical products areestibp extensive regulation by
governmental authorities in the
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United States, the European Union, Japan and eésewlm the United States, the FDA generally rexgipre-clinical testing and clinical trials
of each drug to establish its safety and efficauy extensive pharmaceutical development to ensuiriality before its introduction into the
market. Regulatory authorities in other jurisdioBdmpose similar requirements. The process ofimibtaregulatory approvals is lengthy and
expensive and the issuance of such approvals ertamt. The commencement and rate of completiaiimtal trials and the timing of
obtaining marketing approval from regulatory auities may be delayed by many factors, including:

» the lack of efficacy during clinical trial

« the inability to manufacture sufficient quantitigisqualified materials under cGMPs for use in dalitrials;
» slower than expected rates of patient recruitrr

» the inability to observe patients adequately afestment

» changes in regulatory requirements for clinicgbiaclinical studies

» the emergence of unforeseen safety issues inaliaigreclinical studies

» delay, suspension, or termination of a trial byitigitutional review board responsible for oveisgehe study at a particular study
site;

* unanticipated changes to the requirements impogeddulatory authorities on the extent, naturdrairtg of studies to be
conducted on quality, safety and effica

» government or regulatory delays*“clinical hold¢" requiring suspension or termination of a trial; i

» political instability affecting our clinical triadites, such as the potential for political unréfgcting our REDUCE-IT clinical trial
sites in the Ukraine and Russ

Even if we obtain positive results from early stage-clinical or clinical trials, we may not achéethe same success in future trials.
Clinical trials that we or potential partners coatmay not provide sufficient safety and effica@talto obtain the requisite regulatory
approvals for product candidates. The failure oficél trials to demonstrate safety and efficaayduor desired indications could harm the
development of that product candidate as well Bsrgiroduct candidates, and our business and sesutperations would suffer. For example
the efficacy results of our Vascepa Phase 3 clinizds for the treatment of Huntington’s diseagere negative. As a result, we stopped
development of that product candidate, revisedcbnical strategy and shifted our focus to develtgscepa for use in the treatment of
cardiovascular disease.

Any approvals that are obtained may be limitedciope, may require additional post-approval studiesay require the addition of
labeling statements focusing on product safety¢batd affect the commercial potential for our protdcandidates. Any of these or similar
circumstances could adversely affect our abilitgaon revenues from the sale of such products. Eveincumstances where products are
approved by a regulatory body for sale, the regwyadr legal requirements may change over timeeov safety or efficacy information may
identified concerning a product, which may leadh® withdrawal of a product from the market or $émuse restrictions. The discovery of
previously unknown problems with a product or imegection with the manufacturer of products may lteswrestrictions on that product or
manufacturer, including withdrawal of the producr the market, which would have a negative impacbur potential revenue stream.

Legislative or regulatory reform of the health casystem in the United States and foreign jurisdazts may affect our ability to profitably
sell Vascepa.

Our ability to commercialize our future productgsessfully, alone or with collaborators, will deden part on the extent to which
coverage and reimbursement for the products wiidmglable from government and health administrasiathorities, private health insurers
other third-party payors. The continuing efforts of
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the U.S. and foreign governments, insurance conegamanaged care organizations and other paybisatth care services to contain or
reduce health care costs may adversely affectlalityso set prices for our products which we legk are fair, and our ability to generate
revenues and achieve and maintain profitability.

Specifically, in both the United States and someifm jurisdictions, there have been a numbergitlative and regulatory proposals to
change the health care system in ways that cofddtadur ability to sell our products profitablyofFexample, the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health @aceEducation Reconciliation Act, or collectivehetPPACA, enacted in March 2010,
substantially changes the way healthcare is firdbgeboth governmental and private insurers. Amathgr cost-containment measures,
PPACA establishes:

« An annual, nondeductible fee on any entity that uf@ctures or imports certain branded prescriptiags and biologic agent

* A new Medicare Part D coverage gap discount progianvhich pharmaceutical manufacturers who wishdwe their drugs
covered under Part D must offer discounts to diigiieneficiaries during their coverage gap peraodi

* A new formula that increases the rebates a manufrciust pay under the Medicaid Drug Rebate Proc

We expect further federal and state proposals aattthcare reforms to continue to be proposed tpglegors, which could limit the
prices that can be charged for the products weldpand may limit our commercial opportunity.

The continuing efforts of government and otherdiparty payors to contain or reduce the costs aftheare through various means may
limit our commercial opportunity. It will be timeoasuming and expensive for us to go through thega® of seeking coverage and
reimbursement from Medicare and private payors.@oducts may not be considered cost effective,gavernment and third-party private
health insurance coverage and reimbursement mayenavailable to patients for any of our futuredarats or sufficient to allow us to sell our
products on a competitive and profitable basis. @sults of operations could be adversely affebieBPACA and by other health care refo
that may be enacted or adopted in the future. dlitiad, increasing emphasis on managed care ittieed States will continue to put pressure
on the pricing of pharmaceutical products. Costmdinitiatives could decrease the price that wamy potential collaborators could receive
for any of our future products and could adverséfgct our profitability.

In some foreign countries, including major marketthe European Union and Japan, the pricing adguiption pharmaceuticals is subj
to governmental control. In these countries, pgailegotiations with governmental authorities c&e & to 12 months or longer after the rec
of regulatory marketing approval for a product.diiain reimbursement or pricing approval in someantes, we may be required to condu
pharmacoeconomic study that compares the costtweess of Vascepa to other available therapiesh harmacoeconomic studies can be
costly and the results uncertain. Our businessddoe@lharmed if reimbursement of our products isvaitable or limited in scope or amount or
if pricing is set at unsatisfactory levels.

As we evolve from a company primarily involved iesearch and development to a company also focusedstablishing an infrastructur
for commercializing Vascepa, we may encounter diffities in managing our growth and expanding our emations successfully.

We hired and trained a professional sales forappfoximately 275 sales representatives and comedemar commercial launch of
Vascepa in the MARINE indication in the United &&ain early January 2013. The process of estabjshicommercial infrastructure is
difficult, expensive and timeensuming. Our October 2013 worldwide reductiofoite, which included the termination of approxieiats0%
of the then-staffed sales force, has made thisggomore difficult. As our operations expand whith &nticipated growth of our produce sales,
we expect that we will need to manage additionaki@nships with various collaborative partners,
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suppliers and other third parties. Future growth iwipose significant added responsibilities on nhens of management, including the need tc
identify, recruit, maintain and integrate additibamployees. Our future financial performance andability to commercialize Vascepa and to
compete effectively will depend, in part, on ouiliagbto manage our future growth effectively. Theat end, we must be able to manage our
development efforts effectively, and hire, traimteigrate and retain additional management, admatiist and sales and marketing personnel.
We may not be able to accomplish these tasks, anthiture to accomplish any of them could prevenfrom successfully growing our
company.

Risks Related to our Reliance on Third Parties

Our supply of product for commercial supply and mi¢al trials is dependent upon relationships withitd party manufacturers and key
suppliers.

We have no in-house manufacturing capacity andaelgontract manufacturers for our clinical and owercial product supply. We
cannot assure you that we will successfully martufacany product we may develop, either indepemglentunder manufacturing
arrangements, if any, with our third party manufiaets. Moreover, if any manufacturer should ceasegdbusiness with us or experience
delays, shortages of supply or excessive demantise@ncapacity, we may not be able to obtain adegjquantities of product in a timely
manner, or at all.

Any manufacturing problem, natural disaster affegtinanufacturing facilities, or the loss of a cantrmanufacturer could be disruptive
to our operations and result in lost sales. Adddlty, we will be reliant on third parties to supphe raw materials needed to manufacture
Vascepa. Any reliance on suppliers may involve s®wésks, including a potential inability to obtadritical materials and reduced control ovet
production costs, delivery schedules, reliabilitg ajuality. Any unanticipated disruption to futwentract manufacture caused by problems at
suppliers could delay shipment of products, ineeag cost of goods sold and result in lost sdfesir suppliers were unable to supply us v
adequate volumes of active pharmaceutical ingrédigng substance) or encapsulated bulk produag(groduct), it would have a material
adverse effect on our ability to continue to comeradize Vascepa.

We initially purchased all of our supply of the bulbompound (ethyEPA), which constitutes the only active pharmaaaliingredient, o
API, of Vascepa, from a single supplier, Nisshima, or Nisshin, located in Japan. Nisshin wasaal by the FDA as a Vascepa API
supplier as part of our FDA marketing approvaltfee MARINE indication in July 2012. In April 201@;e announced the approval by the F
of Chemport, Inc. and BASF (formerly Equateq Lirditas additional Vascepa API suppliers. We purclaaskeuse commercial supply from
Chemport in addition to Nisshin. We recently teratéd our agreement with BASF due to its inabilityrteet the agreement requirements and
may enter into a new development and supply agreewith BASF and may purchase API from BASF. In 20We obtained sNDA approval
for Slanmhor, resulting in a total of four FDA-apped suppliers of APIl. Each of the API manufactsii@stains supply of the key raw material
to manufacture API from other third party sourcésupply.

While we have contractual freedom to source thefAPYascepa and have entered into supply agreemdtit multiple suppliers who
also rely on other third party suppliers of the kayw material to manufacture the API for Vascepiashin and Chemport currently supply al
our API for Vascepa. Our strategy in adding APIiges beyond Nisshin has been to expand manufagteapacity and to partially mitigate
the risk of reliance on one supplier.

Expanding manufacturing capacity and qualifyingrsoapacity is difficult and subject to numerousulagons and other operational
challenges. The resources of our suppliers varyaaadimited; costs associated with projected egjganand qualification can be significant.
For example, Chemport, which was approved as ooiofAP| suppliers in April 2013, is a privatelyldeompany and their commitment to
Vascepa supply has required them to seek additiesalrrces. There can be no assurance that thestiapglans of any of our suppliers will
be successful. Our aggregate capacity to produdesAfependent upon the qualification of our
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API suppliers. Each of our API suppliers has oetliplans for potential further capacity expansibno additional API supplier is approved
the FDA, our API supply will be limited to the ARle purchase from previously approved suppliersuifthird party manufacturing capacity
not expanded and compliant with application reguiatequirements, we may not be able to supplyidgafit quantities of Vascepa to meet
anticipated demand. We cannot assure you that weadract with any future manufacturer on accdpttdrms or that any such alternative
supplier will not require capital investment fromm in order for them to meet our requirements. Aligively, our purchase of supply may
exceed actual demand for Vascepa.

We currently rely on Patheon (formerly Banner Prearaps) for the encapsulation of Vascepa. We hav@psnlation agreements with
two other commercial API encapsulators. These caomepahave qualified their manufacturing processekaae capable of manufacturing
Vascepa. There can be no guarantee that additimed suppliers with which we have contracted tcapsulate API will be qualified to
manufacture the product to our specifications at these and any future suppliers will have theufasturing capacity to meeting anticipated
demand for Vascepa. We cannot assure you that meardract with any future manufacturer on accdptédyms or that any such alternative
supplier will not require capital investment from in order for them to meet our requirements.

We may not be able to maintain our exclusivity withir certain third-party Vascepa suppliers if we dot meet minimum purchase
obligations due to lower than anticipated sales\dscepa.

Certain of our agreements with our suppliers inelodnimum purchase obligations and limited excliigigrovisions based on such
minimum purchase obligations. If we do not meetrdmpective minimum purchase obligations in oupbupgreements, our suppliers, in
certain cases, will be free to sell the active ptareutical ingredient of Vascepa to potential cditgrs. Similarly if we terminate certain of
our supply agreements, such suppliers may bedreelkthe active pharmaceutical ingredient of \égscto potential competitors of Vascepa.
While we anticipate that intellectual property liens and FDA regulatory exclusivity will be the pidary means to protect the commercial
potential of Vascepa, the availability of Vasceptve pharmaceutical ingredient from our suppltersur potential competitors would make
our competitors’ entry into the market easier amarattractive.

We have limited experience with the commercial safé/ascepa, and such inexperience may cause ysui@hase too much or not
enough supply to satisfy actual demand, which coblave a material adverse effect on our financiakidts and financial condition.

Certain of our agreements with our suppliers inelodnimum purchase obligations and limited exclitgigrovisions. These purchases
are generally made on the basis of rolling twehaath forecasts which in part are binding on ustaedalance of which are subject to
adjustment by us subject to certain limitationstt&la of our agreements also include contractuaimmiim purchase commitments regardles
the rolling twelve-month forecasts. We have limitegberience with the commercial sale of Vascepd,ansuch expectations regarding
expected demand may be wrong. We may not purchédfieient quantities of Vascepa to meet actual dednar our purchase of supply may
exceed actual demand. In either case, such evaltt bave a material adverse effect on our finarreislilts and financial condition.

The manufacture and packaging of pharmaceutical phacts such as Vascepa are subject to FDA requiretseand those of similar
foreign regulatory bodies. If we or our third partjnanufacturers fail to satisfy these requirementsyr product development and
commercialization efforts may be materially harmed.

The manufacture and packaging of pharmaceuticaymts, such as Vascepa, are regulated by the FlAiarilar foreign regulatory
bodies and must be conducted in accordance witkREt#€s current good manufacturing practices, or d@yland comparable requirements of
foreign regulatory bodies. There are a limited namif manufacturers that operate under these c@btRdations who are both capable of
manufacturing Vascepa and willing to do so. Failoyais or our third party manufacturers to complghw
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applicable regulations, requirements, or guideliceadd result in sanctions being imposed on usuding fines, injunctions, civil penalties,
failure of regulatory authorities to grant markgtapproval of our products, delays, suspensionithrdnawal of approvals, license revocation,
seizures or recalls of product, operating restoiiand criminal prosecutions, any of which coidaificantly and adversely affect our
business. For example, Nisshin plans to expanzhjiscity to supply API to us by further expandingit current facility. If we are not able to
manufacture Vascepa to required specificationsutiincour current and potential API suppliers, we maylelayed in successfully supplying
the product to meet anticipated demand and oucipated future revenues and financial results neagnhterially adversely affected.

Changes in the manufacturing process or procethaleding a change in the location where the produmanufactured or a change of a
third party manufacturer, may require prior FDAieav and approval of the manufacturing process andgalures in accordance with the
FDA's cGMPs. Any new facility may be subject tor@approval inspection by the FDA and would aganuire us to demonstrate product
comparability to the FDA. There are comparableifpreequirements. This review may be costly ancétaonsuming and could delay or
prevent the launch of a product.

Furthermore, the FDA and foreign regulatory agenoégjuire that we be able to consistently prodheeAP| and the finished product in
commercial quantities and of specified quality aepeated basis, including proven product stabiitd document our ability to do so. This
requirement is referred to as process validatitis Thcludes stability testing, measurement of intf@s and testing of other product
specifications by validated test methods. If theAFIdes not consider the result of the process atitid or required testing to be satisfactory,
the commercial supply of Vascepa may be delayedieomay not be able to supply sufficient quantité¥ascepa to meet anticipated dem:

The FDA and similar foreign regulatory bodies méoamplement new standards, or change their indésion and enforcement of
existing standards and requirements, for manufachackaging or testing of products at any timedfare unable to comply, we may be
subject to regulatory, civil actions or penaltigsieh could significantly and adversely affect ousimess.

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinicalitids, and those third parties may not perform s#aistorily, including failing to meet
established deadlines for the completion of suchmidal trials.

Our reliance on third parties for clinical develoggmbactivities reduces our control over these digs: However, if we sponsor clinical
trials, we are responsible for ensuring that edasuoclinical trials is conducted in accordancétvthe general investigational plan and
protocols for the trials. Moreover, the FDA reqsites to comply with standards, commonly referredstgood clinical practices, for
conducting, recording, and reporting the resultslioical trials to assure that data and reporesalits are credible and accurate and that the
rights, integrity and confidentiality of trial pasipants are protected. Our reliance on third partioes not relieve us of these responsibilitiet
requirements. Furthermore, these third parties atsy have relationships with other entities, sofnglich may be our competitors. If these
third parties do not successfully carry out theintcactual duties or meet expected deadlines, welrmalelayed in obtaining regulatory
approvals for our product candidates and may beeyddlin our efforts to successfully commercialize product candidates for targeted
diseases.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property
We are dependent on patents, proprietary rights amahfidentiality to protect the commercial potentiaf Vascepa.

Our success depends in part on our ability to akldad maintain intellectual property protection doir drug candidates, technology and
know-how, and to operate without infringing the gmietary rights of others. Our ability to succedigfimplement our business plan and to
protect our products with our intellectual propestyl depend in large part on our ability to:

« obtain, defend and maintain patent protection aacket exclusivity for our current and future proti
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» preserve any trade secrets relating to our cuaedtfuture product:
* acquire patented or patentable products and teahiesl; anc
» operate without infringing the proprietary righfstioird parties.

Amarin has prosecuted, and is currently prosecutimgtiple patent applications to protect the ilgetiual property developed during the
Vascepa cardiovascular program. As of the dathisfreport, we had 40 patent applications in théddinStates that have been either issued o
allowed and more than 30 additional patent appbinatare pending in the United States. Of suchlldvad and issued applications, we
currently have:

» 2issued U.S. patents directed to a pharmaceuwticaposition of Vascepa in a capsule that have ténmatsexpire in 2020 and 2030,
respectively

« lissued U.S. patent covering a composition coimgihighly pure EPA that expires in 20:

» 35 U.S. patents covering the use of Vascepa iereftte MARINE or anticipated ANCHOR indication thetve terms that expire in
2030,

« 1 additional patent related to the use of a phaew@al composition comprised of free fatty aciolsreat the ANCHOR patient
population with a term that expires in 2030, :

« 1 additional patent related to the use of a phaewi@zal composition comprised of free fatty acil$reat the MARINE patient
population with a term that expires in 20:

A Notice of Allowance is issued after the USPTO sk determination that a patent can be granteddroapplication. A Notice of
Allowance does not afford patent protection utitd tinderlying patent is issued by the USPTO. Narasse can be given that applications
with issued notices of allowance will be issuegharents or that any of our pending patent appboativill issue as patents. No assurance can
be given that, if and when issued, our patentsprédl/ent competitors from competing with Vascepa. &ke also pursuing patent applications
related to Vascepa in multiple jurisdictions ousitie United States. We may be dependent in sos®s cgoon third party licensors to pursue
filing, prosecution and maintenance of patent ggittapplications owned or controlled by thoseipartt is possible that third parties will
obtain patents or other proprietary rights thathmhige necessary or useful to us. In cases whaxkphrties are first to invent a particular
product or technology, or first to file after vamoprovisions of the America Invents Act of 201Intveto effect on March 16, 2013, it is
possible that those parties will obtain patents Wik be sufficiently broad so as to prevent usnfr utilizing such technology or
commercializing our current and future products.

Although we intend to make reasonable efforts tiqmt our current and future intellectual propeigyts and to ensure that any
proprietary technology we acquire or develop dassdnfringe the rights of other parties, we may hetable to ascertain the existence of all
potentially conflicting claims. Therefore, thereaisisk that third parties may make claims of mfiement against our current or future product:
or technologies. In addition, third parties mayabée to obtain patents that prevent the sale ototrent or future products or require us to
obtain a license and pay significant fees or ragmlih order to continue selling such products.

We may in the future discover the existence of potglthat infringe patents that we own or that Haeen licensed to us. If we were to
initiate legal proceedings against a third partgttp such an infringement, such proceedings doslldostly and time consuming, regardless of
the outcome. No assurances can be given that wklyeoevail, and it is possible that, during sugbraceeding, our patent rights could be held
to be invalid, unenforceable or both. Although wiend to protect our trade secrets and propridtaoyv-how through confidentiality
agreements with our manufacturers, employees amsuitants, we may not be able to prevent partibfestuto such confidentiality agreements
from breaching these agreements or third partea independently developing or learning of our éradcrets.

We anticipate that competitors may from time toetiappose our efforts to obtain patent protectioméw technologies or to submit
patented technologies for regulatory approvals. @atitors may seek to oppose our
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patent applications to delay the approval process challenge our granted patents, for examplegelyesting a reexamination of our patent a
the USPTO, or by filing an opposition in a foreigatent office, even if the opposition or challethgs little or no merit. Such proceedings are
generally highly technical, expensive, and timestoning, and there can be no assurance that sudilange would not result in the narrow
or complete revocation of any patent of ours thas wo challenged.

Our issued patents may not prevent competitors froompeting with Vascepa, even if we seek to enfangepatent rights.

We plan to vigorously defend our rights under iskpatents. For example, in March 2014, we filecd&pt infringement suit against
Omthera Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and its parent cagypfsstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals LP. The suit sanghtictive relief and monetary
damages for infringement of Amarin’s U.S. Patent 81663,662. The complaint alleged infringementhef patent arising from the expected
launch of Epanova, a product that is expected topete with Vascepa in the United States. The patrdrs methods of lowering triglyceric
by administering a pharmaceutical composition iheludes amounts of EPA as free acid, and no ni@e about 30% DHA. In November
2014, based on a representation from AstraZeneaarlzeuticals LP that the commercial launch of Bparwas not imminent, the court
dismissed our complaint, without prejudice (i.eegerving our ability to later re-file the suithd court required the defendant to notify us
before any product launch. We intend to pursuelitigstion vigorously and aggressively protectiittellectual property rights. However,
patent litigation is a time-consuming and costlggass. There can be no assurance that we willdoessful in enforcing this patent or that it
will not be successfully challenged and invalidateden if we are successful in enforcing this pgtéme process could take years to reach
conclusion.

Other drug companies may challenge the validitioreeability, or both of our patents and seek tsigie its products around our issued
patent claims and gain marketing approval for genarsions of Vascepa or branded competitive petalbased on new clinical studies. The
pharmaceutical industry is highly competitive anany of our competitors have greater experiencer@saurces than we have. Any such
competition could undermine sales, marketing aridlooration efforts for Vascepa, and thus redueehaps materially, the revenue potential
for Vascepa.

Even if we are successful in enforcing our issugtgipts, we may incur substantial costs and divartagement’s time and attention in
pursuing these proceedings, which could have arfabéelverse effect on us. Patent litigation istlyosnd time consuming, and we may not
have sufficient resources to bring these actiorssgoccessful conclusion.

There can be no assurance that any of our pendirajemt applications relating to Vascepa or its usil igsue as patents.

We have filed and are prosecuting numerous fanmliggatent applications in the United States amerimationally with claims designed
protect the proprietary position of Vascepa. Fataie of these patent families, we have filed nplétipatent applications. Collectively the
patent applications include numerous independaiinsl and dependent claims. Several of our patgiications contain claims that are based
upon what we believe are unexpected and favoraid@nfys from the MARINE and ANCHOR trials. If gradt, many of the resulting granted
patents would expire in 2030 or beyond. Howeverasgurance can be given that any of our pendirenpapplications will be granted or, if
they grant, that they will prevent competitors froompeting with Vascepa.

Securing patent protection for a product is a cexpirocess involving many legal and factual questidhe patent applications we have
filed in the United States and internationally at@arying stages of examination, the timing of ebhis outside our control. The process to
getting a patent granted can be lengthy and claiitially submitted are often modified in ordergatisfy the requirements of the patent office.
This process includes written and public commuiocatvith the patent office. The process can alstuihe direct

43



Table of Contents

discussions with the patent examiner. There camobessurance that the patent office will acceptaomguments with respect to any patent
application or with respect to any claim thereiheTiming of the patent review process is indepehdéand has no effect on the timing of the
FDA's review of our NDA or sSNDA submissions. We cah predict the timing or results of any patentlaagion. In addition, we may elect to
submit, or the patent office may require, additiaadence to support certain of the claims wepnesuing. Furthermore, third parties may
attempt to submit publications for consideratiorthy patent office during examination of our paggpplications. Providing such additional
evidence and publications could prolong the padéfite’s review of our applications and result i incurring additional costs. We cannot be
certain what commercial value any granted pateptimpatent estate will provide to us.

Despite the use of confidentiality agreements andsooprietary rights agreements, which themselveaybe of limited effectiveness, it
may be difficult for us to protect our trade secset

We will also rely upon trade secrets and know-howelp protect our competitive position. We relytrade secrets to protect technology
in cases when we believe patent protection is pptapriate or obtainable. However, trade secretsidficult to protect. While we require
certain of our academic collaborators, contracamic consultants to enter into confidentiality agrests, we may not be able to adequately
protect our trade secrets or other proprietaryrmédion.

Risks Related to our Business

We and certain of our current and former executioéficers have been named as defendants in four laitsthat could result in
substantial costs and divert management’s attention

The market price of our ADSs declined significargfier the October 2013 decision by the FDA AdwsBommittee to recommend
against approval of Vascepa in the ANCHOR indicatMVe, and certain of our current and former exeeudfficers and directors, have been
named as defendants in four purported class aletiesuits initiated earlier this year that generallgge that we and certain of our current and
former officers and directors violated Sectionsbh)@nd/or 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Acta¥4land Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder by making allegedly false and/or mistepdtatements or material omissions concerningAd€HOR sNDA and related FDA
regulatory approval process in an effort to leaagtors to believe that Vascepa would receive agbfoom the FDA in the ANCHOR
indication. The complaints seek unspecified damagésrest, attorneys’ fees, and other costs.

We have engaged in a vigorous defense of the ddased lawsuit, we believe that the plaintiffs hdaibed to state a claim, and we have
moved to dismiss the lawsuit. However, we are umabbredict the outcome of this matter at thistiddoreover, while we expect insurance tc
cover any financial exposure from this litigatitime conclusion of this matter in a manner advearsestcould have a material adverse effect or
our financial condition and business. For exampke could incur substantial costs not covered bydingctors’ and officerdliability insurance
suffer a significant adverse impact on our repataéind divert management’s attention and resodireasother priorities, including the
execution of business plans and strategies thatgrertant to our ability to grow our business, afiyvhich could have a material adverse
effect on our business. In addition, any of thesdtens could require payments that are not covieyedr exceed the limits of, our available
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, whidould have a material adverse effect on our opeyagsults or financial condition.

Potential technological changes in our field of bungss create considerable uncertainty.

We are engaged in the biopharmaceutical field, wischaracterized by extensive research effodsrapid technological progress. New
developments in research are expected to continaeagpid pace in both industry and academia. Wieatsassure you that research and
discoveries by others will not render some or &ithur programs or product candidates uncompetiivebsolete. Our business strategy is b.
in part upon new and unproven technologies to dweldpment of therapeutics to improve cardiovagdudalth. We cannot
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assure you that unforeseen problems will not develith these technologies or applications or timgt @mmercially feasible products will
ultimately be developed by us.

We are subject to potential product liability.

Following the commercial launch of Vascepa, we Wilsubject to the potential risk of product ligpitlaims relating to the
manufacturing and marketing of Vascepa. Any pexgba is injured as a result of using Vascepa may teagroduct liability claim against us
without having to prove that we were at fault.

In addition, we could be subject to product liapiklaims by persons who took part in clinical lsimvolving our current or former
development stage products. A successful claimdirbagainst us could have a material adverse effecur business. We cannot guarantee
that a product liability claim will not be assertagainst us in the future.

We may become subiject to liability in connectiorttwihe wind-down of our EN101 program.

In 2007, we purchased Ester Neurosciences Limitedsraeli pharmaceutical company, and its leadyrbcandidate, EN101, an AChE-
R mRNA inhibitor for the treatment of myasthenias, or MG, a debilitating neuromuscular dise&se&onnection with the acquisition, we
assumed a license to certain intellectual propessets related to EN101 from the Yissum ReseargklBgment Company of The Hebrew
University of Jerusalem. In keeping with our 20@2idion to re-focus our efforts on developing inya treatments for cardiovascular diseas
and cease development of all product candidatessdeubf our cardiovascular disease focus, we antetigeterms of our acquisition agreerr
with the original shareholders of Ester.

Following our decision to cease development of ENNMssum terminated its license agreement witHrudune 2011, Yissum
announced that it had entered into a license agreewith BiolineRX Ltd for the development of EN1Dila different indication, inflammato
bowel disease.

In 2011 and early 2012, but not after, we recese¢kral communications on behalf of the formerehalders of Ester asserting that we
are in breach of our agreement with them as iteslto alleged rights to share in the value of ENd@e to the fact that Yissum terminated its
license. We do not believe the circumstances ptedaionstitute a breach of the agreement. If tapude arises again, we plan to defend our
position vigorously, but there can be no assurasd® the outcome of this dispute.

A change in our tax residence could have a negatiffect on our future profitability.

Under current UK legislation, a company incorpadate England and Wales, or which is centrally mathgnd controlled in the UK, is
regarded as resident in the UK for taxation purpo&der current Irish legislation, a company gareled as resident for tax purposes in
Ireland if it is centrally managed and controlledrieland, or, in certain circumstances, if itnsarporated in Ireland. Where a company is
treated as tax resident under the domestic lawsthfthe UK and Ireland then the provisions ofcéetid(3) of the Double Tax Convention
between the UK and Ireland provides that such priter shall be treated as resident only in thegliction in which its place of effective
management is situated. We have sought to conduftairs in such a way so as to be resident omlyeland for tax purposes by virtue of
having our place of effective management situatddeland. Trading income of an Irish company isgyally taxable at the Irish corporation
tax rate of 12.5%. Non-trading income of an Irisinpany (e.g., interest income, rental income oeopassive income), is taxable at a rate of
25%.

However, we cannot assure you that we are or wiitioue to be resident only in Ireland for tax mgps. It is possible that in the future,
whether as a result of a change in law or the jpecf any relevant tax authority or as a resubimy change in the conduct of our affairs, we
could become, or be regarded as having becomeergsita jurisdiction other than Ireland. Shouldsease to be an Irish tax resident, we ma
be subject to a charge to Irish capital gains tawur assets. Similarly, if the tax residency of ahour subsidiaries were to change from their
current jurisdiction for any of the reasons listdmbve, we may be subject to a charge to local alagstins tax charge on the assets.
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The loss of key personnel could have an adverseatfon our business.

We are highly dependent upon the efforts of ouraseananagement. The loss of the services of omeare members of senior
management could have a material adverse effegs.oAs a small company with a streamlined managestarcture, the departure of any key
person could have a significant impact and woulgdtentially disruptive to our business until stiche as a suitable replacement is hired.
Furthermore, because of the specialized naturembusiness, as our business plan progresses Weewilghly dependent upon our ability to
attract and retain qualified scientific, techniaat key management personnel. As we evolve froevaldpment stage company to a
commercial stage company we may experience turreaweng members of our senior management team. Wénava difficulty identifying
and integrating new executives to replace any fgdes. There is intense competition for qualifiedsonnel in the areas of our activities. In
this environment, we may not be able to attractratain the personnel necessary for the developofenir business, particularly if we do not
achieve profitability. Furthermore, the lessenasbpbility that we will obtain FDA approval for tFeNCHOR indication could have an adve
impact on our ability to retain and recruit quadipersonnel. In addition, in October 2013, we ielated approximately fifty percent of our
staff positions worldwide as part of a restructgriollowing the FDA advisory committeerecommendation against the potential Vascepa
expansion. Even though all employees were offee@drance pay in exchange for signing a comprehemsiease of claims, this restructuring
could lead to claims by former employees relateithédr termination. The restructuring could alsedan adverse impact on our ability to
retain and recruit qualified personnel. The failto@ecruit key scientific, technical and managenparsonnel would be detrimental to our
ability to implement our business plan.

We could be adversely affected by our exposureust@mer concentration risk.

A significant portion of our sales are to wholessii@ the pharmaceutical industry. Our top threst@mers accounted for 95% and 96¢
gross product sales for the years ended Decemb@034 and 2013, respectively and represented 98P8%% of the gross accounts
receivable balance as of December 31, 2014 and, 2843ectively. There can be no guarantee that lwbavable to sustain our accounts
receivable or gross sales levels from our key enets. If, for any reason, we were to lose, or eepee a decrease in the amount of business
with our largest customers, whether directly ootlgh our distributor relationships, our financiahdition and results of operations could be
negatively affected.

Risks Related to our Financial Position and CapitaRequirements
We have a history of operating losses and anticgttat we will incur continued losses for an indefie period of time.

We have not been profitable in any of the last figseal years. For the fiscal years ended Decer@beg2014, 2013, and 2012, we repol
losses of approximately $56.4 million, $166.2 roiflj and $179.2 million, respectively, and we hadesumulated deficit at December 31,
2014 of $970.2 million. Substantially all of oureypting losses resulted from costs incurred in eotion with our research and development
programs, from general and administrative costscated with our operations, costs related to traroercialization of Vascepa, and from
non-cash losses on changes in the fair value afawaderivative liabilities. Additionally, as a dsof our significant expenses relating to
research and development and to commercializatierexpect to continue to incur significant opergtimsses for an indefinite period. Because
of the numerous risks and uncertainties associatiddeveloping and commercializing pharmaceutmralducts, we are unable to predict the
magnitude of these future losses. Our historicdessombined with expected future losses, haveahddvill continue to have an adverse effec
on our cash resources, shareholders’ deficit antting capital.

Although we began generating revenue from Vascepdanuary 2013, we may never be profitable.

Our ability to become profitable depends upon duilitg to generate revenue. In January 2013, weahdg generate revenue from the
marketing of Vascepa for use in the MARINE indioatibut we may not be able to
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generate sufficient revenue to attain profitabil®ur ability to generate profits on sales of Vascis subject to the market acceptance and
commercial success of Vascepa and our ability toufzcture commercial quantities of Vascepa thraihgid parties at acceptable cost levels,
and may also depend upon our ability to enter @am@ or more strategic collaborations to effectivarket and sell Vascepa.

Even though Vascepa has been approved by the FDddceting in the United States in the MARINE ication, it may not gain mark
acceptance or achieve commercial success and inmagr be approved for the ANCHOR indication or ather indication. In addition, we
anticipate continuing to incur significant costs@dated with commercializing Vascepa. We may w©bieve profitability soon after generating
product sales, if ever. If we are unable to gemesafficient product revenues, we will not becomaitable and may be unable to continue
operations without continued funding.

Our historical financial results do not form an acgate basis for assessing our current business.

As a consequence of the many years developing Yadoe commercialization and the recent commetaiahch of Vascepa in the
MARINE indication in the United States, our hist@di financial results do not form an accurate bapn which investors should base their
assessment of our business and prospects. Inaddite expect that our costs will increase subisiiynas we continue to commercialize
Vascepa in the MARINE indication and seek to obtadditional regulatory approval of Vascepa in ti¢GHOR indication, including the
continuation of the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outesnstudy. Accordingly, our historical financial uéts reflect a substantially different
business from that currently being conducted aoihfthat expected in the future. In addition, weehavimited history of obtaining regulatory
approval for, and no demonstrated ability to susftdly commercialize, a product candidate. Consatjyeany predictions about our future
performance may not be as accurate as they coufdieehad a history of successfully developing anchmercializing pharmaceutical
products.

Our operating results are unpredictable and maydtuate. If our operating results are below the exjpations of securities analysts or
investors, the trading price of our stock could diee.

Our operating results are difficult to predict amil likely fluctuate from quarter to quarter andar to year, and Vascepa prescription
figures will likely fluctuate from month to montbue to the recent approval by the FDA of Vascephtha lack of historical sales data,
Vascepa sales will be difficult to predict from joetto period and as a result, you should not oelyascepa sales results in any period as
indicative of future performance, and sales of \é@scmay be below the expectation of securitiesyatsbr investors in the future. We believe
that our quarterly and annual results of operatioayg be affected by a variety of factors, including

» the level of demand for Vascey

» the extent to which coverage and reimbursemern¥ésicepa is available from government and healthidtration authorities,
private health insurers, managed care programeted thirc-party payers

« the timing, cost and level of investment in ouesand marketing efforts to support Vascepa saléshe resulting effectiveness of
those efforts with our new -promotion partner, Kowa Pharmaceuticals Americe.;

« additional developments regarding our intellecpralperty portfolio and regulatory exclusivity protens, if any;

» the results of our SNDA application for the ANCH@Rlication and the results of the REDUCE-IT studyost-approval studies
for Vascepa

« outcomes of litigation and other legal proceedimgsluding recently initiated shareholder litigatiaegulatory matters and tax
matters; ant

e our regulatory dialogue on the REDU-IT study.
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We may require substantial additional resourcesftmd our operations. If we cannot find additionalapital resources, we will have
difficulty in operating as a going concern and gramg our business.

We currently operate with limited resources. Wedwa that our cash and cash equivalents balang&l$.5 million at December 31,
2014 will be sufficient to fund our projected op@as for at least the next twelve months.

In order to fully realize the market potential chdtepa, we may need to enter into a new stratetfaboration or raise additional capital.
We may also need additional capital to fully congleur REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes trial.

Our future capital requirements will depend on méagfors, including:

» revenue generated from the commercial sale of \t@sitethe MARINE indication and, subject to FDA apyal, the ANCHOR
indication;

» the costs associated with commercializing VascepthE MARINE indication in the United States and &dditional indications in
the United States and in jurisdictions in whichneeeive regulatory approval, if any, including st of sales and marketing
capabilities with our new co-promotion partner, KoRharmaceuticals America, Inc., and the costiamdg of securing
commercial supply of Vascepa and the timing of engeinto any new strategic collaboration with atheelating to the
commercialization of Vascepa, if at all, and thent of any such collaboratio

» the continued cost associated with our RED-IT cardiovascular outcomes stuc
» continued cost associated with litigation and otegal proceedings, including recently initiatecustholder litigation and patent
litigation;
» the time and costs involved in obtaining additiomgulatory approvals for Vascej
» the extent to which we continue to develop intdynalcquire or i-license new products, technologies or businessek
» the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and eciftg any patent claims and other intellectual proprights.
If we require additional funds and adequate furrdsnat available to us in amounts or on terms dabdpto us or on a timely basis, or at

all, our commercialization efforts for Vascepa nsagfer materially, and we may need to delay theaadement of the REDUCE-IT
cardiovascular outcomes trial.

As a result of recent worldwide reductions in ouovkforce, we are in the process of reallocating tan employment responsibilities and
may outsource certain corporate functions. As aué#swe may be more dependent on third parties &ofprm these corporate functions
than we have been in the past.

As a result of the recent worldwide reductionsum workforce, we have been required to outsourcwicecorporate functions. This has
made us more dependent on thialties for the performance of these functions. @woing results of operations could be adversié#ceed tc
the extent that we are unable to effectively realte employee responsibilities, retain key emplsys®intain effective internal control over
financial reporting and effective disclosure cotgrand procedures, establish and maintain agresmetfit competent thirgharty contractors c
terms that are acceptable to us, and effectivelyapa the work performed by any retained third-paatytractors.

Continued negative economic conditions would likélgve a negative effect on our ability to obtaiméincing on acceptable terms.

While we may seek additional funding through publigrivate financings, we may not be able to gbfaiancing on acceptable terms
at all. There can be no assurance that we willthe ta access equity or credit
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markets in order to finance our current operatimnexpand development programs for Vascepa, otlilea¢ will not be a further deterioration
in financial markets and confidence in economies.ay also have to scale back or further restreaiur operations. If we are unable to
obtain additional funding on a timely basis, we rbayrequired to curtail or terminate some or albbof research or development programs or
our commercialization strategies.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to paxisting shareholders, restrict our operations mrquire us to relinquish rights.

To the extent we are permitted under our PurchadeSale Agreement with BioPharma Secured Debt Huddldings Cayman LP, or
BioPharma, we may seek additional capital througbrabination of private and public equity offeringgbt financings and collaboration,
strategic and licensing arrangements. To the extbattve raise additional capital through the sédlequity or convertible debt securities, your
ownership interest will be diluted, and the termesyrinclude liquidation or other preferences thateasely affect your rights as a shareholder.

On January 9, 2012, we issued $150 million in agages principal amount of 3.50% exchangeable sewites due 2032, or the notes. In
the event of physical settlement, the notes waitéhily be exchangeable into a total of 49,214,841S.

Debt financing, if available, may involve agreensethtat include covenants limiting or restricting ability to take specific actions such
as incurring additional debt, making capital expmds or declaring dividends. If we raise addidibfunds through collaboration, strategic
alliance and licensing arrangements with thirdipartwe may have to relinquish valuable rightsupbtechnologies, Vascepa or product
candidates beyond the rights we have already ngbhgd, or grant licenses on terms that are nairédble to us.

Potential business combinations or other strategjiansactions may disrupt our business or divert nagement’s attention.

On a regular basis, we explore potential businesthination transactions, including an acquisitibm®by a third party, exclusive
licenses of Vascepa or other strategic transactiogsllaborations with third parties. For exampheMarch 2014, we entered into a co-
promotion agreement with Kowa Pharmaceuticals Acaglinc. related to the commercialization of Vasciepthe United States. The
consummation and performance of any such futursaetions or collaborations will involve risks, buas:

» diversion of managerial resources from-to-day operations
* exposure to litigation from the counterpartiestiy auch transaction, other third parties or ourethalders
* misjudgment with respect to the vali
» higher than expected transaction costt
* aninability to successfully consummate any suahgaction or collaboratio
As a result of these risks, we may not be ablehiexe the expected benefits of any such transacti@ollaboration or deliver the value

thereof to our shareholders. If we are unsuccegstdnsummating any such transaction or collalb@mmatve may be required to reevaluate oul
business only after we have incurred substantiaéeses and devoted significant management timeesodirces.

Risks Related to Ownership of our ADSs and Commonares
The price of our ADSs and common shares may be tilgda

The stock market has from time to time experiergigdificant price and volume fluctuations that niegyunrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. In addititwe, tnarket prices of the securities of
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many pharmaceutical and medical technology compdrage been especially volatile in the past, aisdttend is expected to continue in the

future.

As of March 2, 2015 we had 177,094,536 common shautstanding including 176,228,632 shares helxSs and 865,904 held as
common shares (which are not held in the form oS8P In our October 2009 private placement we €64 million ADSs and warrants to
purchase an additional 33.2 million ADSs. Thera ifsk that there may not be sufficient liquiditythe market to accommodate significant
increases in selling activity or the sale of aéabdpck of our securities. Our ADSs have histolychhd limited trading volume, which may also
result in volatility. If any of our large investgrsuch as the participants in our October 200%peiplacement, seek to sell substantial amount:
of our ADSs, particularly if these sales are impid or disorderly manner, or other investors pegecthat these sales could occur, the market
price of our ADSs could decrease significantly.

The market price of our ADSs and common sharesatsybe affected by factors such as:

developments or disputes concerning ongoing patasecution efforts and any future patent or petpry rights
regulatory developments in the United States, thiean Union or other countrie

actual or potential medical results relating to praducts or our competit¢ products;

interim failures or setbacks in product developm

innovation by us or our competitol

currency exchange rate fluctuations; i

perioc-to-period variations in our results of operatic

A share price of less than $1.00 may impact our NA&Q listing.

If our closing bid price is less than $1.00 for@Msecutive trading days, we would receive a NASDA®f deficiency letter indicating
that we are not in compliance with the minimum pigte requirement for continued listing. Such &eletvould trigger an automatic 180
calendar day period within which the company caelghin compliance. Compliance is regained at ang tluring this period if the Amarin
closing bid price is $1.00 per share or more forimimum of 10 consecutive trading days. If we db regain compliance during this period,
our ADSs could be delisted from The NASDAQ Globariket, transferred to a listing on The NASDAQ CalpMarket, or delisted from the
NASDAQ markets altogether. The failure to maintaim listing on The NASDAQ Global Market could hathe liquidity of our ADSs an
could have an adverse effect on the market prieapfADSs.

Actual or potential sales of our common shares hyr @mployees, including members of our senior maeatent team, pursuant to pre-
arranged stock trading plans could cause our stqarice to fall or prevent it from increasing for nuerous reasons, and actual or
potential sales by such persons could be viewedtiegly by other investors.

In accordance with the guidelines specified unddeR0b51 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 andolicies regarding stor
transactions, a number of our directors and empleyiacluding members of our senior management,thame adopted and may continue to
adopt pre-arranged stock trading plans to sellrigyoof our common stock. Generally, sales undehsplans by members of our senior
management team and directors require public Blidgctual or potential sales of our ADSs by suctspes could cause the price of our ADSs
to fall or prevent it from increasing for numeraessons. For example, a substantial amount of &8stbecoming available (or being
perceived to become available) for sale in the ipubblrket could cause the market price of our ARSIl or prevent it from increasing. Also,
actual or potential sales by such persons coulddyeed negatively by other investors.
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We may be a passive foreign investment companyBIC, which would result in adverse U.S. federalktaonsequences to U.S. investc

Amarin Corporation plc and certain of our subsidisimay be classified as “passive foreign investrnempanies,” or PFICs, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. The tests for deténgniRFIC status for a taxable year depend uponelagive values of certain categories of
assets and the relative amounts of certain kindscoine. The application of these factors depempds wur financial results, which are beyond
our ability to predict or control, and which may $aeject to legal and factual uncertainties.

We believe it prudent to assume that we were dladsas a PFIC in 2012. We do not believe that veeevclassified as a PFIC in 2013 or
2014. Our status as a PFIC is subject to chanfigure years.

If we are a PFIC, U.S. holders of notes, ordindigres or ADSs would be subject to adverse U.Sréédeome tax consequences, such
as ineligibility for any preferred tax rates on itapgains or on actual or deemed dividends, istecharges on certain taxes treated as deferre
and additional reporting requirements under U.8effal income tax laws and regulations. WhetherodothS. holders of our ADSs make a
timely “QEF election” or “mark-to-market electiomiay affect the U.S. federal income tax consequetmcsS. holders with respect to the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of Amarin $®and any distributions such U.S. Holders mayivecé& QEF election and other
elections that may mitigate the effect of our baitagsified as a PFIC are unavailable with resfzetiie notes. Investors should consult their
own tax advisors regarding all aspects of the apptin of the PFIC rules to the notes, ordinaryehand ADSs.

Failure to meet our obligations under our Purchasand Sale Agreement with BioPharma could adverseffeat our financial results and
liquidity.
Pursuant to our December 2012 Purchase and Saéegnt with BioPharma, we are obligated to makengays to BioPharma based

on the amount of our net product sales of Vascafdaaay future products based on ethyl-EPA, or cedv@roducts, subject to certain quarterly
caps.

Pursuant to this agreement, we may not, among tthegs: (i) incur indebtedness greater than aipdamount, which we refer to as
the Indebtedness Covenant; (ii) pay a dividendtieerocash distribution, unless we have cash arfu @gsivalents in excess of a specified
amount after such payment; (iii) amend or restatenemorandum and articles of association unlesls amendments or restatements do not
affect BioPharma's interests under the transactiohencumber any of the collateral securing cenfgrmance under the agreement; and
(v) abandon certain patent rights, in each cadeowitthe consent of BioPharma.

Upon a transaction resulting in a change of comfé@marin, as defined in the agreement, BioPharritlsbe automatically entitled to
receive any amounts not previously paid, up toroarimum repayment obligation. As defined in thesagnent, “change of control” includes,
among other things, (i) a greater than 50 perdeamge in the ownership of Amarin, (ii) a sale apdisition of any collateral securing our debt
with BioPharma and (iii), unless BioPharma has hjggd a certain amount under the indebtednessinditensings of Vascepa to a third pi
for sale in the United States. The acceleratioth@fpayment obligation in the event of a changeootrol transaction may make us less
attractive to potential acquirers, and the payneéstich funds out of our available cash or acqoisiproceeds would reduce acquisition
proceeds for our stockholders.

To secure our obligations under the agreement,resetgd BioPharma a security interest in our righisatents, trademarks, trade names
domain names, copyrights, know-how and regulatppravals related to the covered products, all b@oigrecords relating to the foregoing
and all proceeds of the foregoing, which we redeaig the collateral. If we (i) fail to deliver aymaent when due and do not remedy that failure
within specific notice period, (ii) fail to maintaa first-priority perfected security interest hetcollateral in the United States and do not
remedy that failure after receiving notice of staiture or (iii) become subject to an event of baupitcy, then BioPharma may attempt to
collect the maximum amount payable by us underapieement (after deducting any payments we hagady made).
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There can be no assurance that we will not bréaeledvenants or other terms of, or that an evedefzult will not occur under, this
agreement and, if a breach or event of defaults¢there can be no assurance that we will betaldare the breach within the time permitted.
Any failure to pay our obligations when due, angdwh or default of our covenants or other obligetj@r any other event that causes an
acceleration of payment at a time when we do ne¢ Isafficient resources to meet these obligatioosld have a material adverse effect on
business, results of operations, financial conditiad future viability.

Our existing indebtedness could adversely affect fimancial condition.

Our existing indebtedness consists of $150.0 millibaggregate principal amount of 3.50% exchanigesdmior notes due 2032, $31.3
million of which relates to the January 2012 natéth provisions for the notes to be put to us ofter January 19, 2017 while the balance of
$118.7 million relates to the May 2014 notes witbvision for the notes to be redeemed by us orfter danuary 19, 2018 or put to us by the
holders on or after January 19, 2019.

Our indebtedness and the related annual debt samdgiirements may adversely impact our businggsations and financial condition
in the future. For example, they could:

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse egbo@nd industry condition:

« limit our ability to raise additional funds by bowing or engaging in equity sales in order to feuttire working capital, capital
expenditures, research and development and otherageorporate requiremen

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaash to service payments on our deb

« limit our flexibility to react to changes in our $iness and the industry in which we operate outsye certain strategic
opportunities that may present themsel

The accounting for convertible debt securities thagy be settled in cash, such as our notes, cowdseha material effect on our reported
financial results.

Under the FASB Accounting Standards CodificatianA8C, we are required to separately account felittbility and equity componer
of the convertible debt instruments (such as tttes)ahat may be settled entirely or partially &slc upon conversion in a manner that reflects
the issuer’s economic interest cost. The effe&®€ on the accounting for our outstanding conviatiintes may be that the equity componen
is required to be included in the additional paid:apital section of stockholders’ equity on ounsalidated balance sheets and the value of tt
equity component would be treated as original isiseount for purposes of accounting for the delobjgonent of the notes. As a result, we are
required to record nooash interest expense as a result of the amodizafithe discounted carrying value of the notethéir face amount ov
the term of the notes. We may be required to rdmigher interest expense in our financial resudtsanise ASC may require interest to include
both the current period’s amortization of the ddibtount and the instrument’s coupon interest, Wwismuld adversely affect our reported or
future financial results and the trading price of ADSs.

Servicing our debt may require a significant amaafritash, and we may not have sufficient cash flmm our business to provide the
funds sufficient to pay our substantial debt.

Our ability to make scheduled payments of the fpaicto pay interest on or to refinance our inéélbess, including the notes, depends
on our future performance, which is subject to @coie, financial, competitive and other factors beyour control. Our business may not
continue to generate cash flow from operationsiénftiture sufficient to service our debt and mageessary capital expenditures. If we are
unable to generate such cash flow, we may be redjtiradopt one or more alternatives, such asigedsets, restructuring debt or obtaining
additional equity capital on terms that may be onsror highly dilutive. Our ability to refinanceindebtedness will depend on the capital
markets and our financial condition at such time tay not be able to engage in any of these deivit engage in these activities on
desirable terms, which could result in a defaulbandebt obligations, including the notes, andehawnaterial adverse effect on the trading
price of our ADSs.
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We may be able to incur substantial additional delite future, subject to the restrictions corgdiin our future debt instruments, if any,
which would intensify the risks discussed above.

The conditional exchange feature of the notes,rifjgered, may adversely affect our financial conidih and operating results.

In the event the conditional exchange feature efrthtes is triggered, holders of notes will betktito exchange the notes at any time
during specified periods at their option. If onenwore holders elect to exchange their notes, umlesslect to satisfy its exchange obligation by
delivering solely the ADSs (other than cash in lié@any fractional ADS), we would be required tétleea portion or all of its exchange
obligation through the payment of cash, which cadsersely affect our liquidity. In addition, eviétolders do not elect to exchange their
notes, we could be required under applicable adamyrules to reclassify all or a portion of thetstanding principal of the notes as a current
rather than long-term liability, which would resiita material reduction of our net working capital

The change in control repurchase feature of the Betmay delay or prevent an otherwise beneficialeaker attempt of us.

The indenture governing the notes will requireaussipurchase the notes for cash upon the occurmdracehange in control of Amarin
and, in certain circumstances, to increase theamgsrate for a holder that exchanges its notesrinection with a make-whole fundamental
change. A takeover of us may trigger the requirdrtieat we purchase the notes and/or increase ttfeaage rate, which could make it more
costly for a potential acquirer to engage in a coory transaction with us. Such additional costy have the effect of delaying or
preventing a takeover of us that would otherwisbdeeficial to investors.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on the oetdinshares in the foreseeable future.

We have never paid dividends on ordinary sharedanbt anticipate paying any cash dividends orotd@ary shares in the foreseeable
future. Under English law, any payment of dividemdsild be subject to relevant legislation and ottickes of Association, which requires t
all dividends must be approved by our Board of Elwes and, in some cases, our shareholders, andnhape paid from our distributable
profits available for the purpose, determined ommaconsolidated basis.

The rights of our shareholders may differ from thréghts typically offered to shareholders of a U.&rporation.

We are incorporated under English law. The riglitsadders of ordinary shares and, therefore, aewhithe rights of holders of ADSs,
governed by English law, including the provisioffishe Companies Act 2006, and by our Articles ofd@ation. These rights differ in certain
respects from the rights of shareholders in typit&. corporations. The principal differences idguhe following:

» Under English law and our Articles of Associatieach shareholder present at a meeting has onlyaieainless demand is made
for a vote on a poll, in which case each holdes gee vote per share owned. Under U.S. law, eaatelsblder typically is entitled
to one vote per share at all meetir

Under English law, it is only on a poll that thenmiber of shares determines the number of votesdehatay cast. You should be
aware, however, that the voting rights of ADSsals® governed by the provisions of a deposit agesenvith our depositary bank.

» Under English law, subject to certain exceptions disapplications, each shareholder generally hesnpptive rights to subscribe
on a proportionate basis to any issuance of ordislaares or rights to subscribe for, or to consedurities into, ordinary shares for
cash. Under U.S. law, shareholders generally dhaoe preemptive rights unless specifically graiettie certificate of
incorporation or otherwist
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* Under English law and our Articles of Associatiorrtain matters require the approval of 75% ofdii@reholders who vote (in
person or by proxy) on the relevant resolutionagjora poll shareholders representing 75% of thenarglishares voting (in person or
by proxy)), including amendments to the ArticlesAsociation. This may make it more difficult fos to complete corporate
transactions deemed advisable by our board oftdirecUnder U.S. law, generally only majority shenieler approval is required to
amend the certificate of incorporation or to apjrother significant transactior

* Inthe United Kingdom, takeovers may be structaedthkeover offers or as schemes of arrangemederlinglish law, a bidder
seeking to acquire us by means of a takeover wfferld need to make an offer for all of our outstagdrdinary shares/ADSs. If
acceptances are not received for 90% or more adriieary shares/ADSs under the offer, under Ehdésv, the bidder cannot
complete a “squeeze out” to obtain 100% contralofAccordingly, acceptances of 90% of our outdtemdrdinary shares/ADSs
will likely be a condition in any takeover offer &mquire us, not 50% as is more common in tendersofor corporations organized
under Delaware law. By contrast, a scheme of aeemamt, the successful completion of which wouldiitéa a bidder obtaining
100% control of us, requires the approval of a migj@f shareholders voting at the meeting andesenting 75% of the ordinary
shares voting for approvz

* Under English law and our Articles of Associatishareholders and other persons whom we know or fremg®nable cause to
believe are, or have been, interested in our shmagsbe required to disclose information regardivar interests in our shares ug
our request, and the failure to provide the reguindormation could result in the loss or restoctiof rights attaching to the shares,
including prohibitions on certain transfers of 8f@res, withholding of dividends and loss of votiigipts. Comparable provisions
generally do not exist under U.S. lg

e The quorum requirement for a shareholders’ measimgminimum of two shareholders entitled to vdttha meeting and present in
person or by proxy or, in the case of a sharehaldéch is a corporation, represented by a duly eugled officer. Under U.S. law,
majority of the shares eligible to vote must getetze present (in person or by proxy) at a shalddrs’ meeting in order to
constitute a quorum. The minimum number of shaggsired for a quorum can be reduced pursuant to\agon in a company’s
certificate of incorporation or bylaws, but typilyahot below on-third of the shares entitled to vote at the mee’

U.S. shareholders may not be able to enforce diaibilities against us.

We are incorporated under the laws of England aate8y and our subsidiaries are incorporated irouarjurisdictions, including foreign
jurisdictions. A number of the officers and direstof each of our subsidiaries are -residents of the United States, and all or a suist
portion of the assets of such persons are locattside the United States. As a result, it may mopassible for investors to affect service of
process within the United States upon such persotsenforce against them judgments obtained $ Gourts predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the federal securities laakthe United States. We have been advised b¥nglish solicitors that there is doubt as to the
enforceability in England in original actions, aractions for enforcement of judgments of U.S. txwf civil liabilities to the extent predicat
upon the federal securities laws of the UnitedeStat

U.S. holders of the ADSs or ordinary shares maysubject to U.S. federal income taxation at ordinancome tax rates on undistributed
earnings and profits.

There is a risk that we will be classified as atoaled foreign corporation, or CFC, for U.S. fedlencome tax purposes. If we are
classified as a CFC, any ADS holder or sharehdlthris a U.S. person that owns directly, indineotl by attribution, 10% or more of the
voting power of our outstanding shares may be stiligelU.S. income taxation at ordinary income t@bes on all or a portion of our
undistributed earnings and profits attributablésuabpart F income.” Such 10% holder may also baliéat ordinary income tax rates on any
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gain realized on a sale of ordinary shares or AD$e extent of our current and accumulated egsnémd profits attributable to such shares.
The CFC rules are complex and U.S. Holders of tdeary shares or ADSs are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the possible
application of the CFC rules to them in their parir circumstances.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen:
None.

Item 2. Properties
The following table lists the location, use and evahip interest of our principal properties as ebifiary 20, 2015:

Location Use Ownership Size (sq. ft.
Dublin, Ireland Offices Lease! 27C
Bedminster, New Jersey, U< Offices Lease! 21,23:

Effective July 1, 2011, we leased 9,747 squaredgeffice space in Bedminster, New Jersey. Thedeas amended, terminates on
March 31, 2018, and may also be terminated withrgixths prior notice. On December 6, 2011 we leaseadditional 2,142 square feet of
space in the same location. On December 15, 20d May 8, 2013, we leased an additional 2,601 an88Bsquare feet of space, respecti
in the same location. In January 2014 and April22@le entered into separate transactions withathélbrd of this property to vacate
approximately 2,142 and 2,000 square feet of sjpaerchange for discounts on contractual futuré payments. Additionally, in January
2015, we signed an agreement to sublease appretinda700 square feet of this property to a thiady effective April 1, 2015.

Effective November 1, 2011, we leased 320 squateoieoffice space in Dublin, Ireland. The offiqgease was subsequently reduced to
270 square feet, effective November 1, 2013. Thsdderminates on October 31, 2015 and may be sshamnually.

We believe our existing facilities are adequateoior current needs and that additional space withiailable in the future on
commercially reasonable terms as needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On November 1, 2013, a purported investor of Améiléd a putative class action lawsuit captiorgtdven Sklar v. Amarin Corporation
plc et al., No. 13-cv-6954 (D.N.J. Nov. 1, 2013) in the UDSstrict Court for the District of New Jersey. Stdttially similar lawsuits,
captionedBove v. Amarin Corporation plcCiv. No. 13-07882 (AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 5, 201Bentley v. Amarin Corporation plcCiv. No. 13-
08283 (AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 20, 2013) aiglegel v. Amarin Corporation p|dNo. 3:13-cv-07210 (D.N.J. Nov. 27, 2013), werbsmquently
filed in the U.S. District Court for the District dlew Jersey and U.S. District Court for the Sowh@istrict of New York. On December 9,
2013, the cases filed in the Southern District ey ork were transferred to the District of Newssrand all such cases are now consolidate
asln re Amarin Corporation plc, Securities LitigatioNo. 3:13-cv-06663 (D.N.J. Nov. 1, 2013). The plé#istassert claims under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and allege that Wmend certain of its current and former officargl directors made misstatements and
omissions regarding the FDA'’s willingness to apgrédfascepa’s ANCHOR indication and related contiifgufactors and the potential
relevance of data from the ongoing REDUCE-IT tttathat approval. The lawsuit seeks unspecifiedetany damages and attorneys’ fees anc
costs. We believe that we have valid defenses andilvigorously defend against this class acsuoit, but cannot predict the outcome. We
are unable to reasonably estimate the loss expasargy, associated with the claims. We have iasoe coverage that is anticipated to cover
any significant loss exposure that may arise frbim action after payment by us of the associateldictéble obligation under such insurance
coverage.
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On February 27, 2014, we commenced a lawsuit agdies=DA in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof Columbia captionedAmarin
Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd. v. Food & Drug Adminddion, et al., Civ. A. No. 14-0324 (D.D.C.) that challenges FBA¥enial of our request
for five-year NCE exclusivity for Vascepa basedoam reading of the relevant statute, our view ofAFDinconsistency with its past actions in
this area and the retroactive effect of what wéelelis a new policy at FDA as it relates to otmation. Our complaint requests that the court
vacate FDA's decision, declare that Vascepa igledtio the benefits of five-year statutory exclityi, bar the FDA from accepting any ANDA
or similar application for which Vascepa is thesrehce-listed drug until after the statutory exwiitys period and set aside what we contend
are—due to the denial of five-year exclusivity tas¢epa—prematurely accepted pending ANDA applioati@Ve intend to litigate the case
vigorously, but we cannot predict the outcome &f thwsuit.

In March, April, and May 2014, we received paradréyp certification notices from six companies camdang to varying degrees that
certain of our patents are invalid, unenforceabl#ar will not be infringed by the manufacture, usale or offer for sale of a generic form of
Vascepa as described in those companies’ abbrdviate drug applications, or ANDAs. We have commdmzztent infringement lawsuits
against each of these ANDA applicants. In eachefawsuits, Amarin is seeking, among other rensedir order enjoining the defendants
from marketing generic versions of Vascepa befoeddst to expire of the asserted patents expir@®30. In April 2014, Amarin filed lawsul
against Apotex, Inc. and Apotex Corporation, ottexlvely, Apotex, in the U.S. District Court fdre District of New Jersey and the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of Illinei The cases against Apotex are captiohdrin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Apotex, Inc. et,aliv.
A. No. 14-2550 (D.N.J) andmarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Apotex, Inc. et,aliv. A. No. 14-2958 (N.D. II.). In April 2014, iarin also filed
lawsuits against Roxane Laboratories, Inc., or Rexan the U.S. District Court for the District déw Jersey and the U.S. District Court for
Northern District of Ohio. The cases against RoxameecaptioneAmarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Roxane Laboratories, , Civ. A. No. 14-
2551 (D.N.J) andmarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Roxane Laboratories, , Civ. A. No. 14-901 (N.D. Ohio). Amarin voluntaritismissed the
Northern District of Ohio case against Roxane ory Ma2014. In April 2014, Amarin also filed a lavitsagainst Dr. Redc’'s Laboratories, Inc
and Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, Ltd., or collectivelr. Reddy’s, in the U.S. District Court for thésBict of New Jersey. The case against
Dr. Reddy'’s is captionedmarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Dr. Reddy’s Laboragst Inc. et al, Civ. A. No. 14-2760 (D.N.J.). In May 2014,
Amarin also filed a lawsuit against Watson Laboriat Inc. and Actavis plc, or Watson, in the WD&trict Court for the District of New
Jersey. One of our directors, Patrick J. O’SulliMaralso a director of Actavis plc. The case aglaiatson is captione@imarin Pharma, Inc. ¢
al. v. Watson Laboratories, Inc. et alCiv. A. No. 14-3259 (D.N.J). On July 17, 2014, Anm agreed to dismiss Actavis plc but the lawsuit
against Watson remains pending. In June 2014, Anadsd filed a case against Teva Pharmaceuticads UWiS., or Teva, in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey. The case agfaleva is captionefimarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Teva Pharmaceuti¢a8A, Inc., Civ. A.
No. 14-3558 (D.N.J.). In June 2014, Amarin also filecdhaduit against Andrx Labs, LLC, Andrx Corporatiand Actavis plc, or collectively,
Andrx, in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof New Jersey. The case against Andrx is captigmadrin Pharma, Inc. et al v. Andrx Labs,
LLC et. al,, Civ. A. No. 14-3924 (D.N.J.). As a result of tB@month stay associated with the filing of thesgduits under the Hatch-Waxman
Act, the FDA cannot grant final approval to any ARDefore September 2016, unless there is an eadiat decision holding that the subject
patents are not infringed and/or are invalid. Weennd to vigorously enforce our intellectual progeights relating to Vascepa, but we cannot
predict the outcome of these lawsuits.

In addition to the above, in the ordinary courséudiness, we are from time to time involved indaits, claims, investigations,
proceedings, and threats of litigation relatingntellectual property, commercial arrangements athér matters.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit

Market Information

The following table sets forth the high and lowces for our ADSs in each of the quarters over #st fwo fiscal years, as quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Market

Common Stock Price

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
High Low High Low
First Quarter $2.7¢ $1.6( $9.24 $6.77
Second Quarte $1.9¢ $1.2¢ $7.9¢ $5.3¢€
Third Quartel $2.0¢ $1.07 $7.4C $5.12
Fourth Quarte $1.3¢ $0.7¢ $7.3¢ $1.3¢€

Shareholders

As of January 31, 2015, there were approximatet/t&8ders of record of our ordinary shares. Becauamy ordinary shares are held by
brokers nominees, we are unable to estimate thertotber of shareholders represented by thesedrbéotders. Our depositary, Citibank,
N.A., constitutes a single record holder of ourilady shares

Dividends

We have never paid dividends on common shares amdtanticipate paying any cash dividends on tmemon shares in the foresee:
future. Under English law, any payment of dividemdsild be subject to relevant legislation and ottickes of Association, which requires t
all dividends must be approved by our Board of Elwes and, in some cases, our stockholders, andomigiybe paid from our distributable
profits available for the purpose, determined ommaconsolidated basis.

Under our Purchase and Sale Agreement with BioPh&ecured Debt Fund Il Holdings Cayman LP, or BayRta, we are restricted
from paying a dividend on our common shares, unkeskave cash and cash equivalents in excesspafcified amount after such payment.
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Performance Graph—5 Year

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatietincorporated by reference into any future §limder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaedptto the extent that we specifically incorperiatoy reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-yeturn provided to stockholders of Amarin’s ADSktwe to the cumulative total
returns of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDBiotechnology Index. We believe these indicestlaeemost appropriate indices
against which the total shareholder return of Amafiould be measured. The NASDAQ Biotechnology xrites been selected because it is a
index of U.S. quoted biotechnology and pharmaceliiompanies. An investment of $100 (with reinvesitof all dividends) is assumed to
have been made in our ADSs and in each of the exler January 1, 2010 and its relative performantacked through December 31, 2014.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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ASSUMES 5100 INVESTED ON JAN, 1, 2070
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED

Company/Market/Peer Compa 12/31/201! 12/31/201. 12/31/201. 12/31/201. 12/31/201.
Amarin Corporation PL( $ 573.4 $ 523.7¢ $ 565.7¢ $  137.7¢ $ 68.5:
NASDAQ Composite Inde $ 118.0: $ 117.0¢ $ 137.4] $ 1926 $ 221.0:
NASDAQ Biotechnology Inde: $ 116.0¢ $  130.0¢ $ 17267 $ 286.6° $ 385.2¢

Information about Our Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding our equity compensation plariacorporated by reference in Iltem 12 of Pdrotithis annual report on Form 10-
K.

UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION
Capital Gains

If you are not resident or ordinarily residentlie tJnited Kingdom, or UK, for UK tax purposes, ywill not be liable for UK tax on
capital gains realized or accrued on the salelmratisposition of common shares or ADSs unlessdnemon shares or ADSs are held in
connection with your trade carried on in the UKotlgh a branch or agency and the common shares 8sAe or have been used, held or
acquired for the purposes of such trade or suaficbrar agency.

An individual holder of common shares or ADSs wkases to be resident or ordinarily resident indKeor UK tax purposes for a
period of less than 5 years and who disposes ofrtmmshares or ADSs during that period may alsadatel on returning to the UK for UK
capital gains tax despite the fact that the indigldnay not be resident or ordinarily residentia UK at the time of the disposal.
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Inheritance Tax

If you are an individual domiciled in the Unitedags and are not a national of the UK for the psepmf the Inheritance and Gift Tax
Treaty 1978 between the United States and the bicammon shares or ADSs beneficially owned by widlnot generally be subject to UK
inheritance tax on your death or on a gift madeday during your lifetime, provided that any appbtaUnited States federal gift or estate tax
liability is paid, except where the common shar&DSS is part of the business property of your UKmpanent establishment.

Where the common shares or ADSs have been pladadsirby a settlor who, at the time of the setdamwas domiciled in the United
States and not a national of the UK, the commoneshar ADSs will not generally be subject to UKenitance tax.

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax
Transfer of ADSs

No UK stamp duty will be payable on an instrumeansferring an ADS or on a written agreement todfer an ADS provided that the
instrument of transfer or the agreement to tranisfexecuted and remains at all times outside #eWhere these conditions are not met, the
transfer of, or agreement to transfer, an ADS catighending on the circumstances, attract a chargé valorem stamp duty at the rate of
0.5% of the value of the consideration.

No stamp duty reserve tax will be payable in respéan agreement to transfer an ADS, whether nirade outside the UK.

Issue and Transfer of Common She

The issue of common shares by Amarin will not gige to a charge to UK stamp duty or stamp dutgmestax.

Transfers of common shares, as opposed to ADSsativiict ad valorem stamp duty at the rate of 0Od8%he amount or value of the
consideration. A charge to stamp duty reservedathe rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of iwestderation, will arise on an agreement to
transfer common shares. The stamp duty resenis f@yable on the seventh day of the month follgwire month in which the charge arises.

Where an instrument of transfer is executed ang staimped before the expiry of a period of six gdarginning with the date of that
agreement, any stamp duty reserve tax that hase®sot paid ceases to be payable.

Taxation of Dividends
Under UK law, there is no withholding tax on diviutks.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected financial data set forth below asdffar the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012,2@11, and 2010 have been
derived from the audited consolidated financialesteents of Amarin. This data should be read inwoetjon with our audited consolidated
financial statements and related notes which aeded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 1@#kd “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” included in Item 7 below. Historical resuftre not necessarily indicative of
operating results to be expected in the future.

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share amount:

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Product revenue $5420: $ 26,35 % — $ — $ —
Less: Cost of goods so 20,48¢ 11,91: — — —
Gross margir 33,713 14,43¢ — — —
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative 79,34¢ 123,79! 57,79 22,55¢ 17,08°
Research and developmt 50,32¢ 72,75( 58,95¢ 21,60: 28,01
Total operating expens 129,67. 196,54! 116,75( 44,16. 45,10:
Operating los: (95,959 (182,101) (116,75() (44,16)) (45,10))
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatiadbilities (2) 13,47: 47,71( (35,349 (22,669 (205,15))
Gain on extinguishment of de 38,03¢ — — — —
Interest expens (18,57Y (34,179 (18,097 (2Q) (19
Interest incom 96 342 544 231 58
Other income (expense), r 3,72 (1,189 (4279) (10 13C
Loss from operations before tax (59,207 (169,42) (170,069 (66,610 (250,09()
Benefit from (provision for) income tax 2,831 3,19¢ (9,116 (2,516 501
Net loss $(56,369) $(166,22) $(179,18) $(69,12¢) $(249,589)
Loss per share
Basic $ (0329 $ (10 $ (129 $ (05 $ (249
Diluted $ (030 $ (129 $ (129 $ (05 $ (249
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 173,71 161,02: 144,01 130,24 100,23¢
Diluted 173,82: 167,07( 144,01 130,24 100,23¢

As of December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalel $119,53¢ $191,51« $260,24: $116,60: $ 31,44:
Total asset 171,10° 252,47t 310,85! 126,37¢ 35,36
Long-term obligations 219,24¢ 248,79:. 289,65( 123,88¢ 230,15
Stockholder deficit (88,449 (33,85¢) (3,997) (5,962 (202,36

(1) Includes non-cash warrant-related compensatpense reflecting the change in the fair valuthefwarrant derivative liability
associated with warrants issued in October 20@0rtoer officers of Amarin. See further discussinrNotes 2 and 7 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statemer

(2) Includes non-cash charges resulting from chaimgéhe fair value of derivative liabilities. Seather discussion in Notes 2 and 7 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements concerning future events and pedoce of the Company. When
used in this report, the words “may,” “would,” “shdd,” “could,” “expects,” “aims,” “plans,” “anticip ates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “projects,” “potential,” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparsdiminology are included to identify
forward-looking statements. These statements includerbuiat limited to statements regarding the comnaiiccess of Vascepa in its first
approved indication, the MARINE indication;, thetgutial for, conditions to, and timing of, approwalthe Vascepa Supplemental New Drug
Application, or sNDA, by the United States Food Bimdg Administration, or FDA, in its potential sewbindication, the ANCHOR indicatio
the timing of enroliment, interim results or finakults of our REDUCE-IT study; potential for Vagsado be marketed by partners outside of
the United States; the safety and efficacy of eadpct candidates; the scope of our intellectuapmrty protection and the likelihood of
securing additional patent protection; estimateshaf potential markets for our product candidatéss likelihood of qualifying additional third
party manufacturing suppliers and estimates ofddgacity of manufacturing and other facilities tgpport our products; our operating at
growth strategies; our industry; our projected caskeds, liquidity and capital resources; and oupested future revenues, operations
expenditures. These forward-looking statementdased on our current expectations and assumptiodstaany factors could cause our
actual results to differ materially from those iodied in these forward-looking statements. You lshayview carefully the factors identified in
this report in Iltem 1A, “Risk Factors”. We disclaiamy intent to update or announce revisions tofamyard-looking statements to reflect
actual events or developments, except as requiydavin. Except as otherwise indicated herein, atedareferred to in this report represent
periods or dates fixed with reference to our fispedr ended December :

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company with expentidipid science focused on the commercializatiod development of therapeutics to
improve cardiovascular health.

Our lead product, Vascepa (icosapent ethyl) capsisepproved by the U.S. Food and Drug Admintistnaor FDA, for use as an
adjunct to diet to reduce triglyceride levels inkaghatients with severe (TG 500 mg/dL) hypertriglyceridemia. Vascepa is avdddh the
United States by prescription only. We began sglind marketing Vascepa in the United States inalgm2013. We sell Vascepa principally
to a limited number of major wholesalers, as welsalected regional wholesalers and specialty phaymroviders, or collectively, its
Distributors, that in turn resell Vascepa to repdibrmacies for subsequent resale to patients eathicare providers. We market Vascepa
through our sales force of approximately 150 sptegessionals, including sales representativeslagid managers. In March 2014, we enterec
into a co-promotion agreement with Kowa PharmacaigiAmerica, Inc. under which approximately 250M8dPharmaceuticals America, Inc.
sales representatives began to devote a substaoitiadn of their time to promoting Vascepa stagtin May 2014. We operate in one business
segment.

Triglycerides are fats in the blood. Hypertriglyidemia refers to a condition in which patients hhigh levels of triglycerides in the
bloodstream. It is estimated that over 40 milliciulés in the United States have elevated trighd=etevels (TG 3200 mg/dL) and
approximately 4.0 million people in the United $&have severely high triglyceride levels (T&08 mg/dL), commonly known as very high
triglyceride levels. According tbhe American Heart Association Scientific Statemantriglycerides and Cardiovascular Dised8611),
triglycerides also provide important informationaamarker associated with the risk for heart diseaml stroke, especially when an individual
also has low high-density lipoprotein cholesteoolHDL-C (often referred to as “good” cholesteraljd elevated levels of LDL-C (often
referred to as “bad” cholesterol). Guidelines fog thanagement of very high triglyceride levels ssgighat reducing triglyceride levels is the
primary goal in patients to reduce the risk of aquancreatitis. The effect of Vascepa on cardiavasenortality and morbidity, or the risk for
pancreatitis, in patients with hypertriglyceriderhis not been determined.

The potential efficacy and safety of Vascepa (knawits development stage as AMR 101) was studigd/o Phase 3 clinical trials, the
MARINE trial and the ANCHOR trial. At a daily dosé 4 grams of Vascepa, the
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dose at which Vascepa is FDA approved, these slasved favorable clinical results in their respecpatient populations in reducing
triglyceride levels without increasing LDL-C levelsthe MARINE trial and with a statistically siditant decrease in LDL-C levels in the
ANCHOR trial, in each case, relative to placeboedétrials also showed favorable results, partiweith the 4-gram dose of Vascepa, in
other important lipid and inflammation biomarkers;luding apolipoprotein B (apo B), non-high-depdipoprotein cholesterol (non-HDL-C),
total-cholesterol (TC), very low-density lipopratatholesterol (VLDL-C), lipoprotein-associated pplslipase A2 (Lp-PLA2), and high
sensitivity C-reactive protein (hs-CRP). In thasals, the most commonly reported adverse reagtiaidence >2% and greater than placebo)
in Vascepa-treated patients was arthralgia (jaaim)p(2.3% for Vascepa vs. 1.0% for placebo).

We are also developing Vascepa for the treatmepaténts with high (TG 200 mg/dL and <500 mg/dL) triglyceride levels whe als«
on statin therapy for elevated low-density lipopiotcholesterol, or LDL-C, levels which we refera® mixed dyslipidemia. We refer to this
second proposed indication for Vascepa as the ANRIi@ication. The FDA has stated that it views pih@posed ANCHOR indication as
ostensibly and impliedly an indication to reducedt@vascular risk. In addition, in December 201&, announced commencement of patient
dosing in our cardiovascular outcomes study of ¥pactitied REDUCE-IT (Reduction of Cardiovasclaents with EPA—Intervention
Trial). The REDUCE-IT study is designed to evaluste efficacy of Vascepa in reducing major cardgmdar events in a high risk patient
population on statin therapy.

We have a pending supplemental new drug applicabioeNDA, with the FDA that seeks marketing appilaf Vascepa for use in the
ANCHOR indication. On October 16, 2013, the FDAwemed an advisory committee to review our sSNDAsTddvisory committee was not
asked by the FDA to evaluate whether Vascepa étfe in lowering triglycerides in the studied péation, the ANCHOR indication as
specified in the SNDA. Rather, the advisory pana$wasked whether Vascepa would improve cardiovaisoutcomes or whether approval of
the ANCHOR indication should wait for successfulngdetion of the REDUCHT study, the first prospective study of cardiouaac outcome:
in patients who have high triglyceride levels desptatin therapy. The advisory committee voted 8 against recommending approval of the
ANCHOR indication based on information presentethatmeeting. The FDA considers the recommendati@uvisory committees, but final
decisions on the approval of new drug applicatemesmade by the FDA.

The ANCHOR clinical study was conducted under agpgrotocol assessment, or SPA, agreement wigh-ibA. The law governing
SPA agreements requires that if the results ofrtaeconducted under the SPA substantiate the tgsis of the protocol covered by the SPA,
the FDA must use the data from the protocol asgfatte primary basis for approval of the prodécGPA agreement is not a guarantee of
FDA approval of the related new drug applicationrSRA agreement is generally binding upon the FDéepkin limited circumstances, suct
if the FDA identifies a substantial scientific igsessential to determining safety or efficacy efdinug after the study begins that rises to the
level of a public health concern, or if the stugpmsor fails to follow the protocol that was agre@dn with the FDA. On October 29, 2013,
FDA rescinded the ANCHOR study SPA agreement becthesFDA determined that a substantial scien8Bae essential to determining the
effectiveness of Vascepa in the studied populatias identified after testing began. As a basigHir determination, the FDA communicated
that it determined that the cumulative results flmmcome studies of other triglyceride-loweringghdailed to support the hypothesis that a
triglyceride-lowering drug significantly reducesthisk for cardiovascular events among the pomratiudied in the ANCHOR trial. Thus, the
FDA stated that while information we submitted song testing the hypothesis that Vascepa 4 gramsiisus placebo reduces major advers
cardiovascular events in statin-treated subjedis kesidually high triglyceride levels, as is bestgdied in the Vascepa REDUCE-IT
cardiovascular outcomes study, the FDA no longesitters a change in serum triglyceride levels amsufficient to establish the
effectiveness of a drug intended to reduce car@diaar risk in subjects with serum triglyceridedis/below 500 mg/dL. Beginning in
November 2013, we sought reconsideration and apgelé SPA rescission decision to three levela@kiasing authority within the FDA a
were denied each time, most recently in Septembb4.2Based on FDA'’s repeated position in its apgealals and its internal consultation
with FDA officials at higher levels, we informedetfrDA that we did not intend to appeal the SPAissgan further.
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The FDA did not take action on the ANCHOR sNDA hg Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, gadedor completion of
FDA's review, December 20, 2013. Given our Septan2idd4 determination to not appeal the SPA reswiskirther, we expect the FDA to
take action on our pending ANCHOR sNDA in the reure.

We are currently focused on the ongoing REDUCEdidmvascular outcomes study of Vascepa. REDUCE Ifultinational,
prospective, randomized, double-blind, placebo+adied study, is the first prospective cardiovaacuutcomes study of any drug in a
population of patients who, despite stable stéémapy, have elevated triglyceride levels. Basetherresults of REDUCE-IT, we plan to seek
additional indicated uses for Vascepa beyond tdieations studied in the ANCHOR and MARINE tridis. REDUCEA{T, cardiovascular eve
rates for patients on stable statin therapy plus fwams per day of Vascepa will be compared tdiogascular event rates for patients on st
statin therapy plus placebo. The REDUCE-IT studyeisigned to be completed after reaching an aggregenber of cardiovascular events.
Based on projected event rates, we estimate the REDIT study can be completed in or about 2017 wetults then expected to be available
and published in 2018. An interim review of thdatty and safety results of the trial is schedidedccur upon reaching 60% of the target
aggregate number of cardiovascular events. We milyrexpect this interim review by the independeata monitoring committee (DMC) to
occur during 2016. The DMC has been more frequentmining interim reviews of the safety data fritva study. Following each of these
reviews, the DMC has communicated to us that welshmontinue the study as planned. Amarin remalinsiéd to all data from the study.
Over 90% of the 8,000 patients targeted for enratinin the REDUCE-IT study have been enrolled.

Based on our communications with the FDA, we cutyesxpect that final positive results from the RBOE-IT outcomes study will be
required for label expansion for Vascepa. Therebmno assurance that we will be successful ireffarts to obtain a label expansion
reflecting the ANCHOR clinical trial whether or n@e obtain final positive results from the REDUCEdutcomes study. If the FDA does not
approve the ANCHOR indication, it could have a miatémpact on our future results of operations &nencial condition.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to reduce opegatixpenses following the recommendation of thesady committee to the FDA
against approval of the ANCHOR indication, we impénted a worldwide reduction in force of approxieia60% of our staff positions. The
majority of affected staff members were sales msifnals who supported the initial commercial lduotVascepa. We incurred approxima
$2.8 million in charges related to the reductioffioirce, all of which includes cash expendituresdioe-time termination benefits and associate
costs. The charges were recorded in the fourthtguaf 2013 and the related payments were madbebfirst half of 2014. As part of the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18gs representatives, excluding sales managemete United States in sales territories tha
we believe have demonstrated the greatest potéotislascepa sales growth. This team covers thyetdrase of physicians responsible for the
majority of Vascepa prescription volume and grositite its launch in early 2013. With these charagebthe resulting target base coverag
well as the addition of the promotional efforts2&0 sales representatives from Kowa Pharmaceutigabyica, Inc. that began in May 2014,
we anticipate continued Vascepa revenue growth tiwer. We also anticipate that such sales growth Ingsinconsistent from period to peric

Commercialization Strategy

Vascepa became commercially available in the Urfiiadies by prescription in January 2013 when wengented sales and shipments to
our network of U.S.-based wholesalers. We commetiedommercial launch of Vascepa in the UnitedeStan January 2013 with
approximately 275 sales representatives. Vascepadtayet been approved or commercially launchesiael of the United States. In October
2013, we reduced our number of sales represengativapproximately 130, excluding sales managenmettie United States to focus on the
sales territories that we believe have demonstthtedreatest potential for Vascepa sales growthndiv market Vascepa in the United State:
through our sales force of approximately 150 spiefessionals
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and their managers. Commencing in the middle okdmnd quarter of 2014, in addition to promotigrobr sales representatives,
approximately 250 Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, $ates representatives began promoting Vascepal&vemploy various marketing
personnel to support our commercialization of Vascé\s of February 1, 2015, over 26,000 clinicinad written prescriptions for Vascepa.

Under the co-promotion agreement with Kowa Pharmécas America, Inc., under which promotion commethin May 2014, both
parties have agreed to use commercially reasordfolgs to promote, detail and optimize sales ofa&pa in the United States and have ac
to specific performance requirements detailed értlated agreement. The performance requiremecitedie a negotiated minimum number of
sales details to be delivered by each party irffitseand second position, the use of a negotiatedber of minimum sales representatives fron
each party, including no less than 250 Kowa Phaew#als America, Inc. sales representatives amédthievement of minimal levels of
Vascepa revenue in 2015 and beyond. Kowa PharniealsuAmerica, Inc. has also agreed to continusetar the costs incurred for its sales
force associated with the commercialization of \égecand to pay for certain incremental costs aasmtivith the use of its sales force, suc
sample costs and costs for promotional and madketiaterials. We will continue to recognize all newe from sales of Vascepa. In exchange
for Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc.’s co-promoél services, Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Bentitled to a quarterly co-promotion
fee based on a percentage of aggregate Vascemargangins that increases during the term. The ptage of aggregate Vascepa gross
margins earned by Kowa Pharmaceuticals America,isrecheduled to increase from the high singléslig 2014, to mid-teen percent levels
in 2015, and to the low twenty percent levels in&0subject to certain adjustments. The term &f ¢bipromotion agreement expires on
December 31, 2018.

Based on monthly compilations of data provided Iblyil party, Symphony Health Solutions, the estedanumber of normalized total
Vascepa prescriptions for the three months ende@mber 31, 2014 was approximately 146,000 as cadpgarl32,000, 110,000, 93,000 and
94,000 prescriptions in the three months endedeSdr 30, 2014, June 30, 2014, March 31, 2014 amwember 31, 2013, respectively.
According to data from another third party, IMS Hleathe estimated number of normalized total Vascgrescriptions for the three months
ended December 31, 2014 was approximately 131,8@0mpared to 113,000, 93,000, 78,000 and 79,38Xxpptions in the three months
ended September 30, 2014, June 30, 2014, Marc203%, and December 31, 2013, respectively. Normdkiatal prescriptions represent the
estimated total number of Vascepa prescriptionspsid to patients, calculated on a normalized Hasis total capsules shipped divided by
120 capsules, or one month’s supply). The datartegp@bove is based on information made availabiestfrom a third party resource and may
be subject to adjustment and may overstate or stateractual prescriptions. Timing of shipmenta/lhmlesalers, as used for revenue
recognition purposes, and timing of prescriptionestimated by these third parties may differ frmeriod to period.

Although we believe these data are prepared omiads®-period basis in a manner that is genemlysistent and that such results are
generally indicative of current prescription trentfese data are based on estimates and shoube melied upon as definitive. In addition,
because we had limited selling history during tearyended December 31, 2013, we only recognizeshtevon product that was resold for
purposes of filling prescriptions. Those prescaptdata may differ from data reported by otherdtiparties.

Prior to commencing our U.S. commercial launch aétepa in January 2013, we had no revenue fromegasBecause of our limited
selling history, changes in the size of our sadesd, our co-promotion agreement, and uncertagggnding resolution of the ANCHOR sNDA
with the FDA, we do not currently provide quantifieevenue guidance. While we expect to be abledw ¢/ ascepa revenues, we provide no
guantified guidance regarding anticipated level¥adcepa prescriptions or revenues and no suclageddshould be inferred from the
operating metrics described above. We believeitivatstors should view the above-referenced opegatiatrics with caution, as data for this
limited period may not be representative of a treosistent with the results presented or otherpiisdictive of future results. Seasonal
fluctuations in pharmaceutical sales, for examplay affect future prescription trends of Vascegac@uld changes in prescriber sentiment an
other factors. We believe investors should consideresults over several quarters, or longer, leafitaking an assessment about potential
future performance.
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We secured managed care coverage for over 21®miilies, including as of February 1, 2015 over t#ion lives covered on Tier 2
for formulary purposes.

The commercialization of a new pharmaceutical pebitia complex undertaking, and our ability teeeffvely and profitably
commercialize Vascepa will depend in part on oulitglto generate market demand for Vascepa threedjircation, marketing and sales
activities, our ability to achieve market acceptantVascepa, our ability to generate product reeeand our ability to receive adequate levels
of reimbursement from third-party payers. Sd@isk Factors—Risks Related to the CommercializatiahDevelopment of Vascefia

Research and Development Update

In September 2014, we announced our continued coment to completing the ongoing REDUCE-IT cardiaxdar outcomes study.
This multinational, prospective, randomized, dotltdlad, placebo-controlled study is the first prespive cardiovascular outcomes study of
any drug in a population of patients who, despible statin therapy, have elevated triglyceridele

We have over 7,300 patients enrolled in the REDUTEtudy. We currently estimate that we will contplpatient enrollment in this
study within 2015. The REDUCE-IT study is desighedthe completed after reaching an aggregate nuofleardiovascular events. Based on
projected event rates, we estimate the REDUCEudlystan be completed in or about 2017 with reshka expected to be available in 2018.
Based on the results of REDUCE-IT, we may seektiadil indications for Vascepa beyond the indigadistudied in the ANCHOR or
MARINE trials. An interim review of the efficacy drsafety results of the trial is scheduled to oaqon reaching 60% of the target aggregate
number of cardiovascular events. We currently eiilgs interim review by the independent data mamiity committee (DMC) to occur during
2016. As is typical, the statistical threshold defining overwhelming efficacy on the primary engipat the interim analysis is considerably
higher than the threshold for defining statistiighificance at the end of the study. Amarin reradilinded to all data from the study.

Our scientific rationale for the REDUCE-IT studysispported by (i) epidemiological data that suggektvated triglyceride levels
correlate with increased cardiovascular diseage (i} genetic data that suggests triglyceride/anttiglyceride-rich lipoproteins (as well as
low-density lipoprotein cholesterol (LDL cholestBr&nown as bad cholesterol) are independentthéncausal pathway for cardiovascular
disease and (iii) clinical data that suggest suthstitriglyceride reduction in patients with eléed baseline triglyceride levels correlates with
reduced cardiovascular risk. Our scientific ratierfar the REDUCE-IT study is also supported byesrsh on the differentiated effects of the
active ingredient in Vascepa, including the antilaxit properties and effects on inflammation markssociated with atherosclerosis.

Commercial Supply Update
During 2013 and 2014, all of our active pharmaaalingredient, or API, was acquired through twpmiers, Nisshin and Chemport.
Much of the inventory sold in 2014 was purchasediflNisshin at a price which is higher than expefttgre average API costs.

During 2014, we reached a settlement agreementanfilnmer supplier, BASF, under which we receivadfand for previous material
purchases of $3.0 million, included as other incamitae statement of operations. The amount of lsupp seek to purchase in 2014 and
beyond will depend on the level of growth of Vaszepvenues.

Financial Position

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents talafi$119.5 million at December 31, 2014 is sigfit to fund our projected
operations for at least the next twelve months.
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Financial Operations Overview

Product Revenues, nétll of our revenue is derived from product saled/acepa, net of allowances, discounts, incentinasdmtes,
chargebacks and returns. We sell product to adonitumber of major wholesalers, as well as selegetgidnal wholesalers and specialty
pharmacy providers, or collectively, our Distribrgowho resell the product to retail pharmaciepimposes of their reselling the product to fill
patient prescriptions. We commenced our commelaigich in the United States in January 2013. lo@tance with GAAP, until we had the
ability to reliably estimate returns of Vascepanirour Distributors, revenue was recognized basetti®nesale of Vascepa for the purposes of
filling patient prescriptions, and not based on sales to such Distributors. Beginning in Janu&y42 we concluded that we had developed
sufficient history such that we can reliably estiengeturns and as a result, began to recognizeuevieased on sales to our Distributors.
Through December 31, 2014, product returns wemidenis.

Cost of Goods Sol€ost of goods sold includes the cost of API for &4 on which revenue was recognized during thegyeas well
as the associated costs for encapsulation, pagkagiipment, supply management, insurance andtgaalsurance. The cost of the API
included in cost of goods sold reflects the averagg method of inventory valuation and relief. Saverage cost reflects the actual purchase
price of Vascepa API, which through December 3142@as sourced from Nisshin and Chemport.

Selling, General and Administrative ExperSelling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of salaries and other related
costs for personnel, including stock-based compmmsaxpense, in our sales, marketing, executiusiress development, finance and
information technology functions. Other costs priityainclude facility costs and professional fees &ccounting, consulting and legal services

Research and Development Expef&esearch and development expense consists prino&fiyes paid to professional service providers
in conjunction with independent monitoring of olinizal trials and acquiring and evaluating datadmjunction with our clinical trials, fees
paid to independent researchers, costs of qualifgontract manufacturers, services expenses irtinrgeveloping and testing products and
product candidates, salaries and related expeasgsgffsonnel, including stock-based compensatipermse, costs of materials, depreciation,
rent, utilities and other facilities costs. In aduh, research and development expenses includeosteo support current development efforts,
including patent costs and milestone payments. ¥gerese research and development costs as inclmraddition, research and development
costs include the costs of product supply recefu@ah suppliers when such receipt by the Compamyia to regulatory approval of the
supplier.

Gain (Loss) on Change in Fair Value of DerivativieHilities. Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatidilities is comprised of:
(i) the change in fair value of the warrant deriv@tiability, (ii) the change in fair value of traerivative liability related to the change in
control provision associated with the December 2BitiPharma financing and (iii) the change in faatue of the derivative liability related to
the change in control provision associated withNtagy 2014 exchangeable senior notes.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), N#erest expense consists of interest incurred ledse obligations, interest incurred under ou
3.5% exchangeable notes and interest incurred unaddecember 2012 financing arrangement with BaRia Secured Debt Fund 11 Holdit
Cayman LP, or BioPharma. Interest expense undegxatirangeable notes includes the amortizationeo€timversion option related to our
exchangeable debt, the amortization of the reldédd discounts and debt obligation coupon intetestrest expense under our BioPharma
financing arrangement is calculated based on amatetd repayment schedule. Interest income condistserest earned on our cash and cast
equivalents. Other income (expense), net, congistrarily of foreign exchange losses and gains.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgmeats and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditind results of operations is based on our ditaded financial statements and no
which have been prepared in accordance with actmuptinciples generally
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accepted in the United States. The preparatiohasfe financial statements requires us to make a&stgand judgments that affect the reportec
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and exei@e an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimagtfudgments, including those related to
derivative financial liabilities. We base our estit@s on historical experience and on various atheamptions that we believe to be reasonabl
under the circumstances, the results of which fitrenbasis for making judgments about the carrygiges of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual resubliy differ from these estimates under differestiagptions or conditions. A summary of our
significant accounting policies is contained in &l&tto our consolidated financial statements inetlieisewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. We believe the following critical accdimy policies affect our more significant judgmeatsd estimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognitier-We sell Vascepa principally to a limited numbeiDastributors, that in turn resell Vascepa to fgthiarmacies
that subsequently resell it to patients and hezlte providers. In accordance with GAAP, our reeeracognition policy requires that: (i) there
is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exasigebn us and the Distributor, (ii) delivery hasweed, (iii) collectability is reasonably
assured and (iv) the price is fixed or determinable

We began recognizing revenue from the sale of f@séalowing our commercial launch in the Unite@tgs in January 2013. Prior to
2013, we recognized no revenue from Vascepa 3alesell Vascepa to Distributors. In accordance WitkAP, until we had the ability to
reliably estimate returns of Vascepa from our [hsttors, revenue was recognized based on the reSsl@scepa for the purposes of filling
patient prescriptions, and not based on our salsgdh Distributors. Beginning in January 2014 carcluded that we had developed sufficien
history such that we can reliably estimate retanmd as a result, began to recognize revenue bassales to our Distributors. Consequently,
we recognized revenues of $54.2 million based tesda Distributors during the year ended Decen3fie2014. Through December 31, 2014,
product returns were de minimis.

We have written contracts with our Distributorsd atelivery occurs when a Distributor receives Vascé\Ve evaluate the
creditworthiness of each of our Distributors toedatine whether revenues can be recognized upovedglisubject to satisfaction of the other
requirements, or whether recognition is requireddalelayed until receipt of payment. In orderdoaude that the price is fixed or
determinable, we must be able to (i) calculategrass product revenues from the sales to Distrisuaod (ii) reasonably estimate our net
product revenues. We calculate gross product resehased on the wholesale acquisition cost thatharge our Distributors for Vascepa. We
estimate our net product revenues by deducting frongross product revenues (a) trade allowance$, as invoice discounts for prompt
payment and distributor fees, (b) estimated govemtrand private payor rebates, chargebacks andutits; such as Medicaid reimburseme
(c) reserves for expected product returns andgfithated costs of incentives offered to certainread customers, including patients.

Derivative Financial Liabilities—Derivative financial liabilities are initially recxded at fair value. They are subsequently hefdiat
value, with gains and losses arising for changéaiirnvalue recognized in the statement of openatid he fair value of derivative financial
liabilities is determined using various valuatiechiniques. We use our judgment to select a vaofetyethods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at dedhnce sheet date. Fluctuations in the assumptiged in the valuation model would result
in adjustments to the fair value of the derivatiabilities reflected on our balance sheet andrafoge, our statement of operations. If we issue
shares to discharge the liability, the derivativacial liability is derecognized and common stackl additional paid-in capital are recognizec
on the issuance of those shares. For options andnts treated as derivative financial liabilitias settlement date the carrying value of the
options and warrants are transferred to equity.CEsh proceeds received from shareholders foriadditshares are recorded in common s
and additional paid-in capital. We have recordedricial derivatives related to certain outstandvagrants, the change in control provision
associated with our December 2012 debt financimgtlh@ change in control provision associated withMay 2014 exchangeable senior na
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Inventory—Prior to July 26, 2012, when we received apprénaah the FDA to market and sell Vascepa in the eéhhibtates for the
MARINE indication, Vascepa was considered a prodacididate under development. All supply of Vasqep@hased prior to July 26, 2012
was not capitalized and instead charged as a coenpoifiresearch and development expense in thedoexceived. After Vascepa was
approved, we began to capitalize inventory purathfisenm Nisshin, the API supplier approved in the NPrior to April 2013, only Nisshin
was an FDA-approved supplier of API for VascepaAjmil 2013, the FDA approved our sNDAs coveringe@tport and BASF and in July
2014 the FDA approved our sNDA covering Slanmhahdhat there are now four suppliers FQAalified to produce Vascepa API. All sup
from Chemport and BASF prior to FDA approval ofgseeéAP| suppliers was not capitalized and insteadggd as a component of research an
development expense in the period received. Sulks¢do the approval of these suppliers, we cap#ahPI| purchases from them. Until an /
supplier is approved, all Vascepa API purchaseehfsach supplier is included as a component of reBeand development expense. Upon
SNDA approval of each additional supplier, we caljzie subsequent Vascepa API purchases from syghisuas inventory. Purchases of
Vascepa API received and expensed before suchategulpprovals are not subsequently capitalized,ad such purchases are quarantined
and not used for commercial supply until such tasghe sNDA for the supplier that produced the i&Ripproved. We state inventories at the
lower of cost or market value. Cost is determinasilll on actual cost using the average cost memoallowance is established when
management determines that certain inventoriesmote saleable. If inventory cost exceeds expeaundket value due to obsolescence,
damage or quantities in excess of expected demand;ill reduce the carrying value of such inventynarket value. We expense inventory
identified for use as marketing samples when thieypackaged. The average cost reflects the acmeth@ase price of Vascepa API, as well as |
portion of API carried at zero cost for materialigthwas purchased prior to FDA approval of Vasospaas purchased prior to the SNDA
approval of our suppliers. Additionally, the det@ration of the classification of our inventory réas the use of estimates in order to deter
the portion of inventories anticipated to be uétizwithin twelve months of the balance sheet date.

Income Taxes—Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfeethe future tax consequences of differencew®en the carrying
amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilitie®parhting loss carryforwards and other attributgeg enacted rates expected to be in effect
when those differences reverse. Valuation allowsee provided against deferred tax assets thatcam®ore likely than not to be realized.

We provide reserves for potential payments of texarious tax authorities or do not recognize tamdiits related to uncertain tax
positions and other issues. Tax benefits for uagetbx positions are based on a determinationhaftiaer a tax benefit taken by the Company
in its tax filings or positions is more likely thaot to be realized, assuming that the matter &stjon will be decided based on its technical
merits. Our policy is to record interest and péealin the provision for income taxes.

We assess our ability to realize deferred tax asgetach reporting period. The realization of defktax assets depends on generating
future taxable income during the periods in whioh tax benefits are deductible or creditable. Wee=Hzeen historically profitable in the Unit
States. When making our assessment about theatatiof its U.S. deferred tax assets at DecembgP@14, we considered all available
evidence, placing particular weight on evidencé toald be objectively verified. The evidence cdesed included the (i) historical
profitability of our U.S. operations, (ii) sourcekfuture taxable income, giving weight to soureesording to the extent to which they can be
objectively verified and (iii) the risks to our bosss related to the commercialization and devetoprof Vascepa. Based on our assessment,
we concluded that the U.S. deferred tax assetnare likely than not to be realizable as of Decen#de 2014. The majority of our deferred
tax assets are held outside of the U.S., for whiethave established a full valuation allowance.r@les in historical earnings performance anc
future earnings projections, among other factorsy oause us to adjust our valuation allowance éerdml tax assets, which would impact our
income tax expense in the period in which we deitegrthat these factors have changed. In the ewéintient taxable income is not generated
in future periods, additional valuation allowancesild be required relating to these U.S. deferagdassets.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdgdsaued by the Financial Accounting Standards @aarFASB, and are adopted
the Company as of the specified effective date cdfesidered the following recent accounting pronemments which were not yet adopted as
of December 31, 2014:

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Rexefrom Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)."sTAimendment provides
principles for recognizing revenue for the transfepromised goods or services to customers withctinsideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or sesviThis amendment will be effective for our flsgear beginning January 1, 2017. Early
adoption is not permitted. We are currently evahgathe accounting, transition and disclosure nemments of the standard and cannot curr
estimate the financial statement impact of adoption

In June 2014, the FASB issued guidance for accegritir share-based payments when the terms of ardgeovide that a performance
target could be achieved after the requisite serp@riod. The standard states that a performangetta a share-based payment that affects
vesting and that could be achieved after the régussrvice period should be accounted for as foprance condition. As such, the
performance target should not be reflected in estirg the grant-date fair value of the award. Weeraguired to adopt this standard in the first
quarter of fiscal 2016 and early adoption is peedit This standard is not expected to have an itpaour consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-1®sEntation of Financial Statements—Going Conceisgl®sure of Uncertainties
about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Goingri€ern (Subtopic 205-40). ASU 2014-15 requires mamant to assess an entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern by incorporating anqrheding upon certain principles that are curremtly).S. auditing standards. Specifically,
the ASU (i) provides a definition of the term suhgtal doubt, (ii) requires an evaluation everyomting period including interim periods,

(iii) provides principles for considering the migng effect of management’s plans, (iv)requiresaie disclosures when substantial doubt is
alleviated as a result of consideration of manag¢imelans, (v) requires an express statement #hat disclosures when substantial doubt is
not alleviated and (vi) requires an assessmerd fieriod of one year after the date that the fiisustatements are issued (or available to be
issued). This standard is effective for the fisezrs ending after December 15, 2016, and for drpmugnds and interim periods thereafter.
Early application is permitted. We are currenthalenating the accounting, transition and disclosarpiirements of the standard and cannot
currently estimate the financial statement impéetdoption.

We believe that the impact of other recently issigtdnot yet adopted accounting pronouncementsnatlhave a material impact on
consolidated financial position, results of operasi, and cash flows, or do not apply to our openati

Effects of Inflation
We believe the impact of inflation on operations baen minimal during the past three years.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 20&sus December 31, 2013

Product Revenues, n&tle recorded revenue of $54.2 million during therysraded December 31, 2014, versus $26.4 milliomduhe
prior year period, an increase of $27.8 million1606%. We commenced our full commercial launch a$dépa in the United States for use in
the MARINE indication in January 2013. All of owevenue in the years ended December 31, 2014 ar&ivead derived from product sales of
Vascepa, net of allowances, discounts, incentiedmtes, chargebacks and returns.
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We sell Vascepa to Distributors. In accordance WithAP, until we had the ability to reliably estireateturns of Vascepa from our
Distributors, revenue was recognized based onetbeler of Vascepa for the purposes of filling patgescriptions, and not based on our sales
to such Distributors. Beginning in January 2014 ,ceacluded that we had developed sufficient histugh that we can reliably estimate
returns and as a result, began to recognize revzmed on sales to our Distributors. Through Deegh, 2014, product returns were de
minimis. Timing of shipments to wholesalers, asiufeg revenue recognition, and timing of prescaps as estimated by third party sources
such as Symphony Health Solutions and IMS Health differ from period to period.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 20t 3)et product revenues included an adjustmertdgray mitigation rebates
provided by us to commercially insured patientciSiebates are intended to offset the differefitiapatients of Vascepa not covered by
commercial insurers at the time of launch on TiéorXormulary purposes, resulting in higher co-gawyounts for such patients. Our cost for
these co-payment mitigation rebates was up to &7 piescription filled prior to February 20, 20Ifaup to $70 per prescription filled after
February 20, 2014 to December 31, 2014. CommengiMarch and April 2013, certain third-party payaded Vascepa to their Tier 2
coverage, which results in lower co-payments fdiepés covered by these third-party payors. Asetfrbary 1, 2015, approximately
125 million lives covered by medical insurance weneer insurance plans that have added Vascepaitdlier 2 coverage. In connection with
the start of such Tier 2 coverage, we have ageedy customary rebates to these third-party payoithe resale of Vascepa to patients
covered by these third-party payors.

As is typical for the pharmaceutical industry, thajority of Vascepa sales are to major commerclalasalers which then resell Vasc
to retail pharmacies. As of February 1, 2015, @&000 clinicians had written prescriptions for ¥@ga. As of February 1, 2015, we are not
aware of any clinician who is responsible for 1084nmre of the aggregate prescriptions written fastépa.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to lower opegexpenses following the recommendation of thesayicommittee to the FDA, we
implemented a worldwide reduction in force inclugle reduction of approximately fifty percent of aales representatives. Following the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18@s representatives in the United States in satg®ries which have demonstrated what
believe is the greatest potential for Vascepa sgi@sth. This team will cover the target base ofgitians responsible for the majority of
Vascepa prescription volume and growth since iiada in early 2013. With these changes and reguitirget base coverage, as well as the
addition of the promotional efforts of 250 salegressentatives from Kowa Pharmaceuticals Ameriaa,thrat began in May 2014, we anticip
continued Vascepa revenue growth over time. Wédéuranticipate that such revenue growth may benisistent from period to period.

Cost of Goods Sol€ost of goods sold during the year ended Decenthe2®l4 was $20.5 million, versus $11.9 millionidgrthe prior
year period, an increase of $8.6 million, or 72%s{f goods sold includes the cost of API for \igecon which revenue was recogni
during the period, as well as the associated dostncapsulation, packaging, shipment, supply gament, insurance and quality assurance.
The cost of the APl included in cost of goods gelitbcts the average cost of API included in ineent This average cost reflects the actual
purchase price of Vascepa API, as well as a poafdkPI carried at zero cost for material which vpaschased prior to FDA approval of
Vascepa on July 26, 2012 or was purchased prittreteNDA approval of our suppliers.

The APl included in the calculation of the averagst of goods sold during the years ended DeceBhe2014 and 2013 was sourced
from two API suppliers. The contracted cost of dyppm our initial API supplier was higher tharetontracted cost from our other API
supplier. In the future, we anticipate making conéid purchases from this initial supplier and td&enadditional lower unit cost purchases of
Vascepa API from other API suppliers. We began lpasing lower unit cost API from Chemport, which veaproved by the FDA in April
2013 to produce Vascepa, in the second quarted18.2During the years ended December 31, 2014 and
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2013, the cost basis of product sold that had icarvalue of zero was $0.6 million and $4.0 noitlj respectively. Had such inventories been
valued at acquisition cost, it would have resulted corresponding increase in cost of goods sotbeadecrease in gross margin during such
periods. As of December 31, 2014, we maintainethwentory with a carrying value of zero and we sified all of our inventory as current.

a result of lower inventory balances on hand attie: of 2014 compared to the end of 2013 as welhéisipated increases in revenue during
2015 compared to 2014, we anticipate purchasing @ during 2015 than in 2014 with the amountwdtspurchases dependent on the rate
of our revenue growth.

Our gross margin for the years ended December@®¥ and 2013 was 62% and 55%, respectively. Thisamement was primarily
driven by lower unit cost API purchases. In additiover time we expect continued lower average eost purchases of API. We also expect
that API costs will be lower in the future due ttvantages derived from the mix of our supplierse @lierage cost may be variable from perio
to period depending upon the timing and quantithBf purchased from each supplier.

Selling, General and Administrative ExperSelling, general and administrative expense foy#sr ended December 31, 2014 was
million, versus $123.8 million in the prior yeardacrease of $44.5 million, or 36%. Selling, geharal administrative expenses for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarizbd table below (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013

Selling, general and administrative expense (1) $73,52¢ $113,10(
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 6,321 11,84¢
Non-cash warrant related compensation income (509 (3,709
Severance (4 — 2,55(
Total selling, general and administrative expe $79,34¢ $123,79!

(1) Selling, general and administrative expenseluelng non-cash compensation charges for stockpeosation and warrants, for the year
ended December 31, 2014 was $73.5 million, veréa8.4 million in the prior year, a decrease of $34illion, or 35%. The decrease is
due primarily to cost decreases in 2014 for salesefstaffing, marketing program spending and dostether general and administrative
support incurred in connection with the commeregtion of Vascepa. Included in this amount forytbar ended 2014 is $1.7 million of
expense for co-promotion fees payable to Kowa Pheeuticals America, Inc. The year ended Decembe2@®1l3 was the period in
which we commenced selling Vascepa and as suchdedlcertain laun«related costs

(2) Stockbased compensation expense for the year ended Bec&h, 2014 was $6.3 million, versus $11.8 milliotthe prior year period,
decrease of $5.5 million, or 47%, primarily dueatdecrease in the fair value of new stock optiahrastricted stock awards granted to
attract and retain qualified employees as a regutdecrease in our stock pri

(3) Warrant-related compensation income for thesyeaded December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0.5 mdhal $3.7 million, respectively.
Warrant-related compensation income reflects theagash change in fair value of the warrant denagliability associated with warrants
issued in October 2009 to three of our former elyg®s, net of warrants exercised. The decreasér indiaie in 2014 and 2013 was due
primarily to a decrease in our stock price duriagheperiod

(4) Severance costs in 2013 relate to cash expeadifor one-time termination benefits and assediabsts incurred in conjunction with a
compan-wide reduction in force announced in October 2(

The reduction in the level of selling, general addninistrative costs in 2014 as compared to 20183wianarily the result of the reducti
in force announced in October 2013 and reductiorceitain marketing program spend and other overbests. Such cost reductions were
partially offset by the incremental selling costsaciated with the Kowa Pharmaceuticals Amerioa, ¢n-promotion agreement.
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We currently anticipate that with our existing ication for Vascepa, our selling, general and adstriative costs will be largely flat in

future periods with the exception of anticipatecr@ases in the co-promotion fees earned by Kowanfdeeuticals America, Inc. based on
anticipated increases in net product revenuestantetms of our co-promotion agreement with KowarRtaceuticals America, Inc.

Research and Development Expefsearch and development expense for the year @wtminber 31, 2014 was $50.3 million, versus

$72.8 million in the prior year period, a decrea822.5 million, or 31%. Research and developnegpenses for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarized in ithe b@low (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013

REDUCE-IT study (1) $37,67: $46,99-
Pre-approval commercial supply ( 373 5,81¢
Regulatory filing fees and expenses 1,84 3,81¢
Internal staffing, overhead and other 7,73¢ 13,28
Research and development expense, excludin-cash expens 47,62¢ 69,91
Non-cash stoc-based compensation ( 2,701 2,831
Total research and development expe $50,32¢ $72,75(

The decrease in research and development expandée fyear ended December 31, 2014, as compatbd fwior year period, is

primarily due to a decrease in costs associatduttivt REDUCE-IT study, a decrease in expensesiagsdavith pre-commercial inventory
supply, and a decrease in staffing and overhead,@sfurther described below.

1)

In December 2011, we announced commencemeydtigit dosing in our cardiovascular outcomes stfdyascepa, titted REDUCE-IT,
which is designed to evaluate the efficacy of Vasda reducing major cardiovascular events in & higk patient population on statin
therapy. The study duration is dependent on theeaktlinical events in the study, which rate mayalffected by the number of patients
enrolled in the study, the epidemiology of the @atis enrolled in the study, and the length of tiha the enrolled patients are followed.
We manage the study through a contract researemization (CRO) through which all costs for thigammes study are incurred with 1
exception of costs for clinical trial material (CYnd costs for internal management. Our interaedgnnel are responsible for manag
multiple projects and their costs are not spedificalocated to REDUCE-IT or any other individyaidoject. We currently have over
7,300 patients enrolled in REDUCE-IT. We estimags tve will complete patient enrollment in thisdytwithin 2015. For 2014 and
2013, we incurred expenses through our CRO in adiorewith this trial of approximately $31.0 millicand $38.4 million, respectively.
Inclusive of CTM costs, the combined CRO and CTMtsdn 2014 and 2013 for REDUCE-IT were approxitya$37.7 million and
$47.0 million, respectively. The reduction in expes in 2014 as compared to 2013 is primarily tealt®f timing variability for
REDUCE-IT costs as well as some efficiency savemgthe trial is fully operational in 2014 acrodscalintries and clinical sites. We
expense costs for CTM upon receipt. The aggregateat this outcomes study will depend on the dditelinical events in the study. We
currently estimate that costs incurred for thiglgtin 2015 will continue at approximately the salenels as we have incurred in 2014 but
may vary from quarter to quarter. Based on ouresurassumptions of CRO and CTM costs, we estinhatisalggregate remaining cost:
complete the REDUCHKF study and evaluate its results to likely exc&&80 million through study completion in 2017 andblication of
results in 2018. Our aggregate remaining costsmaplete the REDUCHET are estimated to be lower than $100 milliorhi independel
DMC recommends that REDUCE-IT be completed earbelaon its scheduled interim review of the efficang safety results of the
study which review we estimate will occur in 20J#bn reaching 60% of the target aggregate numbeardfiovascular events for the
study. Amarin remains blinded to all data from siedy and currently expects the study to be coraglgt 2017. We anticipate that our
costs for this outcomes study will continue to esgent the most significant component of our re$eand development expenditur
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(2) Until an API supplier is approved by the FDAm@anufacture commercial supply of Vascepa, all ¥pagurchased from such supplier is
included as a component of research and developexgense. Upon approval of the supplier, we cap@aubsequent Vascepa API
purchases from such supplier as inventory. PurcheiS€ascepa AP received and expensed beforersggeliatory approvals are not
subsequently capitalized, and all such purchasegquarantined and not used for commercial suppiy surch time as the supplier that
produced the APl is approved. The commercial supppense for the periods shown above represerasatory received from Nisshin
prior to NDA approval of Vascepa on July 26, 20t 2exeived from our other suppliers prior to theNDA approvals. The amount of
commercial supply that we receive from potentialifidnal API suppliers prior to SNDA approval degsrupon production schedules at
such suppliers and the timing of regulatory appkcmad we are unable to estimate these amountésatirne. We will continue to exper
inventory received from the unapproved supplieil snich time as FDA approval is obtaint

(3) The regulatory filing fees in each of the yeansled December 31, 2014 and 2013 included ani/alf€es for maintaining
manufacturing sites. In addition, during the yaadledd December 31, 2013, these fees included regylfitings associated with the
sNDA for the ANCHOR indication as well as costsaasated with preparing for the October 16, 2013 Faakisory committee meetin

(4) Internal staffing, overhead and other researchdevelopment expenses primarily relate to the cafsteir personnel employed to mani
research, development and regulatory affairs dietevand related overhead costs including conguétimd other professional fees that are
not allocated to specific projects. Also included eosts related to qualifying suppliers and legats. The reduction in the level of such
costs in 2014 as compared to 2013 is largely theltref decisions announced in October 2013 tocedieadcount and suspend AMR10Z
development. Other research and development go21i3 included costs related to testing of thatined bioavailability of AMR102
capsules, Vascepa capsules with a selected sign toncomitantly. We have suspended further dpuatnt of AMR102 pending
resolution of the ANCHOR sNDA with the FD.

(5) Non-cash stock-based compensation expense reprekertssts associated with equity awards issuedéoial staff supporting our
research and development and regulatory funct

We anticipate that our research and developmers @ob be slightly higher during 2015 as compate@014 as a result of the timing of
REDUCE-IT costs, and that such costs will decliredestly thereafter upon completion of enrollmemtR&EDUCE-IT.

Gain (Loss) on Change in Fair Value of Derivativialilities. Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatiidilities for the year
ended December 31, 2014 was a gain of $13.5 mil@sus a gain of $47.7 million in the prior yearipd. Gain (loss) on change in fair value
of derivative liabilities is comprised of (i) théange in fair value of the warrant derivative llapj (ii) the change in fair value of the deriwagi
liability related to the change in control provisiassociated with the December 2012 BioPharmadingnand (iii) the change in fair value of
the derivative liability related to the change ontrol provision associated with the May 2014 exgeable senior notes.

The warrant derivative liability is related to tbleange in fair value of warrants issued in conjiomctvith the October 2009 private
placement. In October 2009 we issued 36.1 milli@mrants at an exercise price of $1.50 and recoadktB.3 million warrant derivative
liability, representing the fair value of the wartaissued. As these warrants have been classsiedderivative liability, they are revalued at
each reporting period, with changes in fair valeeognized in the statement of operations. Theviire of the warrant derivative liability at
December 31, 2014 was $0.1 million and we recogh&®6.3 million gain on change in fair value ofidative liability for the year ended
December 31, 2014 for these warrants. The fairevafithe warrant derivative liability at Decembdr, 2013 was $6.9 million and we
recognized a $44.2 million gain on change in faiue of derivative liability for the year ended Betwber 31, 2013. The change in fair value of
the warrant derivative liability is due primarily the change in the price of our common stock erdéite of valuation. In October 2014, we an
the holders of the remaining October 2009 warremitually agreed to extend the expiration date ohsuarrants from October 16, 2014 to
February 27, 2015.
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Our December 2012 financing agreement with BioPlarontains a redemption feature whereby, upon agehaf control, we would be
required to pay $140 million, less any previouspaid amount, if the change of control occurs obefore December 31, 2013, or required to
repay $150 million, less any previously repaid antpif the change of control event occurs after &@eber 31, 2013. The fair value of the
derivative liability is recalculated at each repagtperiod using a probability-weighted model immmrating management estimates for potentia
change in control, and by determining the fair eadfi the debt with and without the change in cdrgrovision included. The difference
between the two fair values of the debt was deteethio be the fair value of the embedded derivafitdecember 31, 2014, the fair value of
the derivative was determined to be $4.8 milliord at December 31, 2013, the fair value of thevaérie was determined to be $11.1 million.
We recognized a gain on change in fair value oivdéve liability of $6.3 million and $3.5 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2014 anc
2013, respectively.

Our 2014 Notes contain a redemption feature whenghgn occurrence of a change in control, we weldequired to repurchase the
notes. The fair value of the embedded derivative gadculated using a probability-weighted modebmporating management estimates of the
probability of a change in control occurring, anddetermining the fair value of the debt with anithaut the change in control provision
included. The difference between the two was ddtexdhto be the fair value of the embedded derieatht December 31, 2014, the fair value
of the derivative was determined to be $2.6 milkord we recognized a $0.9 million gain on chandaiimvalue of derivative liability for the
year ended December 31, 20

Any changes in the assumptions used to value thieadige liabilities could result in a material aige to the carrying value of such
liabilities.

Gain on Extinguishment of Del@n May 15, 2014, we entered into separate, priyatefjotiated exchange agreements with certain
holders of our exchangeable senior notes pursoamhich we exchanged $118.7 million in aggregabeggal amount of existing
exchangeable senior notes for $118.7 million inregate principal amount of new 3.50% exchangeahi®snotes due 2032. The key char
in the terms of the new notes included moving tist put date from January 2017 to January 2018ingdan issuer conversion option whereby
we can opt to convert the notes into equity shehubdDaily VWAP (as defined in the Indenture) exc82d6 for a certain number of days and
reducing the conversion price (see Note 8 to onselidated financial statements included in thisdal Report on Form 10-K). As a result of
the exchange, we assessed the value of the natesdiately prior to the exchange and immediatelgrafie exchange and determined that the
exchange resulted in a substantial modificatiothefterms of the notes resulting in an extinguighinoé the original notes. We subsequently
recorded a gain on extinguishment of the origireaea of $38.0 million in the year ended December2814.
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Interest Expense, ndiet interest expense for the year ended Decemhe&03# was $18.5 million, versus $33.8 million le fprior year
period, a decrease of $15.3 million, or 45%. Nétriest expense for the years ended December 34,82@12013 is summarized in the table
below (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31
2014 2013
Exchangeable senior notes (
Amortization of debt discoun $ 4,221 $15,06"
Contractual coupon intere 5,25( 5,25(
Total exchangeable senior notes interest exp 9,471 20,31%
Long-term dek—BioPharma financing (2
Cash intere—current 5,42( 1,84:
Cash intere—deferrec 1,78 9,451
Non-cash interes 1,90( 2,56¢
Total lon¢-term debt interest expen 9,10z 13,85¢
Other interest expen: 1 3
Total interest expens 18,57t 34,17¢
Interest income (3 (96) (343)
Total interest expense, r $18,47¢ $33,83¢

(1) Cash and non-cash interest expense relatén texchangeable senior notes for the years endeehiier 31, 2014 and 2013 was $9.5
million and $20.3 million, respectivel

(2) Cash and non-cash interest expenses relatbé BioPharma financing for the year ended Decer@be2014 were $9.1 million and
$13.9 million, respectively. These amounts reftaetassumption that our Vascepa revenue levelstilbe high enough to support
repayment to BioPharma in accordance with the negay schedule without the optional reduction whéchllowed to be elected by us if
the threshold revenue levels are not achieved.al®, @ur revenues have been below the contrat¢iveshold amount each quarter such
that each payment reflects the calculated optitediction amount as opposed to the contractuahioid payments for each quarterly
period.

(3) Interestincome for the year ended Decembe@14 was $0.1 million, versus $0.3 million in {hréor year period. Interest income
represents income earned on cash bala

Other Income (Expense), n€ther income (expense), net, for the year endeémber 31, 2014 was income of $3.7 million versus an
expense of $1.2 million in the prior year. Othexame (expense), net, in the year ended Decemb@034, primarily consists of $4.1 million
received in the second quarter of 2014 with resfmesettlement agreements with one of our suppéiadsone of our encapsulators that prov
for the reimbursement of certain amounts previopslig by us. Other income (expense), net, for 88 gnded December 31, 2013 primarily
consisted of losses and gains on foreign exchaagsactions, including realized gains and lossefemign exchange forward contracts. We
periodically use foreign exchange forward contréetisedge against changes in exchange rates feniory purchases denominated in foreign
currency.

Benefit From (Provision for) Income Tax&senefit from (provision for) income taxes for theay ended December 31, 2014 was a $2.8
million benefit versus a $3.2 million benefit iretprior year. The current benefit relates entitelthe United States subsidiary operations. We
are profitable in the United States as a resulitefcompany transactions between our United Statbsidiary and our other companies. The
2013 benefit primarily relates to tax credits fesearch and development activities.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 20&Bus December 31, 2012

Product Revenues, n&tle recorded revenue of $26.4 million during therysraded December 31, 2013. We commenced our full
commercial launch of Vascepa in the United Statesi$e in the MARINE indication in
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January 2013. We recorded no revenue in 2012.fAduorevenue in the year ended December 31, 2@K3derived from product sales of
Vascepa, net of allowances, discounts, incentiedmtes, chargebacks and returns.

We sell Vascepa to Distributors. In accordance withrevenue recognition policy, until we have mexperience with the sale of
Vascepa and can better estimate product returnsuwently recognize revenue only for product whiels been used for of the purpose of
filling prescriptions. The excess of the amouniebiland the amount recognized as revenue for thegreded December 31, 2013, net of
applicable discounts and rebates, has been recaeddeferred revenue.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, our metyat revenues included an adjustment for co-pdigation rebates provided by us
to commercially insured patients. Such rebatesneaded to offset the differential for patientsvascepa not covered by commercial insurer:
at the time of launch on Tier 2 for formulary pusps, resulting in higher co-pay amounts for sudiepis. Our cost for these co-payment
mitigation rebates is up to $75 per prescriptitlediduring 2013. Commencing in March and April 30gertain third-party payors added
Vascepa to their Tier 2 coverage, which resullswer co-payments for patients covered by thesd-party payors. As of February 1, 2014,
approximately 100 million lives covered by meditelurance were under insurance plans that havedadaecepa to their Tier 2 coverage. In
connection with the start of such Tier 2 coverage have agreed to pay customary rebates to thiedeptirty payors on the resale of Vascepa
to patients covered by these third-party payors.

As is typical for the pharmaceutical industry, thajority of Vascepa sales are to major commerclalasalers which then resell Vasc
to retail pharmacies. As of February 1, 2014, d&000 clinicians had written prescriptions for ¥&ga. As of February 1, 2014, we are not
aware of any clinician who is responsible for 1086nmre of the aggregate prescriptions written fastépa.

On October 22, 2013, in an effort to reduce opegatixpenses following the recommendation of thesady committee to the FDA, we
implemented a worldwide reduction in force inclugle reduction of approximately fifty percent of aales representatives. Following the
reduction in force, we retained approximately 18gs representatives in the United States in satdsories which have demonstrated what
believe is the greatest potential for Vascepa sgi@sth. This team will cover the target base ofgitians responsible for the majority of
Vascepa prescription volume and growth since itada in early 2013. With these changes and reguliirget base coverage, we anticipate
continued Vascepa revenue growth over time. Wédéuranticipate that such revenue growth may benisistent from period to period.

Cost of Goods Sol@€ost of goods sold during the year ended Decembe2®L3 was $11.9 million, and includes the cosA®f for
Vascepa on which revenue was recognized duringehied, as well as the associated costs for entasy packaging, shipment, supply
management, insurance and quality assurance. Bi@ftthe API included in cost of goods sold retiethe average cost of API included in
inventory. This average cost reflects the actuatipase price of Vascepa API, as well as a portfohRd carried at zero cost for material which
was purchased prior to FDA approval of Vascepauiyn 26, 2012 or was purchased prior to the SNDArapgl of our suppliers.

The majority of API included in the calculationtbe average cost of goods sold during the yearcebaéeember 31, 2013 was sourced
from one API supplier. The contracted cost of syppim this API supplier for initial purchase volesis higher than the contracted cost from
our other API suppliers. Contracted purchase daosits this initial API supplier reflect that they veeworking with Amarin prior to
commencement of the MARINE and ANCHOR clinical lsiand are anticipated to decline as additional dlime is purchased. In the futu
we anticipate making continued purchases fromitfitigl supplier at substantially lower unit prigithan the pricing of the initial purchases
from this supplier and to make additional lowertwaist purchases of Vascepa API from other API Bergp We began purchasing lower unit
cost API from Chemport, which was approved by tB&\Fn April 2013 to produce Vascepa, in the threenths ended June 30, 2013. During
the year ended December 31, 2013, the cost bapi®diict sold that had a carrying value of zero was
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approximately $4.0 million. Had such inventoriegbe&alued at acquisition cost, it would have reglih an increase in cost of goods sold an
a decrease in gross margin during such periodssMgect current inventories with a carrying valugerfo to be utilized in 2014. We may have
additional zero cost inventories in the futurette extent that we receive approval of the sNDAofar fourth commercial supplier. As of
December 31, 2013, we maintained inventory witluaying value of zero and an acquisition cost gfragimately $0.6 million, which has an
estimated net realizable value of $2.6 million lohse our average net selling price for the yeaedridecember 31, 2013.

Our gross margin improved during each quartertferyiear ended December 31, 2013. This improvemasiprumarily driven by lower
unit cost API purchases made during 2013. The gresgin for the year ended December 31, 2013 wés &baddition to expected continued
lower average unit cost purchases of API, we atpeet that API costs will be lower in the futureedio recent improvements in foreign
currency exchange rates and potential advantagaeddrom the geographical mix of our supplierse Vécorded no cost of goods sold in
2012.

Selling, General and Administrative ExperSelling, general and administrative expense forytreg ended December 31, 2013 was
$123.8 million, versus $57.8 million in the pricgar, an increase of $66.0 million, or 114.2%. 8gllgeneral and administrative expenses for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 areageohin the table below (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012

Selling, general and administrative expense (1) $113,10( $43,17:
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 11,84¢ 14,37¢
Non-cash warrant related compensation (income) exp@): (3,709 247
Severance (4 2,55( —
Total selling, general and administrative expe $123,79! $57,79¢

(1) Selling, general and administrative expenseluebkng non-cash charges for stock and warrant emsgtion, for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was $113.1 million, versus $48lin in the prior year, an increase of $69.9lioi, or 161.8%. The increase was
primarily due to cost increases in 2013 for sabesd staffing, an increase in marketing progranmdjpgy and increased general and
administrative costs incurred in connection wité ihitial commercialization of Vasceg

(2) Nonr-cash stock based compensation expense for theeydad December 31, 2013 was $11.8 million, ve$dds4 million in the prior
year period, a decrease of $2.6 million, due pritnéo a decrease in the number of awards outstenas a result of the compewide
reduction in force announced in October 2(

(3) Non-cash warrant related compensation (income) expenske year ended December 31, 2013 was $3.7omitif income, versus $0.2
million of expense in the prior year. Warrant rethtompensation income (expense) reflects the ash-change in fair value of the
warrant derivative liability associated with wararssued in October 2009 to three former offiedrAmarin, net of warrants exercised.
The change in fair value in 2013 and 2012 was dineguily to the change in our stock price duringle@eriod. The value of this warrant
derivative liability may increase or decrease frpaniod to period based upon changes in the priceio€ommon stock. Such non-cash
changes in valuation could be significant as tis¢olny of our stock price has been volatile. Thengailoss resulting from such non-cash
changes in valuation could have a material impaaiwr reported net income or loss from period taggk In particular, if the price of ol
stock increases, the change in valuation of thisama derivative liability will add to our historyf operating losse:

(4) Severance costs in 2013 relate to cash expeadifor one-time termination benefits and assediabsts incurred in conjunction with a
compan-wide reduction in force announced in October 2(
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Selling, general and administrative costs in 204&hincreased over 2012 levels as we continuegpastithe commercialization of

Vascepa, including costs for market research, $afes staffing and support costs and investmenisfiastructure.

Research and Development Expemsearch and development expense for the year &watmanber 31, 2013 was $72.8 million, versu:s

$59.0 million in the prior year period, an increa$&13.8 million, or 23.4%. Research and develapnespenses for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized in ithe b@low (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2012

REDUCE-IT study (1) $46,99: $25,56:
Other clinical trial programs (- 1,51¢ 60€
Pre-approval commercial supply ( 5,81¢ 16,14:
Regulatory filing fees and expenses 3,81¢ (25€)
Internal staffing, overhead and other 11,76 13,20z
Research and development expense, excludin-cash expens 69,91 55,25¢
Non-cash stoc-based compensation ( 2,83 3,70(
Total research and development expe $72,75( $58,95¢

The increase in research and development expemstiefyear ended December 31, 2013, as compatbd fwior year period, is

primarily due to an increase in costs associateld the REDUCE-IT study as further described below.

(1)

(2)

(3)

In December 2011, we announced commencemeadtient dosing in our cardiovascular outcomes stfdyascepa, titted REDUCE-IT,
which is designed to evaluate the efficacy of Vasda reducing major cardiovascular events in & higk patient population on statin
therapy. The study duration is dependent on tleeaftlinical events in the study, which rate mayalffected by the number of patients
enrolled in the study, the epidemiology of the @atis enrolled in the study, and the length of tilha the enrolled patients are followed.
We manage the study through a contract researenization (CRO) through which all costs for thigammes study are incurred with 1
exception of costs for clinical trial material (C)Mnd costs for internal management. Our intereedgnnel are responsible for manag
multiple projects and their costs are not spedificalocated to REDUCE-IT or any other individyaioject. For 2013, we incurred
expenses through our CRO in connection with tligs &f approximately $38.4 million. Inclusive of GTcosts, the combined CRO and
CTM costs in 2013 for REDUC-IT were approximately $47.0 million. We expensetsdsr CTM upon receip

In 2012 and 2013, other clinical trial progracesisisted of fixed-dose combination studies. leddeber 2012, we completed dosing and
pharmacokinetic sampling in a study to test a fisede combination of Vascepa capsules and a leathtig which we refer to as
AMR102. In August 2013, we completed dosing inrsd@mized, open-label, single-dose, 4-way cross-stgty to continue testing of
the relative bioavailability of AMR102 capsules,3¢apa capsules with a selected statin taken coteottyi Vascepa taken alone and
selected statin taken alone. The results of thidyssupport the feasibility of AMR102. We have sersgied additional development of
AMR102 pending resolution of the ANCHOR sNDA withetFDA.

Until an API supplier is approved by the FDAn@nufacture commercial supply of Vascepa, all ¥pagurchased from such supplier is
included as a component of research and developaxgense. Upon approval of the supplier, we capéaubsequent Vascepa API
purchases from such supplier as inventory. PurcheiS€ascepa AP received and expensed beforersggeliatory approvals are not
subsequently capitalized, and all such purchasequarantined and not used for commercial suppiiy such time as the supplier that
produced the APl is approved. The commercial supppense for the periods sho
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above represents inventory received from Nisshior po NDA approval of Vascepa on July 26, 2012areived from our other suppliers
prior to their SNDA approvals. In April 2013, sNDAgere approved for two of our additional suppli®@ASF and Chemport. A SNDA
was submitted in August 2013 for Novasep as patti@fSlanmhor consortium. The amount of commestipply that we receive from
Novasep prior to SNDA approval depends upon pradncichedules at Novasep and the timing of regulapproval, and we are unal
to estimate these amounts at this time. We wiltiooe to expense inventory received from the unaygut supplier until such time as
FDA approval is obtained. Additionally, during thear ended December 31, 2013, we wrote off $1.Bomitelated to product that is not
recoverable. This product is from a supplier frofmick no supply has yet been released for commarsi&

(4) The regulatory filing fees primarily represenssts incurred in connection with regulatory fikngssociated with requests for regulatory
approvals, such as the sNDA for the ANCHOR ind@atind annual FDA fees for maintaining manufactusites. In the year ended
December 31, 2013, such fees also include costsiassd with preparing for the October 16, 2013 Favisory committee meeting. In
the year ended December 31, 2012, the regulatary fees balance included a credit representiegéimbursement of $1.5 million in
fees by the FDA related to the NDA filing for Vagee

(5) Internal staffing, overhead and other researchdevelopment expenses primarily relate to the cafsteir personnel employed to mani
research, development and regulatory affairs dietevand related overhead costs including conguétimd other professional fees that are
not allocated to specific projects. Such costs mislude costs related to qualifying suppliers &ghl costs. We anticipate a reduction in
such costs in 2014 compared to 2013 levels asut ifsa companywide reduction in force announced in October 2@43a result of th:
reduction in force, we incurred approximately $illion in severance expenses in 20

(6) Non-cash stock-based compensation expense reprelertdadts associated with equity awards issuedémial staff supporting our
research and development and regulatory funct

Gain (Loss) on Change in Fair Value of Derivativialilities. Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatiidilities for the year
ended December, 2013 was a gain of $47.7 milligaugea loss of $35.3 million in the prior year pdriGain (loss) on change in fair value of
derivative liabilities is comprised of the changdair value of the warrant derivative liability dthe change in fair value of the derivative
liability related to the change in control provisiassociated with the December 2012 BioPharmadingn

The warrant derivative liability is related to tbieange in fair value of warrants issued in conjiomctvith the October 2009 private
placement. In October 2009 we issued 36.1 milli@mrants at an exercise price of $1.50 and recoadktB.3 million warrant derivative
liability, representing the fair value of the wartaissued. As these warrants have been classsiedderivative liability, they are revalued at
each reporting period, with changes in fair vakeognized in the statement of operations. Thevidire of the warrant derivative liability at
December 31, 2013 was $6.9 million and we recogh&®44.2 million gain on change in fair value efidative liability for the year ended
December 31, 2013 for these warrants. The fairevafithe warrant derivative liability at Decembdr, 3012 was $54.9 million and we
recognized a $35.4 million loss on change in falue of derivative liability for the year ended Bewber 31, 2012. The change in fair value of
the warrant derivative liability is due primarily the change in the price of our common stock erdéite of valuation.

Our December 2012 financing agreement with BioPlhacontains a redemption feature whereby, upon agehaf control, we would be
required to pay $140 million, less any previougpaid amount, if the change of control occurs obefore December 31, 2013, or required to
repay $150 million, less any previously repaid anipif the change of control event occurs after@waber 31, 2013. The fair value of the
derivative liability is recalculated at each repagtperiod using a probability-weighted model inmarating management estimates for potentia
change in control, and by determining the fair eatd the debt with and without the change in cdrgrovision included. The difference
between the two fair values of the debt was detezthio be the fair value of the embedded derivafit®ecember 31, 2013, the fair value of
the derivative was determined to be $11.1 millemg at December 31, 2012, the fair value of thevditve was determined to be $14.6 milli
We recognized a gain on change in fair value oivdéve liability of $3.5 million and $0.02 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2013
2012, respectively.
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Interest Expense, ndiet interest expense for the year ended Decemhe&(3B was $33.8 million, versus $17.5 million le fprior year
period, an increase of $16.3 million, or 93.1%. Mé&trest expense for the years ended Decemb&033B,and 2012 is summarized in the table
below (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31
2013 2012
Exchangeable senior nott
Amortization of debt discount created upon allamaif proceeds to the conversion
option $12,54¢ $10,68¢
Contractual coupon intere 5,25( 5,11¢
Amortization of the discount from the underwr's discounts and offering cos 2,521 2,14
Total Exchangeable senior notes interest exp 20,31° 17,95:
Long-term dek—BioPharma financing (1
Cash intere—current 1,84: 114
Cash intere—deferrec 9,451 —
Non-cash interes 2,56¢ 23
Total lon¢-term debt interest expen 13,85¢ 137
Other interest expen: 3 2
Total interest expens 34,17¢ 18,09:
Interest income (2 (343) (544)
Total interest expense, r $33,83¢ $17,54.

(1) Cash and non-cash interest expenses relatbé BioPharma financing for the year ended Decer8be013 were $11.3 million and
$2.6 million, respectively. These amounts reflbet assumption that our Vascepa revenue levelsatilbe high enough to support
repayment to BioPharma in accordance with the negay schedule without the optional reduction whéchllowed to be elected by us if
the threshold revenue levels are not achievedtheothree months ended September 30, 2013 and Dec&t, 2013, our revenues were
below the contractual threshold amount such thatnade a cash payment of $0.8 million in Novembdr328ased on $8.4 million in
revenue recognized in the third quarter of 2013wedvill make a cash payment of $1.0 million in Relyy 2014 based on $10.1 million
in revenue recognized in the fourth quarter of 20&8ecting the calculated optional reduction amtaas opposed to the contractual
threshold payments of $2.5 million for each quéytperiod.

(2) Interest income for the year ended Decembe@13 was $0.3 million, versus $0.5 million in fhréor year period, a decrease of $0.2
million, or 40.0%. Interest income represents ineaarned on cash balanc

Other Income (Expense), n€tther income (expense), net for the year endedibleee31, 2013 was a $1.2 million expense versusé $
million expense in the prior year. Other incomep@xse), net primarily consists of losses and gain®reign exchange transactions, including
realized gains and losses on foreign exchange fdra@ntracts. We use foreign exchange forward estarto hedge against changes in
exchange rates for inventory purchases denominatedeign currency. The unrealized gains and Isgsesuch contracts are recorded within
gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatiability. As of December 31, 2013, all such contsdtad been settled. For the year
ended December 31, 2013, we recognized a realizsdf $1.1 million related to the settlement & fibreign exchange forward contracts,
which was included as a component of other incoempdnse), net. There were no foreign exchange fdra@ntracts outstanding in 2012.
Other income (expense) for the year ended DeceBthe?012 was a net expense of $0.4 million.

Benefit from (Provision for) Income Tax&enefit from (provision for) income taxes for theay ended December 31, 2013 was a $3.2
million benefit versus a $9.1 million provisiontime prior year. The current benefit relates entitelour United States subsidiary operations.
We are profitable in the United States as a
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result of intercompany transactions between outddnbtates subsidiary and our other companies2Uh8 benefit primarily relates to tax
credits for research and development activitie® 2012 provision for income taxes primarily relateshe exercise of stock options of which
the excess benefits related to the option exereisesecorded to additional-paid-in capital.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity as of December 31, 20khide cash and cash equivalents of $119.5 mill@ur. projected uses of cash include
commercialization of Vascepa for the MARINE indiocat the continued funding of the REDUCE-IT cardiseular outcomes study, working
capital and other general corporate activities. €ash flows from operating, investing and financagjvities, as reflected in the consolidated
statements of cash flows, are summarized in thewaig table (in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Cash (used in) provided b
Operating activitie: $(72.3) $(190.9) $(122.9)
Investing activities — — (14.9)
Financing activitie: 0.3 121.¢ 280.z
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equiv $(72.C $ (68.7) $ 143.¢

On December 6, 2012 we entered into a financingeagent with BioPharma. Under this agreement, wetgdato BioPharma a security
interest in future receivables and all relatedtsgh Vascepa, in exchange for $100 million recgigethe closing of the agreement which
closing occurred in December 2012. We have ag@eepay BioPharma up to $150 million of future newe and receivables. As of
December 31, 2014, the net remaining amount tepaid to BioPharma is $144.4 million. To date, @mwenues have been below the
contractual threshold amount such that each paymade has reflected the calculated optional redn@mount as opposed to the contractual
threshold payments for each quarterly period. Tagimum amount payable under the contractual thid€bo2015 is $31.6 million. The
quarterly repayments through December 31, 2014semted interest only. In accordance with the ageee with BioPharma, quarterly
differences between the calculated optional redacimounts and the repayment schedule amountesuieeduled for payment beginning in
the second quarter of 2017. Any such deferred paysneill remain subject to continued applicatiorttoé quarterly ceiling in amounts due
established by the calculated threshold based artaqly Vascepa revenues. No additional interegerse or liability is incurred as a result of
such deferred repayments. The agreement does pio¢ extil $150 million in aggregate has been rdp#@/e can prepay an amount equal to
$150 million less any previously repaid amount. dMerently estimate that Vascepa revenue levelsnatilbe high enough in each quarter to
support repayment to BioPharma in accordance Wwittsshold amounts in the repayment schedule.

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through our wholly-od/seabsidiary Corsicanto Limited, or Corsicantoriggte limited company
incorporated under the laws of Ireland, completgdizate placement of $150.0 million in aggregategpal amount of its 3.5% exchangeable
senior notes due 2032, or the 2012 Notes. The pdscere received from the January 2012 debt offexeig approximately $144.3 million, 1
of fees and transaction costs. On May 20, 2014entered into separate, privately negotiated exahaggeements with certain holders of the
2012 Notes pursuant to which Corsicanto exchandé8.8 million in aggregate principal amount of #8642 Notes for $118.7 million in
aggregate principal amount of new 3.50% May 201dhargeable Senior Notes due 2032, or the 2014 Notksving which $31.3 million in
aggregate principal amount of the 2012 Notes remaistanding with terms unchanged.

The 2012 Notes were issued pursuant to an indedaiesl as of January 9, 2012, by and among Cotsicas as guarantor, and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee. Tatesiare the senior unsecured obligations of Camiicand are guaranteed by us. The 2012
Notes bear interest at a rate of 3.5% per ani
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payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15Jalydl5 of each year, beginning on July 15, 201 fiotes mature on January 15, 2032,
unless earlier repurchased, redeemed or excha@geok. after January 19, 2017, we may elect to madee cash all or a portion of the notes
for the principal amount of the notes plus accraed unpaid interest. On each of January 19, 2@tiuaty 19, 2022 and January 19, 2027, the
holders of the notes may require that we repurchrasash the principal amount of the notes pluswant and unpaid interest. At any time prior
to January 15, 2032, upon certain circumstanceghwdircumstances include our issuing a noticeedemption to the note holders, the pric
our shares trading above 130% of the exchange, imiczertain other events defined in the note ages#, the holders of the notes may elect tc
convert the notes. The exchange rate for conveisith3.4752 ADSs per $1,000 principal amount efribtes (equivalent to an initial
exchange price of approximately $8.8125 per ADS)jext to adjustment in certain circumstancesyidicly adjustment if we pay cash
dividends. Upon exchange, the notes may be sestexlr election, subject to certain conditions;ash, ADSs or a combination of cash and
ADSs.

The 2014 Notes were issued pursuant to an indedatesl May 20, 2014 by and among Corsicanto, gsaasor, and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as trustee. The notes ar®isansecured obligations of Corsicanto and areajueed by us. The 2014 Notes ha
stated interest rate of 3.5% per year, payableasmally in arrears on January 15 and July 15 dfi gaar beginning on July 15, 2014, and
ending upon the Noteshaturity on January 15, 2032, unless earlier rdpased or redeemed by Corsicanto or exchanged byotHers. At an’
time after the issuance of the 2014 Notes and poitie close of business on the second busingsisaediately preceding January 15, 2032,
holders may exchange their 2014 Notes at theipoptf prior to January 15, 2018, a make-whole améntal change (as defined in the
Indenture) occurs or we elect to redeem the 201é9Nio connection with certain changes in tax laveach case as described in the Indentur:
and a holder elects to exchange its 2014 Notesrinaction with such make-whole fundamental chamgsextion, as the case may be, such
holder may be entitled to an increase in the exgbaate as described in the Indenture. The irekighange rate is 384.6154 ADSs per $1,000
principal amount of the 2014 Notes (equivalentrioratial exchange price of approximately $2.60 A&YS, or the Exchange Price), subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances. The exchaaigeis subject to adjustment from time to time uff@occurrence of certain events,
including, but not limited to, the payment of cabidends.

As of December 31, 2014, we had cash and cashaquots of $119.5 million, a decrease of $72.0 oiillfrom December 31, 2013. The
decrease is primarily due to net cash used in tipgractivities in support of the continued comni@lization of Vascepa and the continued
funding of REDUCE-IT less accounts receivable atitens. Cash flows from financing activities in thear ended December 31, 2014 include
a refund of $3.2 million for UK stamp duty taxesdm prior periods related to the issuance of camrstock. We have incurred annual
operating losses since our inception and, as dresihad an accumulated deficit of $970.2 millasof December 31, 2014. We believe that
our cash and cash equivalents balance of $119llmét December 31, 2014 will be sufficient to duour projected operations for at least the
next twelve months. We anticipate that quarterlyaash outflows in future periods will be variakled that net cash outflows in the first que
of 2015 will be higher than the fourth quarter 6.2 as a result of the timing of certain items|udeg interest payments and supply
purchases.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions at December 31, 2014 and the effects shiaetions are expected to have on
our liquidity and cash flows in future periods fmillions):

Payments Due by Period

2016 2018
Total 2015 to 2017 to 201¢ After 2019
Contractual Obligations
Purchase obligations ( $55.5 $15.4 $27.2 $12.€ $ —
Operating lease obligations ( 2.C 0.6 1.2 0.2 —
Interest payment obligatio—exchangeable debt ( 21.t 5.3 10.C 6.2 —
Total contractual cash obligatio $79.C $21.5 $38.F $19.2 $ —

(1) We have agreements with API suppliers whicluidee minimum purchase levels to enable us to miaitirtain exclusivity with each
respective supplier and certain agreements requaiyeshortfall in such purchase levels to be paichish. The amounts in the table above
reflect amounts potentially payable to our suppliessed on our minimum purchase obligations asgusuioh suppliers are qualified.
Each supplier is required to meet certain performeabligations and the agreements may be termirtgted in the event of non-
performance

(2) Represents operating lease costs, primarily cangisf leases for facilities in Dublin, Ireland aBédminster, NJ

(3) Represents scheduled interest payments due thelterms of the 2012 Notes and 2014 Notes, asgutimat the 2012 Notes remain
outstanding through January 19, 2017 and that@id Rlotes remain outstanding through January 189 20d they have not been
exchanged for ADSs. The above table does not tefieaepayment of the $150.0 million notes as thay be exchanged for ADS

On December 6, 2012, we entered into an agreem#nBioPharma Secured Debt Fund Il Holdings CaymBnor BioPharma. Under
this agreement, we granted to BioPharma a sedutdyest in future receivables associated with\fascepa patent rights, in exchange for $
million received at the closing of the agreemenicioccurred in December 2012. We agreed to repaltarma up to $150 million of future
revenue and receivables. As of December 31, 20&4 et remaining amount to be repaid to BioPham$d.44.4 million. To date, each
payment made has reflected the calculated optiedaiction amount as opposed to the contractuadhtiotd payments for each quarterly per
These quarterly payments are subject to a quarttendghold amount whereby, if a calculated threshohsed on quarterly Vascepa revenue
not achieved, the quarterly payment payable indhatter can at our election be reduced and wéhdélduction carried forward without inter
for payment in a future period. There is no computiog of interest as part of this agreement andepixin conjunction with a change of cont
insolvency or default, no cliff payment is schedide otherwise due. Quarterly repayments, subgettie¢ contractual threshold limitation, are
scheduled to be paid in accordance with the folhmwachedule: $10.0 million in the second quarte2a#f5 and in each of the next three
quarters, $15.0 million per quarter in each ofrib&t four quarters, and a final payment of $13.lioni scheduled for payment in May 2017.

We do not enter into financial instruments for tngdor speculative purposes. At December 31, 2@&4had no outstanding forward
exchange contracts.

In April 2013, we announced the approval by the FiiAhe sSNDAs covering two of our API suppliers,gdfiport, Inc. and BASF
(formerly Equateq Limited). In April 2014, we re&tha settlement agreement with BASF under whicleweived a refund for material
purchases of $3.0 million. The Chemport supply egrent provides access to additional API supplyithaicremental to supply from Nisshin,
our other existing FDA-approved API supplier. ThHee@port agreement includes minimum annual purcleasds enabling us to maintain
supply exclusivity. The Chemport agreement alstuhes a provision that any shortfall in the
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minimum purchase commitments is payable in casthtla® maximum amounts payable pursuant to thisigimvare reflected in the table
above. The API supply agreement with BASF termiciéte-ebruary 2014.

The 2011 supply agreement with Chemport includesmsitments for us to fund (i) certain developmemsféii) material purchases for
initial raw materials, which amount will be creditagainst future API purchases and (iii) a raw miat@urchase commitment. During the year
ended December 31, 2014, we made payments of $Bignnto Chemport. We have paid $3.1 million to BE related to development and
supply commitments through December 31, 2014. We paid $6.2 million to the Slanmhor consortiumatet! to development and supply
provisions through December 31, 2014 and during/é@s ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we mgdeepés of $0.4 million and $6.1
million, respectively, related to stability and ledical batches and advances on anticipated futeleparchases.

Concurrent with our supply agreement with Chempatered into in 2011 for the supply of API mateyifir Vascepa, we agreed to m
a non-controlling minority share equity investmemthe supplier of up to $3.3 million. We invest®tl7 million under this agreement in July
2011 and the remaining $1.6 million during 2012Skptember 2013, we entered into an equity salgparchase agreement between this
supplier and a third party in which we agreed tbaggproximately $1.3 million of our investmenttime supplier to the third party at cost. This
transaction closed in the first quarter of 2014Algust 2014, we entered into a second equityaalepurchase agreement between this
supplier and another third party in which we agreesell approximately $1.0 million of our remaigimvestment. This transaction closed in
the fourth quarter of 2014. The remaining carryamgount of $0.2 million and $3.3 million as of Ded#n 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, is
included in other long term assets and is accouotednder the cost method.

Under the 2004 share repurchase agreement withalexdmited, or Laxdale, upon approval of Vascepdhe FDA on July 26, 2012, \
were required to make a milestone payment to LaxdbE7.5 million. We made this payment in 2012 aaglitalized this Laxdale milestone
payment of $11.6 million as a component of othaglterm assets. This long-term asset is being &adrover the estimated useful life of the
intellectual property we acquired from Laxdale ar&recognized amortization expense of $0.6 mildanng each of the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Also under the Laxazieement, upon receipt of marketing approval iroe for the first indication for
Vascepa (or first indication of any product conitainAmarin Neuroscience intellectual property acegdifrom Laxdale in 2004), we must m:
an aggregate stock or cash payment to the fornaeekblders of Laxdale (at the sole option of eddh@sellers) of £7.5 million
(approximately $11.7 million at December 31, 204ditionally, upon receipt of a marketing approwathe U.S. or Europe for a further
indication of Vascepa (or further indication of asther product using Amarin Neuroscience intellatproperty), we must make an aggregate
stock or cash payment (at the sole option of efdtheosellers) of £5 million (approximately $7.8lioin at December 31, 2014) for each of the
two potential market approvals (i.e. £10 millionximum, or approximately $15.5 million at Decembér 3014).

In addition to the obligations in the table abowe,have recorded a liability of $0.4 million foraertain tax positions that have been
recorded in long-term liabilities at December 3012. We are not able to reasonably estimate iniwhiture periods these amounts will
ultimately be settled.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any special purpose entities or affidalance sheet arrangements.

Shelf Registration Statement

On March 29, 2014, the universal shelf registrastatement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-17318# we had filed with the SEC
on March 29, 2011, expired. On August 7, 2014, ieel fwith the SEC a new universal shelf registratitatement on Form $-which provide
for the offer, from time to time, of up to $300,0000 of: ordinary shares, which may be represebyefimerican Depositary Shares; prefere
shares,
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which may be represented by American Depositaryehaenior or subordinated debt securities; wisr@npurchase any of these securities;
and any combination of these securities, indiviguait as units. The addition of any newly issuedisgsecurities into the market may be
dilutive to existing stockholders and new issuariness or sales by our selling security holderdattiave an adverse effect on the price of ou
securities.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to market risks, which include chamg interest rates. We do not use derivativenfir@ instruments in our investment
portfolio, and prior to 2013 we entered into nceign exchange contracts. Our investments meetdriggit quality and diversification
standards, as specified in our investment policyDAcember 31, 2014, we recorded as a liabilityféirevalue of warrants to purchase
8.1 million shares of our common stock issued tedtors. The fair value of this warrant derivatiability is determined using the Black-
Scholes option valuation model and is thereforesisier to changes in the market price and volgtdit our common stock among other
factors. In the event of a hypothetical 10% inceciasthe market price of our common shares ($1a¥2d on the $0.98 market price of our
stock at December 31, 2014) on which the Decembg2@®14 valuation was based, the value of the dtvie liability would have increased by
$0.1 million. Such increase would have been refigets a loss on change in fair value of derivdialglity and increase in warrant
compensation expense in our statement of operations

Foreign Currency Exchange RisRur results of operations and cash flows are stibjetuctuations due to changes in the Euro, Bigrl
and Yen. The majority of cash and cash equivala@mtsthe majority of our vendor relationships ameaeinated in U.S. dollars. We therefore
believe that the risk of a significant impact o operating income from foreign currency fluctuagds not substantial. From time to time, we
maintain a small amount of our cash and cash elguitsain Euro and Pound Sterling. We purchase suppin Nisshin in Japanese Yen. As
our level of supply purchases from Nisshin increlese2013, we entered into short-term forward coeyepricing contracts to lock-in the
exchange rate on a portion of our anticipated psek denominated in Japanese Yen. All such cositnage settled as of December 31, 2013
and there were no forward currency contracts exelcint 2014.

Interest Rate RiskVe believe that we are not exposed to significargrest rate risk through market value fluctuatiohbalance sheet
items (i.e., price risk) or through changes iniie$t income or expenses (i.e., re-financing onvestment risk). Interest rate risk mainly arises
through interest bearing liabilities and assets.ilVest funds not needed for near-term operatiqgesges in diversified shaoterm investment:
consisting primarily of investment grade securitiés of December 31, 2014, the fair value of owghcand cash equivalents maturing in one
year or less was $119.5 million and represented6l6Dour cash, cash equivalents and investmentgtiortA hypothetical 50 basis poi
change in interest rates would not result in a maltdecrease or increase in the fair value ofsmaurities due to the general short-term nature
of our investment portfolio.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Our consolidated financial statements are annexdhig report beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtetiesigned to ensure that information requindektdisclosed in the reports that we
file or submit under the Securities Exchange Aci®84, as amended (the
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“Exchange Act”), is (1) recorded, processed, sunmedy and reported within the time periods spedifiethe SEC’s rules and forms and
(2) accumulated and communicated to our managefnmehiding our Principal Executive Officer and Riippal Financial Officer, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As of December 31, 2014 (the “Evaluation Dater management, with the participation of our HgatExecutive Officer and Princig
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness wf disclosure controls and procedures (as definétlies 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act). Our management recognizes that amyals and procedures, no matter how well desigmetoperated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving their objectares management necessarily applies its judgmesntdtuating the cost-benefit relationship
of possible controls and procedures. Our Prindipadcutive Officer and Principal Financial Officeave concluded based upon the evaluation
described above that, as of the Evaluation Datedisglosure controls and procedures were effeetwbe reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting for our company.
Internal control over financial reporting is defthim Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(dp(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act as a godesigne
by, or under the supervision of, our Principal Exe® Officer and Principal Financial Officer anffezted by our board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakpassurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and ttetuthose policies and procedures that:

» pertain to the maintenance of records that in realsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@aetions and disposition of our
assets

» provide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiflahstatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting princip

» provide reasonable assurance that our receipte)gehditures are being made only in accordanceawithorization of our
management and directors; ¢

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements

Because of inherent limitations, internal contmler financial reporting may not prevent or detaidstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risks that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Our management, including our Principal ExecutiyBo®r and Principal Financial Officer, has condettan evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting as of December 31, 2014. In conductinig evaluation, we used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO)/Jiternal Control-Integrated Framework (2013)

Based upon this evaluation and those criteria, gemant believes that, as of December 31, 2014intennal controls over financial
reporting were effective.

Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered pubbticounting firm, has audited our consolidatedrfmal statements and the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcegporting as of December 31, 2014. This repopieaps below.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control divwancial reporting during the fourth quarter ofl20that have materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Amarin Corporation plc

We have audited Amarin Corporation plc’s internatrol over financial reporting as of December 2114, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtiyy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@iwvay Commission (2013
framework) (the COSO criteria). Amarin Corporatjgn’s management is responsible for maintainingeffe internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecgégsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Report of
Management on Internal Controls Over Financial Répg. Our responsibility is to express an opin@nthe company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet andbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatp@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Amarin maintained, in all mateniekpects, effective internal control over financegorting as of December 31, 2014,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheet of Amarin Corporatieraplof December 31, 2014, and the related corsgetidstatements of statement of
operations, stockholders’ deficit and cash flowtfee year ended December 31, 2014 of Amarin Cotjoorglc and our report dated March 3,
2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
MetroPark, New Jersey
March 3, 2015
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Item 9B.  Other Information
Entry into Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

Our policy governing transactions in our securibgsour directors, officers and employees permitsafficers, directors and certain ot
persons to enter into trading plans complying Wtlle 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act 8418s amended. We have been advisec
that a number of our directors and employees, dictumembers of our senior management team, amdiment funds associated with such
persons, have entered into trading plans in acoolwith Rule 10b5-1 and our policy governing teati®ns in our securities. We undertake
no obligation to update or revise the informatioavided herein, including for revision or termiratiof an established trading plan.

Entry into Material Agreement

On February 26, 2015, we entered into a Developn@nhmercialization and Supply Agreement (the “D&fseement”) with
Eddingpharm (Asia) Macao Commercial Offshore Limi{gEddingpharm”) related to the development ancheeercialization of Vascepa in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (therfiory”). Under the terms of the DCS Agreemeng, gvanted to Eddingpharm an
exclusive (including as to Amarin) license withhrigo sublicense to develop and commercialize fasae the Territory for uses that are
currently commercialized and under developmentdpased on our MARINE, ANCHOR and ongoing REDUCKE:lifiical trials of Vascepa.

Under the DCS Agreement, Eddingpharm will be sotegponsible for development and commercializadictivities in the Territory and
associated expenses. We will provide developmesistasce and be responsible for supplying finished, later bulk, drug product at defined
prices under negotiated supply terms. We will reddi Vascepa manufacturing rights. We receivedrarefundable $15.0 million up-front
payment and are eligible to receive developmegyletory and sales-based milestone payments af ap tdditional $154.0 million. In
addition, Eddingpharm will pay us tiered doubleidgrcentage royalties on net sales of Vasceplaeerritory escalating to the high teens.
Eddingpharm has agreed to certain restrictionsrdégg the commercialization of competitive produglsbally and we have agreed to certain
restrictions regarding the commercialization of petitive products in the Territory.

We and Eddingpharm agreed to form a joint develagroemmittee to oversee regulatory and developmetntities for Vascepa in the
Territory in accordance with a negotiated developipdan and to form a separate joint commercidbratommittee to oversee Vascepa
commercialization activities in the Territory. Déwement costs will be paid by Eddingpharm to theeeksuch costs are incurred in connec
with the negotiated development plan or otherwiseiired by Eddingpharm. Eddingpharm will be respmagor preparing and filing
regulatory applications in all countries of the fltery at Eddingpharm’s cost with our assistandee DCS Agreement also contains customan
provisions regarding indemnification, packagingome keeping, audit rights, reporting obligatioasd representations and warranties that are
customary for an arrangement of this type.

The term of the DCS Agreement expires, on a prebygtroduct basis, upon the later of (i) the datevhich such product is no longer
covered by a valid claim under a licensed patettiénTerritory, or (ii) the twelfth (12th) annivary of the first commercial sale of such
product in Mainland China. The DCS Agreement mayebminated by either party in the event of a baptay of the other party and for
material breach, subject to customary cure perimdaddition, at any time following the third anargary of the first commercial sale of a
product in Mainland China, Eddingpharm has thetriglterminate the DCS Agreement for conveniendé twelve months’ prior notice.
Neither party may assign or transfer the DCS Agegrwithout the prior consent of the other partpvided that we may assign the D
Agreement in the event of a change of control &atisn.

The DCS Agreement will be filed as an exhibit to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three merghding March 31, 2015.
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PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

The information required by this item will be coinied in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2015 Annual General Meeting of Shareha@d&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a code of basisenduct and ethics that applies to our directdfisers and employees. There have
been no material modifications to, or waivers frahg provisions of such code. This code is avaglainl the corporate governance section of
our website (which is a subsection of the investtations section of our website) at the followadgdress: www.amarincorp.com. Any waivers
from or amendments to the code will be filed whie SEC on Form 8-K. You may also request a priotgry of the code, without charge, by
writing to us at Amarin Pharma, Inc., 1430 Routé,ZBedminster, NJ 07921, Attention: Investor Relasi

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item will be coinied in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2015 Annual General Meeting of Sharehad&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information required by this item will be cointed in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2015 Annual General Meeting of Sharehadd&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independenci

The information required by this item will be coinied in our definitive proxy statement, which vk filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2015 Annual General Meeting of Shareha@d&uch information is incorporated herein by r&fiee.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item will be cointed in our definitive proxy statement, which v filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2015 Annual General Meeting of Sharehadd&uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduli

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Association of the Company
4.1 Form of Amended and Restated Deposit
Agreement, dated as of November 4, 2011,
among the Company, Citibank, N.A., as
Depositary, and all holders from time to time of
American Depositary Receipts issued thereu
4.2 Indenture, dated as of January 9, 2012, by and
among Corsicanto Limited, the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
trustee
4.3 Indenture, dated as of May 20, 2014, by and
among Corsicanto Limited, the Company and
Wilmington Trust, National Association, as
trustee
4.4 Form of Ordinary Share certificate
4.5 Form of American Depositary Receipt
evidencing ADSs
10.1 The Company 2002 Stock Option Plan*
10.2 The Company 2011 Stock Option Plan*
10.3 Amendment No. 1 to 2011 Stock Option
Incentive Plan*
10.4 Amendment No. 2 to 2011 Stock Option
Incentive Plan*
10.5 Amendment No. 3 to 2011 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan*
10.6 Amarin Corporation plc Management Incentive

Compensation Plan*

PART IV

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Form Date

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, File No. O- August 8, 2013
21392, as Exhibit 3.

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 29, 2012
ended December 31, 2011, File Nd21892, a
Exhibit 4.1

Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 9, January 10, 2012
2012, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit 4.1

Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, May 21, 2014
2014, File No. 000-21392, as Exhibit 4.1

Annual Report on Form 2B-for the year ende  April 24, 2003
December 31, 2002, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 2.4

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 29, 2012
ended December 31, 2011, File Nd21B92, a
Exhibit 4.4

Annual Report on Form 2B-for the year end¢ ~ March 5, 2007
December 31, 2006, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 4.17

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period August 9, 2011
ended June 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.4

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly  August 8, 2008
period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
as Exhibit 10.:

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly  August 8, 2008
period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
as Exhibit 10.z

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year February 28, 2012
ended December 31, 2012, File Nd21B892, a
Exhibit 10.5

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year March 16, 2011
ended December 31, 2010, File N&2IB92, a
Exhibit 10.44
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Exhibit

Number

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award AgreementAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.3
Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
Agreement December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.4

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.5
Letter Agreement dated August 1, 2008 with Pe  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
Soni* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.20
Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2009 with DrRegistration Statement on Form F-1, File No.  December 14, 2009
Declan Doogan’ 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C
Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2009 with  Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. December 14, 2009
Joseph S. Zakrzewsk 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C
Letter Agreement dated October 16, 2009 with  Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. = December 14, 2009
Thomas G. Lynch: 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C

Letter Agreement, dated December 2, 2009, amorginual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
the Company, Sunninghill Limited, Michael WalshDecember 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as
and Simon Kuke Exhibit 10.35

Letter Agreement dated December 9, 2009 with Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. December 14, 2009
Thomas G. Lynch, Alan Cooke and Tom Mah 333-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C

Letter Agreement, dated August 16, 2010, betweefinnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011

the Company and Colin Stewart* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.39
Letter Agreement, dated November 15, 2010, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
between the Company and John F. Thero* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.42
Letter Agreement dated March 1, 2010 with Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
Frederick W. Ahlholm* December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.46
Letter Agreement dated January 28, 2011 with  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period May 10, 2011
Huff* ended March 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.1
Letter Agreement with Joseph Kennedy, dated  Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
December 13, 2011 2011, FileNo. (-21392,as Exhibit 10.t

91



Table of Contents

Exhibit

Number

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

Description

Letter Agreement with Stuart Sedlack, dated
December 23, 2011

Letter Agreement with John Thero, dated
December 23, 2011

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Form Date

Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
2011, FileNo. C-21392,as Exhibit 10.:

Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
2011, FileNo. C-21392,as Exhibit 10.]

Letter Agreement with Paul Huff, dated DecemberCurrent Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011

23, 2011*

Letter Agreement with Paresh Soni, dated
December 23, 2011

Letter Agreement with Steve Ketchum, dated
February 8, 2012

2011 Long Term Incentive Award with Joseph
Kennedy dated December 16, 20:

2012 Long Term Incentive Award with Steven
Ketchum dated March 1, 201,

2011, FileNo. (-21392,as Exhibit 10.z

Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23December 23, 2011
2011, FileNo. (-21392,as Exhibit 10.¢

Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 16, February 16, 2012
2012, File No. -21392, as Exhibit 10.

Form S-8, File No. 333-180180, as Exhibit 4.1 March 16, 2012

Form S-8, File No. 333-180180, as Exhibit 4.2 March 16, 2012

Compromise Agreement, dated October 16, 2009 Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009

between the Company and Alan Cooke

Warrant Agreement, dated October 16, 2009,
between the Company and Thomas G. Lynch*

December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 4.95

Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 4.96

Employment Agreement dated November 5, 2009Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No. December 14, 2009

with John F. Thero

33:-163704, as Exhibit 4.1C

Compromise Agreement dated December 10, 200Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 14, 2009

with Tom Maher*

Transitional Employment Agreement, dated Au
16, 2010, between the Company and Declan
Doogan*

Resignation and Release Agreement, dated
November 9, 2010, between the Company
Colin Stewart*

K, File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 99.

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.38

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.41

Employment Agreement, effective December 31, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011

2010, between the Company and Joseph S.
Zakrzewski*

December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.43
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Exhibit

Number

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Consulting Agreement, dated November 10, 2010Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
between the Company and Joseph S. ZakrzewskiBDecember 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as

Exhibit 10.45
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 20, October 20, 2011
with Joe Zakrzewski, dated October 20, 20 2011, File No. -21392, as Exhibit 10.

Stuart Sedlack offer letter, dated August 1, 2007* Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period November 8, 201
ended September 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Exhibit 10.1

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated March 14, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended April 24, 2003
2003, between F. Hoffmann-La Roche Limited, December 31, 2002, File No. 0-21392, as
Hoffmanr-La Roche Inc., and the Compa Exhibit 4.22

Share Purchase Agreement, dated October 8, 200Registration Statement on Form F-3, File No. December 20, 2004
between the Company, Vida Capital Partners 333-121431, as Exhibit 4.24
Limited and the Vendors named ther

Agreement, dated January 18, 2007, between  Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008

Neurostat Pharmaceuticals Inc., Ame December 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as

Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited, the Company anéxhibit 4.62

Mr. Tim Lynch

Development and License Agreement dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008

March 6, 2007 between Amarin Pharmaceuticals December 31, 2007, File No. 0-21392, as
Ireland Limited and Elan Pharma International Exhibit 4.67
Limited 11

Termination and Assignment Agreement, dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
July 21, 2009 between Elan Pharma International December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as

Limited and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Exhibit 4.90

Limited T+

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated June 1, 2007Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
between the Company and the Purchasers namedecember 31, 2007,
therein File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 4.6

Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreement foReport of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 17, 2007
U.S. Purchasers, dated December 4, 2007, betweknFile No. 0-21392, as
the Company and the Purchasers named th Exhibit 99.5

Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreement foReport of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 17, 2007
Non-U.S. Purchasers, dated December 4, 2007, K, File No. 0-21392, as

between the Company and the Purchasers namedexhibit 99.6

therein
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Exhibit

Number

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Form of Debt Securities Purchase Agreement, ( Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-December 17, 2007
December 4, 2007, between the Company and th&, File No. 0-21392, as
Purchasers named ther Exhibit 99.7

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated December 5, Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-January 28, 2008
2007, between the Company, the selling K, File No. 0-21392, as

shareholders of Ester Neurosciences Limited, Est&xhibit 99.1

Neurosciences Limited and Medica Il Managen

L.P. Tt
Letter Agreement, dated December 6, 2007, Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed on Form 6-February 1, 2008
between the Company and the Sellers’ K, File No. 0-21392, as

Representative of the selling shareholders of EsteExhibit 99.1
Neurosciences Limite

Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement,Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
dated April 7, 2008, between the Company and December 31, 2007,
Medica Il Management L.f File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 4.7

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 12, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
2008, among the Company and the Purchasers December 31, 2008,
named therei File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 4.8

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 19, 2008
13, 2008, between the Company and the Purch December 31, 2007,

named therein File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 4.8
Amendment and Waiver Agreement, dated May Annual Report on Form 2BfA for the year ende December 4, 2009
2009, between Ester Neurosciences Limited, December 31, 2008,

Medica Il Management L.P. and the Compan File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 4.8

Bridge Loan Agreement, dated July 31, 2009 Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
between the Company and the Lenders identified December 31, 2008,
therein File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 4.9

Amendment No. 1 to Bridge Loan Agreement,  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
dated September 30, 2009, between the Companpecember 31, 2010,
and the Lenders identified there File No. (-21392, as Exhibit 10.2

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated  Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
October 12, 2009 between the Company and the December 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as
Purchasers named ther Exhibit 4.94

Amendment No. 1, dated December 2, 2009, to Registration Statement on Form F-1, File No.  December 14, 2009
Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 12333-163704, as Exhibit 4.105

2009 between the Company and the Purchasers

named thereil
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Exhibit

Number

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Master Services Agreement, dated September 29Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
2009, between Medpace Inc. and Amarin PharmaDecember 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Inc. and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limi 4.92

Amendment Agreement dated October 12, 2009, #thnnual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended October 22, 2009
the Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreemeribecember 31, 2008, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

dated May 13, 2008 between the Company and th&97

Purchasers named ther:

Management Rights Deed of Agreement dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended June 25, 2010
October 16, 2009 by and among the Company anBecember 31, 2009, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Purchasers named thert 4.100

Supply Agreement, dated November 1, 2010, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 16, 2011
between Nisshin Pharma Inc. and Amarin December 31, 2010, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit
Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited 10.40

API Commercial Supply Agreement, dated May Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period August 9, 2011
2011, between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland ended June 30, 2011, File No20392, as Exhib
Ltd. and Chemport Inc. 1 10.2

Amendment to APl Commercial Supply Agreenr  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
by and between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as

Ltd and Chemport Inc., dated April 4, 2012 Exhibit 10.6
Second Amendment to APl Commercial Supply Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly November 8, 201
Agreement by and between Amarin period ended September 30, 2012, File No. 0-

Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd. and Chemport Inc., 21392, as Exhibit 10.1
dated July 19, 2012 1

API Commercial Supply Agreement, dated May Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period August 9, 2011
2011, between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland ended June 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Ltd. and Equateq Limitedt Exhibit 10.1

Amendment to API Commercial Supply Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
Agreement, dated October 19, 2011, between  December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd. and Equateql0.51

Limitedt+

Second Amendment to APl Supply Agreement by Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly May 5, 2012
and between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltdperiod ended March 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
and Equateq Limited dated January 9, 201 as Exhibit 10.?
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Exhibit

Number

10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71

10.72

10.73

10.74

10.75

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Third Amendment to APl Supply Agreement by  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly May 5, 2012
and between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltdperiod ended March 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392,
and Equateq Limited dated May 7, 2012 as Exhibit 10.2

Irrevocable License Agreement dated as of April Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period  August 9, 2011
11, 2011, as amended by the First Amendment toended June 30, 2011, File No20392, as Exhib

Irrevocable License Agreement dated as of May 910.3

2011, each by Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland

and Bedminster 2 Funding, LL

Second Amendment to Irrevocable License Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
Agreement, by and between Bedminster 2 Func period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as

LLC and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd.,  Exhibit 10.4

dated April 25, 201.

Third Amendment to Irrevocable License Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
Agreement by and between Bedminster 2 Fundingeriod ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as

LLC and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd.,  Exhibit 10.5

dated July 17, 201

Fourth Amendment to Irrevocable License Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 28, 2012
Agreement by and between Bedminster 2 Fundind)ecember 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

LLC and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd.,, 10.71

dated December 15, 20

Online Office Agreement dated as of Septembe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period November 8, 201
2011 by Amarin Corporation plc and Regus CME ended September 30, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as
Ireland Ltd. Exhibit 10.2

Lease Agreement, dated January 22, 2007, bet Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 5, 2007
the Company, Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland December 31, 2006, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Limited and Mr. David Colgan, Mr. Philip 4.71
Monaghan, Mr. Finian McDonnell and Mr. Patrick
Ryan

Lease Agreement dated May 8, 2013, by and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period May 9, 2013
between Amarin Pharma, Inc. and Bedminster 2 ended March 31, 2013, File No. 0-21392, as
Funding, LLC. Exhibit 10.1

Lease Agreement dated November 28, 2011, b  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 29, 2012
Company, 534 East Middle Turnpike, LLC, Peter December 31, 2011, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Jay Alter, as Trustee of the Leon C. Lech 10.61

Irrevocable Trust under Declaration of Trust dated

October 14, 1980 and Ferndale Realty, L
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Exhibit

Number

10.76

10.77

10.78

10.79

10.80

10.81

141

16.1

21.1
23.1

23.2

311

Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Description Form Date

Sublease Agreement by and among Advance F  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly ~ August 8, 2008
Management, Inc., Bedminster 2 Funding, LLC period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as
Amarin Pharma Inc., dated April 25, 20 Exhibit 10.3

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated December &nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 28, 2012
2012, by and between Amarin Corporation plc, December 31, 2012, File No. 0-21392, as Exhibit

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited and 10.76

BioPharma Secured Debt Fund Il Holdings

Cayman LPt-

Co-Promotion Agreement dated March 31, 2014, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly May 9, 2014

by and among the Company and Kowa period ended March 31, 2014, File No. 0-21392,

Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. as Exhibit 10.?

Form of Amendment to October 2009 Form of ~ Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 16, October 16, 2014
Warrant 2014, File No. -21392, as Exhibit 10.

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement by and Filed herewith
between Amarin Pharma, Inc. and Bedminster 2
Funding, LLC, dated January 23, 2(

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated MayFiled herewith
8, 2013, by and between Amarin Pharma, Inc. and
Bedminster 2 Funding, LLC, dated April 3, 2C

Code of Ethics Registration Statement on Form F-3, File No. November 10, 201
33:-170505, as Exhibit 99.

Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP to the Securities Current Report on Form 8-K, File N0.21-392, a March 6, 2014
and Exchange Commission dated March 6, 2 Exhibit 16.1

List of Subsidiarie! Filed herewitr

Consent of Independent Registered Public Filed herewith
Accounting Firm

Consent of Independent Registered Public Filed herewith
Accounting Firm

Certification of President and Chief Executive Filed herewith
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) pursuant to
Section 302 oSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Hereir
Number Description Form Date
31.2 Certification of Vice President, Finance Filed herewith

(Principal Financial Officer) pursuant to Section
302 ofSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive  Filed herewith
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Vice
President, Finance (Principal Financial Officer)
pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

101 INS XBRL Instance Documel

101 SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document

101 CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase
Document

101 DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Documer

101 LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase
Document

101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase
Document

tt Confidential treatment has been granted witheeisto portions of this exhibit pursuant to anlegagion requesting confidential treatment
under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Adi9®4. A complete copy of this exhibit, includingtfedacted terms, has been
separately filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ission.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

A MARIN C ORPORATIONP LC

By:
/s/ John F. Thero
John F. Thert
PresidentandChief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 3, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#te indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ John F. Thero President and Chief Executive Officer (Princi March 3, 2015
John F. Thert Executive Officer)

/sl Michael J. Farrell Vice President, Finance March 3, 2015
Michael J. Farrel (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Lars Ekman, M.D., Ph.D. Director March 3, 2015

Lars Ekmar
/s/ James Healy, M.D., Ph.D. Director March 3, 2015

James Healy, M.D., Ph.I

/s/ Patrick O'Sullivan Director March 3, 2015
Patrick C Sullivan

/sl Kristine Peterson Director March 3, 2015
Kristine Petersol

/s/ David Stack Director March 3, 2015
David Stack

/s/ Jan van Heek Director March 3, 2015
Jan van Hee

/sl Joseph Zakrzewski Director March 3, 2015

Joseph Zakrzews!
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Amarin Corporation plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Amarin Corporation plc as of Decemide2814, and the related consolid:
statements of statement of operations, stockhdldefiit and cash flow for the year ended Decen8ier2014. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. i@sponsibility is to express an opinion on thésarfcial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditige a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Amarin
Corporation plc at December 31, 2014, and the difaed results of its operations and its cash §léor the year ended December 31, 2014, i
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountinigciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Amarin
Corporation plc’s internal control over financiaporting as of December 31, 2014, based on crigstablished in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (2013 frantk)y@nd our report dated
March 3, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinionetbier

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
MetroPark, New Jersey
March 3, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Amarin Corporation plc
Dublin, Ireland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Amarin Corporation plc and subsidigties “Company”as of December 3
2013, and the related consolidated statementsarftipns, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flowsdach of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2013. These consolidated financit@rsents are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the consolidated financékstents based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditigges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of Amarin Corporation plc
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013, ancethats of their operations and their cash flowsefach of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2013, in conformity with accountinpgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
February 27, 2014
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Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable, n
Inventory, curren
Deferred tax asse
Other current asse
Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, |
Inventory, lon-term

Deferred tax asse

Other nor-current asset
Intangible asset, ni

TOTAL ASSETS

A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' DEFICIT

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of lon-term debt
Warrant derivative liability
Deferred revenu

Accrued expenses and other current liabili

Total current liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities:

Exchangeable senior notes, net of disc¢

Long-term debt
Long-term debt derivative liabilitie
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' Deficit:

Common stock, £0.50 par value, unlimited authoride@d,610,451 issued, 174,590,372 outstanding at

December 31, 2014; 172,691,063 issued, 172,67@3a84anding at December 31, 2(

Additional paic-in capital

Treasury stock; 20,079 shares at December 31, 20d201:

Accumulated defici
Total stockholder deficit

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' DEFICIT

See the notes to the consolidated financial stateane
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As of
December 31,

2014 2013
$ 119,53¢ $ 191,51
60C 1,00(
7,84% 3,64¢
13,73 21,20¢
934 471
2,63: 1,56:
145,28 219,40:
381 57¢
— 5,48:
12,55¢ 11,94«
2,82¢ 4,36(
10,06: 10,70¢
$171,10° $ 252,47t
$ 8,52t $ 6,37
15,39« 12,97
11¢ 6,89¢
— 1,70z
16,26¢ 9,59/
40,30¢ 37,54(
121,84t 149,31°
89,61 87,71
7,40( 11,10(
38€ 65¢
259,55! 286,33
143,11 141,47
738,89( 738,75¢
(217) (217)
(970,23)) (913,870
(88,445 (33,856
$171,10° $ 252,47t
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Product revenues, net
Less: Cost of goods sa
Gross margir
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati

Research and developmt

Total operating expens

Operating los!
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of derivatisabilities
Gain on extinguishment of de
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Other income (expense), r
Loss from operations before ta
Benefit from (provision for) income tax
Net loss

Loss per share
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average share
Basic
Diluted

See the notes to the consolidated financial statesne
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Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

$ 54,20 $ 26,35. $ —
20,48¢ 11,91: —
33,71i 14,43¢ —
79,34¢ 123,79! 57,79¢
50,32¢ 72,75( 58,95¢

129,67 196,54! 116,75(
(95,955 (182,100 (116,750

13,47: 47,71 (35,34/)
38,03« — —
(18,579 (34,179 (18,09

96 342 544
3,721 (1,189 (427)
(59,20)  (169,42) (170,06
2,831 3,19/ (9,116)

$(56,36) $(166,22) $(179,18))

$ (039 $ (109 $ (129
$ (030 $ (129 $ (129

173,71¢ 161,02. 144,01
173,82: 167,071 144,01
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(in thousands, except share amounts)

At January 1, 2012

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Vesting of restricted stock uni

Conversion option contained in exchangeable r

Tax benefits realized from stc-based compensatic

Transfer of fair value of warrants exercised from
liabilities to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

At December 31, 2012

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Stock issued in July financir

Vesting of restricted stock uni

Tax provision on stoc-based compensatic

Transfer of fair value of warrants exercised from
liabilities to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Net loss

At December 31, 2013

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Reacquisition of conversion option in convertibteas

Tax provision on stoc-based compensatic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Refund of equity issuance co:

Net loss

At December 31, 201+

Total

Additional Treasury Accumulated Stockholders’
Common Common Paid-in
Shares Stock Capital Stock Deficit Deficit
135,832,54  $113,32. $449,39. $ (217) $(568,459) $ (5,967
11,047,57 8,54( 8,18( — — 16,72(
3,380,41. 2,65¢ 5,54¢€ — — 8,20¢
97,39¢ 76 (76) — — —
— — 22,89¢ — — 22,89¢
— — 11,33¢ — — 11,33«
— — 103,88! — — 103,88!
3,001 1 31 — — 32
— — 18,07t — — 18,07
— — — — (179,18¢) (179,18¢)
150,360,93  $124,59° $619,26¢ $ (217) $(747,64) $ (3,99))
147,05( 11z 47 — — 16C
386,00( 292 33t — — 627
21,700,00 16,40: 104,80! 121,20t¢
93,04¢ 71 (72) - - -
— — (361) — — (361)
— — 24 — — 24
4,03z 3 24 — — 27
— — 14,68¢ — — 14,68¢
— — — — (166,22 (166,22
172,691,06  $141,47° $738,75. $ (217) $(913,87) $ (33,856
1,684,88! 1,44: 20¢ — — 1,651
234,50( 193 114 — — 307
— — (10,100 — — (10,100)
- - (2,299 - - (2,299
— — 9,022 — — 9,02:
— — 3,191 — — 3,191
— — — — (56,364 (56,364
174,610,45 $143,11: $738,89( $ (217) $(970,23) $ (88,449

See the notes to the consolidated financial stateane
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile loss to net cash useg@rating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stoclk-based compensatic
Stoclk-based compensati—warrants
Excess tax provision (benefit) from st-based award
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuances
Amortization of intangible ass
Foreign exchange loss on intangible a
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of derivatiabilities
Gain on extinguishment of de
Deferred income taxe
Change in lease liabilit
Shares issued for servic
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Other current and prepaid ass
Inventories
Other nor-current asset
Accrued interest payab
Deferred revenu
Accounts payable and other current liabilit
Net cash used in operating activit
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of equipme
Purchase of lor-term investmen
Purchase of intangible as:
Net cash used in investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net o$ation cost
Refund of equity issuance co:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, net ofstation cost
Proceeds from exercise of warrants, net of traimacbsts
Proceeds on issuance of exchangeable senior metesf transaction cos
Proceeds from lor-term debt, net of transaction co
Debt issuance cos
Excess tax (provision) benefit from st-based award
Payments under capital lea:
Net cash provided by financing activiti
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest

Income taxe:

Supplemental disclosure of r-cash items
Reclass of warrant liability to additional p-in capital

Reacquisition of conversion option in convertibteas

See the notes to the consolidated financial statesne
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Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
$(56,36) $(166,22) $(179,18))
19¢ 24¢€ 18C
9,02z 14,68¢ 18,07¢
(502) (3,709 247
2,29¢ 361 (11,33
5,86¢ 17,63: 12,85¢
64€ 64€ 26¢
— — 51¢
(13,479 (47,710 35,34«
(38,039 — —
(3,619 (3,439 (3,719
— 6 (50)
— 27 32
40¢ (1,000 —
(4,197) (3,645) —
(1,059 1,69( (1,416)
12,95¢ (5429  (21,267)
4,01 591 (1,060)
2,42( 10,45: 2,52(
(1,709 1,70: —
8,811 (7,22%) 25,67
(72,309  (190,33) (122,303
— (14) (549)
— — (1,650)
— — (12,147
— (14 (14,34
— 121,20 —
3,191 — —
307 627 8,20¢
1,651 16C 16,72(
— — 144,31
— — 99,73(
(2,480) — —
(2,299 (361) 11,33
(36) (10 (20)
334 121,62 280,28t
(71,979 (68,729  143,64(
19151 260,24 116,60:
$119,53¢ $191,51 $ 260,24
$1003: $ 609 $ 271
$ 781 $ 139¢ $ 111
$ — % 24 $103,88!
$1010( $ — $ —
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation
Nature of Business

Amarin Corporation plc (“Amarin” or the “Companyi§ a biopharmaceutical company with expertisepilscience focused on the
commercialization and development of therapeutiasprove cardiovascular health.

The Company’s lead product, Vascépa (icosapent)athgsules, is approved by the U.S. Food and Bwministration, or FDA, for use as
an adjunct to diet to reduce triglyceride leveladult patients with severe (TG 580 mg/dL) hypertriglyceridemia. Vascepa is avddah the
United States by prescription only. The Companyalpeselling and marketing Vascepa in the UnitedeStat January 2013. The Company ¢
Vascepa principally to a limited number of majoralMsalers, as well as selected regional wholesatedspecialty pharmacy providers, or
collectively, its Distributors, that in turn resascepa to retail pharmacies for subsequent rés@latients and health care providers. The
Company markets Vascepa through its sales forepmfoximately 150 sales professionals, includingsseepresentatives and their managers.
In March 2014, the Company entered into a co-pr@anagreement with Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, imder which approximately 250
Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. sales repreteasabegan to devote a substantial portion of tfirie to promoting Vascepa starting in
May 2014 in conjunction with the promotion of Kowaarmaceutical America, Inc.’s primary productyaniled statin for patients with high
cholesterol. The Company operates in one busirggaent.

The Company is also developing Vascepa for poteadiditional indications for use. In particularetompany is conducting a cardiovascular
outcomes study of Vascepa, titted REDUCE-IT (Reiducof Cardiovascular Events with EPA—Interventibmal). The REDUCE-IT study,

the results of which are currently blinded to tren{pany, is designed to evaluate the efficacy ofc@pa in reducing major cardiovascular
events in a high risk patient population on sttigrapy.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeintise Company and subsidiaries have been preperacbasis which assumes that the
Company will continue as a going concern, whichteorplates the realization of assets and the setiigfeof liabilities and commitments in t
normal course of business. The Company’s businessations are focused on the commercializationcevelopment of Vascepa, which
received approval from the FDA in 2012 and for vihilke Company commenced marketing and sales in. Z0f3consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Companytamholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany aants and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had cash andetpshalents of $119.5 million. The Company’s cditsted balance sheets also include
derivative liabilities as well as long term debtlaaxchangeable senior notes. The outstanding JaB0ap exchangeable senior notes, or the
2012 Notes, and May 2014 exchangeable senior mmtéise 2014 Notes, may be redeemed on or afteralgi9, 2017 and January 19, 2019,
respectively, at the option of the holders and itot puttable by the holders prior to these dexeept upon the occurrence of certain contin
events. The 2012 Notes are exchangeable undeinceirzumstances into cash, American Depositoryr&haor ADSs, or a combination of
cash and ADSs, at the Company’s election. The 2@ités are exchangeable under certain circumstammeADSs. Accordingly, the warrant
derivative liability, long term debt and exchandeatenior notes do not present a short term clairthe liquid assets of the Company.

The Company believes its cash and cash equivalihtse sufficient to fund its projected operatidios at least the next twelve months.
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include twmants of the Company and its wholly-owned sulbsies. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements reflectdjiisiments that, in the opinion of managementpacessary to present fairly the Company’s
financial position, results of operations and ciislvs for the periods indicated. The preparatiothef Company’s consolidated financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires managetiio make estimates and assumptions that affeaeported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets aathilities at the date of the financial statemeatsl the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Accountirignedes are based on historical experience and tahtors that are considered reasonable
under the circumstances. Estimates are used imadeiag such items as provisions for sales returglsates and incentives, chargebacks, and
other sales allowances, depreciable/amortizabds ligsset impairments, valuation allowance on defdaxes, amounts recorded for
contingencies and accruals, and valuations of dévi¥ and long-term debt instruments. Becauseefititertainties inherent in such estimates
actual results may differ from these estimates. Ag@ment periodically evaluates estimates useckiptiparation of the consolidated financial
statements for continued reasonableness. Thesedudperations for the years ended December 3Y4 8A8d 2013, respectively, are not
necessarily indicative of the results for any fatperiod.

Use of Forecasted Financial Information in Accoumtp Estimates

The use of forecasted financial information is ir#mt in many of the Comparsyaccounting estimates, including but not limiteddetermining
the estimated fair values of derivatives, debtrimaents and intangible assets, and evaluatingdbd for valuation allowances for deferred tax
assets. Such forecasted financial information mprised of numerous assumptions regarding the Coypéuture revenues, cash flows, and
operational results. Management believes thairigsitial forecasts are reasonable and approprésedoupon current facts and circumstances
Because of the inherent nature of forecasts, howaeaual results may differ from these forecagksnagement regularly reviews the
information related to these forecasts and adjhstgarrying amounts of the applicable assets paisgly, if and when actual results differ
from previous estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company sells Vascepa principally to a limitedhber of major wholesalers, as well as selectgidmal wholesalers and specialty
pharmacy providers, or collectively, its Distribtgpthat in turn resell Vascepa to retail pharnmsaéie subsequent resale to patients and healtt
care providers. Patients are required to have scgption in order to purchase Vascepa. In accarelavith GAAP, the Company’s revenue
recognition policy requires that: (i) there is persive evidence that an arrangement exists betthesBompany and the Distributor,

(i) delivery has occurred, (iii) collectability ieasonably assured and (iv) the price is fixedeterminable.

The Company commenced its commercial launch itthiged States in January 2013. Prior to 2013, the@any recognized no revenue from
Vascepa sales. In accordance with GAAP, until them@any had the ability to reliably estimate retush¥ascepa from its Distributors,
revenue was recognized based on the resale of pa$oethe purposes of filling patient prescripipand not based on sales from the
Company to such Distributors. Beginning in Janui¥4, the Company concluded that it had develop#ttient history such that it can
reliably estimate returns and as a result, begaedognize revenue based on sales to its Distribuidie change in revenue recognition
methodology resulted in the recognition of previgueferred revenue. At
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December 31, 2013, the Company had deferred appately $1.7 million in amounts billed to Distribusathat was not recognized as revenue
This change in revenue recognition methodologyltegun the recognition of such deferred revenuethé three months ended March 31,
2014.

The Company has contracts with its primary Distidlosl and delivery occurs when a Distributor receiVascepa. The Company evaluates the
creditworthiness of each of its Distributors toatatine whether revenues can be recognized upovedglisubject to satisfaction of the other
requirements, or whether recognition is requirebddalelayed until receipt of payment or when tragpct is utilized. In order to conclude that
the price is fixed or determinable, the Companytrbesable to (i) calculate its gross product reesniiom the sales to Distributors and

(ii) reasonably estimate its net product reventibs. Company calculates gross product revenues loastite wholesale acquisition cost that
the Company charges its Distributors for Vascepe Company estimates its net product revenues dyctiag from its gross product
revenues (a) trade allowances, such as invoiceuliss for prompt payment and distributor fees gt)mated government and private payor
rebates, chargebacks and discounts, such as Mgdiaibursements, (c) reserves for expected praétitns and (d) estimated costs of
incentives offered to certain indirect customens|uding patients.

Trade AllowancesThe Company generally provides invoice discount¥ascepa sales to its Distributors for prompt paynaad
pays fees for distribution services, such as feesdrtain data that Distributors provide to tharfpany. The payment terms for sales to
Distributors generally include a 2% discount foyipent within 30 days while the fees for distributigervices are based on contractual
rates agreed with the respective Distributors. Basethe Company’s judgment and experience, thepg@aomexpects its Distributors to
earn these discounts and fees, and deducts thenfiolint of these discounts and fees from its gsosduct revenues and accounts
receivable at the time such revenues are recognized

Rebates, Chargebacks and Discoufitse Company contracts with Medicaid, other goveminagencies and various private
organizations, or collectively, Third-party Payass,that Vascepa will be eligible for purchasedmypartial or full reimbursement from,
such Third-party Payors. The Company estimateseahates, chargebacks and discounts it will protadehird-party Payors and deducts
these estimated amounts from its gross produchtmseat the time the revenues are recognized. dhgany estimates the rebates,
chargebacks and discounts that it will provide hird-party Payors based upon (i) the Company’sreatg with these Thirgarty Payors
(i) the government-mandated discounts applicabigovernment-funded programs, (iii) informationaibed from the Company’s
Distributors and (iv) information obtained from ettthird parties regarding the payor mix for Vascep

Product ReturnsThe Company'’s Distributors have the right to retunopened unprescribed Vascepa during the 18-npmrthd
beginning six months prior to the labeled expinatilate and ending twelve months after the labetpdaion date. The expiration date
for Vascepa is three years after it has been cteénto capsule form, which is the last step mhanufacturing process for Vascepa
generally occurs within a few months before Vasdspielivered to Distributors. As of December 3212, the Company had experien
a de minimis quantity of product returns. The Compestimates future product returns on sales ot¥fas based on: (i) data provided to
the Company by its Distributors (including weekéyporting of Distributors’ sales and inventory hbidDistributors that provided the
Company with visibility into the distribution chaginn order to determine what quantities were $olcetail pharmacies and other
providers), (ii) information provided to the Companom retail pharmacies, (iii) data provided te tGompany by a third party data
provider which collects and publishes prescriptilata, and other third parties, (iv) historical istiy information regarding return rates
for similar pharmaceutical products, (v) the estedaemaining shelf life of Vascepa previously gleip and currently being shipped to
Distributors and (vi) contractual agreements ingghtb limit the amount of inventory maintained hg Company’s Distributors.

Other IncentivesOther incentives that the Company offers to indicerstomers include co-pay mitigation rebates mlediby the
Company to commercially insured patients who haxesage for Vascepa and who reside in states #ratipco-pay mitigation
programs. The Company’s co-pay mitigation progranmiended to reduce each participating patiergitign of the financial
responsibility for
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Vascepa's purchase price to a specified dollar axhd@ased upon the terms of the program and infoomaegarding programs provided
for similar specialty pharmaceutical products, @wnpany estimates the average co-pay mitigatioruats@and the percentage of
patients that it expects to participate in the psrogin order to establish its accruals for co-patygation rebates and deducts these
estimated amounts from its gross product revenutredime the revenues are recognized. The Comadjugts its accruals for co-pay
mitigation rebates based on actual redemptioniactwvd estimates regarding the portion of issumgay mitigation rebates that it
estimates will be redeemed. In addition, as isaaaty prior to the launch of new drugs, the Companoyided certain of its Distributors
with financial incentives to begin stocking Vascepir to the Company’s commercial launch of Vasceporder to ensure that Vascepa
was readily available to fill patient prescriptiamgon launch. Such incentives were only offeregharchases of initial launch quantities
Vascepa stocked by Distributors in January 2012. aihount of these financial incentives was recolgethe Company as a reduction to
revenues on a pro-rata basis for each of the Batibject to such financial incentives. The Compastimates that all of these initial
launch quantities stocked by its primary Distrilyatm January 2013 were resold by such Distribypoier to December 31, 2013.

The following table summarizes activity in eacltleé net product revenue allowance and reserve @asglescribed above for the years er

December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

Trade
Allowances
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 1,071
Provision related to current period se 8,151
Provision related to prior period sa (29)
Credits/payments made for current period s (5,950
Credits/payments made for prior period s: (1,049
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 2,205

Trade
Allowances

Balance at January 1, 201. $ —

Provision related to current period and deferrdels: 4,17¢
Credits/payments made for current period and dederr

sales (3,109

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 1,077

Rebates,
Chargebacks
and Discount:

$ 1,13
12,75:
(80)

(9,149
(1,057)

$ 3,61

Rebates,
Chargebacks
and Discounts

$ —

4,287
(3,145
$ 1,137

Product
Other
Returns Incentives
$ 72 $ 18¢
397 11,15
12 (32)
— (10,339
— (1817)
$ 481 $ 79
Product
Other
Returns Incentives
$ — $ —
72 3,11«
— (2,925
$ 72 $ 18¢

Total
$ 2,46¢
32,46(
(12€)
(25,437
(2,280
$ 7,09(

Total
$ —
11,64¢

(9,177
$ 2,46¢

The following table summarizes product revenue gaczed and deferred during the years ended Dece®ih@014 and 2013 (in thousands):

Product revenue recognized, net
Deferred product revent
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December 31, 201

54,20:

54,20

December 31, 201

$

$ 28,05¢

26,35!
1,702
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In conjunction with the Company’s recognition arededral of product revenues, the Company expenseaapitalized the associated cost of
goods, as follows, during the years ended Dece®be2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Cost of goods sold expensed $ 20,48¢ $ 11,91:
Finished goods inventory held by oth — 627
$ 20,48¢ $ 12,53¢

Distribution Costs

The Company records distribution costs relatedippsng product to its customers, primarily throubk use of common carriers or external
distribution services, in cost of goods sold.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, depag#itbanks and short term highly liquid money meriastruments with remaining maturiti
at the date of purchase of 90 days or less. Resdr@ash represents cash and cash equivalenteplézlguarantee repayment of certain
expenses which may be incurred for business ttawéér corporate credit cards held by employees.

Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net, comprised of trade red®es, are generally due within 30 days and atedstt amounts due from customers. The
Company does not currently maintain an allowancelémbtful accounts and has not historically exgrezed any credit losses.

The following table summarizes the impact of ac¢suaceivable reserves on the gross trade accoesdi/able balances as of December 31,
2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Gross trade accounts receivable $ 10,21t $ 4,812
Trade allowance (2,209 (1,149
Chargeback (166 (29
Accounts receivable, n $ 7,842 $ 3,64¢

Inventory

The Company states inventories at the lower of epsatarket value. Cost is determined based on botish using the average cost method. Ar
allowance is established when management deterrinesertain inventories may not be saleablenMéntory cost exceeds expected market
value due to obsolescence, damage or quantitiescess of expected demand, the Company will rethecearrying value of such inventory to
market value. The Company received FDA approvaViascepa on July 26, 2012 and after that date beggitalizing inventory purchases of
saleable product from approved suppliers. Untih&h supplier is approved, all Vascepa API purchdseah such supplier is included as a
component of research and development expense. $NIDA approval of each additional supplier, the @amy capitalizes subsequent
Vascepa API purchases from such supplier as innerffurchases of Vascepa API received and expdrefede such regulatory approvals is
not subsequently capitalized, and all such purchase quarantined and not used for commercial gupgll such time as the sNDA for the
supplier that produced the API is approved. The gamy expenses inventory identified for use as ntenggesamples when they are packaged.
The average cost reflects the actual purchase pfigascepa API, as well as a portion of API cati zero cost for material which was
purchased prior to FDA approval of Vascepa or waslpased prior to the SNDA approval of the Compamsyppliers.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company provides for depreciation and amoitinaising the straight-line method by charges trafions in amounts that depreciate the
cost of the fixed asset over its estimated usétil The estimated useful lives, by asset clas#ifin, are as follows:

Asset Classification Useful Lives

Computer equipment and softw 3- 5 years

Furniture and fixture 5 years

Leasehold Improvemen Lesser of useful life or lease te

Upon retirement or sale of assets, the cost od$isets disposed and the related accumulated dejpza@re removed from the balance sheet
and any resulting gain or loss is credited or ezpdrto operations. Repairs and maintenance c@stxpensed as incurred.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impant whenever events or changes in circumstandésaie that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be recoverable. Recoveratiilihese assets is determined by comparing thedsted undiscounted net cash flows of the
operation to which the assets relate to their @agrgmount. If impairment is indicated, the asseeswritten down to fair value. Fair value is
determined based on discounted forecasted cash fioappraised values, depending on the natuteecdgsets.

Intangible Asset, net

Intangible assets consist of a milestone paymeadttpahe former shareholders of Laxdale Limiteldted to the 2004 acquisition of the rights

to Vascepa, which is the result of Vascepa recgiwiarketing approval for the first indication asdamortized over its estimated useful life on
a straight-line basis. See Note 9—Commitments anti@gencies for further information regarding atbbligations related to the acquisition

of Laxdale Limited.

Costs for Patent Litigation and Legal Proceedings
Costs for patent litigation or other legal proceedi are expensed as incurred and included in gelieneral and administrative expenses.

Deferred Revenue

As of December 31, 2013, deferred revenue repregeatuct shipments to Distributors for which then@any has invoiced the Distributors
but not recognized as revenue because the prodischet reported to the Company as having beendrésothe purpose of filling
prescriptions. Commencing on January 1, 2014, ttragainy recognizes revenue based on product shiprteeits Distributors and as a result,
no deferred revenue was recorded as of Decemb@034,

Research and Development Costs

The Company charges research and developmenttoagterations as incurred. Research and developaxpenses are comprised of costs
incurred by the Company in performing researchdaglopment activities, including salary and besgitock-based compensation expense;
laboratory supplies and other direct expensesractuial services, including clinical trial and pimaceutical development costs; commercial
supply investment in its drug candidates; and stftecture costs, including facilities costs andrdejation expense. In addition, research and
development costs include the costs of productlguppeived from suppliers when such receipt byGeenpany is prior to regulatory approval
of the supplier.
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Selling, General and Administrative Costs

The Company charges selling, general and admitiistreosts to operations as incurred. Selling, ggrend administrative costs include costs
of salaries, programs and infrastructure necedsatye general conduct of the Company’s businestyding those incurred as a result of the
commercialization of Vascepa in the United Stategtie MARINE indication as well as co-promotior$epayable to Kowa Pharmaceuticals

America, Inc. Also included as part of selling, geal and administrative costs is warrant relatednme from non-cash changes in fair value of
the derivative liability associated with warrargsued in October 2009 to former officers of Amavimich is recorded as compensation income

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfeethe future tax consequences of differences betwvithe carrying amounts and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and operating loss carryéwds and other attributes using enacted rates @axbe in effect when those differences
reverse. Valuation allowances are provided agaiefgrred tax assets that are not more likely tlwrionbe realized.

The Company provides reserves for potential paysneiitax to various tax authorities or does nobgeize tax benefits related to uncertain
positions and other issues. Tax benefits for uagetax positions are based on a determinationhafther a tax benefit taken by the Company
in its tax filings or positions is more likely thaot to be realized, assuming that the matter @stjon will be decided based on its technical
merits. The Company’s policy is to record inte@stl penalties in the provision for income taxes.

The Company regularly assesses the realizabilidetdrred tax assets. Changes in historical easrmpagormance and future earnings
projections, among other factors, may cause thepaosnto adjust its valuation allowance on defeteedassets, which would impact the
Company’s income tax expense in the period in whicghdetermined that these factors have changed.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative financial liabilities are recorded airf@alue, with gains and losses arising for charigdair value recognized in the statement of
operations at each period end while such instrusnarmt outstanding. If the Company issues shardis¢barge the liability, the derivative
financial liability is derecognized and common &taend additional paid-in capital are recognizedtenissuance of those shares. The warrant
are valued using a Black-Scholes option pricing ehaidie to the nature of instrument. The long teaitdedemption feature is valued using a
probability-weighted model incorporating managenestimates for potential change in control, andiégrmining the fair value of the debt
with and without the change in control provisiooluded.

If the terms of warrants that initially require tharrant to be classified as a derivative finanliéddility lapse, the derivative financial liabiiis
reclassified out of financial liabilities into eduiat its fair value on that date. The cash proseedeived from exercises of warrants are
recorded in common stock and additional paid-inteap

Loss per Share

Basic net loss per share is determined by dividieigloss by the weighted average shares of comiook sutstanding during the period.
Diluted net loss per share is determined by digjdiet loss by diluted weighted average sharesandstg. Diluted weighted average shares
reflects the dilutive effect, if any, of potentiafilutive common shares, such as common stoclogtand warrants calculated using the
treasury stock method and convertible notes usiadif-converted” method. In periods with reporteet operating losses, all common stock
options and warrants are deemed anti-dilutive siahbasic net loss per share and diluted netdesshare are equal. However, in certain
periods in which there is a gain recorded purst@tiie change in fair value of the warrant derixatiability, for diluted earnings per share
purposes, the impact of such gains is reversedhentteasury stock method is used to determinéedilearnings per share.
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The calculation of net loss and the number of shased to compute basic and diluted earnings e sbr the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

In thousands 2014 2013 2012
Net los—Dbasic $(56,369) $(166,22) $(179,18¢)
Gain on warrant derivative liabilit (6,775 (47,936 —
Net los—diluted (63,139 (214,16 (179,18,
Net loss per sha—basic $ (037 $ (10Y) $ (129
Weighted average shares outstan—basic 173,71¢ 161,02: 144,01
Effect of dilutive warrant: 10% 6,04¢ —
Weighted average shares outstan—diluted 173,82 167,07( 144,01
Net income loss per sh—diluted $ (03 $ (129 $ (129

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ari #ii following potentially dilutive securities veenot included in the computation of net
loss per share because the effect would be antirct

In thousands 2014 2013 2012

Stock options 10,67¢C  9,33C 10,89:
Restricted stock and restricted stock u 2,25¢ 19¢ 46t
Warrants — 1,70z 9,937
Exchangeable senior notes (if convert 49,21t 17,02: 17,02:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are initially recorded at fairuslwith coupon interest and amortization of dsbtidance discounts recognized in the state
of operations as interest expense each period ichvgluch instruments are outstanding. If the Compssues shares to discharge the liability,
the debt obligation is derecognized and commorksind additional paid-in capital are recognizedtamissuance of those shares. The
conversion features in both the 2012 Notes and litds qualify for the exception from derivativeeaanting in accordance with ASC 815-
40. The 2012 Notes may be settled, at the Compaligtsetion, in any combination of ADSs or cashmponversion and have been accounte
for in accordance with ASC 470-20. Under ASC 4701Be fair value of the liability component of th@12 Notes was determined and
deducted from the initial proceeds to determinepifeeeeds allocated to the conversion option, whashbeen recorded in equity. The
difference between the initial fair value of thalility component and the amount repayable was twedrover the expected term of the
instrument. The conversion feature in the 2014 blatay only be settled in ADSs upon conversion aglifeen accounted for as part of the
debt host.

The conversion options in both the 2012 Notes d@1idl2Notes continue to be evaluated on a quartadjstio determine if they still receive an
exception from derivative accounting in accordawite ASC 815-40. The 2014 Notes were recognizetinihy at fair value as part of an
extinguishment of a portion of the 2012 Notes (sether discussion in Note 8). As a result, thetdeds initially recognized at a discount of
$27.9 million. This discount will be amortized thigh interest expense over the expected term afdlte

StockBased Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is generally meastitbe grant date, based on the fair value o&thard, and is recognized as compensation
cost over the requisite service period.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to credit risk consist primarily of cashl aash equivalents and accounts receivable
The Company maintains substantially all of its castl cash equivalents in financial institutiondéaedd to be of high-credit quality.
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A significant portion of the Company’s sales arevtwlesalers in the pharmaceutical industry. Them@any monitors the creditworthiness of
customers to whom it grants credit terms and hagxmerienced any credit losses. The Company doteequire collateral or any other
security to support credit sales. The Company’'shope customers accounted for 95% and 96% of gnashict sales for the years ending
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively and repted 96% and 95% of the gross accounts receibaltd@ice as of December 31, 2014 anc
2013, respectively. The Company has not experieangdvrite-offs of its accounts receivable in tlears ended December 31, 2014 and 201

Concentration of Suppliers

The Company entered into Vascepa API supply agretswgth Nisshin Pharma, Inc., or Nisshin, in 20t02011, the Company entered into
agreements with two additional suppliers, Chemgod, or Chemport, and BASF (formerly Equateq lted) for the supply of API. In 2012,
the Company agreed to terms with a fourth API sieppd consortium of companies led by Slanmhor mhaeutical, Inc. (Slanmhor). The
Company terminated its agreement with BASF in Faly2014. While the Company has contractual freettbsource the API for Vascepa
and has entered into supply agreements with melpppliers who also rely on other third party diepp of the key raw material to
manufacture the API for Vascepa, Nisshin and Chetrquorently supply all of the Company’s API for epa. The Company cannot provide
assurance that the efforts of its contractual sappivill continue to be successful, that it wid Bble to renew such agreements or that it will b
able to enter into new agreements in the futurey. @lteration to or termination of the Company’sreat API supply, manufacturing, and
distribution agreements, its failure to enter inéwv and similar agreements, or the interruptiothefsupply of its products under such
agreements, could have a material adverse effeit$ dusiness, condition (financial and other),spects or results of operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2014, all of the Compamgt product sales were generated from API puechitem Nisshin Pharma, Inc. and Chemy
Inc.

The Company currently relies on Patheon (formedyiier Pharmacaps) for the encapsulation of Vasd@éaCompany has encapsulation
agreements with two other commercial API encapstdailhese companies have qualified their manufiactyprocesses and are capable of
manufacturing Vascepa. There can be no guararag¢ettiner suppliers with which the Company has emtéd to encapsulate API will be
qualified to manufacture the product to its speatfions or that these and any future suppliershaie the manufacturing capacity to meeting
anticipated demand for Vascepa.

Foreign Currency

All subsidiaries use the United States dollar asftimctional currency. Monetary assets and liabdidlenominated in a foreign currency are
remeasured into United States dollars at periodesatiange rates. Gains and losses from the renegasnt are included in other income
(expense), net in the consolidated statementsefatipns. For transactions settled during the apple period, gains and losses are included i
other income (expense), net in the consolidatadrstents of operations. The Company periodicallys diseeign exchange forward contracts to
hedge against changes in exchange rates for inygotiochases denominated in foreign currency. ABexfember 31, 2014, there were no
outstanding foreign exchange contracts.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are initially capitalized defarred cost and amortized to interest expensg ulse effective interest method over the
expected term of the related debt. Unamortized idsbiince costs related to extinguishment of debégensed at the time the debt is
extinguished and recorded in other income (expenst)n the consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company provides disclosure of financial asaetsfinancial liabilities that are carried at faslue based on the price that would be
received upon sale of an asset or paid to traasfiability in an orderly transaction
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between market participants at the measurement [aitevalue measurements may be classified basédeoamount of subjectivity associated
with the inputs to fair valuation of these assetd abilities using the following three levels:

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvaatiarkets for identical assets or liabilities ttet Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

Level 2—Inputs include quoted prices for similasets and liabilities in active markets, quotedgsitor identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets that are not active, inputs other thaoted prices that are observable for the assélality (i.e., interest rates, yield curves, etc.)
and inputs that are derived principally from orrobiorated by observable market data by correlatiasther means (market corroborated
inputs).

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that reflect the Conyfmastimates of the assumptions that market ppatits would use in pricing the asset or
liability. The Company develops these inputs basethe best information available, including itsrodata.

The following table presents information about @@mpany’s assets and liabilities as of DecembefB14 and 2013 that are measured at fai
value on a recurring basis and indicates the fiterhierarchy of the valuation techniques the Camyputilized to determine such fair value:

December 31, 201

In thousands Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Asset:

Cash equivalen—money market $65,15¢ $65,15¢ $— $ —

Liabilities:

Warrant derivative liability $ 11¢ $ — $— $ 11¢

Long-term debt derivative liabilitie $ 7,40( $ — $— $7,40(
December 31, 201

In thousands Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Asset:

Cash equivalen—money market $113,47: $113,47: $— $ —

Liabilities:

Warrant derivative liability $ 6,89 $ — $— $ 6,89/

Long-term debt derivative liabilit $ 11,10( $ — $— $11,10(

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalentsuats payable and accrued liabilities approximatevialue because of their short-term
nature. The carrying amounts and the estimated/&hires of debt instruments as of December 31, 20842013 are as follows:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201
Estimated
Carrying Carrying Estimated
In thousands Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Long-term debt—December 2012 financing $89,61° $81,00( $ 87,71 $ 75,70(
2012 Notes 31,26¢ 25,68¢ 149,31 106,60(
2014 Notes 90,58( 75,53 — —

The estimated fair value of the lotgrm debt pursuant to the December 2012 finanaglculated utilizing the same Level 3 inputsizgi in
valuing the related derivative liability (see Lomgsrm Debt Derivative Liabilities below). The estited fair value of the 2012 Notes and 2014
Notes is calculated based on Leve
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quoted bond prices. The carrying value of the 20&tes at December 31, 2014 and 2013 includes aditaiunt of zero and $0.7 million,
respectively, which is being amortized as non-éatdrest expense over the expected term of the R@i@s. The carrying value of the 2014
Notes at December 31, 2014 includes a debt disafu$28.2 million which is being amortized as -cash interest expense over the expected
term of the 2014 Notes. The change in the estinfaiedalues of these liabilities from December 3Q13 to December 31, 2014 is largely
related to the issuance of the 2014 Notes andubted bond prices.

Warrant Derivative Liability

The Company’s warrant derivative liability is cadiat fair value and is classified as Level 3 mfdir value hierarchy due to the use of
significant unobservable inputs. The initial faslwe of the warrant derivative liability at the ea&ff issuance in October 2009 was determin
be $48.3 million using the Black-Scholes optioruation model applying the following assumptionyrigk-free rate of 2.37%, (ii) remaining
term of 5 years, (iii) no dividend yield, (iv) vaility of 119%, and (v) the stock price on the dateneasurement. Effective October 16, 2014,
the Company entered into a series of warrant amentlagreements (collectively, the “Warrant Amendisigrnin order to extend the expirati
date of certain outstanding warrants (collectivétg, “Warrants”) from its previously scheduled eatibn date of October 16, 2014 to the clos
of business on February 27, 2015.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value of the wardativative liability was determined to be $6.9lmi using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model applying the following assumptiofisrisk-free rate of 0.12%, (ii) remaining terrh@8 years, (iii) no dividend yield

(iv) volatility of 99%, and (v) the stock price ¢ime date of measurement. For the year ended Dece&8hp2013, the $47.9 million decrease in
the fair value of the warrants, net of exercisess wecognized as: (i) a $44.2 million gain on clegingfair value of the remaining derivative
liability and (ii) $3.7 million in compensation inome for change in fair value of warrants issuefbtmer employees. Both amounts are
included within the consolidated statement of ofi@na for the year ended December 31, 2013. Asexfehber 31, 2014, the fair value of the
warrant derivative liability was determined to ¥ million using the Black-Scholes option valuatgpplying the following assumptions:

(i) risk-free rate of 0.04%, (ii) remaining term @fL6 years, (iii) no dividend yield (iv) volatiitof 79%, and (v) the stock price on the date of
measurement. The $6.8 million decrease in thev&dire of the warrants during the year was recoghée (i) a $6.3 million gain on change in
fair value of the remaining derivative liability @iii) $0.5 million in compensation income for clgann fair value of warrants issued to former
employees. Both amounts are included within thesolidated statement of operations for the year @ftEcember 31, 2014.

The fair value of this warrant liability is detemmeid using the Black-Scholes option valuation metud is therefore sensitive to changes in th
market price and volatility of the Compasy¢common stock, among other factors. In the eveathypothetical 10% increase in the market |

of the Company’s common shares ($1.08 based o®®8 market price of the Company’s stock at Deaarii, 2014) on which the
December 31, 2014 valuation was based, the valtieealerivative liability would have increased W Bmillion. Such increase would have
been reflected as a loss on change in fair valukeo¥ative liabilities and as an increase in watr@mpensation expense within the statement
of operations. Significant increases (decreasesjisnnput in isolation would result in a signdiatly higher (lower) fair value asset
measurement.

Long-Term Debt Derivative Liabilities

The Company’s December 2012 financing agreememht BiaPharma Secured Debt Fund Il Holdings Caymarfdistussed in Note 8 below)
contains a redemption feature whereby, upon a ehahgontrol, the Company would have been requingehy $140 million, less any
previously repaid amount, if the change of contr@turred on or before December 31, 2013, or reduoeepay $150 million, less any
previously repaid amount, if the change of congna#nt occurs after December 31, 2013. The Compatgrmdined this redemption feature to
be an embedded derivative, which is carried atvaine and is classified as Level 3 in the faiueahierarchy due to the use of significant
unobservable inputs. The fair value of the embedtdivative was calculated using
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a probability-weighted model incorporating managet@stimates for potential change in control, apdiétermining the fair value of the debt
with and without the change in control provisioolirded. The difference between the two was detexdhio be the fair value of the embedded
derivative. At December 31, 2014, the fair value¢hef derivative was determined to be $4.8 millimd the debt was valued by comparing «
issues of similar companies with (i) remaining terofi between 2.3 and 3.6 years, (ii) coupon rafteetveen 9.8% and 10.8% and (iii) market
yields of between 10.0% and 16.8%. The Companygrazed a $6.3 million gain on change in fair vatifi@erivative liability for the yea

ended December 31, 2014. At December 31, 2013athealue of the derivative was determined to tb&.$ million, and the debt was valued
by comparing debt issues of similar companies (jttremaining terms of between 3.3 and 6.6 yedi)s;qupon rates of between 9.9% and
12.5% and (iii) market yields of between 9.0% a@dt2. The Company recognized a $3.5 million gairtlwenge in fair value of derivative
liability for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Company’s 2014 Notes contain a redemption featthereby, upon occurrence of a change in corntrelCompany would be required to
repurchase the notes. The Company determinedetiémption feature to be an embedded derivativajniag bifurcation in accordance with
ASC 815. The derivative is carried at fair value #classified as Level 3 in the fair value hiergrdue to the use of significant unobservable
inputs. The fair value of the embedded derivatias walculated using a probability-weighted modebiporating management estimates of th
probability of a change in control occurring, anddetermining the fair value of the debt with anithaut the change in control provision
included. The difference between the two was ddtexdhto be the fair value of the embedded derieatht December 31, 2014, the fair value
of the derivative was determined to be $2.6 milliand the debt was valued by using (i) the estichegenaining term of the notes, (ii) a bond
yield of 24.8%, (iii) a ris-free interest rate of 2.7% and (iv) volatility 82.0%. The Company recognized a $0.9 million gairtloange in fair
value of derivative liability for the year endedd@enber 31, 2014.

Any changes in the assumptions used to value thieadige liabilities, including the probability af change in control, could result in a materia
change to the carrying value of such liabilities.

The change in the fair value of derivative liaBit is as follows (in thousands):

Long-Term
October Debt Derivative
2009

Warrants Liabilities Totals
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 54,85¢ $ 14,57 $69,43:
Gain on change in fair value of derivative lialdg (44,23) (3,477) (47,710
Compensation income for change in fair value ofreatis issued to former employe (3,709 — (3,709
Transfers to equit (24) — (29
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 6,89/ $  11,10( $ 17,99
Record initial fair value of derivative liabilitynro2014 senior note — 3,50( 3,50(
Gain on change in fair value of derivative lialdg (6,272) (7,200 (13,477)
Compensation income for change in fair value ofrevatis issued to former employe (503) — (509)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $  11¢ $ 7,40( $ 7,51¢

Segment and Geographical Information

Operating segments are defined as componentsaitarprise about which separate financial inforarats available that is evaluated on a
regular basis by the chief operating decision-matedecision making group, in deciding how to edlte resources to an individual segment
and in assessing performance of the segment. The&uy currently operates in one business segméithws the development and
commercialization of
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Vascepa. A single management team that reportet€bmpany’s chief decision maker, who is the CBiafcutive Officer, comprehensively
manages the business. Accordingly, the Company mloieisave separately reportable segments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdgssaued by the Financial Accounting Standards ®@aarFASB, and are adopted by the
Company as of the specified effective date. The gamy considered the following recent accountingiptmcements which were not yet
adopted as of September 30, 2014:

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Rexefrom Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).”sTiimendment provides principles
for recognizing revenue for the transfer of prordigeods or services to customers with the consideréo which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or servichiss amendment will be effective for the Companysgdl year beginning January 1, 2017.
Early adoption is not permitted. The Company isentty evaluating the accounting, transition argtltisure requirements of the standard anc
cannot currently estimate the financial statememizict of adoption.

In June 2014, the FASB issued guidance for accogritir share-based payments when the terms of ardgwovide that a performance target
could be achieved after the requisite service pefitie standard states that a performance targesivare-based payment that affects vesting
and that could be achieved after the requisiteiceperiod should be accounted for as a performaandition. As such, the performance tai
should not be reflected in estimating the granedair value of the award. The Company is requiceddopt this standard in the first quarter of
fiscal 2016 and early adoption is permitted. Thésdard is not expected to have an impact on tmep@ay's consolidated financial statemer

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-1®&sPntation of Financial Statements—Going Conceisgl@sure of Uncertainties about
an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concé8ubtopic 205-40). ASU 2014-15 requires manageitoeassess an entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern by incorporating aqeheding upon certain principles that are curreimtly).S. auditing standards. Specifically,
the ASU (i) provides a definition of the term surgtal doubt, (ii) requires an evaluation everyoming period including interim periods,

(iii) provides principles for considering the miiting effect of management’s plans, (iv) requiredain disclosures when substantial doubt is
alleviated as a result of consideration of managgimelans, (v) requires an express statement #ret disclosures when substantial doubt is
not alleviated and (vi) requires an assessmerd feriod of one year after the date that the firsdustatements are issued (or available to be
issued). This standard is effective for the figedrs ending after December 15, 2016, and for drpauebds and interim periods thereafter.
Early application is permitted. The Company is ently evaluating the accounting, transition analdisure requirements of the standard and
cannot currently estimate the financial statememizict of adoption.

The Company believes that the impact of other ridgéssued but not yet adopted accounting prononneces will not have a material impact
on consolidated financial position, results of @pens, and cash flows, or do not apply to the Camy{s operations.

(3) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2014 ardlas/fo
Weighted Average

Accumulated
Remaining Useful

Gross Amortization Net Life (years)
Technology rights $11,62¢ $ (1,56)) $10,06: 15.€




Table of Contents

Amortization expense for each of the years endezkBder 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0.6 million andakided in research and development
expense. Estimated future amortization expensedoason the Company’s intangible assets as of DieeeB1, 2014 is as follows:

Year Ending December 31 Amount

2015 $ 64¢
2016 64¢€
2017 64¢€
2018 64¢€
2019 64¢€
Thereaftel 6,83:
Total $10,06:

(4)

Inventory

After approval of Vascepa on July 26, 2012 by tBFthe Company began capitalizing its purchasesatdable inventory of Vascepa from

suppliers that have been qualified by the FDA. imwees consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Raw materials, current $ 5,22t $ 4,24¢
Work in proces: 4,75 11,31¢(
Finished good 3,751 5,02¢
Finished goods inventory held by oth — 627
Total inventory, currer 13,73 21,20¢
Raw materials, lor-term 5,48z
Total inventory $ 13,73 $ 26,69

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 20&8& ompany wrote off zero and $1.8 million, respety, of inventories deemed to be
unrecoverable. In addition, as of December 31, 20112013, zero and $5.5 million, respectivelyaaf material inventory was reclassified to

long-term inventory, as it was not anticipated ¢osbld within the next twelve months based on cuirestimates.

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the follga(in thousands):

December 31

December 31

2014 2013

Leasehold improvements $ 107 $ 107
Computer equipmet 63 63
Furniture and fixture 24C 24C
Software 55¢ 55¢
96¢ 96¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (58¢) (390

Construction in progres — —
$ 381 $ 57¢

Depreciation expense for each of the years endedrbiger 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 was $0.2 million.
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(6) Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilites
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isbrad the following at December 31, 2014 and 2(h3housands):

2014 2013
Payroll and payroll-related expenses $ 3,52¢ $2,11:
Research and development expense 4,391 —
Sales and marketing accru 1,50¢ 2,922
Accrued revenue allowanc 4,71 1,21¢
All other 2,12¢ 3,34¢
$16,26¢ $9,59¢

(1) Research and development accruals are basgm diming of clinical trial activities and relat@dogress payments. As of December 31,
2013, the Company was in a prepaid position reladeslich expense

(7) Warrants and Warrant Derivative Liability

The Company had 8,087,388 warrants to purchase oconshmares outstanding at December 31, 2014 atghteei-average exercise price of
$1.50, as described below.

October 2009 Warrants Derivative Liability

On October 16, 2009, the Company completed a $70l@n private placement with both existing andwniavestors resulting in $62.3 million
in net proceeds and an additional $3.6 million flondge notes converted in conjunction with thevgi@ placement. In consideration for the
$62.3 million in net cash proceeds Amarin issued &6illion units, each unit consisting of (i) on®A (representing one ordinary share) at a
purchase price of $1.00 and (ii) a warrant witliva fear term to purchase 0.5 of an ADS at an éseqrice of $1.50 per ADS. In
consideration for the conversion of $3.6 millioncohvertible bridge notes, Amarin issued 4.0 millimits, each unit consisting of (i) one Al
(representing one ordinary share) at a purchase pfi$0.90 and (ii) a warrant with a five yeanteo purchase 0.5 of an ADS at an exercise
price of $1.50 per ADS. The total number of warsarsued in conjunction with the financing was 3%iftion.

In conjunction with the October 2009 financing, @empany issued an additional 0.9 million warrdaatthree former officers. The warrants
issued in connection with the October 2009 finaga@antained a pricing variability feature which yiaed for an increase to the exercise price
if the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar aiiisBipound adjusts such that the warrants couldXagcised at a price less than the £0.5 par
value of the common stock—that is, if the excharasde exceeded U.S. $3.00 per £1.0 sterling. Dileetgotential variable nature of the
exercise price, the warrants are not considerde iodexed to the Company’s common stock. Accotgjrige warrants do not qualify for the
exception to classify the warrants within equitylame classified as a derivative liability.

The fair value of this warrant derivative liability remeasured at each reporting period, with chairy fair value recognized in the statemer
operations. Upon exercise, the fair value of theravels exercised is remeasured and reclassified fvarrant derivative liability to additional
paid-in-capital. Although the warrants contain &ipg variability feature, the number of warrargsuable remains fixed. Therefore, the
maximum number of common shares issuable as & mdghke October 2009 private placement is 36.1ionil The change in fair value of the
warrant derivative liability is discussed in Note 2

As of December 31, 2014, October 2009 warrants iredeoutstanding to purchase up to an aggrega@ed8f,388 of the ordinary shares of
Company at $1.50 per share. In October 2014, thepaay and the holders of the remaining October 20@9ants mutually agreed to extend
the expiration date of such warrants from Octolfgr2D14 to February 27, 2015.
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July 2009 Warrants

The Company issued several warrants in July 208®@fMecember 31, 2014, there are no July 2009%antsoutstanding, while at

December 31, 2013 these warrants were classifiedjaity instruments and included in the Compangissolidated balance sheet within
additional paid-in-capital. During the year endestBmber 31, 2014, 1,684,888 of the July 2009 wenaare exercised, resulting in proceeds
to the Company of $1.7 million. During the year eddecember 31, 2013, 120,000 of the July 2009amtswere exercised, resulting in
proceeds to the Company of $0.1 million.

(8) Debt
LongTerm DebtDecember 2012 Financing

On December 6, 2012, the Company entered into eeagent with BioPharma Secured Debt Fund Il Holgli@gyman LP, or BioPharma.
Under this agreement, the Company granted to BioRda security interest in future receivables aased with the Vascepa patent rights, in
exchange for $100 million received at the closifithe agreement which occurred in December 2012.Gbmpany has agreed to repay
BioPharma up to $150 million of future revenue aeckivables. As of December 31, 2014, the remaiaingunt to be repaid to BioPharma is
$144.4 million. During the year ended December2®1l4, the Company made repayments under the agnéeifr®4.8 million to BioPharma
and an additional $1.6 million is scheduled to hilpn February 2015 for the fourth quarter of 20THese payments were calculated based c
the threshold limitation, as described below, gzospd to the scheduled quarterly repayments. Amtditiquarterly repayments, subject to the
threshold limitation, are scheduled to be paidehger in accordance with the following schedutd.® million in the second quarter of 2015
and in each of the next three quarters, $15.0aniltier quarter in each of the next four quarterd,afinal payment of $13.0 million scheduled
for payment in May 2017. All such payments reddmeremainder of the $150 million in aggregate pays & BioPharma. These quarterly
payments are subject to a quarterly threshold atmehareby, if a calculated threshold, based ontqusrVascepa revenues, is not achieved,
the quarterly payment payable in that quarter ¢aheaCompany'’s election be reduced and with tdecgon carried forward without interest
for payment in a future period. The payment of easried forward amount is subject to similarly cédted threshold repayment amounts bz
on Vascepa revenue levels. Except upon a changenarfol in Amarin, the agreement does not expirtd $650 million in aggregate has been
repaid. The Company can prepay an amount equdl30 fillion less any previously repaid amount.

The Company currently estimates that its Vascepanee levels will not be high enough in each quadeupport repayment to BioPharma in
accordance with the amounts in the repayment sééellor each quarterly period since the inceptibthe debt, revenues were below the
contractual threshold amount such that cash paywesite calculated for each period reflecting thiéoojl reduction amount as opposed to th
contractual threshold payment due for each qugrpertiod. In accordance with the agreement witHPBimrma, quarterly differences between
the calculated optional reduction amounts and¢payment schedule amounts are rescheduled for payoeginning in the second quarter of
2017. Any such deferred repayments will remainectigo continued application of the quarterly egjlin amounts due established by the
calculated threshold limitation based on quart®idgcepa revenues. No additional interest expenbability is incurred as a result of such
deferred repayments. These estimates will be reated each reporting period by the Company andstatjuf necessary, prospectively.

The Company determined the redemption feature apzirange of control to be an embedded derivatigeitieg bifurcation. The fair value of
the embedded derivative was calculated by detengittie fair value of the debt with the change intod provision included and also without
the change in control provision. The differencentsstn the two fair values of the debt was determtodak the fair value of the embedded
derivative, and upon closing the Company recordddrevative liability of $14.6 million as a reduati to the note payable. The fair value of
this derivative liability is remeasured at eachoréipg period, with changes in fair value recogdize the statement of operations and any
changes in the assumptions used in measuring the
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fair value of the derivative liability could resutt a material increase or decrease in its carryailge. The Company recognized a gain on
change in fair value of derivative liability of $6million and $3.5 million during the years endegcBmber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynanorded $7.2 million and $1.9 million of castldaron-cash interest expense,
respectively, on the BioPharma debt. During the yealed December 31, 2013, the Company recorde@ $illion and $2.6 million of cash
and non-cash interest expense, respectively. Thep@oy will periodically evaluate the remaining teofrthe agreement and the effective
interest will be recalculated each period basetherCompany’s most current estimate of repayment.

To secure the obligations under the agreementBi@Rharma, the Company granted BioPharma a sedntéyest in the Company'’s patents,
trademarks, trade names, domain names, copyrigisy-how and regulatory approvals related to theeoed products, all books and records
relating to the foregoing and all proceeds of tiredoing, referred to collectively as the collatelfahe Company (i) fails to deliver a payment
when due and does not remedy that failure wittgpecific notice period, (i) fails to maintain asfi-priority perfected security interest in the
collateral in the United States and does not rentlegtyfailure after receiving notice of such fadwr (iii) becomes subject to an event of
bankruptcy, then BioPharma may attempt to colleetrhaximum amount payable by the Company undeatrsement (after deducting any
payments the Company has already made).

January 2012 Exchangeable Senior Notes

In January 2012, the Company issued $150.0 milfiqurincipal amount of 3.5% exchangeable senioesdue 2032, a portion of which were
subsequently exchanged (see discussion of May ER¢dangeable Senior Notes below). The 2012 Notes issued by Corsicanto Limited,
an Irish limited company acquired by Amarin in Jaryu2012. Corsicanto Limited is a wholly-owned ddizsy of Amarin. The general,
unsecured, senior obligations are fully and undiomilly guaranteed by Amarin but not by any of @@mpany’s other subsidiaries.
Corsicanto Limited has no assets, operations, t@saor cash flows other than those related tosthence, administration and repayment of
the 2012 Notes and 2014 Notes. There are no signifirestrictions on the ability of Amarin to olstdiinds from Corsicanto Limited in the
form of cash dividends, loans, or advances. Netgeds to the Company, after payment of underwritieg and expenses, were approximatel
$144.3 million.

The 2012 Notes have a stated interest rate of p&i%gear, payable semiannually in arrears on Jgritlaand July 15 of each year beginning
on July 15, 2012, and ending upon the 2012 Notesunty on January 15, 2032. The 2012 Notes ar@stuto repurchase by the Company at
the option of the holders on each of January 12720anuary 19, 2022, and January 19, 2027, ata@qual to 100% of the principal amount
of the 2012 Notes to be repurchased, plus accnogdiapaid interest to, but excluding, the repuretdete. The 2012 Notes are exchangeable
under certain circumstances into cash, ADSs, @ngbination of cash and ADSs, at the Company’s iglectvith an initial exchange rate of
113.4752 ADSs per $1,000 principal amount of 20bgeN. If the Company elected physical settleméetnet remaining outstanding portion
of the 2012 Notes would be exchangeable into 3847/ADSs after the May 2014 exchange of a porticth@ 2012 Notes (see below for
further discussion of the May 2014 exchange). Basethe closing price of the Company’s stock atddeloer31, 2014, the principal amount
the 2012 Notes would exceed the value of the shicesiverted on that date by $27.8 million.

Additional covenants include: (i) limitations ortdiwe indebtedness under certain circumstanceshéijimely filing of documents and reports
pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchangewfiitt both the SEC and the Trustee and (iii) maimitey the tradability of the 2012 Notes.
The Company is required to use commercially redslerefforts to procure and maintain the listinghaf 2012 Notes on the Global Exchange
Market operated under the supervision of the 188tk Exchange (or other recognized stock exchasgkefined in the Note Indenture) prior
to July 15, 2012. If the 2012 Notes are not fraedgable, as a result of restrictions pursuant.®. Yecurities law or the terms of the Indenture
or the 2012 Notes, the Company shall pay additioriatest on
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the 2012 Notes at the rate of 0.50% per annumeoptincipal amount of 2012 Notes outstanding faheday during such period for which the
Company’s failure to file has occurred and is aamitig or for which the 2012 Notes are not freehdable.

The Company may not redeem the 2012 Notes pridanoiary 19, 2017, other than in connection witte@@changes in the tax law of a
relevant taxing jurisdiction that results in adulital amounts becoming due with respect to paynserdfor deliveries on the 2012 Notes. On ot
after January 19, 2017 and prior to the maturite ddne Company may redeem for cash all or patie@®012 Notes at a redemption price e

to 100% of the principal amount of the 2012 Notebé redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interastit@xcluding, the redemption date.
There is no prepayment penalty or sinking fund pled for the 2012 Notes. If the Company undergogsamge in control, holders may reqt
the Company to repurchase for cash all or pateif 2012 Notes at a repurchase price equal to 1dfa¢e principal amount of the 2012 N¢

to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid intierdstit excluding, the change in control repurehdate. The 2012 Notes are the Company’s
senior unsecured obligations and rank senior int 1id payment to the Company’s future indebtedtieasis expressly subordinated in right of
payment to the 2012 Notes and equal in right ofipanpt to the Company’s future unsecured indebtedhesss not so subordinated. The 2012
Notes are effectively junior in right of paymentftiure secured indebtedness to the extent ofdheevof the assets securing such indebted

The 2012 Notes are exchangeable under certaimestamces. At the time of issuance, the Companylzdéd the fair value of the liability
component of the outstanding 2012 Notes to be Udlion, and the excess of the principal amourthe debt over the liability component
$23.8 million was allocated to the conversion aptiesulting in a discount on the debt and corredjpmnincrease in equity as a result of the
cash settlement feature. The discount created &ltwoating proceeds to the conversion option isdp@mortized to interest expense using the
effective interest method over the 2012 Noteshestéd remaining life, which was calculated to lpedod of twenty-four months. As of
December 31, 2014, the discount created from tbeatlon of the proceeds to the conversion optias Wully amortized. The conversion
option will not be subsequently remeasured as &mig continues to meet the criteria for equityssification.

The Company also recorded a debt discount to tefiecvalue of the underwriter’s discounts and rirfiig costs. A portion of the debt discount
from underwriter’s discounts and offering costs whHgcated to the equity and liability componentshe 2012 Notes in proportion to the
proceeds allocated to each component. The porfitdrealebt discount from underwriter’'s discountd affering costs allocated to the liability
component was amortized as interest expense oerstimated life of the 2012 Notes of twenty-fountins. As of December 31, 2014, the
debt discount was fully amortized and the carryiatye of the 2012 Notes was $31.3 million afteeaohange of a portion of the 2012 Notes
(see below for further discussion of the May 20%dhange).

May 2014 Exchangeable Senior Notes

In May 2014, the Company entered into separateafaly negotiated exchange agreements with centldters of the 2012 Notes pursuant to
which Corsicanto exchanged $118.7 million in aggtegrincipal amount of the existing 2012 Notes#¥bt8.7 million in aggregate principal
amount of new 3.50% May 2014 Exchangeable Senites\due 2032, following which $31.3 million in aggate principal amount of the 2(
Notes remained outstanding with terms unchanged2@12 Notes and 2014 Notes are referred to clédgtas the*Notes”).

The 2014 Notes have a stated interest rate of p&9gear, payable semiannually in arrears on Jgritlaand July 15 of each year beginning
on July 15, 2014, and ending upon the 2014 Notegurity on January 15, 2032, unless earlier reqaseti or redeemed by Corsicanto or
exchanged by the holders. At any time after theaisse of the 2014 Notes and prior to the closausirtess on the second business day
immediately preceding January 15, 2032, holders exahange the 2014 Notes at their option. If pigalanuary 15, 2018, a make-whole
fundamental change (as defined in the Indentureyrgcor the Company elects to redeem the 2014 Notes
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in connection with certain changes in tax law, aclecase as described in the Indenture, and artellefets to exchange its 2014 Notes in
connection with such make-whole fundamental chamgdection, as the case may be, such holder maytitted to an increase in the
exchange rate as described in the Indenture. Iexbet of physical settlement, the 2014 Notes wboeléxchangeable into 45,666,925 ADSs.
The initial exchange rate is 384.6154 ADSs per @1 jfrincipal amount of the 2014 Notes (equivalerdn initial exchange price of
approximately $2.60 per ADS, or the Exchange Prea)ject to adjustment in certain circumstancég @xchange rate is subject to adjustr
from time to time upon the occurrence of certaiards, including, but not limited to, the paymentash dividends. Based on the closing price
of the Company’s stock at December 31, 2014, theipal amount of the 2014 Notes would exceed tilaes of the shares if converted on that
date by $74.0 million.

Prior to January 19, 2018, the Company may notamdine 2014 Notes at its option other than in cotioe with certain changes in the tax |

of a relevant taxing jurisdiction that results adéional amounts (as defined in the Indenture)ob@og due with respect to payments and/or
deliveries on the 2014 Notes. On or after Janu@n2@18, the Company may redeem for cash all aréiom of the 2014 Notes at a redemptior
price of 100% of the aggregate principal amourthef2014 Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued araiduimperest to, but not including, the
redemption date. If a fundamental change (as défim¢he Indenture) occurs, holders may requiredbmpany to repurchase all or part of t
2014 Notes for cash at a fundamental change regsegbrice equal to 100% of the aggregate prineipalunt of the 2014 Notes to be
repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interestitoydi including, the fundamental change repurcldase. In addition, holders of the 2014
Notes may require the Company to repurchase ahgmportion of the 2014 Notes on each of Januar2Q®9, January 19, 2024 a

January 19, 2029 for cash at a price equal to 1608%te aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Ntidse repurchased, plus accrued and
unpaid interest to, but not including, the repusehdate.

The Company may elect at its option to cause alngrportion of the 2014 Notes to be mandatorilghexged in whole or in part at any time
prior to the close of business on the businesgdegeding January 15, 2032 if the Daily VWAP (afrakl in the Indenture) equals or exceeds
110% of the Exchange Price then in effect for asi€0 VWAP Trading Days (as defined in the Indesjtin any 30 VWAP Trading Day
period. The Company may only exercise its opti@xahange rights upon satisfaction of specified tyqronditions, including that the ADSs
issuable upon exchange of the 2014 Notes be difiilresale without registration by non-affiliatasd listed on The NASDAQ Global

Market, its related exchanges or the New York Stexkhange. If Corsicanto elects to exercise itfoopi exchange rights on or prior to
January 15, 2018, each holder whose 2014 Notemxalmnged will upon exchange receive a specifiealan of additional ADSs as set forth
in the Indenture. Upon such a declaration of acattm, such principal and accrued and unpaid ésteif any, will be due and payable
immediately. Upon the occurrence of certain evehtsankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization invalyiCorsicanto, 100% of the principal of
and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on ahef2014 Notes will become due and payable autcaibti Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Indenture will provide that, to the extent Corsimaelects and for up to 360 days, the sole remedgri event of default relating to certain
failures by Corsicanto or the Company, as the n@pgbe, to comply with certain reporting covenantthe Indenture consists exclusively of
the right to receive additional interest on the20btes. Additional covenants pertaining to the2Blbtes (as described above for the Januar
2012 Exchangeable Senior Notes) are also applitaltlee May 2014 Notes.

As a result of the note exchange (as describedegpthe Company assessed both quantitative andajivel aspects of the features of the 201«
Notes as compared to the 2012 Notes. Such assess@selted in the conclusion that the featurehef2014 Notes represent a substar
modification from the 2012 Notes as the terms efékchange resulted in a substantive modificatbdheé embedded conversion feature withir
the 2012 Notes, and as such should be accounted fam extinguishment of debt. In accordance wiiCA70-20, the Company extinguished
the 2012 Notes by recording a gain on extinguishroéthe liability component of $38.0 million andpurchase of the conversion option in
equity through a reduction to additional paid-ipical of $10.1 million. The 2014 Notes were recat@¢ fair value of $90.8 million
representing a $27.9 million discount to par. Idiidn the Company recognized $2.5 million in urwieter’s fees and offering costs and
recognized
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those costs as deferred assets. The Company faitbeated $3.5 million of the $90.8 million faialue of the 2014 Notes to the derivative
liability related to the fundamental change redeampteature (as described above), which will be sneed at fair value on an ongoing basis.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynenognized a $0.9 million gain on the changeainyalue of the redemption feature.
The fair value of this derivative liability is remsured at each reporting period, with changesiiirvédue recognized in the statement of
operations and any changes in the assumptionsiuseeasuring the fair value of the derivative llapicould result in a material increase or
decrease in its carrying value.

Because the conversion option in the 2014 Notesives an exception from derivative accounting amlgt cequires gross physical settlemer
shares, the embedded option does not require $ea@ounting and is therefore accounted for asgbéine debt host at amortized cost. The
debt discount is being amortized as interest expexer the estimated life of the 2014 Notes andgsized in the statement of operations as
interest expense. As of December 31, 2014, thgiogrvalue of the 2014 Notes was $90.6 million. iDgrthe year ended December 31, 2014,
the Company recognized aggregate interest expdrigeoHmillion related to the Notes, of which $#n@llion represents non-cash interest and
$5.3 million, represents contractual coupon interssDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company hediad interest on the Notes of $2.4
million in each year, which is included in othermnt liabilities. The Company made the contracintrest payments due on the Notes durin
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 ofdi8iGn.

(9) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
On November 1, 2013, a purported investor of Améilédl a putative class action lawsuit captiorgtdven Sklar v. Amarin Corporation plc et
al., No. 13-cv-6954 (D.N.J. Nov. 1, 2013) in the UDsstrict Court for the District of New Jersey. Stdogtially similar lawsuits, captioned
Bove v. Amarin Corporation p, Civ. No. 13-07882 (AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 5, 201Bentley v. Amarin Corporation plcCiv. No. 13-08283
(AT) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 20, 2013) anfliegel v. Amarin Corporation pldNo. 3:13-cv-07210 (D.N.J. Nov. 27, 2013), werbsmquently filed in
the U.S. District Court for the District of New 3ey and U.S. District Court for the Southern Distaf New York. On December 9, 2013, the
cases filed in the Southern District of New Yorkrevéransferred to the District of New Jersey ahdwath cases are now consolidatednas
Amarin Corporation plc, Securities LitigatioNo. 3:13-cv-06663 (D.N.J. Nov. 1, 2013). The pldistassert claims under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and allege that Amarin anthgeof its current and former officers and direstmade misstatements and omissions
regarding the FDA'’s willingness to approve VascepeNCHOR indication and related contributing fastand the potential relevance of data
from the ongoing REDUCE-IT trial to that approvahe lawsuit seeks unspecified monetary damagesimcheys’ fees and costs. The
Company believes that it has valid defenses andvigibrously defend against this class action duit,cannot predict the outcome. The
Company is unable to reasonably estimate the kysssaire, if any, associated with the claims. Thenany has insurance coverage that is
anticipated to cover any significant loss exposhat may arise from this action after payment ly@ompany of the associated deductible
obligation under such insurance coverage.

On February 27, 2014, the Company commenced a iagainst the FDA that challenges FDA'’s denialtef Company’s request for fiweal
NCE exclusivity for Vascepa based on its readinthefrelevant statute, the Comp’s view of FDA'’s inconsistency with past actionstlvis
area and the retroactive effect of what the Compmatigves is a new policy at FDA as it relates tstepa situation. The Compasigomplain
requests that the court vacate FDA's decision,adedhat Vascepa is entitled to the benefits a-jigar statutory exclusivity, bar the FDA fr
accepting any ANDA or similar application for whidfascepa is the reference-listed drug until afterdtatutory exclusivity period and set
aside what the Company contends are—due to theld=frfive-year exclusivity to Vascepa—prematuratcepted pending ANDA
applications.

In March, April, and May 2014, the Company receipadagraph IV certification notices from six comjggncontending to varying degrees f
certain of its patents are invalid, unenforceali&/ar will not be infringed by the manufacture, usale or offer for sale of a generic form of
Vascepa as described in those companies’
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abbreviated new drug applications, or ANDAs. Thenpany has commenced patent infringement lawsuémageach of these ANDA
applicants. In each of the lawsuits, Amarin is gegkamong other remedies, an order enjoining #ferdlants from marketing generic version:s
of Vascepa before the last to expire of the asdgrddents expires in 2030. In April 2014, Amariedilawsuits against Apotex, Inc. and Apa
Corporation, or collectively, Apotex, in the U.SisBict Court for the District of New Jersey an@ t1.S. District Court for the Northern Disti
of lllinois. The cases against Apotex are captiofgdhrin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Apotex, Inc. et,aliv. A. No. 14-2550 (D.N.J) anéimarin
Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Apotex, Inc. et, Civ. A. No. 14-2958 (N.D. II.). In April 2014, éarin also filed lawsuits against Roxane Laboratgri
Inc., or Roxane, in the U.S. District Court for thistrict of New Jersey and the U.S. District Cdortthe Northern District of Ohio. The cases
against Roxane are caption&tharin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Roxane Laboratories, , Civ. A. No. 14-2551 (D.N.J) ardimarin Pharma, Inc. ¢
al. v. Roxane Laboratories, IncCiv. A. No. 14-901 (N.D. Ohio). Amarin voluntaritlismissed the Northern District of Ohio case agai
Roxane on May 7, 2014. In April 2014, Amarin alged a lawsuit against Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, lnd Dr. Reddy Laboratories, Ltd., (
collectively, Dr. Reddy’s, in the U.S. District Qodior the District of New Jersey. The case agdihrstReddy’s is captionedmarin Pharma,
Inc. et al. v. Dr. Red(s Laboratories, Inc. et al. Civ. A. No. 14-2760 (D.N.J.). In May 2014, Amaaiso filed a lawsuit against Watson
Laboratories, Inc. and Actavis plc, or Watsonha U.S. District Court for the District of New Jeys One of the Company’s directors, Patrick
J. O'Sullivan, is also a director of Actavis pldid case against Watson is captioAedarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Watson Laboratories, et
al., Civ. A. No. 14-3259 (D.N.J). On July 17, 2014, anm agreed to dismiss Actavis plc but the lawagdinst Watson remains pending. In
June 2014, Amarin also filed a case against TewarRdceuticals USA, Inc., or Teva, in the U.S. Dest€ourt for the District of New Jersey.
The case against Teva is captiodedarin Pharma, Inc. et al. v. Teva Pharmaceuti¢ta®A, Inc., Civ. A. No. 14-3558 (D.N.J.). In June 2014,
Amarin also filed a lawsuit against Andrx Labs, LL&hdrx Corporation, and Actavis plc, or collectiyeAndrx, in the U.S. District Court for
the District of New Jersey. The case against Aigloaptioneddmarin Pharma, Inc. et al v. Andrx Labs, LLC et., &iv. A. No. 14-3924
(D.N.J.). As a result of the 30-month stay assediatith the filing of these lawsuits under the HaWWaxman Act, the FDA cannot grant final
approval to any ANDA before September 2016, unllesee is an earlier court decision holding thatdhiject patents are not infringed and/or
are invalid. The Company intends to vigorously ecdats intellectual property rights relating tos¢apa, but cannot predict the outcome of
these lawsuits.

In addition to the above, in the ordinary coursbusiness, the Company is from time to time invdlirelawsuits, claims, investigations,
proceedings, and threats of litigation relatingntellectual property, commercial arrangements @thér matters. While the outcome of these
proceedings and claims cannot be predicted wittaicey, as of December 31, 2014, the Company wapanty to any legal or arbitration
proceedings that may have, or have had in the tgae, significant effects on the Company’s finahposition or profitability. No
governmental proceedings are pending or, to itsvkedge, contemplated against the Company. The Coyniganot a party to any material
proceedings in which any director, member of semianagement or affiliate is either a party advéssbe Company or its subsidiaries or hi
material interest adverse to the Company or itsislidries.

Leases

The Company leases office space and office equipmeter operating and capital leases. Future minminaase payments under these leas
of December 31, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31 Operating
2015 $ 63€
2016 617
2017 62¢
2018 15€
2019 —

Total $ 2,03¢
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On September 30, 2011, the Company entered intgeeement for 320 square feet of office spaceRerabroke House, Upper Pembroke
Street 28-32 in Dublin, Ireland. The office spacswgubsequently reduced to 270 square feet, e#edtvember 1, 2013. The agreement
began November 1, 2011 and terminates on Octoheé3b and can be extended automatically for ssoeeene year periods. Monthly ren
approximately €2,800 (approximately $3,400). Theeagent can be terminated by either party withettmenths prior written notice.

On July 1, 2011, the Company leased 9,747 squat®feffice space in Bedminster, New Jersey. Basé, as amended, terminates on
March 31, 2018, and may also be terminated withveixths prior notice. On December 6, 2011 the Cawypeased an additional 2,142 square
feet of space in the same location. On Decembe?2dB2 and May 8, 2013, the Company leased an addlt?,601 and 10,883 square feet of
space, respectively, in the same location. In Jgn2@l4 and April 2014, the Company entered infuasate transactions with the landlord of
this property to vacate approximately 2,142 an@®@ $quare feet of space in exchange for discount®otractual future rent payments.
Additionally, in January 2015, the Company exec@r@greement to sublease approximately 4,700 adeet of this property to a third party,
effective April 1, 2015.

Total rent expense during the years ended 2014 206d 2012 was approximately $1.0 million, $1.0iorl, and $0.6 million, respectively.

Milestone and Supply Purchase Obligations

The Company entered into several product developagneements with, subject to performance obligati@ertain milestone and supply
purchase obligations, as detailed below:

e The Company entered into its initial Vascepa ARImy agreement with Nisshin Pharma, Inc., or Nissh 2010. In 2011, the
Company entered into agreements with two additisappliers, Chemport, Inc., or Chemport, and BABFferly Equateq
Limited) for the supply of API. In 2012, the Compaagreed to terms with a fourth API supplier, asantium of companies led by
Slanmhor Pharmaceutical, Inc. (Slanmhor). Theseeagents included requirements for the suppliemsdet certain product
specifications and qualify their materials and fdes with applicable regulatory authorities indlog the FDA. The Company has
incurred certain costs associated with the quatifin of product produced by these suppliers asritesl below

Chemport was approved by the FDA to manufacturefAPtommercial sale in April 2013. The Company &@gurchasing
commercial supply from Chemport in 2013. The agresnwith Chemport contains a provision requiring @ompany to pay
Chemport in cash for any shortfall in the minimuarghase obligations. The 2011 supply agreement@litbmport includes
commitments for the Company to fund (i) certainelepment fees, (ii) material purchases for initead materials, which amount
will be credited against future API purchases aiida(raw material purchase commitment. During yiear ended December 31,
2014, the Company made payments of $6.7 millio@hemport.

Chemport together with Nisshin are currently the tmanufacturers from which the Company purchasds ‘e Company has no
royalty, milestone or minimum purchase commitmewith Nisshin.

The API supply agreement with BASF terminated ibrigary 2014. In April 2014, the Company reachedtdesnent agreement
with BASF under which it received a refund for mitkepurchases of $3.0 million, included as otheome in the statement of
operations. The Company made payments of $3.1omith BASF related to development and supply comeritts through
December 31, 2014.

The Company made payments of $6.2 million to tE®hor consortium related to development fees #mer @rovisions through
December 31, 2014 and during the year ended Deae3ib2014 and 2013, made payments of $0.4 miflioth $6.1 million,
respectively, to the Slanmhor consortium relatestability and technical batches and advances toipated future API purchases.
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Pursuant to the agreements with the Company’s mippthere is a total of $55.5 million that is @atially payable over the term of
such agreements based on minimum purchase obligatio

» Concurrent with its entry into one of its API supplgreements, the Company agreed to make a horsttiorgt minority share
equity investment in the supplier of $3.3 millidrhe Company invested $1.7 million under this age®nm July 2011 and the
remaining $1.6 million during 2012. In Septembet20he Company entered into an equity sale anchase agreement between
this supplier and a third party in which the Compagreed to sell approximately $1.3 million ofiitsestment in the supplier to the
third party at cost. This transaction closed infttet quarter of 2014. In August 2014, the Compantered into a second equity ¢
and purchase agreement between this supplier aridaarthird party in which the Company agreed tbaggproximately $1.0
million of the remaining investment. This transantlosed in the fourth quarter of 2014. The caigyamount of the investment of
$0.2 million and $3.3 million as of December 3112@&nd 2013, respectively, is included in otheglterm assets and is accounted
for under the cost metho

* Under the 2004 share repurchase agreement withalekdmited, or Laxdale, upon receipt of marketapgproval in Europe for the
first indication for Vascepa (or first indicatiofi @any product containing Amarin Neuroscience irtetiial property acquired from
Laxdale in 2004), the Company must make an aggeegatk or cash payment to the former sharehottfdraxdale (at the sole
option of each of the sellers) of £7.5 million (aggmately $11.7 million at December 31, 2014).Almder the Laxdale
agreement, upon receipt of a marketing approvtiienJ.S. or Europe for a further indication of Vigysa (or further indication of
any other product using Amarin Neuroscience inttlial property), the Company must make an aggregjaté or cash payment
the sole option of each of the sellers) of £5 will{approximately $7.8 million at December 31, 20fb4 each of the two potential
market approvals (i..£10 million maximum, or approximately $15.5 milliah December 31, 2014

The Company has no provision for any of the obiayet above since the amounts are either not prelmtdble to be estimated at
December 31, 2014.

(10) Equity

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coyneaeived a refund of $3.2 million for UK stamptyltaxes paid in prior periods related
to the issuance of common stock. Such proceedsmeeoeded as an increase to additional paid-intaapi

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 208 ¥, ompany issued 234,500 and 386,000 sharegctesgly, as a result of the exercise
of stock options, resulting in gross and net prdses $0.3 million during the year ended Decemtiegr2014 and $0.6 million during the year
ended December 31, 2013. In addition, during ttee gaded December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Compsungdsl 684,888 and 147,050 shares
respectively, as a result of the exercise of wastaesulting in gross and net proceeds of $1.lanitluring the year ended December 31, 201.
and $0.2 million during the year ended Decembe2813.

On March 11, 2014, the Company granted a totalF8{348 restricted stock units, or RSUs, and 205g88€k options to members of the
Company'’s Board of Directors under the Amarin Cogpion plc 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, or the 20lEnPThe RSUs vest in equal
installments over a three year period commencin) @éch installment vesting each year upon théeeafl the anniversary of the grant date ol
the Companys annual general meeting of shareholders in sucivensary year. The RSUs will become fully vestpdma change of control
the Company. Upon termination of service to the @any, each Director shall be entitled to a payneenial to the fair market value of one
share of Amarin common stock, which is requiretbéanade in shares. The stock options vest in fadhuthe earlier of the anniversary of the
grant date or the Compasyannual general meeting of shareholders in sucivensary year. The stock options will become fuigsted upon
change of control of the Company.
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On January 8, 2014, the Company granted a totalo&2,000 RSUs and 2,605,500 stock options to grepbunder the 2011 Plan. The RSU'’s
vest annually over a three year period and theksiptons vest monthly over a four year period hwiibth becoming fully vested upon a cha
of control of the Company.

In January 2013, the Company granted 454,875 R&Beveral employees under the 2011 Plan. The tefthese RSUs provided for vesting
upon the achievement of certain operational mitestoIn the year ended December 31, 2013, as k oésine operational milestones not be
achieved, all of these RSU’s were forfeited andinares were issued as a result of vesting.

(11) Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, interest andlpesaelated to any uncertain tax positions hagernbinsignificant. The Company
recognizes interest and penalties related to uasicetdx positions within the provision for inconaxés. The total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that would affect the Compasgffective tax rate if recognized is $1.4 millias of December 31, 2014, as compared to $1.7 mil
of December 31, 2013.

The following is a reconciliation of the total anmisi of unrecognized tax benefits for the years drdlecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in
thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Beginning uncertain tax benefits $1,67¢ $1,24: $ 997
Current yee—increase: 1,067 687 294
Current yee—decreases for lapses in statutes of limitat (254) (25€) (48)
Ending uncertain tax benefi $2,487 $1,67¢ $1,24:

The Company files income tax returns in the Ui@lahd and United Kingdom. The Company remainsemilip tax examinations in the
following jurisdictions as of December 31, 2014:

Jurisdiction Tax Years

United States (Federal and State) 2011-201¢
Ireland 200¢-201¢
United Kingdom 20132014

The Company expects gross liabilities of $439,@06xpire in 2015 based on statutory lapses.

The components of loss from operations before tasare as follows at December 31, 2014, 2013 an@ Zidlthousands):

2014 2013 2012
United States $ (7,33)) $ (9,239 $ 1,87¢
Ireland and United Kingdot (51,87() (160,18) (171,949

$(59.20)  $(169,42)  $(170,06)
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The (benefit) expense from income taxes showneratttcompanying consolidated statements of opesationsists of the following for fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federe-U.S. $ 66C $ 12z $ 10,26¢
StateU.S. 117 11€ 2,56t
Total Current $ 777 $  24C $12,83(
Deferred:
Federe-U.S. (3,68¢ (4,06t (2,809
StateU.S. (22¢) 631 (911
Ireland and United Kingdot 3,33t (33,106 (22,51¢
Change in valuation allowan: (3,039 33,10¢ 22,51t
Total Deferrec $(3,619) $ (3,439 $ (3,719

The (benefit) expense from income taxes differsftbe amount computed by applying the statutorgrnme tax rate to income before taxes
to the following for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 {fiousands):

2014 2013 2012

Benefits from taxes at statutory rate $(14,78¢) $(42,35%) $(42,51)
Rate differentia 9,49: 18,49: 13,24¢
Change in valuation reserv (3,039 33,10¢ 22,51t
Warrant derivative liabilitie: (2,706 (11,989 8,90¢
Gain on extinguishment of de (9,509 — —

Research and development cre (1,455 (2,009 (48)
Tax return to provision adjustmer 10,02¢ 12t 37¢
Cumulative translation adjustme 8,061 (280 —

Permanent and oth 1,07 1,70¢ 6,63¢

$ (2,83)) $ (3,199 $ 9,11¢

During 2014, the Company recorded adjustmentstddferred tax accounts related to the impactrefigo exchange rate changes and to
reconcile the financial statement accounts to theumts reported on its filed 2013 foreign tax regjprimarily for the impact of US GAAP to
local statutory adjustments. These adjustments fudlyeoffset with valuation allowances based oa tbompany’s position with respect to the
realizability of its recorded deferred tax assetsnon-US entities.

The Company is subject to corporate tax rate ilama: of 25% for non-trading activities and 12.5%tfading activities. For the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Companyeapiiie statutory corporate tax rate of 25% for Am@&orporation plc, reflecting the non-
trading tax rate in Ireland. However, for AmarinaPmaceuticals Ireland Limited, a wholly-owned sdizsly of Amarin Corporation plc, the
Company applied the 12.5% Irish trading tax rate.
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The income tax effect of each type of temporarjedéince comprising the net deferred tax asset eémber 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows
(in thousands):

2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Net operating losse $ 80,09¢ $ 85,72«
Stock based compensati 15,60( 11,66(
Depreciatior (90) (12€)
Tax credits 2,141 1,25¢
Other reserves and accrued liabilit 1,70¢ 2,90(
Gross deferred tax ass 99,45¢ 101,41
Less: valuation allowanc (85,96 (88,999
$ 13,49( $ 12,41¢

The Company assesses whether it is more-likely-tizdrthat the Company will realize its deferred émsets. The Company determined that it
was more-likely-than-not that the Irish, UK, andalsi net operating losses and the related deféaedssets would not be realized in future
periods and a full valuation allowance has beerigeal for all periods.

The following table reflects the activity in thelvation allowance for the years ended Decembe2@14 and 2013 (in thousands):

2014 2013
Beginning valuation allowance $ 88,99¢ $ 55,89«
Increase as reflected in income tax expe 5,081 32,99¢
Cumulative translation adjustme (8,11%) 10€
Ending valuation allowanc $ 85,96! $ 88,99¢

The Company has combined Irish, UK, and Israeliopetrating loss carryforwards of $513.3 million,ig¥thdo not expire. The total net
operating loss carryforwards decreased by apprdein&14.9 million from the prior year primarily asresult of the impact of foreign
exchange rate changes and adjustments to recdimeifanancial statement accounts to the amountsteg on the filed 2013 foreign tax
returns, which were in excess of current year texkisses generated in these countries. In addifienCompany has available U.S. Federa
credit carryforwards of $6.2 million and state tagdit carryforwards of $1.4 million. These amoustslude the impact of any unrecognized
tax benefits. These carryforwards, which will egpitarting between 2020 and 2034 may be usedgetdtfture taxable income, if any.

The Company recognized a tax benefit related textension of the research and development cretitsactively enacted during the fourth
quarter of 2014 and recorded a benefit of approtéina1.4 million for the credit generated durihg tyear.

(12) Stock Incentive Plans and Stock Based Compsation

On April 29, 2011 the Board, upon the recommendatiothe Remuneration Committee, adopted the 2@ddkSncentive Plan (“2011 Plan”),
which was approved by the Company’s shareholderkibyn12, 2011. The 2011 Plan replaced the Comga202 Stock Option Plan (2002
Plan”), which expired on January 1, 2012. The maxinnumber of the Company’s Ordinary Shares of £8dxh or any ADS's, as to be
issued under the 2011 Plan shall not exceed theo§(in3.5 million newly authorized Shares avaltafor award and (i) the number of Shares
that remained available for grants under the Compge2002 Plan and (iii) the number of
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Shares underlying then outstanding awards unde2@fg Plan that could be subsequently forfeitedceled, expire or are otherwise
terminated. The award of stock options (both inwersind norgualified options) and restricted stock units, aagrds of unrestricted Share
Directors are permitted. The 2011 Plan is admirgstdy the Remuneration Committee of the CompaBgard of Directors and expires on
July 12, 2021.

In addition to the grants under the 2011 PlanQbmpany grants nonqualified stock options to emgdsyto purchase the Company’s ordinary
shares. These grants are made pursuant to emploggreements on terms consistent with the 2011 Plan

Under the terms of the 2011 Plan, and grants madaignt to employment agreements, options typicaft over a four year period, expire
after a 10 year term and are granted at an exqudise equal to the closing price of the Comparyiserican Depository Shares on the grant
date. The following table summarizes all stock @ptctivity for the year ended December 31, 20d4Hpusands, except for per share
amounts):

Weighted
Weighted Average
Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual
Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding January 1, 2014 9,33( $ 6.64
Grantec 3,271 1.9¢
Cancelled/Expire! (1,69¢) 9.02
Exercisec (23E) 1.31
Outstanding, December 31, 20 10,67( 4.95 7.7 year $ —
Exercisable, December 31, 20 7,26: 5.3 7.3 year $ —
Vested and Expected to Vest, December 31, ! 1,63( 6.03 8.2 year $ —
Available for future grant at December 31, 2( 5,57¢

The weighted average fair value of the stock optigranted during the years ended December 31, 2018, and 2012 was $1.58, $6.18 and
$8.79, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 208 ompany received cash of $0.3 million and $@iléon from the exercise of options.
The intrinsic value of options exercised during20das $0.2 million and $2.4 million during 2013. éfsDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, there
was $9.4 million and $15.7 million of unrecognizdck-based compensation expense related to udvatsiek option share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the Corspgtogk award plans. This expense is expecte@ t@bognized over a weightesterag
period of approximately 2.4 years. There was aipion of $2.3 million and a provision of $0.4 milii for the years ended December 31, 201
and 2013, respectively, reflected within the coiusdéd statement of cash flows related to excespriavision on the U.S. federal level that
have been realized as an increase in taxes paydt#eCompany recognizes compensation expenseddaithvalues of those awards which
have graded vesting on a straight line basis.

The fair value of options on the date of grant estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricingleioUse of a valuation model requires
management to make certain assumptions with respselected model inputs. Expected stock pricatility was calculated based on the
historical volatility of the Company’s common stooker the expected life of the option. The expedfedvas determined based on the short-
cut method based on the term and vesting periog ribk-free interest rate is based on zero-coup& Treasury securities with a maturity
term approximating the expected life of the optithe date of grant. No dividend yield has beasumed as the Company does not currently
pay dividends on its common stock and does notipate doing so in the foreseeable future. Estichfigfeitures are based on the Company’s
historical forfeiture activity.
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Employee stock options granted prior to June 3092fknerally vested over a three-year service gpeEmployee stock options granted after
June 30, 2009 generally vest over a four-year semériod and all stock options are settled byigkeance of new shares. Compensation
expense recognized for all option grants is netstimated forfeitures and is recognized over thards/ respective requisite service periods.
The Company recorded compensation expense inaeltistock options of $7.7 million, $14.3 milliamd $16.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

For 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company used thexfimitpassumptions to estimate the fair value of stiersed payment awards:

2014 2013 2012
Risk free interest rate 1.37%- 1.68% 0.91%- 2.07% 0.81%- 1.39%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected option life (year: 6.25 6.25 6.25
Expected volatility 97%- 109% 91%- 110% 109%- 111%

Restricted Stock Units

The 2011 Plan also allows for granting of restdcstock unit awards under the terms of the Plae. mhjority of the restricted stock units vest
based upon a time-based service condition. Fatigtst stock units with a performance condition,compensation expense is recorded until i
becomes probable that the performance conditionbwihchieved. Restricted stock units are recoedecbmpensation expense based on fair
value, representing the market value of the Comigazgmmaon stock on the date of grant. The fair @alfirestricted stock units is amortized
on a straight-line basis through the statemenpefations over the service period until the shaee® vested. The following table presents the
restricted stock unit activity for the years en@etember 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, exceptdighted average amounts):

Weighted Average

Grant Date Fair

Shares Value

Outstanding—as of January 1, 2013 465 8.8¢
Grantec 55& 7.7t
Vested (93 8.8¢
Forfeited (729 8.21
Outstandin—as of December 31, 20: 19¢€ 6.9¢
Grantec 2,25k 2.0¢

Vested — —
Forfeited (199 3.17
Outstandin—as of December 31, 20: 2,25¢ 2.0%

The Company recorded compensation expense inaelttirestricted stock units of $1.4 million, $@lion and $1.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively

The following table presents the stdoised compensation expense related to stock basedsafor the period ended December 31, 2014,
and 2012 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Research and development $2,701 $ 2,831 $ 3,70(
Selling, general and administrati 6,321 11,84¢ 14,37¢
Stock-based compensation expel $9,02% $14,68¢ $18,07:
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(13) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes available a 401(k) plan for is. @mployees to which it made contributions ipyears. The Company did not make
any contributions in 2014, 2013 or 2012.

(14) Related Party Transaction
October 2009 Private Placement

Several of Amarin’s current and former directord &imds connected with them purchased approxim@g@§ million of its ADSs (in the form
of common stock) in the October 2009 private plagetnincluding: (i) 17 million ADSs purchased byfls managed by Abingworth LLP,
where Dr. Joseph Anderson, a former Director of Amas a partner; (i) 7 million ADSs purchased ®ybimed Advisors LLC, where

Dr. Carl L. Gordon, a former Director of Amarin,asGeneral Partner; (iii) 7 million ADSs purchassdSofinnova Venture Partners VII, L.P.,
where Dr. James |. Healy, a Director of Amarima islanaging General Partner; and (iv) 5 million AQfeschased by Fountain Healthcare
Partners Fund 1, L.P. Fountain Healthcare Partridrss the sole General Partner of Fountain Healtd Partners Fund 1, L.P. Dr. Manus
Rogan is a Managing Partner of Fountain HealthParéners Ltd. and until December 2011 was a noctgke director of Amarin. In
addition, for every ADS purchased, the investoeneed warrants to purchase 0.5 of an ADS. Of tha #tlllion warrant derivative liability at
December 31, 2014, the fair value of the warraetd by the current and former directors of the Camypand their related investment funds
amounted to $65 thousand.

(15) Restructuring

As part of a program to reduce costs and increpseational efficiencies, in October 2013, the Conypannounced a plan to streamline
operations to better align its cost structure witlrent market conditions by reducing its globalkforce by approximately 50%. In connecti
with this program, the Company recorded $2.8 niiliio charges for severance and related benefiesdiace the Company’s workforce during
the quarter ended December 31, 2013, of which $lllbn is reflected in research and developmengegse and $2.6 million is reflected in
selling, general and administrative expense imtteompanying consolidated statement of operatiims Company made all remaining
payments in the first half of 2014.

The restructuring charges, which are included oraed expenses and other current liabilities instt@dmpanying consolidated balance sheet
as of December 31, 2013, are summarized as follows:

Employee Severanc

and Benefits

Balance as of January 1, 2013 $ —
Restructuring charge 2,781
Cash payment (2,646
Balance as of December 31, 2( 13t
Restructuring charge —
Cash payment (139
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ —
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(16) Quarterly Summarized Financial Information (Unaudited)

Fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2(

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
(In thousands, except per share amount:
Revenue $10967 $ 2,342 $12,60¢ $ 5500 $14,14¢ $ 8,40¢ $16,48( $10,10¢
Net (loss) incom (25,980  (62,15¢ 15,32¢ (39,779 (26,05() (48,88) (19,657 (15,410
Net (loss) income per shal
Basic $ (015 $ (041) $ 00¢ $ (0.2 $ (015 $ (029 $ (0.1)) $ (0.09
Diluted $ (015 $ (049 $ 00 $ (039 $ (017) $ (029 $ (0.11) $ (0.27)

(17) Co-Promotion Agreement

On March 31, 2014, the Company entered into @@ownotion Agreement (the Agreement) with Kowa Plereuticals America, Inc. related
the commercialization of Vascepa (icosapent etbgsules in the United States. Under the termiseoAgreement, Amarin granted to Kowa
Pharmaceuticals America, Inc. the right to be tile so-promoter, together with the Company, of \égecin the United States during the term
The initial term of the Agreement extends through &

During the term, Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, &md Amarin have agreed to use commercially redderedforts to promote, detail and
optimize sales of Vascepa in the United StatespEnformance requirements include a negotiated minimumber of details to be delivered
by each party in the first and second position, theduse of a negotiated number of minimum sal@esentatives from each party, including
no less than 250 Kowa Pharmaceuticals Americasaes representatives. Kowa Pharmaceuticals Amdric. has agreed to continue to beal
the costs incurred for its sales force associaidfdtive commercialization of Vascepa and to payckatain incremental costs associated with
the use of its sales force, such as sample codtsaats for promotional and marketing materials.afimwill continue to recognize all revenue
from sales of Vascepa and will use commerciallpoaable efforts to maintain a minimum amount oeimery of Vascepa for use in the
United States.

In exchange for Kowa Pharmaceuticals America, $nod-promotional services, Kowa Pharmaceuticals aaginc. is entitled to a quarterly
co-promotion fee based on a percentage of Vasagsa ghargins that increases during the Agreemésrtis, from the high single digits in
2014 to the low twenty percent levels in 2018. Thgromotion fee also varies based on sales levelsvhether the FDA has approved an
ANCHOR indication labeling expansion for Vascepdas permitted the use of data generated to supptaining FDA approval of the
ANCHOR indication in the promotion of Vascepa, ihieh case the co-promotion fee would be decredsggkcified requirements are met. In
certain circumstances, upon the earlier of theratipn or termination of the Agreement in accordawith its terms, Kowa Pharmaceuticals
America, Inc. may be eligible for a co-promotioil tae equal to declining fractions of the co-praméee in effect prior to such expiration or
termination for periods ranging from one to threang following such expiration or termination.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a neivadde of $0.6 million from Kowa Pharmaceuticals Arta, Inc. representing
reimbursable amounts incurred for samples and otlagketing expenses less thepromotion fees payable to Kowa Pharmaceuticals Aoag
Inc.
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(18) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events fraenier 31, 2014 through the date of the issuanteest consolidated financial
statements.

On January 29, 2015, the Company granted a to@b6#,251 RSUs and 1,622,500 stock options to @mpk under the 2011 Plan. The R
vest annually over a three year period and theksiptions vest monthly over a four year period.

On February 26, 2015, Amarin entered into a Devalet, Commercialization and Supply Agreement (DES Agreement”) with
Eddingpharm (Asia) Macao Commercial Offshore Limi{gEddingpharm”) related to the development ancheeercialization of Vascepa in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (therfory”). Under the terms of the DCS Agreementi&in granted to Eddingpharm an
exclusive (including as to Amarin) license withhrigo sublicense to develop and commercialize \fzs @ the Territory for uses that are
currently commercialized and under development maAn based on Amarin’s MARINE, ANCHOR and ongoREDUCE-IT clinical trials

of Vascepa.

Under the DCS Agreement, Eddingpharm will be sotegponsible for development and commercializadictivities in the Territory and
associated expenses. Amarin will provide develograssistance and be responsible for supplyinghfédsand later bulk drug product at
defined prices under negotiated supply terms. Amaiil retain all Vascepa manufacturing rights. Ainaeceived a non-refundable $15.0
million up-front payment and is eligible to receidevelopment, regulatory and sales-based milegtapments of up to an additional $154.0
million. In addition, Eddingpharm will pay Amarireted double-digit percentage royalties on netssafé/ascepa in the Territory escalating to
the high teens. Eddingpharm has agreed to cegatriations regarding the commercialization of cetfitjve products globally and Amarin has
agreed to certain restrictions regarding the cororakation of competitive products in the Territor

Amarin and Eddingpharm agreed to form a joint depelent committee to oversee regulatory and devedopuarctivities for Vascepa in the
Territory in accordance with a negotiated developinpdan and to form a separate joint commercidbratommittee to oversee Vascepa
commercialization activities in the Territory. Déwement costs will be paid by Eddingpharm to theeeksuch costs are incurred in connec
with the negotiated development plan or otherwiseiired by Eddingpharm. Eddingpharm will be respmagor preparing and filing
regulatory applications in all countries of the fitery at Eddingpharm’s cost with Amarin’s assistanThe DCS Agreement also contains
customary provisions regarding indemnification,kzaging, record keeping, audit rights, reportinggdtions, and representations and
warranties that are customary for an arrangemethtiotype.

The term of the DCS Agreement expires, on a prebygiroduct basis, upon the later of (i) the date orctwsuch product is no longer cove
by a valid claim under a licensed patent in theilay, or (ii) the twelfth (12th) anniversary die first commercial sale of such product in
Mainland China. The DCS Agreement may be terminbteeither party in the event of a bankruptcy @& tither party and for material breach,
subject to customary cure periods. In additiommgt time following the third anniversary of thesticommercial sale of a product in Mainland
China, Eddingpharm has the right to terminate tR&SAgreement for convenience with twelve month&mpmotice. Neither party may assign
or transfer the DCS Agreement without the priorszont of the other party, provided that Amarin mssign the DCS Agreement in the ever
a change of control transaction.
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Exhibit 10.80

SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE
AND PARTIAL SURRENDER AND EARLY TERMINATION AGREEMET

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE AND SURRENDER AND ARTIAL EARLY TERMINATION AGREEMENT (this
“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of th&' 83y of January 2014, by and between BEDMINSTER RIBUING LLC, (“Landlord”),
and AMARIN PHARMACEUTICALS IRELAND LTD., (“Tenant”)

RECITALS:

A. Landlord and Tenant are parties to that cei@iice Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 201i8ehse Agreement dated April 11, 2011; 1
stAmendment to License dated May 11 20114 &mendment to License dated April 25, 20124 8mendment to License dated July 17, 2012
4 th Amendment to License dated December 15, 2012 dnéirbendment to License dated February 27, 2013 (tease”), pursuant to which
Tenant currently leases approximately 25,373 sqfemteof rentable area (the “Premises”) on theahd 2nd floors of the building known as
1430 Route 206, Bedminster, New Jersey

B. Landlord and Tenant desire to surrender apprateiy 2,142 square feet in Suite #220, (“Surrerdi€emises”pn the terms and conditio
set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual uteléngs and covenants set forth herein, and @bed and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of whichereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, imtgntd be legally bound, do hereby agree a:
follows:

1. Landlord and Tenant hereby agree that the Efe@ate of the Surrender shall be as of 11:59 pmDecember 31, 2013 (the “Surrender
Date”), subject to:

(a) Tenant covenants and agrees to surrender ¢meigtrs to Landlord on or before the Surrender Dateant, clean and free of debris,
and in good order and repair as well as otherwisecordance with the applicable provisions oflthase.

2. Tenant's obligations to pay any Base Rent, amuit rent or other amounts due in accordance thigth_ease which accrue through the
Surrender Date shall survive the termination oftéren of the Lease and shall remain an obligatfohemant until fully satisfied.

3. If Tenant fails to surrender the Surrender Psesbn or before the Surrender Date in accordaithdlve terms of this Agreement, then, fr
and after the day after the Amended Early Termimabate, Tenant shall be obligated to pay holdoget for the Surrendered Premises in
accordance with the Lease.

4. Effective January 1, 2014, Minimum Base Rentli@er Demised Premises (as reduced) shall be asviall

Square Fe: Period Per Square Foot Monthly Base Rel
23,231 1/1/2014 4/30/201 $26.5( $51,301.7!
23,231 5/1/2014 4/30/201 $27.0C $52,269.7!
23,231 5/1/2015 4/30/201 $27.5( $53,237.7.
23,231 5/1/2016 4/30/201 $28.0( $54,205.6
23,231 5/1/2017 4/30/201 $28.5( $55,173.6.
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4. Tenant shall pay an Early Termination Fee ferSlurrendered Premises, which shall be considedeitiénal Rent, on a monthly basis an

calculated as follows:

Square Fe:
2,142

2,142
2,142
2,142
2,142
Total
Annualized Per Mont|

Per Squal Number o
Existing Per Monthly
Period Square Foot Foot $ Base Ren Months Total

1/1/2014 4/30/201 $ 26.5C $ 11.9¢ $2,128.6: 4 $ 8,514.4!
5/1/2014 4/30/201 $ 27.0C $ 12.1°f $2,168.7! 12 $ 26,025.3
5/1/2015 4/30/201 $ 27.5( $ 12.3¢ $2,208.9: 12 $ 26,507.2!
5/1/2016 4/30/201 $ 28.0C $ 12.6( $2,249.1( 12 $ 26,989.2
5/1/2017 4/30/201 $ 28.5( $ 12.8¢ $2,289.21 12 $ 27,471.1
45% $115,507.3

$ 2,221.3(

$2,221.30 Per Month Additional Rent effective Jagug 2014, any amounts previously paid in excésheaforementioned will be issued ¢

credit on Tenants billing statement.

5. The parties hereto represent and warrant to ethen that each has full right and authority teeeimto this Agreement and that the person
signing this Agreement on behalf of Landlord anddr& respectively has the requisite authority tahsact.

6. Except as expressly provided herein, all oteens, conditions, covenants, conditions and agratnas set forth in the Lease remain

unchanged and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlniendment as of the date first above written.

AGREED TO:
LANDLORD:

BEDMINSTER 2 FUNDING, LLC,
A New Jersey limited liability compar

By: /s/ Kurt R. Padavano
Name: Kurt R. Padavan
Title: Authorized Representati

TENANT:
AMARIN PHARMACEUTICALS IRELAND LTD
By:  /s/ John F. Thero

Name: John F. Thert
Title: Director




Exhibit 10.81

THIRD AMENDMENT TO LEASE
AND PARTIAL SURRENDER AND EARLY TERMINATION AGREEMET

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO LEASE AND SURRENDER AND PARAL EARLY TERMINATION AGREEMENT (this
“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of tifeday of April 2014, by and between BEDMINSTER 2 FUNES LLC, (“Landlord”), and
AMARIN PHARMACEUTICALS IRELAND LTD., (“Tenant”).

RECITALS:

A. Landlord and Tenant are parties to that cerffiice Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2013 Zmendment to Lease and Partial
Surrender and Early Termination Agreement datedalg23, 2014; License Agreement dated April 11,120 stAmendment to License dat
May 11 2011; 2d Amendment to License dated April 25, 20124 Bmendment to License dated July 17, 2012;Almendment to License
dated December 15, 2012, antt Amendment to License dated February 27, 2013 (tease”), pursuant to which Tenant currently leases
approximately 23,231 square feet of rentable atea“Premises”) on the stand 2nd floors of the building known as 1430 R&Q6,
Bedminster, New Jersey

B. Landlord and Tenant desire to surrender apprateiy 2,000 square feet from Suite #200, (“Surresdi®remises”) on the terms and
conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual uteléngs and covenants set forth herein, and @bed and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of whikchereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, imtgntd be legally bound, do hereby agree a:
follows:

1. Landlord and Tenant hereby agree that the Efe@ate of the Surrender shall be as of 11:59 pmApril 30, 2014 (the “Surrender Date”),
subject to:

(a) Tenant covenants and agrees to surrender ¢meigtrs to Landlord on or before the Surrender Dateant, clean and free of debris,
and in good order and repair as well as otherwisecordance with the applicable provisions oflthase.

Landlord shall have early access to the SurrendamiBes commencing April 1, 2014 in order to perfahe work necessary to demise
the space

2. Tenant'’s obligations to pay any Base Rent, amuit rent or other amounts due in accordance thigh_ease which accrue through the
Surrender Date shall survive the termination oftdren of the Lease and shall remain an obligatfohiemant until fully satisfied.

3. If Tenant fails to surrender the Surrender Psesbn or before the Surrender Date in accordaithdlve terms of this Agreement, then, fr
and after the day after the Amended Early Termimabate, Tenant shall be obligated to pay holdoset for the Surrendered Premises in
accordance with the Lease.

4. Effective May 1, 2014, Minimum Base Rent for ihemised Premises (as reduced) shall be as follows:

Square Fe Period Per Square Foo! Monthly Base Rel
21,231 5/1/2014 4/30/201 $ 27.0C $ 47,769.7
21,231 5/1/2015 4/30/201 $ 27.5( $ 48,654.3
21,231 5/1/2016 4/30/201 $ 28.0( $ 49,539.01
21,231 5/1/2017 4/30/201 $ 28.5( $ 50,423.6.
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5. Tenant shall pay an Early Termination Fee ferSurrendered Premises, which shall be considedelitiénal Rent, on a monthly basis an
calculated as follows:

Per Squat Monthly Bast  Number o
Existing Per
Square Fe Period Square Foot Foot $ Rent Months Total
2,000 5/1/2014 4/30/201 $ 27.0C $ 12.1t $ 2,025.0( 12  $24,300.0!
2,000 5/1/2015 4/30/201 $ 27.5( $ 12.3¢ $ 2,062.5( 12  $24,750.0!
2,000 5/1/2016 4/30/201 $ 28.0C $ 12.6( $ 2,100.0 12  $25,200.0!
2,000 5/1/2017 4/30/201 $ 28.5( $ 12.8: $ 2,137.5( 12  $25,650.0!
Total 45% 48  $99,900.0
Annualized Per Mont| $ 2,081.2!

$2,081.25 Per Month Additional Rent effective May014, any amounts previously paid in excess ®fforementioned will be issued as a
credit on Tenants billing statement.

6. The parties hereto represent and warrant to ethel that each has full right and authority tteeimto this Agreement and that the person
signing this Agreement on behalf of Landlord anddr& respectively has the requisite authority tahsact.

7. Except as expressly provided herein, all oteens, conditions, covenants, conditions and agratnas set forth in the Lease remain
unchanged and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlniendment as of the date first above written.

AGREED TO:
LANDLORD:

BEDMINSTER 2 FUNDING, LLC,
A New Jersey limited liability compar

By: /s/ Kurt R. Padavano
Name: Kurt R. Padavan
Title: Authorized Representati

TENANT:
AMARIN PHARMACEUTICALS IRELAND LTD
By:  /s/ John F. Thero

Name: John F. Thert
Title: President & CEC




Name

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limit

Amarin Pharma, Inc

Amarin Neuroscience Limite
Corsicanto Ltd

Ester Neurosciences Limite

Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 31024

Jurisdiction
Ireland
Delaware
Scotlanc
Ireland
Israel

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

()
(6)

(7)
(8)

Registration Statement (Forn-1 No. 33:-163704) of Amarin Corporation pl
Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-170505) of Amarin Corporation pl
Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-197936) of Amarin Corporation pl

Registration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-186833-143358, 333-132520, 333-110704, 333-10147%,333-168055) pertaining to
the 2002 Stock Option Plan of Amarin Corporatiot,

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-163@®4taining to the 2008 Long Term Incentive Awdeded May 20, 2008 issued to
Mr. Tom Maher, Mr. Alan Cooke, and Dr. Declan Dongd Amarin Corporation plc

Registration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-17G68W 333-183160) pertaining to the 2011 Stockritiece Plan of Amarin Corporation
plc,

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-180180) ) pertaining to the Employment InducementAd of Amarin Corporation plc, ar
Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-84152);

of our reports dated March 3, 2015, with respethéoconsolidated financial statements of Amarimp@cation plc and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of Amai@orporation plc included in this Annual Report ((faal0-K) of Amarin Corporation plc for
the year ended December 31, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
MetroPark, New Jersey
March 3, 2015



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-163704 and 333-1705050rm F-3, Registration Statement
No. 33173132 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement BR%.146839, 333-143358, 333-132520, 333-110703183.775, 333-84152,
333-168054, 333-176877, 333-168055, 333-18018Ba&BeL83160 on Form S-8 of our report dated Febr@@n2014, relating to the
consolidated financial statements as of Decembg2®13 and for each of the two years in the peeinded December 31, 2013 of Amarin
Corporation plc and subsidiaries, appearing in Atmisual Report on Form 10-K of Amarin Corporatido for the year ended December 31,
2014.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
March 3, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, John F. Thero, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Amarin Corporation plc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal controls over finan@glarting, or caused such internal controls ovearfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva@veanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 3, 2015 /s/ John F. Thero

John F. Thert
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Michael J. Farrell, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Amarin Corporation plc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva@veanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 3, 2015 /sl Michael J. Farre

Michael J. Farrel
Vice President, Financ
(Principal Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated (the “Exchange Act”), and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiftates Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), John F. Thergjdenat and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) of Amarin Corporatigic (the “Company”) and Michael J. Farrell, ViceeBident, Finance (Principal Financial
Officer) of the Company, each hereby certifies thtathe best of his knowledge:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K far geriod ended December 31, 2014, to which thisifi@ation is attached as
Exhibit 32.1 (the“ Annual Repor”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3gr 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act;

(2) The information contained in the Annual Redaitly presents, in all material respects, thefiitial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the end of such y«

/s/ John F. Thero

Date: March 3, 201 John F. Thert
President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakEutive Officer)

/sl Michael J. Farrell

Date: March 3, 201 Michael J. Farrel
Vice President, Finance (Principal Financial Offjc

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K toaebhit relates, is not deemed filed with the Se@siand Exchange Commission and is not
incorporated by reference into any filing of Ama@orporation plc under the Securities ExchangeoAdi934, as amended (whether made
before or after the date of the Form-K), irrespective of any general incorporation laage contained in such filin



